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WO KEE HONG (HOLDINGS) LIMITED

10/F, BLOCK A, WO KEE HONG BLDG, 585-609 CASTLE PEAK ROAL, KWAI CHUNG, N.T,, HONG KONG
TELEPHONE : (852) 2514 4700 FAX : (852) 2521 7198

24 Ot 2008 CEEE——

Securities and Exchange Commission
Office of International Corporate Finance
Division of Corporate Finance

450 Fifth Street, N.W,
Washington, D.C.20549 08005820
United States of America BY COURIER :

Attn. : Mr. Frank Zarb, Esq,

- SUPPL

Re: Wo Kee Hong (Holdings) Limited
Rule 12g3-2(b} Exemption
File No.82-3990

Pursuant to Rule 12g3-2(b)(1)(iii}, and on behalf of Wo Kee Hong (Holdings) Limited (the “Company™),
enclosed are the documents deseribed on Annex A hereto for your attention,

These documents supplement the information previously provided with respect to the Company’s request
for exemption under Rule 12g3-2(b), which was established on 23" February 1995.

This information is being furnished with the understanding that such information and documents will not be
deemed “filed” with the SEC or otherwise subject to the liabilities of Section 18 of the Securities Exchange
Act of 1934 (the “Bxchange Act”), and that neither this letter nor the furnishing of such documents and
information shall constitute an admission for any purpose that the Company is subject to the Exchange Act.

Please do not hesitate to contact the undersigned at (852) 2514 4880 in Hong Kong if you have any
questions.

Please acknowledge receipt of this letter and the enclosed materials by date-stamping the enclosed receipt
copy of this Jetter and please return it to Mr Daniel L.Goelzer, Baker & McKenzie, 815 Connecticut Avenue,

N.W., Washington D.C.20006-4078, U.5.A.

Thark you for your attention.

Yours faithfully :

For and on behalf of PROCESSED
Wo Kee Hong (Holdings) Limited NOV 0 6 2008

H

Phyllis Ng
Company Secretary

PN/ak
Encl. 3

f(/{] THOMSON REUTERS

SRLIEMEA Py L 4.

i

[ s TR PRt




File No. 82-3990

Annex A to Letter to the SEC dated

24 October s

2008  of

Wo Kee Hong (Holdings} Limited

The documents checked below are being fumnished to the SEC to supplement information

provided with respect to the Company’s request for exemption under Rule 12g3-2, which

exemption was established on February 23, 1995:

1.

2.

3.

DESCRIPTION OF DOCUMENT

Title: Memorandum and Articles of Association

Date: Upon incorporation

Entity requiring item:
Hong Kong Companies Registry (“the Companies Registry”)
under the Companies Ordinance of Hong Kong (the “Companies
Ordinance™).

Title: Annual Report

Date: Within four months of the end of the fiscal year and not less than
21 days before Annual General Meeting

Entity requiring item:
The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (“HKSE") pursuant
to Exchange Listing Agreement.

Title: Half Yearly Report and Preliminary Announcement

Date: Within three months of the end of half year period

Entity requiring item;

HKSE pursuant to Exchange Listing Agreement.

CHECK IF ENCLOSED

N/A

N/A

See attached




Title: Notification of Changes in Officers
(Directors, Secretaries and Auditors)

Date: Immediately upon change
Entity requiring item:

(a)  Companies Registry pursuant to the Companies
Ordinance; and

(b)  HKSE pursuant to Exchange Listing Agreement.

Title: Notification of Changes in Registered Office or Principal Place

of Business
Date: Immediately upon change
Entity requiring item:

(a)  Companies Registry pursuant to the Companies
Ordinance; and

(b)  HKSE pursuant to Exchange Listing Agreement.

Title: Notification of Changes in Rights attaching to Securities
Date: Immediately upon change
Entity requiring item:

(a) Companies Registry pursuant to the Companies
Ordinance; and

(b)  HKSE pursuant to Exchange Listing Agreement.

Title: Notification of Material Events to Keep Market Fully Informed

Date: As soon as reasonably practicable (as a practical measure,
immediately)

Entity requiring item:

HKSE pursuant to Exchange Listing Agreement.

N/A

N/A

N/A

N/A




10.

11.

Title: Notification of “Notifiable Transactions”

Date: As soon as possible after terms of transaction have been agreed
- (as a practical measure, immediately)

Entity requiring item:

HKSE pursuant to Exchange Listing Agreement.

Title: Notification of Meetings of Board of Directors at which:
(i) adividend is declared; or
(ii) arecommendation to do so is made; or
(iii) any announcement relating to profits or losses is to be
approved for publication
Date: At least three business days prior to meeting

Entity requiring item:

HKSE pursuant to Exchange Listing Agreement.

Title: Notification of Reasons for Allotment of Shares

Date: Not later than morning of next business day after allotment
letters or documents of title are dispatched

Entity requiring item:

HKSE pursuant to Exchange Listing Agreement.

Title: Notification of Repurchases of Company’s Shares

Date: As soon as possible (but no later than 9:30 a.m. on business day
following repurchase)

Entity requiring item:

HKSE pursuant to Exchange Listing Agreement.

See attached

See attached

N/A

See attached




12. Title: Al Circulars Sent to Shareholders
Date: Simultaneously with dispatch to Shareholders
Entity requiring item:

HKSE pursuant to Exchange Listing Agreement.

13. Title: Notification of Winding Up Proceedings (or Similar Actions)
Date: Immediately matter becomes known
Entity requiring item:

HKSE pursuant to Exchange Listing Agreement.

14. Title: Notification of Annual General Meetings
Date: Within 14 or 21 days of meeting
Entity requiring item:

HKSE pursuant to Exchange Listing Agreement.

15. Title: Notification of When Shares Held by Public Fall Below
Prescribed Percentage (25%)

Date: Immediately Company becomes aware
Entity.requiring item:

HKSE pursuant to Exchange Listing Agreement.

16. Title: Filing of Annual Return
Date: 42 days after annual general meeting
Entity requiring item:

Companies Registry pursuant to the Companies Ordinance.

See attached

N/A

N/A

N/A

N/A




17. Title:

Date:

Prospectus

As required

Entity requiring item:

18. Title:

Date:

(a)  Companies Registry pursuant to the Companies
Ordinance; and

(b)  HKSE pursuant to Exchange Listing Agreement.

Notification of All Special Resolutions Passed (i.e., resolutions
of members requiring approval of 75% of votes cast at a general
meeting)

Within 14 days of meeting

Entity requiring item:

19. Title:

Date:

Companies Registry pursuant to the Companies Ordinance.

Notification of Board Approvals for:

(1) decision to make or recommend declaration of distribution
to security holders;

(i) decision not to make or recommend declaration of
distribution to security holders which would otherwise
have been expected;

(iii) preliminary announcements of profits or losses;

(iv) proposed changes to capital structure, including
redemption of securities; and

(v) changes to general character of nature of business

Immediately after meeting; however, must be during non-trading

hours

Entity requiring item:

HKSE pursuant to Exchange Listing Agreement.

N/A

N/A

N/A




20. Title:

21.

22.

23.

24.

Mandate (i.e., Placements)
Date: Next business day
Entity requiring item:

HKSE pursuant to Exchange Listing Agreement.

Title: Individual substantial shareholder notices
Date: Three calendar days after reportable change in ownership
Entity requiring item:

HKSE pursuant to the Securities and Futures Ordinance.

Title: Corporate substantial shareholder notices
Date: Three calendar days after reportable change in ownership
Entity requiring item:

HKSE pursuant to the Securities and Futures Ordinance.

Title: Retumn of Allotment
Date: Eight weeks after allotment

Entity requiring itemn:

Companies Registry pursuant to the Companies Ordinance.

Title: Notice of Dissolution

Date: Minimum of one month prior to publication in Hong Kong
Gazette

Entity requiring item:

Companies Registry pursuant to the Companies Ordinance.

Notification of Issue of Securities under Authority of General

N/A

See attached

N/A

N/A

N/A




25. Title: Notification of all changes regarding the Memorandum and
Articles of Association, the Company name, person authorized
to accept service, or charges over Hong Kong properties.

Date: Immediately upon change

Entity requiring item:

Companies Registry pursuant to the Companies Ordinance. N/A

26. Other:
Title: Director’s / Chief Executive’s Notices

Date: Three calendar days after reportable change in ownership

Entity requiring item:
HKSE pursuant to the Securities and Futures Ordinance. See attached
27. Other:
Title: - Expiry of Share Options See attached
KMC00998.DOC



Itemno. 3 -

Item no. 8

Itemno.9 -

Item no. 11

Itemno. 12 -

Item no. 21 -

Item no. 26 -

Item no. 27 -

Attachment to Annex A File No. 82-3990

Interim Report 2008
Announcement: 2008 Interim Results {Unaudited)

Announcement: Suspension of Trading

Announcement: Very Substantial Acquisition in relation to the Acquisition of 80%
Interest in a Company Engaging in the Business of Retailing and Wholesaling of
Children Apparels, Grant of Put Option and Resumption of Trading

Announcement: Connected Transaction — Purchase of a Unit of Vintage Ferran
from a Connected Person

Notice of Meeting of the Board of Directors dated 5 September 2008

Four Sets of Form of Share Buyback Report to The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited dated 12, 13, 14 and 15 August 2008 respectively

Circular: Very Substantial Acquisition in relation to the Acquisition of 80% Interest
in a Company Engaging in the Business of Retailing and Wholesaling of Children
Apparels, Grant of Put Option

Form 1 - Individual Substantial Shareholder Notices (2 sets)

Form 3A — Director’s and Chief Executive’s Notice — Interests in Shares of Listed
Corporation (4 sets)

Board minutes in approving the expiry of share options (1 set)
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WO KEE HONG (HOLDINGS) LIMITED |

(Incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability)

(Stock Code: 720)

2008 INTERIM RESULTS (UNAUDITED)

WO KEE HONG (HOLDINGS) LIMITED is an investment holding company with major subsidiaries
engaged in the import, marketing, distribution and after-sales service of high quality, brand-name
products serving customers in the Asian region, in particular, the markets of The People’s Republic
of China (“PRC” (Note)), Hong Kong, Macau, Singapore and Malaysia, and property investment.
The products include principally cars and car accessories, motor yachts, helicopters, premium fashion
apparels and accessories, air-conditioning and refrigeration products, audio-visual equipment, car
audio and electronic products.




RESULTS

The Directors of Wo Kee Hong (Holdings) Limited (the “Company”) announce that the unaudited
consolidated results of the Company and its subsidiaries (together the “Group”) for the six months
ended June 30, 2008 were as follows:

Condensed Consolidated Income Statement
For the six months ended June 30

2008 2007
Notes HK$’000 HK$’000
(Unaudited) (Unaudited)
Turnover 3 540,921 457,546
Cost of sales (437,954) (372,325)
Gross profit 102,967 85,221
Other operating income 2,807 1,447
Distribution costs {41,335) (30,990)
Administrative expenses (72,517) (66,232)
Fair value gains on investment properties - 508
Loss from operations 4 (8,078) (10,046)
Finance costs (3,812) (7,690)
Provision for guarantee (950) -
Share of results of associates - (609)
Loss before tax (12,840) (18,345)
Income tax expenses 5 (473) (185)
Loss for the period (13,313) (18,530)
Attributable to:
Equity holders of the Company (17,825) (20,565)
Minority interests 4,512 2,035
(13,313) (18,530)
Losses per share for losses attributable to the
equity holders of the Company
— Basic and diluted (restated) 6 (5.82) cents (7.54) cents
Dividends NIL NIL




Condensed Consolidated Balance Sheet

June 30, December 31,

2008 2007
Notes HKS$’000 HKS$'000
(Unaudited) (Audited)
Non-current assets
Investment properties 17,641 9,600
Property, plant and equipment 47,453 44,541
Prepaid lease payments 1,565 1,558
Goodwill 27,087 2,787
Interests in associates 114 -
Available-for-sale financial assets 30,527 30,527
Deferred tax assets 18 16
124,405 89,029
Current assets
Inventories 248,206 124,993
Properties held for sale, at net realisable value 23,400 23,400
Trade and other receivables 221,596 185,075
Amounts due from associates 34,974 14,260
Other financial assets at fair value through
profit or loss 17 17
Cash and cash equivalents 248,850 363,949
777,043 711,694
Current liabilities
Trade and other payables 359,670 243,956
Bills payables 32,903 36,758
Tax payables 1,363 162
Amounts due to related companies 974 1,343
Convertible loan note 30,538 30,207
Obligations under finance leases — due within
one year 74 936
Borrowings — due within one year 7 69,799 70,827
495,321 384,189
Net current assets 281,722 327,505
Total assets less current liabilities 406,127 416,534




June 30, December 31,

2008 2007
Notes HK$’000 HK$’'000
(Unaudited) (Audited)
Non-current liabilities
Obligations under finance leases — due after
one year 141 168
Borrowings — due after one year 7 22,285 13,506
Deferred tax liabilities 6 6
22,432 13,680
Net assets 383,695 402,854
Capital and reserves
Share capital 30,638 255,314
Reserves 334,476 125,064
Equity attributable to equity holders of the
Company 365,114 380,378
Minority interests 18,581 22,476
Total equity 383,695 402,854
Notes:
1. Significant accounting policies

Basis of preparation

The unaudited condensed consolidated financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the Hong
Kong Accounting Standard (“HKAS") 34 “Interim Financial Reporting”, other relevant Hong Kong Accounting
Standards (“HKASs™), Interpretations and the Hong Kong Financial Report Standards (“HKFRSs™) issued by
the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants (the “HKICPA™) and the disclosure requirements of the
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance and the applicable disclosure requirements of the Rules Governing the Listing
of Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited.

The unaudited condensed consolidated financial statements have been prepared under the historical cost basis,
except for certain financial instruments that are measured at fair values.

The unaudited condensed consolidated financial statements should be read in conjunction with the Group’s annual
financial statements for the year ended December 31, 2007.

The accounting policies used in the preparation of these unaudited condensed consolidated financial statements
are consistent with those used in the preparation of the Group's annual consolidated financial statements for the
year ended December 31, 2007, except for the accounting policy disclosed herein.



Application of new and revised HKFRSs

The HKICPA has issued a number of new standards, amendments and interpretations, which are effective for
accounting periods beginning on or after January 1, 2008. The Group adopted the following new/revised HKFRSs
which are relevant to its operations:

HK(IFRIC) —Int 11 HKFRS 2: Group and Treasury Share Transactions
HK(IFRIC) - Int 12  Service Concession Arrangements

HK(IFRIC) - Int 14 HKAS 19 - The Limit on a Defined Benefit Asset, Minimum Funding Requirement and
their Interaction

The directors of the Company assessed the impacts of the adoption of these new interpretation and concluded that
the adoption of these new interpretation had no material impact on the results or the financial position of the Group
for the current or prior accounting period. Accordingly, no prior period adjustment has been recognised.

The Group has not early applied the following new and revised HKASs and HKFRSs or interpretations that have
been issued but are not yet effective in the unaudited condensed consolidated financial statements for the six
months ended June 30, 2008:

HKAS 1 (Revised) Presentation of Financial Statements'
HKAS 23 (Revised) Borrowing Costs'
HKAS 27 (Revised) Consolidated and Separate Financial Statements?

HKAS 32 & 1 (Amendments) Puttable Financial Instruments and Obligations Arising on Liquidation'

HKFRS 2 (Amendment) Vesting Conditions and Cancellations'
HKFRS 3 (Revised) Business Combinations?

HKFRS 8 Operating Segments!'

HK(IFRIC) - Int 13 Customer Loyalty Programmes®

! Effective for annual periods beginning on or after Januvary 1, 2009
2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after July 1, 2009
3 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after July 1, 2008




Business and geographical segments

Business segments

The principal activities of the Group are cars and car accessories, electrical appliances and property investment.
These divisions are the basis on which the Group reports its primary segment information. Segment information

about these businesses is presented below,

Six months ended June 30, 2008

Cars and car Electrical Property
accessories appliances investment Others  Eliminations  Consolidated
HK$000 HK$"000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$060
{Unaudited) (Unaudited) (Unaudited) (Unaudited) (Unacdited) (Unsudited)
Tumover
External sales 428,437 103,512 515 8,457 - 540,921
Inter-segment sales - - - - - ~
Total turnover 428,437 103,512 515 8,457 - 540,921
Results
Segment results 13,915 2,073 151 (12,311) - 3,828
Unallocated corporate expenses (11,906}
Loss from operations (8,078)
Finance costs (3,812)
Provision for guarantee (950}
Loss before tax (12,840}
Income tax expenses (473}
Loss for the period (13,313)



Six months ended June 30, 2007

Tumover
External sales
Inter-segment sales

Total wrnover

Results
Segment results

Unallocated corporate expenses

Loss from operations
Finance costs
Share of result of an associate

Loss before tax
Income tax expenses

Loss for the period

Geographical segments

Cars and car Electrical Property
accessories appliances investment Others  Eliminations  Consolidated
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK§'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
(Unaudited)  (Unaudited)  (Unaudited)  (Unaudited)  (Unaudited)  (Unaudited)
338,573 98,910 7,463 12,600 - 457,546
338,573 98,910 7,463 12,600 - 457,546
2,123 27 3,384 {5,286) - 248
(10,294)
(10,046)
(7,690
(609) - - - - (609)
{18,345)
(185)
(18,530)

The Group’s operations are mainly located in Hong Kong, Singapore, Malaysia, PRC and Macau. The following
table provides an analysis of the Group’s turnover by geographical market, irrespective of the origin of the goods/

services:

Hong Kong
Singapore
Malaysia
PRC
Macau
Others

Other operating income
Unallocated corporate expenses

Loss from operations

Turnover by
geographical market
Six months ended June 30

Contribution to
operating results
Six months ended June 30

2008 2007 2008 2007
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$°000 HK$’000
(Unaudited) (Unaudited) (Unaudited) (Unaudited)
428,242 388,127 885 (294)
39,473 32,564 1,972 777
17,669 14,896 2,042 859
51,345 15,369 (3,776) (2,587)
4,192 5,862 {(102) 17
- 728 - 29
540,921 457,546 1,021 (1,199
2,807 1,447
{11,906) (10,294)
(8,078) (10,046)




Loss from operations

Six months ended June 30

2008 2007
HK$°600 HK3°000
(Unaudited) (Unaudited)
Loss from operations has been arrived at after charging:
Cost of inventories recognised as expenses (included in cost of sales) 437,954 372,325
Amortisation of prepaid lease payments 17 -
Depreciation of:
— owned assels 4,908 4,742
— assets held under finance leases 376 441
Staff costs, including directors’ emoluments 55,500 41,800
Loss on disposal of property, plant and equipment - 7
Share-based payment expenses - 172
and crediting:
Interest income 4,815 544
Gain on disposal of property, plant and equipment 985 -

Income tax expenses

No provision for Hong Kong Profits Tax has been provided during the period as the Group did not have assessable
profits during the period (2007: 17.5%).

Overseas taxation is calculated at the rates prevailing in the respective jurisdictions.

Six months ended June 30

2008 2007
HK$’000 HK$'000
(Unaudited) (Unaudited)

Current tax:

Hong Kong - 366

Overseas 475 13

475 3719

Deferred tax:

Hong Kong - (194)

Overseas {2) -
Income tax expenses attributable to the Company and its subsidiaries 473 185

Losses per share

The calculation of the basic losses per share is based on the loss for the period attributable to equity holders of
the Company of approximately HK$17,825,000 (2007: HK$20,565,000) and on the weighted average number of
ordinary shares in issue during the period of 306,377,710 (2007: 272,680,594 (restated)) after adjusting for the
effects of bonus shares issue approved on April 30, 2008. The basic losses per share for 2007 had been adjusted
accordingly.

Diluted losses per share for the periods ended June 30, 2008 and 2007 were the same as the basic losses per share.
The Company’s outstanding share options and convertible loan note were not included in the calculation of diluted
losses per share because the effects of the Company’s outstanding share options and convertible loan note were
anti-dilutive.



Borrowings

June 30, December 31,

2008 2007

HK$'000 HK$'000

(Unaudited) (Audited)

Bank overdrafts 1,147 583
Bank loans 90,937 83,750
92,084 84,333

Secured {note 9) 81,376 75,309
Unsecured 10,708 9,024
92,084 84,333

The maturities of the above loans are as follows:

Within one year 69,799 70,827
More than one year, but not exceeding two years 3,734 2,760
More than two years, but not exceeding five years 11,644 4,305
More than five years 6,907 6,441
92,084 84,333
Less : Amounts due within one year shown under current liabilities (69,799) (70,827)
Amounts due after one year 22,285 13,506

The fair values of the Group’s borrowings at June 30, 2008 approximate to the corresponding carrying amounts.

Contingent liabilities

(@)

(b)

(c)

(@

The Company had provided corporate guarantees to certain banks for banking and other facilities
make avatlable to subsidiaries in amount of approximately HK$327,890,000 (December 31, 2007:
HK$279,862,000).

The Company had provided other guarantees issued for subsidiaries in the amount of approximately
HK$14,321,000 (December 31, 2007: HK$24,559,000),

Under a share purchase and subscription agreement signed on June 30, 2006, a subsidiary of the Company
provide a guarantee amounting to a maximum of RMBI11 million (approximately HK$11.8 million) in
settlement of certain liabilities of the disposed entity incurred prior to disposal. During the period ended
June 30, 2008, approximately HK$8,450,000 were paid under the guarantee and HK$950,000 (December
31, 2007: HK$7,500,000) has been recognised in the consolidated financial statements of the Group. At
June 30, 2008, the outstanding balance of the guarantee was approximately HK$5,100,000 (December 31,
2007: HK$3,500,000).

Under a share acquisition agreement signed on May 16, 2008, a subsidiary of the Company agrees to
acquire 60% of the issued share capital in Creative Pacific Limited at a consideration of HK$19,500,000.
The balance of the consideration of HK$9,750,000 is subject to adjustments to be made and shall be paid
in two installments. For details, please refer to the Company’s circular dated June 6, 2008.



9. Pledge of assets

June 30, December 31,

2008 2007

HK$'000 HK$’000

(Unaudited) (Audited)

Inventories 9,218 19,601
Investment properties 15,141 7,100
Properties held for sale 23,400 23,400
Deposits in bank 92,252 86,796
Property, plant and equipment 16,313 -
All assets of a subsidiary 20,887 19,602

The amounts represent assets pledged to banks and other licensed financial institution to secure banking facilities
granted to the Group. The pledged assets will be released upon the settlement of relevant bank borrowings.

INTERIM DIVIDEND
The Directors have resolved not to declare the payment of an interim dividend (2007: nil).

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS OF RESULTS OF OPERATIONS AND
FINANCIAL CONDITION

FINANCIAL REVIEW

Results

For the first half of 2008, Group turnover recorded a double-digit growth of 18.2% to HK$540.9
million, compared to HK$457.5 million for the same period last year. This upsurge in turnover was
mainly due to the continued growth of our car business.

Gross profit margin for the first half increased by 0.4% from 18.6% in 2007 to 19.0% in 2008 whilst
gross profit increased by HK$17.8 million to HK$103.0 million (2007: HK$85.2 million).

Distribution costs were up by 33.2% to HK$41.3 million (2007: HK$31.0 million), due mainly to a
general increase in these costs under the current inflationary economy together with the corresponding
increase in selling costs due to enlarged turnover. The 9.5% increase in administrative expenses of
HK$6.3 million from HK$66.2 million of last period to HK$72.5 million in this period is mainly
attributed to increased overheads and costs incurred to achieve the corresponding increase in
turnover.

The Board regrets to report a loss from operations of HK$8.1 million for the first half of 2008 (2007:
HK$10.0 million). This was mainly due to the loss incurred in the “Motor Yacht” business while it
was in its investment stage and the set-up costs incurred for new lifestyle products which have yet
to be recovered from future revenues. However, we are confident that these negative elements will
be very much mitigated, if not eliminated, in the coming months as a result of progress of business
development as well as corrective measures taken against inefficient operations.

Finance costs dropped by HK$3.9 million from last period’s HK$7.7 million to HK$3.8 million.

This improved cash flow position was derived from the timely disposal of Wo Kee Hong Building
last year.

10



The Board regrets to report a loss attributable to shareholders of HK$17.8 million (2007: HK$20.6
million), the reasons for which were highlighted above.

Cash flow, liguidity and financial resources

The Group was financed by a combination of its equity capital base, cash flow generated from
operations and bank borrowings. As usual, bank and other liabilities were being met upon their
maturities in the normal course of business.

A net outflow of cash of HK$118.2 million (2007: HK$29.0 million) was recorded, representing the
aggregate of funds used in operating, investing and financing activities in the reporting period.

At June 30, 2008, the Group had total borrowings amounting to HK$92.1 million (December 31,
2007: HK$84.3 million). The Group’s long term gearing ratio stood at 6.1% (December 31, 2007:
3.6%), based on non-current liabilities (excluding deferred tax) of HK$22.4 million (December
31, 2007: HK$13.7 million) and shareholders’ equity of HK$365.1 million (December 31, 2007:
HK$380.4 million). The current ratio was 1.6 (December 31, 2007: 1.9), based on current assets
of HK$777.0 million (December 31, 2007: HK$711.7 million) and current liabilities of HK$495.3
million (December 31, 2007: HK$384.2 million).

[t is the Group’s management practice to hedge foreign currency transactions with the objective to
substantially stabilize costs via the pegging of the exchange rates with bankers. Accordingly, the
Group was not exposed to material fluctuations in exchange rates and related hedges during the period
under review. At June 30, 2008 the total outstanding foreign exchange contracts purchased with banks
amounted to HK$30.4 million (December 31, 2007: HK$11.1 million).

The Group had trading facilities at June 30, 2008 amounting to HK$310.6 million (December 31,
2007: HK$274.2 million) of which HK$168.1 million (December 31, 2007: HK$150.2 million) were
utilized. Certain of the Group’s properties, inventories, cash deposits and all assets of a subsidiary
were pledged at this period end in an aggregate amount of HK$177.2 million (December 31, 2007:
HK$156.5 million) to secure facilities granted and a guarantee issued by our banks.

The Group had capital commitment at June 30, 2008 amounting to HK$24.4 million (December
31, 2007: HK$0.6 million). At June 30, 2008 the Group had contingent liabilities of approximately
HK$5.1 million (December 31, 2007: HK$3.5 million) in respect of a bank guarantee issued by a
subsidiary to the purchaser of the disposed associate in Jiangmen and HK$9.8 million (subject to
adjustment) (December 31, 2007: nil) in respect of the acquisition of a subsidiary under an agreement
signed during the reporting period.

BUSINESS REVIEW

Cars and Car Accessories

The business consists mainly of the import, distribution and after-sales service of Italian “Ferrari”,
“Maserati”, “Alfa Romeo” and “Fiat” cars and spare parts in Hong Kong and Macau. Since the end

of 2006, we had also been operating a “Ferrari” and “Maserati” car dealership in Dalian, Northern
China.

Compared to the same period last year, turnover increased by 26.5% to HK$428.4 million as a

result of continued growth of car trading business and our expanded service facilities and increased
ownership of these brands.
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Sales of the “Ferrari” 8-cylinder models, the F430 and F430 Spider, continued to be strong; the newly
launched 430 Scuderia generated an excellent response in the market. For the 12-cylinder models,
the 599 GTB Fiorano enjoyed great success whilst the new 612 Scaglietti “One-to-One” contributed
good additional sales. The Group’s order portfolio for Ferrari continued to remain healthy with an
overall lead-time of close to two years for the current range. Overall interest and demand remained
healthy with the launch of the F430 Scuderia model late last year adding further impetus. Although
competition became more intensive, “Ferrari” retained its dominance in Hong Kong with a “Sports
Car” segment share of close to 50%.

Ferrari’s forthcoming model, now named the California, will be launched at the Paris Motor Show in
the fourth quarter of 2008. Interest in this car is already significant, with close to 150 orders placed
with the Group as at the end of June. First deliveries are expected to begin during the second quarter
of 2009.

As for the other major brand, “Maserati”, its brand awareness continued to increase in the market;
together with the introduction of the new Quattroporte Sport GTS, the very good sales of the
Quattroporte Automatic and the very high demand for the GranTurismo, “Maserati” unit sales
increased by about 170% over the same period last year. The GranTurismo enjoys an order portfolio
of some 12 months. Deliveries of the new “Maserati” GranTurismo S are expected to boost sales
further.

Our dealership in Dalian continued to achieve budgeted results with good sales of both “Ferrari”
and “Maserati” cars. Our participation in the Shenyang Motor Show made a good impression in this
largest city of Northeastern China, followed by satisfactory sales. The Group is also very encouraged
by having been awarded, in principle, a second dealership in China for both “Ferrari” and “Maserati”
cars. We are confident that this new territory will bring in good additional sales and profit to the
Group when it will open in the last quarter of 2008.

The PDI (Pre-delivery Inspection) work being carried out by the Group on behalf of Ferrari Maserati
Cars International Trading Co., Ltd. in Shanghai generated good additional income with the opening
of a new, dedicated PDI Centre in April.

The “Alfa Romeo” business was slow due to a highly competitive market environment. We expect
to see improvement in the second half of the year. The new “Fiat” business started well, with a good
number of the new Cinquecento (500) model pre-sold.

The entire Group’s new and newly refurbished “Ferrari”, “Maserati”, “Alfa Romeo” and “Fiat”
facilities are now fully operational. Plans are being made for the re-location of our Tokwawan,
Kowloon “Ferrari” and “Maserati” service centre in the second half of 2008.

Electrical Appliances

The business consists of marketing and distribution of a wide range of consumer and commercial
air-conditioning and home appliance products from major brands, namely “MHI” (Mitsubishi Heavy
Industries of Japan), “Frigidaire”, “Sansui” and “Daewoo”, and audio-visual products of our own
“Rogers” and “Bodysonic” brands, “Marantz” and “Denon” audio-visual products of Japan and
“Alpine” car electronics of Japan. The product ranges are well placed in the market to suit the needs
of different market segments. They include high quality residential and commercial air-conditioning
equipment, electrical home appliances like refrigerators, freezers, washing machines, wine coolers
and car electronics products like car CD, iPod and DVD players, TV monitors and GPS navigation
systems.
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Turnover for the first half of 2008 was HK$103.5 million which increased by 4.7% when compared
with the same period of 2007.

The exceptionally cool weather in May and the successive rainy days in June and July caused a
downturn to the air-conditioning business. Jobbers and retailers were tied down with high inventory
which resulted in price dumping in the market. The Group responded by lowering its inventory level
and putting more effort into developing the small and medium business sectors with our commercial
air-conditioners.

Our own British “Rogers” brand performed well in the period with the relaunch of the legendary
LS 3/5a monitor speaker system; a total of 12 Rogers shop-in-shop counters were opened in major
chain stores in Eastern China. We expect the “Rogers™ business to continue to grow in the second
half of 2008.

The Group was also awarded the exclusive distributorship of the top end luxurious audio brand
“Steinway Lyngdorf” for Hong Kong, Macau and PRC. We are confident that this new brand will
further improve the sales and profitability of our audio-visual business.

Our subsidiary in Singapore achieved the best half yearly results in the last ten years, with good
business growth of “Alpine” car electronics. The “MHI” air-conditioning business in Singapore
achieved good sales growth and profitability in the first half due to the introduction of the new
multi-split air-conditioner, certification of the highest ratings by the National Environmental Agency,
coupled with successful promotional activities and strong dealer networking. Our subsidiary in
Malaysia achieved good first half yearly results with sales and profit growths due to successful
implementation of our marketing strategy.

The group expects the good performance of its businesses in Singapore and Malaysta to continue in
the second half of the year.

Motor Yachts

The business consists of the import and distribution of the luxurious Italian “Ferretti” brand in PRC
and the leading Taiwanese “Horizon” motor yachts in Hong Kong, Macau and PRC.

2008 marks the first year for the Group to act as the exclusive distributor of “Ferretti” motor yachts
in PRC. In line with our business development plan for 2008, our offices in Xiamen, Shenzhen and
Shanghai are actively engaged in the network development of the “Ferretti” and “Horizon” brands
through exhibitions, advertising and promotion campaigns, with one “Ferretti” yacht sold and ready
for delivery during the second half of 2008, with encouraging increase in sales prospects for the
remainder of 2008.

The first half of the year has also been very encouraging for Horizon with two yachts sold for delivery
in 2008, and a number of orders are being secured already for 2009.

The Group expects continuing sales growth for the new business of motor yachts in the second half
of 2008.
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Fashion and Accessories

The business consists of the import, distribution, sub-licensing and retailing of several fashion brands
including Italian “John Richmond”, “Richmond ‘X’”, “Richmond Denim” and “Sweet Years”. These
are premium brands with good potential in our markets, ranging from upmarket fashion to designer
casual wear, Mono brand shops of “John Richmond”, “Richmond *X’” and “Sweet Years” were
opened in Hong Kong and Beijing; new shops for these brands will be opened in Hong Kong, as well
as other major Chinese cities in 2008 and beyond.

The Group is also licensed to make American “Playboy” branded female intimate and swim wears
and, recently, the “Playboy” ladies fashion line. Several sales counters were established in major
department stores and more are planned to be set up in the coming years.

As part of our business expansion strategy, the Group acquired a controlling shareholding of 60%
equity interest in Creative Pacific Limited, a company engaged in the business of design, trading and
sale of apparel in PRC and, together with its subsidiaries, owns the reputed fashion brand “V-one”
which comprises seven clothing lines with different styles. It also maintains a network of about 130
points of sales in the key cities of PRC.

The Group is also in the process of setting up a 50/50 joint-venture with the Italian Binda Group to
distribute exclusively upmarket and lifestyle watch brands like “Breil Milano”, “D&G”, “Moschino™
and Ducati” in Hong Kong, Macau and PRC.

The Group is working progressively to build our extensive retail network as a platform to promote
the various lifestyle fashion brands represented by us. As the Hong Kong and PRC luxury markets
continue to grow at a fast pace, sales growth and high profit margins are expected in the future.

PERSONNEL

At June 30, 2008, the total number of employees of the Group, excluding associates, was 426 (2007:
388), representing a 9.8% increase in headcount. This is due to the expansion of our car business
group, motor yacht businesses and the set-up of retail shops in Hong Kong and PRC for prestigious
branded fashion and accessories.

With the continued expansion in PRC and in the direction of securing more luxurious brands for
distribution, we practised more local recruitment. The management is committed to staff motivation
and training to ensure our employees remain stable and yet competitive and dynamic in the
marketplace.

SUBSEQUENT EVENTS

The Group also has just entered into an exclusive distributorship agreement with the upmarket Italian
fashion brand, Marina Yachting. Mono brand boutiques will be set up to promote this brand in the
second half of the years.

On 2 September 2008, Smart Apex Holdings Limited, an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of the
Company, entered into an agreement with independent third parties to acquire 80% of the issued share
capital in SKC Group Limited at an aggregate consideration of HK$96,200,000, subject to adjustment
as detailed in the announcement of the Company dated 4 September 2008. The consideration of the
acquisition is payable in cash. SKC Group Limited and its subsidiaries, which are principally engaged
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in the retailing and wholesaling of children apparels, own the “Kingkow” brand name with 98 points of
sales in the Greater China Region, Korea, Southeast Asia and Middle East. Details of the transaction
are set out in the announcement of the Company published on 4 September 2008.

The 7.25% convertible loan note in the principal amount of HK$30,000,000 issued to Cross Profit
Capital Limited, a wholly owned subsidiary of Hanny Holdings Limited matured and was fully repaid
on 5 September 2008.

On September 18, 2008, Auto Italia Limited, an approximately 70.50% owned subsidiary of the
Company purchased a unit of vintage Ferrari from Mr. Richard Man Fai Lee, a Director and
a controlling shareholder of the Company, for a cash consideration of HK$4.68 million. The
consideration shall be paid through internal resources. Details of the transactions are set out in the
announcement of the Company published on September 18, 2008.

PROSPECTS

As the general economic situations in United States, Europe and Japan weaken, we inevitably witness
a slow down in our key markets in Asia. However, the Group remains optimistic of the growth in
our major business sectors. This is particularly true in our luxury car and motor yachts businesses
supported by forthcoming launches of exciting “Ferrari” and “Maserati” models and a comfortable
order portfolio.

The newly acquired fashion brands and distribution networks of “V-one™ and “Kingkow” will provide
additional sales revenues to the Group. These, together with our increasing collection of fashion and
watch brands, will grow the Group into an important lifestyle distribution company.

Business of the air-conditioning and audio-visual business will remain competitive.

The management sees the second half of 2008 as an opportune period of sales growth and network
expansion for the Group.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF SECURITIES

During the six months ended June 30, 2008, the Company and its subsidiaries have not repurchased,
spld or redeemed any of the Company’s securities.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

In the opinion of the Directors, the Company has complied with the code provisions of the Code on
Corporate Governance Practices as set out in Appendix 14 of the Rules Governing the Listing of
Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (“Listing Rules”) during the six months
ended June 30, 2008, except in relation to the separation of the role of chairman and chief executive
officer under the code provision A.2.1.

Code provision A.2.1 stipulates that the roles of chairman and chief executive officer should be
separate and should not be performed by the same individual. Mr. Richard Man Fai LEE is the
Executive Chairman and Chief Executive Officer. The Board considers that this structure will not
impair the balance of power and authority between the Board and the management. This is because
the Board has adopted clear guideline as to the power and authority of the Board and the management,
There is a guideline as to the power and duties of Chief Executive Officer. The details are set out
fully in the corporate governance report in 2005 annual report.
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In addition, the Board which comprises experienced and high caliber individuals meets regularly
to discuss issues and operation of the Group. The Board believes that this structure is conducive to
strong and consistent leadership, enabling the Group to make and implement decisions promptly and
efficiently.

COMPLIANCE WITH THE MODEL CODE FOR SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS BY
DIRECTORS OF LISTED ISSUERS (THE “MODEL CODE”)

The Company has adopted a code of conduct for transactions in the Company’s securities by the
Directors that complies with the Model Code as set out in Appendix 10 of the Listing Rules. Followed
specific enquiries by the Company, all Directors have confirmed that they have complied with the
required standards as set out in the Model Code throughout the six months ended June 30, 2008.

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Company set up an Audit Committee comprising Mr. Raymond Cho Min LEE (Chairman), Mr.
Boon Seng TAN and Mr. Ying Kwan CHEUNG, all of whom are Independent Non-executive Directors
of the Company. In establishing the terms of reference for this Committee, the Directors have had
regard to “A Guide for Effective Audit Committee” issued by the Hong Kong Society of Accountants
(now known as the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants) in February 2002 and the
Code on Corporate Governance Practices.

The Audit Committee of the Company has reviewed the interim accounts and the Interim Report
2008, and was content that the accounting policies of the Group are in accordance with the current
best practice in Hong Kong.

By order of the Board
WO KEE HONG (HOLDINGS) LIMITED
Richard Man Fai LEE f
Executive Chairman & CEQ

Hong Kong, September 18, 2008

As at the date of this announcement, the Board comprises Mr. Richard Man Fai LEE (Executive
Chairman and Chief Executive Officer), Mr. Jeff Man Bun LEE, Mr. Tik Tung WONG and Mr.
Waison Chit Sing HUI, all of whom are Executive Directors, Ms. Kam Har YUE, who is a Non-
executive Director, Mr. Boon Seng TAN, Mr. Raymond Cho Min LEE and Mr. Ying Kwan CHEUNG,
all of whom are Independent Non-executive Directors.

Note: For the sole purpose of this announcement, PRC excludes Hong Kong and Macau Special Administrative
Regions.
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Brand with a Heart

Company’s Vision
The world is striving towards a harmonic civilisa tion; our
greatest achievement is the partaking in this paramount journey.
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Management Discussion and Analysis
BEEEBNRROM

INTRODUCTION

WO KEE HONG (HOLDINGS) LIMITED is an investment
holding company. Its subsidiaries were principally engaged in
the import, marketing and distribution of cars and car
accessories, motor yachts, helicopters, premium fashion
apparels and accessories, air-conditioning and refrigeration
products, audio-visual equipment, car audio and electronic
products and property investment.

FINANCIAL REVIEW
Results

For the first half of 2008, Group turnover recorded a double-
digit growth of 18.2% to HK$540.9 million, compared to
HK$457.5 million for the same period last year. This upsurge
in turnover was mainly due to the continued growth of our
car business.

Gross profit margin for the first half increased by 0.4% from
18.6% in 2007 to 19.0% in 2008 whilst gross profit increased
by HK$17.8 million to HK$103.0 million (2007: HK$85.2
million).

Distribution costs were up by 33.2% to HK$41.3 million {2007.
HK$31.0 million), due mainly to a general increase in these
costs under the current inflationary economy together with
the corresponding increase in selling costs due to enlarged
turnover. The 9.5% increase in administrative expenses of
HK$6.3 million from HK$66.2 million of last period to HK$72.5
million in this period is mainly attributed to increased
overheads and costs incurred to achieve the corresponding
increase in turnover.

The Board regrets to report a loss fram operations of HK$8.1
million for the first half of 2008 (2007: HK$10.0 million).
This was mainly due to the loss incurred in the "Maotor Yacht”
business while it was in its investment stage and the set-up
costs incurred for new lifestyle products which have yet to be
recovered from future revenues. However, we are confident
that these negative elements will be very much mitigated, if
not eliminated, in the coming months as a result of progress
of business development as well as corrective measures taken
against inefficient operations.
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Finance costs dropped by HK$3.9 million from last period’s
HK3$7.7 million to HK$3.8 million. This improved cash flow
position was derived from the timely disposal of Wo Kee
Hong Building last year.

The Board regrets to report a loss attributable to shareholders
of HK$17.8 million (2007: HK$20.6 millian), the reasons for
which were highlighted above,

Cash flow, liquidity and financial resources

The Group was financed by a combination of its equity capital
base, cash flow generated from operations and bank
borrowings. As usual, bank and other liabilities were being
met upon their maturities in the normal course of business.

A net outflow of cash of HK$118.2 million (2007 HK$29.0
million} was recorded, reprasenting the aggregate of funds
used in operating, investing and financing activities in the
reporting period.

At June 30, 2008, the Group had total borrowings amounting
to HK$92.1 million (December 31, 2007: HK$84.3 million).
The Group's long term gearing ratio stood at 6.1% (December
31, 2007: 3.6%), based on non-current liabilities (excluding
deferred tax) of HK$22.4 million (December 31, 2007;
HK$13.7 millien) and shareholders” equity of HK$365.1 million
(December 31, 2007; HK%380.4 million). The current ratio
was 1.6 (December 31, 2007: 1.9), based on current assets
of HK$777.0 million {December 31, 2007; HK$711.7 million}
and current liabilities of HK$495.3 million {December 31,
2007: HK$384.2 million).

It is the Group’s management practice to hedge foreign
currency transactions with the objective to substantially
stabilize costs via the pegging of the exchange rates with
bankers. Accordingly, the Group was not exposed to material
fluctuations in exchange rates and related hedges during the
pericd under review. At June 30, 2008 the total outstanding
foreign exchange contracts purchased with banks amounted
to HK$30.4 million (December 31, 2007: HK$11.1 million).
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The Group had trading facilities at June 30, 2008 amounting
to HK$310.6 million (December 31, 2007: HK$274.2 million)
of which HK$168.1 mitlion {December 31, 2007: HK$150.2
million) were utilized. Certain of the Group’s properties,
inventories, cash deposits and all assets of a subsidiary were
pledged at this period end in an aggregate amount of
HK$177.2 million {December 31, 2007: HK$156.5 million) to
secure facilities granted and a guarantee issued by our banks.

The Group had capital commitment at June 20, 2008
amounting to HK$24.4 million (December 31, 2007: HK3$C.6
million). At June 30, 2008 the Group had contingent liabilities
of approximately HK$5.1 million {December 31, 2007; HK$3.5
million) in respect of a bank guarantee issued by a subsidiary
to the purchaser of the disposed associate in Jiangmen and
HK$9.8 million (subject to adjustment) {December 31, 2007:
nil) in respect of the acquisition of a subsidiary under an
agreement signed during the reporting period.

BUSINESS REVIEW
Cars and Car Accessories

The business consists mainly of the import, distribution and
after-sales service of Italian “Ferrari”, “Maserati”, “Alfa
Romeo” and “Fiat” cars and spare parts in Hong Kong and
Macau, Since the end of 2006, we had also been operating a
“Ferrari” and "Maserati” car dealership in Dalian, Northern
China.

Compared to the same period last year, turnover increased
by 26.5% to HK$428.4 million as a result of continued growth
of car trading business and our expanded service facilities
and increased ownership of these brands.

Sales of the "Ferrari” 8-cylinder models, the £430 and F430
Spider, continued to be strong; the newly launched 430
Scuderia generated an excellent response in the market. For
the 12-cylinder models, the 599 GTB Fiorano enjoyed great
success whilst the new 612 Scaglietti "One-to-One”
contributed good additional sales. The Group’s order portfolio
for “Ferrari® continued to remain healthy with an overall
lead-time of close to two years for the current range. Overall
interest and demand remained healthy with the launch of the
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F430 Scuderia model late last year adding further impetus.
Although competition became more intensive, “Ferrari”
retained its dominance in Hong Kong with a “Sports Car”
segment share of close to 50%.

"Ferrari’'s” forthcoming model, now named the California,
will be launched at the Paris Motor Show in the fourth quarter
of 2008. Interest in this car is already significant, with close
to 150 orders placed with the Group as at the end of June.
First deliveries are expected to begin during the second quarter
of 2009.

As for the other major brand, “Maserati”, its brand awareness
continued to increase in the market; together with the
introduction of the new Quattroporte Sport GTS, the very
good sales of the Quattroporie Automatic and the very high
demand for the GranTurismo, “Maserati” unit sales increased
by about 170% over the same period last year. The
GranTurismo enjoys an order portfolic of some 12 months.
Deliveries of the new "Maserati” GranTurismo S are expected
to boost sales further.

Cur dealership in Dalian continued to achieve budgeted results
with good sales of both “Ferrari” and “"Maserati” cars. Qur
participation in the Shenyang Motor Show made a good
impression in this largest city of Northeastern China, followed
by satisfactory sales. The Group is also very encouraged by
having been awarded, in principle, a second dealership in
China for both “Ferrari” and "Maserati” cars. We are
confident that this new territory will bring in good additional
sales and profit to the Group when it will open in the last
quarter of 2008.

The PDI (Pre-delivery Inspection) work being carried out by
the Group on behalf of Ferrari Maserati Cars International
Trading Co., Ltd. in Shanghai generated good additional
income with the opening of a new, dedicated PDI Centre in
April.

The "Alfa Romeo” business was slow due to a highly
competitive market environment. We expect to see
improvement in the second half of the year. The new "Fiat”
business started well, with a good number of the new
Cinguecento {500) model pre-sold.
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The entire Group's new and newly refurbished “Ferrari”,
"Maserati”, “Alfa Romeo” and “Fiat” facilities are now fully
operational. Plans are being made for the re-location of our
Tokwawan, Kowloan “Ferrari” and “Maserati” service centre
in the second half of 2008.

Electrical Appliances

The business consists of marketing and distribution of a wide
range of consumer and commercial air-conditioning and home
appliance products from major brands, namely “MHI”
(Mitsubishi Heavy Industries of Japan), "Frigidaire”, “Sansui”
and "Daewoo"”, and audio-visual products of our own
“Rogers” and “Bodysonic” brands, "Marantz” and "Denon”
audio-visual products of Japan and “Alpine” car electronics
of Japan. The product ranges are well placed in the market
to suit the needs of different market segments. They include
high quality residential and commercial air-conditioning
equipment, electrical home appliances like refrigerators,
freezers, washing machines, wine coolers and car electronics
products like car CD, iPod and DVD players, TV monitors and
GPS navigation systems.

Turnover for the first half of 2008 was HK$103.5 million
which increased by 4.7% when compared with the same
period of 2007.

The exceptionally cool weather in May and the successive
rainy days in June and July caused a downturn to the air-
conditioning business. Jobbers and retailers were tied down
with high inventory which resulted in price dumping in the
market. The Group responded by lowering its inventary level
and putting more effort into developing the small and medium
business sectors with our commercial air-conditioners.

CQur own British "Rogers” brand performed well in the period
with the refaunch of the legendary LS 3/5a monritor speaker
system; a total of 12 Rogers shop-in-shop ceunters were
opened in major chain stores in Eastern China. We expect
the "Rogers” business to continue to grow in the second half
of 2008.

The Group was also awarded the exclusive distributorship of
the top end luxurious audio brand “Steinway Lyngdorf” for
Hong Kong, Macau and PRC. We are confident that this new
brand will further improve the sales and profitability of our
audio-visual business.
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Management Discussion and Analysis
ERENBROW

Our subsidiary in Singapore achieved the best half yearly
results in the last ten years, with good business growth of
“Alpine” car electronics. The "MHI” air-conditioning business
in Singapore achieved good sales growth and profitability in
the first half due to the introduction of the new multi-split
air-conditioner, certification of the highest ratings by the
National Environmental Agency, coupled with successful
promotional activities and strong dealer networking. Our
subsidiary in Malaysia achieved good first half yearly results
with sales and profit growths due to successful implementation
of our marketing strategy.

The group expects the good performance of its businesses in
Singapore and Malaysia to continue in the second half of the
year.

Motor Yachts

The business consists of the import and distribution of the
luxurious Italian “Ferretti” brand in PRC and the leading
Taiwanese “Horizon” motor yachts in Hong Kong, Macau
and PRC.

2008 marks the first year for the Group to act as the exclusive
distributor of “Ferretti” motor yachts in PRC. In line with our
business development plan for 2008, our offices in Xiamen,
Shenzhen and Shanghai are actively engaged in the network
development of the “Ferretti” and "Horizon” brands through
exhibitions, advertising and promotion campaigns, with one
“Ferretti” yacht sold and ready for delivery during the second
half of 2008, with encouraging increase in sales prospects
for the remainder of 2008.

The first half of the year has also been very encouraging for
"Horizon" with two yachts sald for delivery in 2008, and a
number of orders are being secured already for 2009.

The Group expects continuing sales growth for the new
business of moter yachts in the second half of 2008.
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Management Discussion and Analysis
EEENWRDAMN

Fashion and Accessories

The business consists of the import, distribution, sub-licensing
and retailing of several fashion brands including Itatian “John
Richmond”, “Richmond ‘X'", “Richmond Denim” and “Sweet
Years". These are premium brands with good potential in our
markets, ranging from upmarket fashion to designer casual
wear. Mono brand shops of "John Richmond”, “Richmond
‘X" and “Sweet Years” were opened in Hong Keng and
Beijing; new shops for these brands will be opened in Hong
Kong, as well as other major Chinese cities in 2008 and
beyond.

The Group is also licensed to make American "Playboy”
branded female intimate and swim wears and, recently, the
“Playboy” ladies fashion line. Several sales counters were
established in major department stores and more are planned
10 be set up in the coming years.

As part of our business expansion strategy, the Group acquired
a controlling shareholding of 60% equity interest in Creative
Pacific Limited, a company engaged in the business of design,
trading and sale of apparel in PRC and, together with its
subsidiaries, owns the reputed fashion brand “V-one” which
comprises seven clothing lines with different styles. It alse
maintains a network of about 130 points of sales in the key
cities of PRC.

The Group is alsc in the process of setting up a 50/50 joint-
venture with the Italian Binda Group to distribute exclusively
upmarket and lifestyle watch brands like "Breil Milano”,
“D&G", “Moschino” and Ducati” in Hong Keng. Macau and
PRC.

The Group is working progressively to build our extensive
retail network as a platform to promote the various lifestyle
fashion brands represented by us. As the Hong Kong and
PRC luxury markets continue to grow at a fast pace, sales
growth and high profit margins are expected in the future.
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Management Discussion and Analysis
EEBHWRON

PERSONNEL

At June 30, 2008, the total number of employees of the
Group, excluding associates, was 426 (2007: 388),
representing a 9.8% increase in headcount. This is due to
the expansion of our car business group, motor yacht
businesses and the set-up of retail shops in Hong Kong and
PRC for prestigious branded fashion and accessories.

With the continued expansion in PRC and in the direction of
securing more luxurious brands for distribution, we practised
more local recruitment. The management is committed to
staff motivation and training to ensure our employees remain
stable and yet competitive and dynamic in the marketplace.

INTERIM DIVIDEND

The Directors have resolved not to declare the payment of an
intertm dividend {2007: nil).

SUBSEQUENT EVENTS

The Group alse has just entered into an exclusive
distributorship agreement with the upmarket Italian fashion
brand, Marina Yachting. Mono brand boutiques will be set
up to promote this brand in the second half of the years.

On September 2, 2008, Smart Apex Holdings Limited, an
indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company, entered
into an agreement with independent third parties to acquire
80% of the issued share capital in SXC Group Limited at an
aggregate consideration of HK$96,200,000, subject to
adjustment as detailed in the announcement of the Company
dated September 4, 2008. The consideration of the acquisition
is payable in cash. SKC Group Limited and its subsidiaries,
which are principally engaged in the retailing and wholesaling
of children apparels, own the "Kingkow"” brand name with
98 points of sales in the Greater China Region, Karea,
Southeast Asia and Middle East. Details of the transaction
are set out in the announcement of the Company published
on September 4, 2008.

The 7.25% convertible loan note in the principal amount of
HK$30,000,000 issued to Cross Profit Capital Limited, a whally
owned subsidiary of Hanny Holdings Limited matured and
was fully repaid on September 5, 2008.

BT
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Management Discussion and Analysis

EEBNBRIN

On September 18, 2008, Auto ltalia Limited, an approximately
70.50% owned subsidiary of the Company purchased a unit
of vintage Ferrari from Mr. Richard Man Fai Lee, a Director
and a controlling shareholder of the Company, for a cash
consideration of HK$4.68 million. The consideration shall be
paid through internal resources. Details of the transactions
are set out in the announcement of the Company published
on September 18, 2008.

PROSPECTS

As the general economic situations in United States, Europe
and Japan weaken, we inevitably witness a slow down in our
key markets in Asia. However, the Group remains optimistic
of the growth in our major business sectors. This is particularly
true in our luxury car businesses supported by forthcoming
launches of exciting “Ferrari” and "Maserati” models and a
comfortable order partfolio.

The newly acquired fashion brands and distribution networks
of “V-one” and the soon to be acquired brand and distribution
network of "Kingkow” will provide additional sales revenues
to the Group. These, together with our increasing ccllection
of fashion and watch brands, will grow the Group into an
important lifestyle distribution company.

Business of the air-conditioning and audio-visual business will
remain competitive.

The management sees the second half of 2008 as an

opportune pericd of sales growth and network expansion for
the Group.
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Condensed Consolidated Income Statement

EHFESRER

For the six months ended June 30, 2008

BE-SENERBZ+AL

S~ fEA

2008 2007
—22NnE —2ELE
HK$'000 HK$ 000
BYT B TT
Notes (Unaudited) {Unaudited)
B i (REER) (FRIEEIR)

Turnover EER 3 540,921 457,546
Cost of sales HERE (437,954) (372,325)
Gross profit E 5 102,967 85,221
Other operating income Efih & WA 2,807 1,447
Distribution costs 7§ AR A {41,335) (30,990)
Administrative expenses THRER (72,517) {(66,232)
Fair value gains on investment properties EEME L FEKE - 508
Loss from operations Rern (8,078) (10,046}
Finance costs B8 A 5 (3.812) (7.690}
Provision for guarantee BirRE (950) -
Share of results of associates B DRHE - (609)
Loss before tax BEASR {12,840) {18,345)
Income tax expenses Frig i F = 6 (473) (185)
Loss for the period SHBER {13,313) {18,530)
Attributable to: P

Equity holders of the Company EoaERBAEA (17.825) {20,565)

Minority interests 8 A% A S 4,512 2,035

{13,313) (18,530}

Losses per share for losses ELATHBERA ARG

attributable to the equity holders ZSRER

of the Company
- Basic and diluted (restated)

- BXRER#EE(EY)

7 (5.82) cents{l

(7.54) centsil

Dividends

Bra

8 NILE

NILEE
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Condensed Consolidated Balance Sheet

MG EEERER

At June 30, 2008
R-FFENFRA=TA

June 30, December 31,

2008 2007
—28NE ZBTLF
AA=+RA+=-A=+—AH
HKS$'000 HK$ 000
A% T BT
Notes (Unaudited) (Audited)
Bt & (REEH) (BEE)
Non-current assets EREEE
Investment properties HEME 9 17,641 9,600
Property, plant and equipment mE - BERKE 10 47,453 44,541
Prepaid lease payments A EExE 1,565 1,658
Goodwill [k <3 27,087 2,787
Interests in associates REE LT 2R 114 -
Available-for-sale financial assets AN B EREE 30,527 30,527
Deferred tax assets REHEEE 18 16
124,405 89,029
Current assets RBEE
Inventories g 11 248,206 124,993
Properties held for sale, FMELBMEL
at net realisable value o] IR R 23,400 23,400
Trade and other receivables HR{TREHM
FE LR AR i2 221,596 185,075
Amounts due from associates W &L AR 34,974 14,260
Other financial assets at fair value H i bl o FEEA
through profit or loss AHENETREE 17 17
Cash and cash equivalents RehBeSHEHER 248,850 363,949
777,043 711,694
Current liabilities REAM
Trade and other payables BREFREEMEMER 13 359,670 243,956
Bills payables FE 1t R 32,903 36,758
Tax payables P B1E 1.363 162
Amounts due to related companies FE A REEE 2 R BRIH 974 1,343
Convertible loan note TRRERER 30,538 30,207
Obligations under finance leases —FREHBHZ
— due within one year HEHEHEKE 74 936
Borrowings - due within cne year —ERIEHER 14 69,799 70,827
495,321 384,189
Net current assets KEBEEFAE 281,722 327,505
Total assets less current liabilities REBEARTDAR 406,127 416,534
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Condensed Consolidated Balance Sheet
WMAFEREARR

At June 30, 2008
R-RRNFAA=+H

June 30, December 31,

2008 2007
—B9AF —BELF
AAEZ+HB+ZRA=+—8H
HK$'000 HK$'000
BY TR BT
Notes {(Unaudited) (Audited)
& (REEK) (REZ)
Non-current liabilities E A R=i |
Obligations under finance leases —FEHHB
— due after one year BEEEHS 141 168
Borrowings — due after one year —FRIEIER 14 22,285 13,506
Deferred tax liabilities ELEBHEHAR 6 &
22,432 13,680
Net assets BEEFE 383,695 402,854
Capital and reserves BEEESE
Share capital A% 15 30,638 255,314
Reserves i 334,476 125,064
Equity attributable to equity holders KEaEHBEA
of the Company FE 4 #E 25 365,114 380,378
Minority interests LB R 18,581 22.476
Total equity o 383,695 402,854
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Condensed Consolidated Cash Flow Statement

BHESRERER

For the six manths ended June 30, 2008
HE_SENEANAZTHLEANEA

2008 2007
—B8NnE ZERLEF
HKS$'000 HK$'000
E¥ TR BETT
(Unaudited) {Unaudited)}
(RBHFE) (REF %)
Net cash used in operating activities MEERMARG3N (21,643) (17,062)
Net cash used in investing activities REERHABRE3REA (24,155) (6,209)
Net cash used in financing activities RMERBRARKSHE (2,466) (5,755)
Net decrease in cash and cash equivalents RE& MBS EABRR L FE (118,264) {29,026)
Cash and cash equivalents at January 1 B—A RAZBEeRHE&FHER 363,366 22,023
Effect of foreign currency exchange NEEZEEHH
rate changes 2,601 448
Cash and cash equivalents at June 30 BARAZ+EZREET&SHEER 247,703 (6,555)
Analysis of the balances of cashand BR&RBRERESZESHER
cash equivalents e e i)
Being : B
Cash and cash equivalents REkRHSFHEEHE 248,850 17,870
Bank overdrafts #HITEX (1,147) {24,603}
Cash and cash equivalents included in BREEFEERZERDERY
non-current assets held for sale RekR&EFEEHER - 178
247,703 (6,555)
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Condensed Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity

GLEESE: 533 kS

For the six months ended June 30, 2008
BE-_TENEAA=+EBISEA

(Unaudited)
£3:£ 13
Attrihutable to equity holders of the Company
ALANBEE ARG
Equity
tomponent of {Accumulated
Capital Shire convertible losses)/
redemption  options Joan naote retained  Minority
Share Share  reserve  reserve  Exchange TRE Contributed Other profit  interasts
capital  premium Rx Ex8 reerve RRBHZ 0 surplus  reserves (REER) b | Total
Bx  RS%M  MEHR  REUR  EXS%  NMEHS  AARM  E4R% /RERW  REMd &t
HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000  HK$'000 HK§'000 HKS00¢  KKS'DO0  HKS'D0D HK$'000 HK$'000 HKYD00
TR ERTR AMTR O BMTR BMTR  ANTR A%TR BMTn  AMTR ABTR #¥In
At January 1, 2008 R-ZFTAE-A-0 #5314 4,960 916 07 {4,170} 185 - 151,236 {30,080) 2478 402,854
Arsing from capital reduction  ARBEAEE (29,7182} - - - - - mm - - - -
Elimination of accumulated losses BABRSHBREBE
upon capital rearganisation - - - - - - sy - 19,78 - -
Issue of honus shares RAK 5106 - - - - - - - {5,106} - -
Exchange difference ansingon 2B R RRERALN
translation of financial BheREEEREL
statements of overseas JELEE
operations ot recogeised in
the income statement - - - - 1,561 - - - - 287 2888
Increase in minority interest EEBURLRmEL L
resuling from acquisition of ~ PEREHEER
a subsidiary - - - - - - - - - (8,694) (8,694)
{LossVprofit for the period BR(HR) /2N - - - - - - - - {17405) 452 (13313
At June 30, 2008 ROFEAFAECTE 30638 4,960 96 2,017 {1,609) 185 - 151,236 176, 18,581 383,695
{Unaudited)
(1%
Attributable to equity holders of the Company
ADRAEEHEARE
Equity
component of
Capital Share convestible
redemption options loan note Minority
Share Share reserve reserve  Exchange Bk Other Accumulated  interesls
captal  premium A5 BABE e HEAZE  reserves Losses TH Total
B RBEE BOHE BHE  ERHE 2EERG HRER  REPR BREE &
HK$'000  HK$'000 HKS'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000  HXS000  HKY'000 HKS'000
BETL  AETR B%Tn BT BRI ARfn A%TR  AMTx BETI B%Tx
At January 1, 2007 R-TPLF-R-8 1,615 - 9i6 - (4.155) 185 151,236 {65.821) 15,003 318,979
Issue of ordinary shares ugon BT B BEEMBTE RS
exercise of share options 100 - - - - - - - - 100
Exchange difference arisngon~ BEKRARREANTHES
translation of fmancial PRERELIEREE
statements of overseas
operations not recognised in
the income statement - - - - 46 - - - 302 448
Share-based payment expenses B RRX - - - m - - - - - n
Lossiprofit for the penod Wi (ER) /B - - - - - - - (20565 2035 (18530)
At lune 30, 2007 RoRRtERACTA 21,715 - 916 1 {4,009} 185 151,236 {86,386) 17,340 301,169
—HFEAEPBHEE interim Report 2008 15



Notes to the Condensed Consolidated Financial Statements

HHREMBRRME

For the six months ended June 30, 2008
BE-_FFNEXSA=+Bt~EA

1.

16

Significant accounting policies
Basis of preparation

The unaudited condensed consclidated financial
statements have been prepared in accordance with the
Hong Kong Accounting Standard (“HKAS") 34 “Interim
Financial Reporting”, other relevant Hong Kong
Accounting Standards (“"HKASs”), Interpretations and the
Hong Kong Financial Report Standards ("HKFRSs™) issued
by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants
(the "HKICPA")} and the disclosure requirements of the
Hong Kong Companies Crdinance and the applicable
disclosure requirements of the Rules Governing the Listing
of Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited,

The unaudited condensed consolidated financial
statements have been prepared under the historical cost
basis, except for certain financial instruments that are
measured at fair values.

The unaudited condensed consolidated financial
statements should be read in conjunction with the Group's
annual financial statements for the year ended December
31, 2007,

The accounting policies used in the preparation of these
unaudited condensed consolidated financial statements
are consistent with those used in the preparation of the
Group’s annual consolidated financial statements for the
year ended December 31, 2007, except for the accounting
policy disclosed herein.
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Notes to the Condensed Consclidated Financial Statements

GECE =N p e B

. Application of new and revised HKFRSs

The HKICPA has issued a number of new standards,

amendments and interpretations, which are effective for

accounting periods beginning on or after January 1, 2008.

The Group adopted the following new/revised HKFRSs

which are relevant to its operations:

HK(FRIC) - Int 11 HKFRS 2: Group and Treasury Share
Transactions

HKQFRIC) - Int 12 Service Concession Arrangements

HMKAS 19 - The Limit on a Defined
Benefit Asset, Minimum Funding
Requirement and their Interaction

HK{IFRIC} - Int 14

The directors of the Company assessed the impacts of
the adoption of these new interpretation and concluded
that the adoption of these new interpretation had no
material impact on the results or the financial position of
the Group for the current or prior accounting period.
Accordingly, no prior period adjustment has been
recognised.

For the six manths ended June 30, 2008
BE-STNEXRA=ZTELLAMAA

2. BRANITRKBETIEEMERERR

EEGHADOEERMEZEMER - B5]
ERE BR-FBNAF-A-ARZEM
Bz B AMER - FEEERATHEE
HEBZMT/BETEEMFRSEL

Ex (BBRHH EEMBREER
KERBEES) B2 EEE
-BRBENR BRHBEHNZTS

Ex (RBEVH Rz h
BEREZEY)
~REE12%

& (B 5 BEGTER
HERBEEE®) FI9R-BRF
—-REF14% TEEE - &iE

BEHRERAE
BB

FLOTHBEDHARARTHREZRZE
TRARMZENTRER I SHAEEERH
HAEEHBAR RARHBHRAELEEX
FE e Bt YERWREMAIHEE -
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Notes to the Condensed Consolidated Financial Statements

AR 47 & B A% 8B R B A

For the six manths ended June 30, 2008
BE-_RTNEXAZ+BHIEAER

2. Application of new and revised HKFRSs 2. BANITEEHITEBMBEEREER

{continued) (4&)

FEETEERE_TENFA=THLE
AEAZREEREAREUBERRTRE
FEFRAT EBRME B R £ 2 $a] REIEET
FEEAERRERY BHREERREE

The Group has not early applied the following new and
revised HKASs and HKFRSs or interpretations that have
been issued but are not yet effective in the unaudited
condensed consolidated financial statements for the six
months ended June 30, 2008:

HKAS 1 {Revised) Presentation of Financial Statements’ EHeiE 5B IEHE
F15 (BEEET)
HKAS 23 (Revised) Borrowing Costs! FAGITER & E R A
F235 (183
HKAS 27 (Revised) Consclidated and Separate Financial ER G R e REIHE
Statements? P27 (BB m¥z?
HKAS 32 &1 Puttable Financial Instruments and HHE G &R AREeRIAR
(Amendments) Obligations Arising on Liquidation’ FE325E 15 EFERELZ
CHEY &
HKFRS 2 (Amendment)  Vesting Conditions and Cancellations' EHEBBREEL BEEG R
E29 (BT )
HKFRS 3 (Revised) Business Combinations? EBU kG ER EBA e
B3 (EEET)
HKFRS 8 Operating Segments’ EEMBEEE LR g o
F a5
HK(IFRIC) - Int 13 Customer Loyalty Programmes? 8 (HBBERE TP OMEES
wEEZEY)
— REZ13%

VU ORCERAF-A-RezEaMNBITEHAREY

' Effective for annual periods beginning on or after January 1, 2009
*  Effective for annual periods beginning on or after July 1, 2009 z Ro_BRBNWELR—BR 2 EMB s FREEMER

3 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after July 1, 2008 P RCEBERNELA-PRHsEMB I TEEREY
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Notes to the Condensed Consolidated Financial Statements

PGS W BMAME

3. Business and geographical segments
Business segments

The principal activities of the Group are cars and car
accessories, electrical appliances and property investment.
These divisions are the basis on which the Group reports
its primary segment information. Segment information
about these businesses is presented below.

Six months ended June 30, 2008

3.

Cars and car Electrical
accessories  appliances

AERRERR

L§:]

HK$'000 HKS$'000
YT EMTR
{Unaudited) (Unaudited)
(RBEH) (REEH)

for the six months ended June 30, 2008
HE-FTFENEAA=+TRHWL~ER

XERHBESR
E¥om
FEEZzEBEERNERTERNG  EF

ROERE  ATHMASAEMIBETRE
THEMCEE - ERSBREMENDT -

BEZ_S2NFXA=1tAL~MEA

Property
investment Others Eliminations Consolidated
NERE Rt ik £4KA

HK$'000 HK$"000 HK$'000 HKS'000
BYTR BAYTR EMTR B¥Tx
{Unaudited) (Unaudited} (Unaudited) {Unaudited}
(RE®E) (RERE) (REEH) (REEH

Turnover BEE

External sales SR E B s 428,437 103,512 515 8,457 - 540,921
Inter-segment sales wHBEERS - - - - - -
Total turnover Biap 428,437 103,512 515 8,457 - 540,921
Results E3:

Segment results SRR 13,915 2,013 151 (12,311) - 3,828
Unallocated corporate expenses #7784 a3 it {11,996}
Loss from operations EEER (8,078)
Finance costs HEER (3.812)
Provision for quarantee BRER (950)
Loss before tax BRENSE (12,840)
Income tax expenses MERAT (473)
Loss for the period *BRIEE (13,313)
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FIERER S M R R M aE

For the six manths ended June 30, 2008
HE-_SENERAZTBIARER

3. Business and geographical segments (continued) 3. ¥R BB S H (4&)

Business segments (continued) BiEDE (FH)
Six months ended June 30, 2007 HE—_ZEL+FRA=TRHIEAEER
Cars and car Electrical Froperty
accessories appliances  investment Others  Eliminations  Consclidated
RERAERS B4 mERE Eff i B&aEE

HK$'000 HK$000 HK$'000 HK$°000 HK3:000 HK$°000
AETT BETR il BETL AETR BYTT
(Unaudited)  (Unaudited)  (Unaudited}  (Unaudited)  (Unaudited)  (Unaudited)
(FEE%) (REFHR) (REEH) (REER) (REZK)  (RESH)

Turnover - E :

External sales INREE R 338,573 98,910 7,463 12,600 - 457,546
lnter-segment sales FHEHERE - - - - - -
Total turnover gRmm 338,573 98,910 7,463 12,600 - 457 546
Results -4 |

Segment results THREHE 2,123 27 3,334 (5,286} - 248
Unallocated corporate expenses k4B T % H {10,234)
Loss from operations REER (10,046)
Financa costs HIEER (7.630)
Share of result of an associate  FEIS—FBE AR EHE (609) - - - - (609)
Loss before tax B isE (18,345)
Income tax expenses MEHAZ (185}
Loss for the pericd N o) 3 (18,530)
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RS E MBmRKE

3. Business and geographical segments (continued)

Geographical segments

The Group's operations are mainly located in Hong Kong,
Singapore, Malaysia, PRC and Macau. The following table
provides an analysis of the Group’s turnover by
geographical market, irrespective of the origin of the

gaods/services:

BB

3. ERRBESR (F)

For the six months ended June 30, 2008
BE-_FSNFRAZTBLERMBA

AEBZEBTEAHREL MK -5
RELED - PEERMA - TREADSILES
FEEER(THAR BREZRE

i)

Turnover by
geographical market
HWESHzE%H
Six months ended June 30
BEEANA=+HBLEXREA

Contribution to

operating results
HEERR2EM
Six months ended June 30
REXNA=+BLAHEA

2008 2007 2008 2007

—RRNEFE ~—BR+E —ZBENFE —TRLF

HK$'000 HK$'0C0 HK$'000 HK$'00C

BY T EETT BET T AT

{(Unaudited) (Unaudited) {(Unaudited) {Unaudited)

(REER (CREBR) (REER) (REFR
Hong Kong & 428,242 388,127 B85 (294)
Singapore ¥ h0 4% 39,473 32,564 1,972 777
Malaysia BREDR 17,669 14,896 2,042 859
PRC e 51,345 15,369 (3.776) (2,587}
Macau P 4,192 5,862 (102) 17
Others Hfh - 728 - 29
540,921 457,546 1,021 {1,199)

Other operating income Hit &2 WA 2,807 1,447

Unallocated corporate FORLRA

expenses T (11,906) {10,294)
Loss from operations BEEA (8,078) (10,046)
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MRS MHRRME

For the six months ended June 30, 2008
BEE-_SRNESAZ=+8At~HEA

4,

22

Loss from operations 4. BEEA
Six months ended June 30
BEAA=1TRHLEXMBA
2008 2007
—R8NE _BELF
HKS$'000 HK$'000
AT AT T
{Unaudited)} (Unaudited)
(RBFEH) (REFH)
Loss from operations has been BEEB BB MR -
arrived at after charging:
Cost of inventories recognised BEAHRZEFEME
as expenses (included in cost (BETHEMNE)
of sales) 437,954 372,325
Amortisation of prepaid lease FREERERE
payments 17 _
Depreciation of: i
- owned assets -BEHE 4,908 4,742
— assets held under finance leases -RrEEREE 376 441
Staff costs, including directors’ BERT BIEHSHE
emoluments 55,500 41,800
Loss on disposal of property, plant HEWE  BER
and equipment REZER - 7
Share-based payment expenses AR 5 1 sh B 2 - 172
and crediting: WEEFA
Interest income MEBWA 4,815 544
Gain on disposal of property, HEDNE BERRE
plant and equipment 2 Wi 2 985 -
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Notes to the Condensed Consolidated Financial Statements

Ry e R

For the six menths ended June 30, 2008
BE_STNAEANA=THLEARBER

5. Finance costs 5. M¥HMA
Six months ended June 30
BEAA=+BALAAA
2008 2007
—RRNE C—ETLF
HK$ 000 HK$ 000
B¥TR AR
(Unaudited} (Unaudited)
(REEH) (REER)
Interest expenses on: FEEZHR
Bank loans, trust receipts loans TFREHMNE
and overdrafts wholly repayable ZHITHXK - 85
within five years WERRRES 1,883 5,953
Bank loans wholly repayable after LFE2HOR
five years ZHRITHERK 339 114
Other loans wholly repayable IFRZEME
within five years 2 Bt EK 1,473 1,416
3,695 7,483
Finance lease charges mEREERA 6 49
Bank charges RITEA m 158
3,812 7,690

ZE2NEDHHEE Interim Report 2008 23



Notes to the Condensed Consolidated Financial Statements

PSS MBERME

For the six months ended June 30, 2008
BE-SPNFEF~A-+tBLAEA

6. Income tax expenses

No provision for Hong Kong Profits Tax has been provided
during the period as the Group did not have assessable
profits during the pericd (2007: 17.5%).

Overseas taxation is calculated at the rates prevailing in

the respective jurisdictions.

6. FBBMAX

MAREEMXTEEREAT - wE R
ERELSNERELBE (BB L%
17.5%) °

BOMRETREX G0 AERZ BITHE
ﬁ -]

Six months ended June 30
BEEXA=t+ALAMEA

2008 2007
—BEBNE CZFTEBLE
HK$’000 HK$°000
B¥Tr BT T
(Unaudited) {(Unaudited)
(REHFHZ) (REEHR)
Current tax: HEfEHH A -
Hong Kong BE - 366
Qverseas i 475 13
475 379
Deferred tax: WEIERLIE ¢
Hong Kong b - (194)
Overseas 75 Hh {2) -
Income tax expenses attributable ERRREMB AR ES
to the Company and FREHIH X
its subsidiaries 473 185
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BEAG S MR

7. Losses per share

The calculation of the basic losses per share is based on
the loss for the period atiributable to equity holders of
the Company of approximately HK$17,825,000 (2007:
HK$20,565,000) and on the weighted average number
of ordinary shares in issue during the period of
306,377,710 (2007 272,680,594 (restated)) after
adjusting for the effects of bonus shares issue approved
on April 30, 2008. The basic losses per share for 2007
had been adjusted accordingly (note 15}.

Diluted losses per share for the periods ended June 30,
2008 and 2007 were the same as the basic losses per
share. The Company's outstanding share options and
convertible loan note were not included in the calculation
of diluted losses per share because the effects of the
Company's outstanding share options and convertible loan
note were anti-dilutive.

Dividends
The directors do not recommend the payment of any

interim dividend for the six manths ended June 30, 2008
(six months ended June 30, 2007 Nil).

For the six months ended June 30, 2008
BE_STNFAAZTELERTEA

BREA

TREAERZEEAZE  DERBRERNEL
BES A ARIGEE A% 17,825,000
(ZTZT L4 ¢ #%20,565,000T) RHARE
BITT @R Z IEF I B306,377, 71088 (=
BE -4 272,680,540 () ) HHE - ¥
ERTETNEMA=ZTEBRLEZ BITAR
MEEERNRE - —ST+E2E8RERBRA
JFE {E A fE J0 8 (P s $E1518) -

BE_STNFER-SZTLFXA=+AL
MM ERBISEESRERERAR -
BRARRZRITERERMERTRRE
PRBARREEEE  AdstHEiEd
F5iRk - FOAZRITHERRERERAR
BREXAERESRAHEEA -

R
MERAMBE_2ZENERA=ZTHIER

BATERPHRE (BE_FFLFRA
=+BIEAREA: #) -
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FHBR &R 5 Bt %5 38 R A X

For the six months ended june 30, 2008
BE-_FENEXAZTBL~AAR

9.

26

Investment properties 9. REYHE
June 30, December 31,
2008 2007
—QeNnE —RR4LF
AA=+tH +ZHA=+-E
HK$°000 HK$ 000
BET T BETT
{Unaudited) {Audited)
(RBEFR) (B&F®)
At the beginning of the periodfyear R HE,/F 4] 9,600 234,918
Disposal of subsidiaries 4 i B 2 | - (227,340)

Increase in fair value recognised in REBERERZ

the income statement SEEBM - 2,022
Acquisition of a subsidiary Wig—EMERR 8,041 -
At the end of the period/year WRHL &R 17.641 9,600

The investment properties of the Group were revalued at
June 30, 2008 by Raffles Appraisals Limited, independent
qualified professional valuers, an an open market and

existing use basis.

The Group had pledged investment properties with a
carrying amount of approximately HK$15,141,000 {2007:
HK$7,100,000} to secure facilities granted to the Group

(note 21).

Wo Kee Hong (Haldings) Limited FEC1T (2E) AR 2 T

FEEREADER " BEENERA=1TEH
BUHREEMEGTIAARQTRAMT
SRAGEREELETTER -

AEBELBEEENEE15141,000 2185
ME(ZEELE  B%7,100,000T)EA
B BEUABRTPREEZ EEERE (R

BEE21IE) .
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WS MBRRME

10. Property, plant and equipment

11

for the six months ended June 3G, 2008
BEE-SFTNAFAA=ZTHEAREAR

10.9% - BERRRB

June 30, December 31,

2008 2007

—g2NF —EE+F

~BA=+A +TZHA=+—H

HK$ 000 HK$'000

BMT R AEETT

(Unaudited) (Audited)

(RBEH) (EFE)

At the beginning of the period/year W3/ F #) 44,541 100,479
Exchange difference ER2H 555 210
Additions &E 4,472 31,191
Acquisition of subsidiaries Wiz B8 B B 2 B) 4,833 -
Disposals s (1,609) (1,539)
Disposal of subsidiaries o 65 B B 2 5] {55) (75,046)
Depreciation charges i & (5.284) (10,754)
At the end of the periodfyear PELER 47,453 44,541

At June 30, 2008, the Group had pledged motor yacht
with a carrying amount of approximately HK$16,313,000
(2007: nil) to secure facilities granted to the Group (note

RZBEAEAA=Z+TH  ZEENERRE

HIERE16,313,0000L (ZF

TLHE BB

BEEERIER #HUAABRTIHELER

21). BRMETENR -
.Inventories 1. 78
June 30, December 31,
2008 2007
-BBNE —ZFETLF
*B=+H +=ZAR=+-—E
HK$ 000 HK$ 000
BT T BT
(Unaudited) {Audited)
(REEK) (1 &EZ)
Finished goods BB M 226,380 109,361
Spare parts 24 21,826 15,632
248,206 124,993

Included in the above figure are finished goods of
approximately HK$9,218,000 (2007: HK3$19,601,000)
which has been pledged as security for bank loans (note

21).

EiSBAZAERI218000(ZFFL
F - FE¥19,601,00000) Z B A - KAE
ROTBRZER(MWES21R) -
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RS BB R

For the six months ended June 30, 2008
BE_SFNESA=+TEL<EA

12. Trade and other receivables RESERRHAMBAEERRR
The Group generally allows an average credit period of 7 FERGETFEFFESEENTRZERH -
to 90 days to its trade customers. The aged analysis of HESHEREBUEFNEEH ZRESTN
the Group’s trade receivables at the balance sheet date is T
as follows:
June 30, December 31,
2008 2007
—BBNE —RBLE
~A=+8H +=—F=+—H
HK$'000 HK3$'000
BRI EWT T
(Unaudited) (Audited)
(REBEEH) (BEEZ)
Within 30 days =T XRHUA 47,784 82,794
31 to 60 days =t+t—XREAT+X 14,581 18,699
61 to 90 days AT—RELTE 3,264 6,048
91 days to 1 year hWt—RE—F 24,533 16,396
Over 1 year — B E 3,416 1,349
Total trade receivables, net of BESARERER
allowance for doubtful debts ARREBEHER 93,578 125,286
Deposits, prepayments and Al - EfRE
other receivables H 4 B R 128,018 59,789
221,596 185,075
The fair values of the Group's trade and other receivables R-BENEXNAZ+E  FAEBESEXR
at June 30, 2008 approximate to the corresponding EHfEWEERy o ARIEHEREEAR
carrying amounts. B -
There is no concentration of credit risk with respect to RESTHRBIER  TEEAEDEHERE
trade receivables, as the Group has a large number of B BATXEETFBERSE  DEFEE
customers, internationally dispersed. ik
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L ER R L R

13. Trade and other payables

For the six months ended June 30, 2008
BE-_S9NAESA=T8IL~AEAR

13. BB ERRE A A IRK

The aged analysis of the Group’s trade payables at the

HPERRAGEMARRNEED 2RSS

balance sheet date is as follows: HrinTF
June 30, December 31,
2008 2007
—8BNE —ZBRTtEF
“A=E+H +ZA=+—H
HK$'000 HK$'000
BMT T peids i av
{Unaudited) {Audited)
(R BF&) (BEZ)
Within 30 days =+ERHUA 26,314 7,995
31 to 60 days =EF+—XEARTE 7,265 3,111
61 to 90 days AT—RXEATE 6,296 8,953
91 days to 1 year NtT+—XE—F 8,952 1,410
Over 1 year —F K E 654 2,314
Total trade payables BESAREMAERXERH 49,481 23,783

Customers’ deposits, accruals ERiI®# - ENHEBA

and other payables B H b FE {1 BR X 310,189 220,173
359,670 243,956

The fair values of the Group's trade and other payables
at June 30, 2008 approximate to the corresponding

carrying amounts.

RIZZNFAB=Z+H  AEEEZAEX
REMEMERzTEEEHERDEAXN

BAEF -
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MG eMBEBRK T

For the six months ended June 30, 2008
BE-FSNFRAZTELAMAA

14. Borrowings 14. B
June 30, December 31,
2008 2007
—BEBNE —ERLE
ARE=+R +t=ZA=+-—H
HK$ 000 HK$000
BETR EETT
{Unaudited) (Audited)
(REEH) (BEX)
Bank overdrafts RITES 1,147 583
Bank loans WITHI 90,937 83,750
92,084 84,333
Secured (note 21) AER ME20 81,376 75,309
Unsecured BIEH 10,708 9,024
92,084 84,333
The maturities of the above loans Lt EERE
are as follows: W
Within one year —FR 69,799 70,827
More than one year, but not —FUE ETHB
exceeding two years i 3,734 2,760
Mare than two years, but not MELE  EFTHB
exceeding five years HE 11,644 4,305
More than five years EFEWUE 6,907 6,441
92,084 84,333
Less : Amounts due within one AE AR AME
year shown under BTF—%RA
current liabilities BIRE kI (69,799} (70,827)
Amounts due after one year —F {8 B MR T 1A 22,285 13,506
The fair values of the Group’'s borrowings at June 30, AEBERR_TENFARAZTBZAT
2008 approximate to the corresponding carrying amounts, EHEAAERTEEE -
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GRS M RME

Far the six menths ended June 30, 2008
BE-_RTAERA=+HEAREA

15. Share capital 15. B &
Number
of shares Share capital
KBEE g
HK$'000
EWTT
Authorised: EERE
Ordinary shares of HK$1.00 each R-EENEFE—-A—8H
(2007: HK$1.00 each) BREEREY .00
at January 1, 2008 ZEER(ZBTHF -
TR E{EE %1.0070) 350,000,000 350,000
Effect of capital reorganization (note i) ARA B & 7 & & (i) 3,150,000,000 -
At June 30, 2008 of B_FENFASA=1H
HK$0.10 each BREMHEAEY0I0T 3,500,000,000 350,000
Issued and fully paid : ERTEREHSERE
Ordinary shares of HK$1.00 each FRmMEA1.007T
(2007: HK$1.00 each) ZEBR(ZERLE
FREMEAEM1.007L)
At January 1, 2008 R-_BENF—HF—H 255,314,759 255,314
Effect of share reduction (note ii) B B A 7 B2 & (Bt Ekii) - (229,782)
Effect of bonus share issue (note iy  FFTLIRR = 82 8 (M &Eii) 51,062,951 5,106
At June 30, 2008 W_BENEXA=TH
of HK$0.10 each SRmEAYI0T 306,377,710 30,638

Notes:

Pursuant to a resolution passed by the shareholders of the Company
at the special general meeting held on April 30, 2008, the capital
recrganization was effective on the same day. Accordingly, the
authorized capital of the Company has become HK$350,000,000
divided into 3,500,000,000 shares of HK$0.10 each.

Pursuant to a resolution passed by the sharehclders of the Company
at the special general meeting held on April 30, 2008, the nominal
value of each share in issue reduced from HK$1.00 to HK$0.10 by
canceling paid up capital to the extent of HK$0.90 for each issued
share.

Pursuant to a resolution passed by the shareholders of the Company
at the special general meeting held on April 30, 2008, 51,062,951
bonus shares of HK$0.10 each were issued for every five adjusted
shares of HK$0.10 each held by the shareholders whose names
appeared on the register of members of the Company on April 30,
2008. The amecunt of HK$5,106,295.10 was capitalised from the
Coempany’s contributed surplus account.

Hf =¥ -

BREQFABEER-TENENAZ+EBRITZR
BHAAALBABZRHARE  RIREEREABEE
Ao gE - A DA% TR A B # % 350,000,000
7L+ 5 43.500,000,0001 SR @ EENT0I0LZ
Fein o

REELARARFRNAFONA=TARTZR
ERAALBBZARR  HEHSROTEAR
HzERTEEN0.0R - KBRS FTROE
BEhEN1.COTEEREMOI0T -

AEXAQFARER-_FRNENAZTBHTZER
HRHAAA-RBZRAME  ER_FTNFHNA
SHTABRMNELFIRNEABBNERAIRER
MEOEROAOTA W BRI E — BEAHEY0.10
AR 2t F - Mm% 1551,062,951 5 4TRG L
#5106,295. 10 2 EF N EDRARARERE
TR -
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BEGEMBERMEE

For the six months ended June 30, 2008
E_RENERA=THIUENRHEA

16. Acquisition of subsidiaries

On January 18, 2008, the Group acquired 100% of the
issued share capital of Sunny Villa International Limited
at a consideration of HK$2,500,000. The amount of
goodwill arising as a result of the acquisition was
approximately HK$145,000.

16. WA B 2 7

RIBENEFE—B+NRB - FREHRKERE
#2,500,000T RBHEERERAACE
TREZ100% - ARENEELE - EREE
4 B % 145,0007T »

The net assets acquired in the transaction and the goodwill EZZHTRBEEFERELEZBERR
arising were as follows: R
Acquiree’s
carrying
amount
before
combination
i@ o Fair value Total
=X T adjustment fair value
ZIEMEE ARERR DEHAHE
HK$'000 HK$ 000 HK$'000
BT EETL BWTT
(Unaudited) {Unaudited) (Unaudited)
CRIZERE) (REEZ) (RBEZ)
Net assets acquired: W AERHE:
Investment properties RAME 8,041 - 8,041
Other receivables Hith ERIERR 2 - 2
Cash and cash equivalents Rt hReEHAR 29 - 29
Trade and other payables BREARERHAM
FETERRK (1,839) - {1,839)
Secured bank loan BHEMETEXK (3,660) - (3,660)
2,573 - 2,573
Goodwill R 145
Transaction costs THREAK {218)
Total consideration BB 2,500
Satisfied by: o
Cash He 2,500
Net cash outflow from BBz ReRd
acquisition: B
Cash consideration HefM {2,500)
Cash and cash WREERES
equivalents acquired HFHEEHR 29
(2,471)
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ISLE =R 3R

16. Acquisition of subsidiaries (continued)

On May 30, 2008, the Group acquired 60% of the issued
share capital of Creative Pacific Limited at a consideration
of HK$19,500,000. The balance of the consideration of BB BT A Z260% -
HK$9,750,000 is subject to adjustments to be made and
shall be paid in two installments. The adjustments were
not included at the date of acquisition as the amount
was not probable and could not be measured reliably.

For the six months ended June 30, 2008
E_RRNEANAZ=4BLEAEA

16. WIBH R 2 B) (&)

The amount of goodwill arising as a result of the
acquisition was approximately HK$24,148,000,

The net liabilities acquired in the transaction and the

R-RENERTA=1+H r ZEFRRER
¥19,500,000 L BB R SIERFR
REBZEFTAES
9,750,000 A fEL AE - X ESME R
- RUWEBAS  AREHSETIAETH
MiEHEE - WA A Lt F e RUWBES
ZERSENH B 24,148,0007T ¢

EZXSTHBzABERMELEZERD

goodwill arising were as follows: T
Acquiree’s
carrying
amount
before
combination
Fit Bl £ J] Fair value Total
REeda adjustment fair value
ZHBEHE A2FEHAR LEHAR
HK$'000 HKS$'000 HK$'000
BT AT it T
(Unaudited) (Unaudited) (Unaudited)
(REELR) (RiBFEE) (RIBEE)
Net liabilities acquired: W B @mER -
Property, plant and MmE - -BERRE
equipment 2,900 - 2,900
Goadwill (R 4 - 4
Inventories VENY 16,139 - 16,139
Trade and cther BT EREAM
receivables FE W BR 2K 6,175 - 6,175
Cash and cash equivalents HekBeHHEAS 1,289 - 1,289
Trade and other payables EEERREM
FE {F R X {39,546) - {39,546)
Tax payable BB (3) - {3)
(13,042) - (13,042}
Goodwill 5K 24,148
Transaction costs R BKRIR (1,356)
Total censideraticn WAE 9,750
Satisfied by: BT
Cash R& 9,750
Net cash outflow from W 7RERLFE
acquisition:
Cash consideration REHXE (9,750)
Cash and cash equivalents WHEsBEERE
acquired FHIHAB 1,289
(8,461)
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BRSO B EAMET

For the six months ended fune 30, 2008
BE-_RENFSAZ+BIEAEA

17. Contingent liabilities

34

(a)

(b)

()

The Company had provided corporate guarantees to
certain banks for banking and other facilities make
available to subsidiaries in amount of approximately
HK$327,890,000 (December 31, 2007:
HK$279,862,000).

The Company had provided other guarantees issued
for subsidiaries in the amount of approximately
MK$14,321,000 (December 31, 2007:
HK3$24,559,000).

Under a share purchase and subscription agreement
signed on june 30, 2006, a subsidiary of the Company
provide a guarantee amounting to¢ a maximum of
RMB11 million (approximately HK$11.8 million) in
settlement of certain liabilities of the disposed entity
incurred prior to disposal. During the period ended
June 30, 2008, approximately HK$8,450,000 were
paid under the guarantee and HK$950,000 (December
31, 2007: HK$7,500,000) has been recognised in the
consolidated financial statements of the Group. At
June 30, 2008, the outstanding balance of the
guarantee was approximately HK$5,100,000
(December 31, 2007: HK$3,500,000).

Under a share acquisition agreement signed on May
16, 2008, a subsidiary of the Company agrees to
acquire 60% of the issued share capital in Creative
Pacific Limited at a consideration of HK$19,500,000.
The balance of the consideration of HK$9,750,000 is
subject to adjustments to be made and shall be paid
in two installments. For details, please refer to the
Company's circular dated June 6, 2008.

Wo Kee Hong (Holdings) Limited i 77 (EED SR 2 9]

17. AR A&

{a)

{d)

AATEBHBARNMRBITREMEE
mEFRITELEDAER - BEHES
327,890,000 (= FB8+F+ A=+
—H : #%279,862,0007L) °

TRl AMBEAR L EMARE 5%
HEE14321,000 (Z B EL-F4+ =
B=+—0 : #&%24,559,000m) °

BE—ER-_EBANEXNAZTRETZ
ZBROBERBHIGE  FRdlz—@
MBS —HSHESZAARY
11,000,0007T {£]7 % 11,800,0007T) Z
R NEARMDAMEELTAEHEN
EEfzaTAM - BE_FENFAE
=TAILEER  CHEBERIFHE
¥ 8,450,0007T - i & 7 ¥ 950,0007T
(ZEF+F+-_HB=+—8 : &%
7,500,00000) ER AR EG S M B REK
TR -R-BENFAAZ=+B - B
Rz HBHEHBERES100,000C{=ZEF
t+HE+-_f=+—H : #H¥3,500,000
TT) e

BRER-_FRNERA+ BFIZIR
Dl EiGE - FA2vz—MEHE2EE
EHRREAE%19,500,000t KEEEE#H
BEERARLFEHITRE 260% °
{8 7 8 5 #%9,750,0007 7] {1 38
8 TASMBIA - BRFE - #H2
MAATEHAZEZNESHABZ
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HHEEMBHTME

For the six months ended June 30, 2008
BE-_FTBNERAZFBILA~BA

18. Commitments 18. & iR
(a) Capital commitments {a) BEX&ER

June 30, December 31,
2008 2007
—BRNE _ET+EF
AHB=+H +=ZA=+—H
HK$'000 HK$°000
i e EE T
{Unaudited) (Audited}
(R BEH) (&)
Authorised but not contracted for B REEBHEMEFRITH - 579
Contracted but not provided for DETHIER KRB R 24,400 46
24,400 625

{b) Operating lease commitments (b) BRERAEM

At June 30, 2008 the Group leases various retail
shops, offices and warehouses and had commitments
under non-cancellable operating leases, which fall due
as follows:

R_BENFEARAE=1+H 2£BHEE
ZREBEE WAZEREE - MREMN
TAABESEHE s AERERAD
T -

June 30, December 31,

2008 2007

—98NE —ERF

~B=+HR +ZA=+-—H

HK$'000 HK$'000

BT E¥ T

{Unaudited) (Audited)

(REEL) B EH)

Within one year —F X 39,061 22,947
fn the second to fifth year E_FEERE

inclusive 26,168 25,096

65,229 48,043

The above lease commitments only include
commitments for basic rentals, and do not include
commitments for additional rental payment
(contingent rents), if any, which are to be determined
generally by applying pre-determined percentages to
future sales less of the respective leases, as it is not
possible to determine in advance the amount of such
additional rentals.

AR TR ERAMERIEENE - Ll
HARERFEEAESE - TREEMRIE
& (FAER) (F) 2 &R - —BDHMERK
HERRAEESRERASR TasTLE
T o
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BRGEES M BHRME

&

For the six months ended June 3G, 2008
BRE-FENERAZTHLAEAR

19. Derivative financial instruments

At June 30, 2008, the Group had entered into forward
cantracts denominated in Hong Kong Dollar {"HKD™},
Japan Yen ("JPY"), Euro dollar ("EUR"), United States

19. T4 €RBIA

R-ZBENFEARNAZTH  2EECEF
A AR BT RRHNETRFEN
MBEBEH - IMMEHEHNZEERERW

Dollar {"USD") and Singapore Dollar ("SGD™). The major T

terms of the foreign currency forward contracts are as

follows:

Notional amount Maturity Exchange rates
EHEH B A Ex

Sell SGD 500,000 July 31, 2008 SGD 0.01332 to JPY1

% (§500,000% i T

Sell SGD 221,349
BE221,3498 M T

Sell SGD 493,667
B H493,6678 N

Sell SGD 21,957
BE21,9578 bR T

Sell SGD 587
BES87H T

Sell HKD 9,928,139
HEAM,9281397C

Sell HKD 9,209,015
BEAY9,209,0155T

Sell HKD 4,126,375
SEANA126,375TC

—28NFELR=Z+—H

July 31, 2008
ZEENELRA=+—H

August 15, 2008
—B2gNENFE+HAB

August 15, 2008
—EENENA+EHAE

August 15, 2008
ZEFENFNA+ER

December 30, 2008
—ERNFEF+_B=1H

December 30, 2008
—ERNET+_A=1+H

November 14, 2008
ZEENFE+—A+EA

36 Wo Kee Hong (Holdings) Limited HE{T{(RE)HFE LT

0.0132FHME L H18E

5GD 0.01378 to JPY1
0.01378F R L 10 B

SGD 1.3658 to USD1
13658 M L H1E T

SGD 1.3658 to USD1
1.3658FT ML H1ETT

SGD 1.3658 to USD1
1.3658FT ML H1ZETT

HKD 12.25 to EUR1
B 125 IR T

HKD 12.439 to EUR1
A2 439 KB T

HKD 12.15 to EUR1
AMWI2ASTTHE T
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CEER- R E LR

20. Material related party transactions

(a) During the period, the Group entered into the
following significant related party transactions:

For the six months ended June 30, 2008
BE-FENFAAZTHLAER

20 HEABALTZEER R

(a) BB ARESETTIETEBRAL

25

Six months ended June 30
BEXAE=+HLSEA

2008 2007
—2B2AE _—EBT+HF
HKS$'000 HK$'000
HETR BT T
{Unaudited) (Unaudited)
(REFH) (CGREEH)
Management and agency fee fF— M LE (K —HEF
paid to a related company ERBEUR) 2BEHR
which received on behalf of RACHE 1%
a building management fund - 2,087
Sales of goods to related EE THBRAE
companies - 4,600
Purchase of goods from a director A —{U E B A2 - 1,350
Acquisition of share capital and HEE—R2ARREEED
shareholder's loan of NEZRARRREER
a company owned by
a common shareholder 4,300 -
Service income charged to WR—EBEaaz
an associate AR 755 e A 109 -

(b) Compensation of key management perscnnel

The remuneration of directors and other member of
key management during the periods are as follows:

(b) EEEBRARZHHM

PANEREMEEEREABRZHFMO

T :

$ix months ended June 30
BEAXA=1TRHAL*<EA

2008 2007

—BBNE C—BTLE

HK$'000 HK$'000

BT AT

(Unaudited) {Unaudited)

(ABER) (REER)

Short term employee benefits EHMEERERN 4,677 4,506
Mandatory provident fund HHEMAHES

contributions 3K 19 23

4,696 4,529
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MAGEMBRRME

&

For the six months ended June 30, 2008
BE_BENE A=Z+BEREAR

20. Material related party transactions (continued)

{c) Amounts due from/(to) related parties:

20 RBBATZETERXS (F)

(c) FEMR/ (FEA) BHEE A L HUR -

June 30, December 31,

2008 2007

—B8NE —EELE

ARA=+A8 +-HA=+—8

HK$'000 HK$'000

AT E®TT

{Unaudited) {Audited)

(REBEH) (BEZ)

Amount due from associates FEUTER & D B3R IR 34,974 14,260

Amounts due to related SEHARDARY
companies classified as FE < RR Bt 2 S B IE
current liabilities (974) (1,343)
21. Pledge of assets 1. BERH

June 30, December 31,

2008 2007

—BENF —ERLEF

XH=tR +=ZA=+—H

HK$'000 HK$'000

g EET T

(Unaudited) (Audited)

(R BE®) (B EE)

Inventories FE 9,218 19,601
Investment properties BEME 15,141 7,100
Properties held for sale BiELEDE 23,400 23,400
Deposits in bank WITHER 92,252 86,796
Property, plant and equipment mE - BERRE 16,313 -
All assets of a subsidiary —HBLRz2HEE 20,887 19,602

The amounts represent assets pledged to banks and other
licensed financial institution to secure banking facilities
granted to the Group. The pledged assets will be released

ROTEAROBRER -

upon the settlement of relevant bank borrowings.
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LEERRg bRk

&

22. Events after balance sheet date

{a)

(b

(c}

On September 2, 2008, a wholly-owned subsidiary of
the Company, Smart Apex Holdings Limited ("Smart
Apex™), entered into the Sale and Purchase Agreement
with the vendors which Smart Apex agrees to acquire
B0% of the issued share capital in SKC Group Limited
{SKC) for the aggregate cash consideration of
HK$96,200,000. Further details were set out in the
announcement of the Company dated September 4,
2008.

The 7.25% convertible loan note in the principal
amount of HK$30,000,000 issued to Cross Profit
Capital Limited, a wholly owned subsidiary of Hanny
Holdings Limited matured and was fully repaid on
September 5, 2008.

On Septerber 18, 2008, a subsidiary of the Company,
Auto ltalia Limited, purchased a unit of vintage Ferrari
from a director and controlling shareholder of the
Company, Mr. Richard Man Fai Lee. Further details
were set out in the announcement of the Company
dated September 18, 2008.

23. Approval of interim financial report

The interim financial report was approved by the Board
of the Directors on September 18, 2008.

Fer the six months ended June 30, 2008
BE_RTNESAZ+HIEKRER

2. &HBREBER

(a)

(c)

Ro-BRBNELR-R  -FoRZ2E
FEBOFEEERERAE([EE])HE
BATTEEH#H - BuiEBREWE
BBEEAR AR (@B EBTRE
280% - #{L{B RE%96,200,000T °
BE—SHERERNRAQRBHAAZFTEN
FAAMBZRE -

MBBRERMAGRARZEENB A
Cross Profit Capital Limited® T2 & &
48 574 5 30,000,000C 2 7.25% 2 8.7
BREFEZEREEN  YERRT
ANEABEERZHMNE -

R-ZBENFAATNR - AR ZH
BLRREAEARAFAAEXELE
(FRAEERIERRIDBE—FLHE
EWRRE - E-SREERALEH
HAZERNFNATNBZRE -

3 MEPHMBES

HHRER_ZFAENLA+ABRESS
B mE -
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TREARRAMESN

DISCLOSURE OF DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS EEREER

As at June 30, 2008, the interests and short positions of each RZBBNERE=+H - AQa&HMERE
Directors and chief executive of the Company in the Shares, ETHRAERAFQFHAFAEREIE(TER
underlying shares and debentures of the Company or any B4 EHAEEGIEXVE) 2D - HMRBRE
associated corporation {within the meaning of Part XV of the EETHEEGEEEHFRUREHNEIS2HEATA
Securities and Futures Ordinance (“SFQ™)) as recarded inthe T RMZERZRERE BB -HOTESS
register required to be kept under Section 352 of the SFO; or TR FXF7ERFRNANES AT B LA
are required, pursuant to the Model Code for Securities ZIEHRRRERT :

Transactions by Directors of Listed Companies to be notified

to the Company and the Stock Exchange are as follows:

(a) Long positions in Shares as at June 30, 2008: (a) RZBENERNE=THE  BRhhzHeE:

Number of ordinary shares of HK$0.10 each (*Share”)
EREEHRBRYMOOIEERROG(RGIMA

Personal Family Corporate Total
Director Interests Interests Interests Interests
H= & A 2% R 2% D R HEact
Mr. Richard Man Fai LEE 2,779,725 - 116,560,284 119,340,009
FYRARE (Note 1)
(B )
Mr. Jeff Man Bun LEE 566,280 - 118,295,146 118,861,426
FENWEE {Notes 1 & 2)
(FgE152)
Mr. Tik Tung WONG 175,000 - - 175,000
ABELEYE
Mr. Waison Chit Sing HUI 120,000 - - 120,000
STREmR LS
Mr. Boon Seng TAN 325,662 - - 325,662
R EHRE
Mr. Raymond Cho Min LEE - - 2,304,240 2,304,240
FER%E {Note 3)
(H1EE3)
Ms. Kam Har YUE 6,251,659 - 116,560,284 122,811,943
cE@rT {Note 1)
(B &)
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TRELREMER

DISCLOSURE OF DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS (continued)

Notes:

1. The 116,560,284 Shares are held by Modern Orbit Limited, which is
wholly owned by Cyber Tower (PTC) Inc. (formerly known as Cyber
Tower Inc.) as trustee of The WS Lee Unit Trust. 99% of the units
of The WS Lee Unit Trust are held by a discretionary trust of which
Mr. Wing Sum LEE's family members including Ms. Kam Har YUE,
Mr. Richard Man Fai LEE and Mr. Jeff Man 8un LEE are the
beneficiaries. The remaining 1% of the units of The WS Lee Unit
Trust is held by Skylink International Asset Corporation, a company
incorporated in the British Virgin Islands and owned by Ms. Kam
Har YUE, Mr. Richard Man Fai LEE and Mr. Jeff Man Bun LEE.

2. Out of the 118,295,146 Shares, 1,734,862 Shares are held by
Fisherman Enterprises Inc., a company incorporated in the British
Virgin Islands and wholly owned by Mr. Jeff Man Bun LEE.

3. The 2,304,240 Shares are beneficially owned by ODE Asia Limited,
100% cwned by M.W. Lee & Sons Enterprises Limited which is
controlled by Mr, Raymond Cho Min LEE.

(b} Long positions in underlying shares of equity derivatives
of the Company as at June 30, 2008 are disclosed in the
section headed “"Movement of share options” of this
report.

EEESEE W)

GEX

$116,560,284F% 8% (5 B Modern Orbit Limited 5
# < Modern Orbit Limited B3 Cyber Tower (PTC)
Inc. (Ai#@Cyber Tower Inc.}2 A * fEA The
WS Lee Unit TrustZ {55 A = The WS Lee Unit Trust
ZO9%ENE-HAREERAEE HPFAkAR
F7REKA - 8FREBXYT - FXEBRLERF
XHWEEBEERERZEHA » The WS Lee Unit
Trust H # 1% 25 B Skylink International Asset
Corporationf¥ - ZRFAREDE XS ERK
VAR - FREBEALEBREXWELER
g

118,295,146 B A H R 1,734,862 R {7 A
Fisherman Enterprises Inc.{§4 - Ea RN ERR
EBOMEY BFEIXHWAELZAER -

%2,304, 24088 If 15 M. W. Lee & Sons Enterprises
Limited2 & # B 7 ODE Asia Limited T - il
M.W. Lee & Sons Enterprises Limited | B F £ &
FERIER -

by RZFFENFAA=ZTE - FREIREITE

TAZEERGZHFEERES[BERR
ERE ] HATARE -
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DISCLOSURE OF DIRECTORS' INTERESTS (continued)

{¢} Long positions in shares in associated corporations as at

June 30, 2008:

Associated corporations
in which shares or
equity interests

EEEERE @)

() RZFZENFRA=ZTH  REEZEE i

RzEE:

Number of shares
or amount of equity
interests held or
interested in

Class and/or
description of

are held or interested BFEEBRZ shares/interests
Director RESBEERGER REBER B4,/ B85
EE BAEAEZEzHEBLN i Yy Y BREBR
Ms. Kam Har YUE Rogers Entertainment 34,335 Non-voting
ceEBELT International Limited deferred shares
SRITROREEBAERLT BT EERER
Shinwa Engineering 3,850,000 Non-voting
Company, Limited deferred shares
EMIEFGREQA EREERLER
Wo Kee Hong Limited 8,900 Non-voting
MEBHEHFREROA (Note 1) deferred shares
(a1 EBITEERER
Wo Kee Services Limited 1 Non-voting
ML BBRREHRLF {Note 2) deferred shares
(Hi&E2) ERERRIER
Motes: =

1. 8,500 shares held by Mr. Wing Sum LEE, the spouse of Ms. Kam
Har YUE are included.

2. The 1 share is held by Mr. Wing Sum LEE, the spouse of Ms. Kam

Har YUE.

42 Wo Kee Hong {Holdings) timited FE{T(EME) FR ST
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS' INTERESTS

Save as disclosed below and in the section headed "Disclosure
of directors’ interests”, as at June 30, 2008, so far as is
known to the Directors, no other person had, or was deemed
ar taken to have an interest or short position of 5% or more
of the interests in the shares or underlying shares of the
Company as recorded in the register required to be kept

under Section 336 as the SFO:

{a} Long positions in Shares as at June 30, 2008:

TERFES

BMTXERREEESRE —HEEEN  ®
ZE2RNESAZ+HE - REEHA - BEH
fEATRAEARROKABMEB D F EEHER
BHABEERES%RBA L2 WERAE - MR
BHREEGOIEBGALATREMA

() RZBENFRAZTE  BEZHFE:

Number of Approximate %
underlying shares of of the total
equity derivatives issued Shares
Shareholder Number of Shares HMREGTEIRZ HERTRFTERZ
BR BiBE BioBA BHREHT
Modern Orbit Limited 116,560,284 - 38.04%
(Note 1)
(RTEE1)
Hanny Heldings Limited 390,000 - 0.12%
(Note 3)
(Bt E3)
Great Intelligence Holdings Limited 5,178,960 - 1.69%
{Note 4)
(K £ 4)
Cross Profit Capital Limited - 36,144,578 11.79%
(Notes 2 & 3)
(FfsE2R3)
Dr. Charles Kwok Keung CHAN ©,114,000 - 1.99%
(Notes 3 &4)
(FigE3 R 4)
Ms. Macy Yuen Lan NG 6,114,000 - 1.99%
(Notes 3 &4)
(M E3Ra)
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS’ INTERESTS (continued)

44

Notes:

The 116,560,284 Shares are held by Modern Orbit Limited, which is
wholly owned by Cyber Tower (PTC) Inc. as trustee of The WS Lee
Unit Trust. 99% of the units of The WS Lee Unit Trust are held by a
discretionary trust of which Mr. Wing Sum LEE's family members
inctuding Ms. Kam Har YUE, Mr. Richard Man Fai LEE and Mr. Jeff
Man Bun LEE are the beneficiaries. The remaining 1% of the units
of The WS Lee Unit Trust is held by Skylink International Asset
Corporation, a company incorporated in the British Virgin Islands
and owned by Ms. Kam Har YUE, Mr. Richard Man Fai LEE and Mr,
Jeff Man Bun LEE.

The 36,144,578 Shares represented the Shares to be issued upon
the full conversion of a HK$30,000,000 convertible redeemable note
convertible at HK$0.83 which is held by Cross Profit Capital Limited,
a wholly ownad subsidiary of Hanny Magnetics (B.V.1.) Limited which
in turn is a wholly owned subsidiary of Hanny Holdings Limited.

390,000 Shares are held by Hanny Holdings Limited.

Famex Investment Limited, a wholly owned subsidiary of Mankar
Assets Limited, held approximately 49.90% of the entire issued
share capital of Hanny Holdings Limited. Mankar Assets Limited is a
wholly owned subsidiary of ITC Investment Holdings Limited which
in turn is a whally owned subsidiary of ITC Corporation Limited. Dr.
Charles Kwok Keung CHAN directly held approximately 0.47% of
the entire issued share capital of Hanny Holdings Limited. Dr. Charles
Kwok Keung CHAN directly held approximately 4.69% of the entire
issued share capital of {TC Corporation Limited and indirectly held
approximately 30.08% of the entire issued share capital of ITC
Corporation Limited. Ms. Macy Yuen Lan NG is the spouse of Dr.
Charles Kwok Keung CHAN.

Famex tnvestment Limited, Mankar Assets Limited, ITC Investment
Haldings Limited, ITC Corporation Limited, Dr. Charles Kwok Keung
CHAN and Ms. Macy Yuen Lan NG are deemed 1o be interested in
the Shares held by Hanny Holdings Limited. Hanny Magnetics (8.V.1.)
Limited, Hanny Holdings Limited, Famex Investment Limited, Mankar
Assets Limited, ITC Investment Holdings Limited, ITC Corporation
Limited, Dr. Charles Kwok Keung CHAN and Ms. Macy Yuen Lan
NG are deemed to be interested in the underlying shares arising
from the convertible redeemable ncte held by Cross Profit Capital
Limited.

5,178,960 Shares are held by Great Intelligence Holdings Limited, a
wholly owned subsidiary of ITC Management Group Limited which
in turn is a wholly owned subsidiary of ITC Corporaticn Limited. ITC
Management Group Limited, ITC Corporation Limited, Dr. Charles
Kwok Keung CHAN and Ms. Macy Yuen Lan NG are deemed 10 be
interested in the Shares held by Great Intelligence Holdings Limited.

Wo Kee Hong {Holdings) Limited {7 (2E) B2 T

TER

REL (H)

FieE

£%116,560,284 BR A2 {3 B3 Cyber Tower (PTC) Inc.
£ A @A 2 Modern Orbit Limited 7% » Modern
Orbit Limited{® % The WS Lee Unit TrustZ {53 A -
HoowEamm—~HElERMEE  HdhFEkHKi
EZ2RERR  BEREBEYT  FXBXAERE
XWEEBE2BERZFEHA - The WS Lee Unit
Trust H #21%18 # fh Skylink International Asset
Corporation ¥4 - FREREMR O EMK
Y O HAEBLY  FEUERERFEIHELE
& e

#%36,144,578R% 18 M B {3 & B Hanny Magnetics
(B.V.L) Umited (I RBREBMER LG Z2AMB L
7)) Z & HI B o 8 Cross Profit Capital Limited$s
A 2B %30,000,000 Al RN 08I BB 2T
BAIGERES MR ERTING -

390,000 MM BREBERLANE -

HE R A SR 28 (BMankar Assets Limited.Z 2
ARBAADREEERENSEO2HDRTR
A H149.90% 2 B IE - Mankar Assets Limited B17C
Investment Holdings Limited> 2 @M B2 E - M
EEUNABRHCAMEERLFZEEMEALRE -
FEEETERSARREEORATNZHEET
BRAEE0.47%2F - RESR IS EERREIE
FAEERCENEERCAEHER TR EL
4.69% K H130.08% Z2RE - MHME T AREN
ML zE® -

HEEEHR DB - Mankar Assets Limited - ITC
Investment Holdings Limited - @R NEHR
2R - FEEE L EhEMAL I ERERRES
MERLAIHE 2R P HEGHEE - Hanny
Magnetics (B.V.L) Limited - RREMER DR - B
B /B 2R - Mankar Asseis Limited » ITC
Investment Holdings Limited - B G %2 MAER
oA BREAM T RAMM IR RERCross
Profit Capital Limited}§ 8 2 Al R AR A MG R E
S eRBEREHEES -

5,178,960/ A2 {3 i Great Intelligence Holdings
Limited$ # - & 2 R BITC Management Group
LimitedZ 2 MM DR - MEFRREATCHEEN
FRAPNZEZANBAR « 1ITC Management
Group Limited - @R GCE2EEEROE - HE%
8 (0 M 2z 19 % R FE R Great Intelligence
Holdings Limitedty H 2 B A2 -
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SHARE OPTIONS
2001 Scheme

A share option scheme (“2001 Scheme”) was adopted
pursuant to a resolution passed on June 28, 2001 for the
primary purpose of providing incentives to Directors and
eligible employees, and was terminated on May 30, 2002
pursuant to a resolution passed on that date.

Under the 2001 Scheme, the Directors may grant options to
any full-time employees, including executive and non-executive
Directors of the Company and its subsidiaries, to subscribe
for shares in the Company.

The total number of shares in respect of which options may
be granted under the 2001 Scheme is not permitted to exceed
10% of the issued share capital of the Company at any point
in time. The number of shares in respect of which options
may be granted to any individual is not permitted tc exceed
25% of the maximum aggregate number of shares of the
Company for the time being issued and issuable under the
2001 Scheme.

Options granted must be taken up within 28 days of the date
of grant, upon payment of HK31 per grant. Options are
exercisable within a period of 6 years commencing one month
from the date of acceptance of options.

The subscription price is determined by the Directors, and
will not be less than the higher of a price being not less than
80% of the average of the closing prices of the shares on the
Stock Exchange on the five trading days immediately preceding
the date of grant, and the nominal value of a share of the
Company.

Upon termination of the 2001 Scheme, no further options
will be granted but in all other respects, the provisions of the
2001 Scheme shall remain in force and all granted prior to
such termination shall continue to be valid and exercisable in
accordance therewith.

All outstanding options granted under the 2001 Scheme had
been expired on or before December 31, 2007.

BRERRE
- 2 2k 18-

ALRR_BE-—FRAZTARBRRRAR
EH—AEEERESS ([ZFF —F5t
) FEEMZRMEERSEMESR - &
RN R _FRA=Z+TRRBERABAAL
REAREL -

BE-TS—458 HHUREEADRE
FIALBES  GFEXRFARANBLIZ
MITRFRITES  UREBER ARG -

RE-_FF-SHBTRE < RERBERY
RzBir@as #EMRETGBATQFE
BIilRAZ210% - BB FT—F5H - @F
MAMATR L 2@ARBRIERS R 2D H®
B THREOEZFHERZRTRA FED
LA R AL 4B B B MR 25% ¢

ZEATRES TERABKREE BRI 28R
EMERRRE  WARAREAELERIERS
S ITEARE - BAZRETREARS
E—ARRFHZ6FHMITME -

ABEREEETY  THORROERERS
EHAEXSAERRIMAZ FHRTES0%
EXRLFABRGAEMEPRS ZHES -
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SHARE OPTIONS (continued)
2002 Scheme

On August 23, 2001, the Stock Exchange has announced
amendments to Chapter 17 of the Listing Rules, which has
come into effect on September 1, 2001. In compliance with
the amendments to the Listing Rules and the announcement
of the Stock Exchange, the Company adopted a new share
option scheme (2002 Scheme”) and terminated the 2001
Scheme on May 30, 2002 pursuant to a resolution passed on
that date. The purpose of the 2002 Scheme is to provide
incentives or rewards to participants for their contribution to
the Group and enable the Group to recruit and retain high
calibre employees and attract human resources that are
valuable to the Group and any companies in which the Group
holds any equity interest. The 2002 Scheme will expire on
the 10th anniversary of date of adoption.

Under the 2002 Scheme, the Board of Directors of the
Company may at their discretion grant options to the following
participants of the Company, its subsidiaries and any
companies in which the Group helds any equity interest, to
subscribe for shares in the Company:

1. eligible employees, including Directors; or

2. suppliers or customers; or

3. any person or entity that provides research, development

or other technological support; ar
4. shareholders; or

S. employees, partners or Directors of any business partners,
joint venture partners, financial advisers and legal advisers.

Options granted to a Director, chief executive or substantial
shareholder of the Company, or any of their respective
associates must be approved by the Independent Non-
executive Directors of the Company (excluding any
independent Non-executive Director who is the grantee).

46 Wo Kee Hong (Holdings) Limited F5217 () 5B o 7

BB mRME )
g 3 - Sl o

R-FFE-F/HAZ+=0  BIHEMEL
EHRAB+CREER_FTT—FAA—RE
ERH o RN ELTRABITRBRMZAMA
T ARRRIRRERAZTEERS -
HELRBRENS((ZFFT_F8]) RIRE
RBEABABZRERZI_FT—F5# -
TR ESRMA R AU AEEERE
Be2BA FAREAEETEOREDER
ZAT - YRS EEZASBREELETES
HAEERROREZERQEFHER - =

FoFUHRBESMBEENETATER -

RE-FF_F:E - A2FAMBEGIHER
EMBFRR - A BOF R EERFEEM
Bi#Es cERATAABZUTE2REALRT
BEREE - RABADIFRD -

1. REMER 2RSS X

2. HERREP @ ®

3. RUAE  RESEARNTIEZETAL
/N I

4. RBGE =g

5. EFRRBEBA RECRABA  HEH
BEERBAMZEENER  ABARNE -

BHBRARBETIQSES  TETRAER
REERRABRSEAZHMBAL - BARA
RABUIRTEZR(TRERRARRAZE
FIBZIEMITIES) H A -



Corporate Governance and Other Information
TEEARAMBER

SHARE OPTIONS (continued)
2002 Scheme (continued)

The total number of shares in respect of which options may
be granted under the 2002 Scheme and any other schemes is
not permitted to exceed 30% of the issued share capital of
the Company from time to time. Subject to the above rule,
the total number of shares in respect of which options may
be granted under the 2002 Scheme and any other schemes
must not in aggregate, exceed 10% of the issued share capital
of the Company at the adoption date of the 2002 Scheme
without prior approval from the Company's shareholders.

The number of shares in respect of which options may be
granted to any participant in any one year is not permitted to
exceed 1% of the shares of the Company in issue at any
point of time, without prior approval from the Company’s
shareholders, Options granted to a substantial shareholder,
or an Independent Non-executive Director of the Company or
any of their respective associates under the 2002 Scheme
and any other schemes in any one year in excess of 0.1% of
the Company’s issued share capital or with a value, based on
the closing price of the shares of the Company at the date of
each grant, in excess of HK$5 million must be approved in
advance by the Company’s shareholders.

Options granted must be taken up within 28 days of the date
of grant upon payment of HK$1 per each grant of options.
The exercise period of the share options granted under the
2002 Scheme shall be determined by the Board of Directors
when such options are granted, provided that such period
shall not end later than 6 years from the date of grant. The
subscription price is determined by the Board of Directors of
the Company, and will not be less than the higher of the
closing price of the Company’s shares on the date of grant
or the average closing price of the shares for the five trading
days immediately preceding the date of grant, or the nominal
value of a share of the Company.

No share options were exercised or granted for the six months
ended June 30, 2008,

At June 30, 2008, the number of shares in respect of which
options had been granted and remained outstanding under
the 2001 Scheme and 2002 Scheme were 0 and 14,476,961*
" (2007: 11,861,598 and 9,514,686 respectively), representing
0% and 4.72% (2007: 5.35% and 4.29% respectively) of the
issued share capital of the Company at that date respectively.

t  After adjustment for the Bonus Share Issue on May 9, 2008,
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MOVEMENT OF SHARE OPTIONS

The following table discloses movement in the Company’s

share aptions for the six months ended June 30, 2008:

BEIRERH

R=+HRIENBAZEHER

TREBARATZEABRER_BENFEA

Exercise Price

Outstanding Qutstanding ot |
as at 4 January as at 30 hune Before After
2008 Lapsed  Adjustment 2008 adjustment  adjustment!
3=t £ )8 during during RZ$FNE :]E] asy
Eligible person Scheme type  Date of grant ~B-8  thePeriod  thePeriod AAZ+A Exercisable period HKS HKS
SERAL HERH LS BATE RA%E RADIE HAGR fRR an F
Mr. Richerd Man Fai LEE 2002 September 24, 2002 2,215,928 - 443,185 2659,113  September 24, 2002 - September 23, 2008 1.0000 08333
[Directar) -%%-¢  Cgy-fafItREE ZPP-EARCTRAE
E3 ¢ EE ZREAFAAZYIA
(%)
00 June 11, 2007 220,000 - 4,000 264600 June 13, 2007 - Jume 40, 2013 1.0000 06333
Z8%°f  CSEHERAT-R ISTLERAT-RS
Z3-ZEXA+H
1002 September 25, 2007 100,000 - 20,000 120,000 September 25, 2007 - September 24, 2013 1.0440 08700
I8¥-%  -99tEAB-TER {Note 1) (Noie 1) Z¥F+ELA-TEAE
By (H&1) -¥-z£hrA-t@s
1,535,928 - 507,185 3043313
Mr. Jeff Man Bun LEE 2002 June 4, 3002 314,631 557 61926 — June 4, 2062 - June 3, 2008 1.6000 08333
{Diractar) -99-§  -PYR-E£XAER SR _EAAMAE
EIEzET Z9AEAREE
(¥%)
2002 September 24, 2002 143,000 - 28,600 171,600 September 24, 2002 - September 23, 2008 1.0000 0.8333
Z¥¥-5F  C99-FAR-1AE “$9-EAACTEEZ
ZRRAEAACYEE
002 tune 11, 2007 106,000 - 20,000 120,000 June 11, 2007 - June 10, 2013 1.0000 98333
99 -9%:E5A+-A $FLFART-BZ
Z¥-ZENATE
1002 September 25, 2007 120,000 - 24,000 144000 September 25, 2007 - September 24, 2013 1.0440 0.8700
Z¥PCF CETLEARCGTIA S¥MFARCTIRE
Z§-=£ARC1@EE
577,631 377,557 135,526 435,600

* After adjustment for the Bonus Share Issue on May 9, 2008,
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MOVEMENT OF SHARE OPTIONS (continued) BRERESD (&)
Exercise Price
Ouistanding Qutstanding 4l
as at 1 fanuary as 3t 30 June Before After
2008 Lapsed  Adjustment 2008' adjustment  adjustment’
i 2 JIt3 during during H-BEAE ALk asa
Eligible person Scheme type  Date of grant ~B-R8  thePericd thePeriod AR=1E Exercisable peried HKS HXS
FREBAL tHEN RLER BRAR RA%y RAKEE HEfE TER A an
Wr. Tik Tung WONG 2002 September 25, 2007 2,900,000 - 580,000 3,480,000 September 25, 2007 - September 24, 2013 1.0440 0.8700
[Diracter) Z$F-F C9REFAA-TEA ZFPEEARZTREE
IHERE Z¥-ZFRR-TRE
(H%)
Mr. Waison Chit Sing HUL - 2002 September 25, 2007 700,000 - 140,000 B40,000 September 25, 2007 - September 24, 2003 1.0440 0.6700
[Director} “PR-f CeRLEAICTEE T9Rr§ABCTREE
FERAE Z¥-ZEAAZTEA
(X%
Mr. Boon Seng TAN p{L1)] September 25, 2007 170,000 - 34,000 204,000 Sepiember 25, 2007 - Sepiember 24,2013 1.0440 0.8700
{Direcion) Z99-5  CPRLEAAZTERA YL EAAZTRBE
ArERE Z9-CFARZTMA
(i)
M. Raymond Cho Min LEE 2007 June 4, 2002 220,14 164,289 44048 = June 4, 2002 - June 3, 2008 1.0000 08333
{Director) Z9P-F  C9PIFAAMA ZRP_FRAMAE
F9RRE “ERAFAAEE
€ § )]
2002 September 24, 2002 1,144 - 128 1,372 September 24, 2002 - September 23, 2008 1.0000 0.8333
Z¥F2F CTY-EABC1AA FTFAACTEEE
ZEPAFARCTEH
2002 lune i1, 2007 50,000 - 10,000 60,000 June 11, 2007 - June 19, 2013 1.0000 08333
Z¥F2F C9RLERRL-R ZPRLFAAT-RE
“%-z§58t18
1002 September 25, 2007 170,000 - 34,000 204,000 September 25, 2007 - Sepiember 24, 2013 1.0440 0.8700
ZP¥-F  CITLEARCTIR ZPRLFAAZTRRE
Z$-ZFARZTER
441,385 164,283 88,216 265,312
Mr. Ying Kwan CHEUNG 2002 June 11, 2007 50,000 - 10,000 60,000 fune 11, 2007 - June 10, 2013 1.0000 08333
[Directer) it & St -t £ 223190 ZETHEAAT-RE
FABiE —§-§5A4H
(¥®)
200 September 25, 2007 170,000 - 34,000 204,000 September 25, 2007 - September 24, 2013 1.0440 0.8700
Z¥F-f C9RtHARCTER “FFLFAECTRBE
Z¥-ZEAACTES
220,000 - 44,000 164,000

¥ After adjustment for the Bonus Share {ssue on May 9, 2008,
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MOVEMENT OF SHARE OPTIONS (continued) BREAREDE (&)
Exercise Price
Outstinding Outstanding Ex
as at 1 January as at 30 June Before After
2008 Lapsed  Adjustment 2008 adjustment  adjustment!
R-RRAE during during RZRENE AEA E1-f Y
Eligible person Stheme type  Date of grant -B-B  thePeriod  thePeriod AEZtH Exercisable period HK$ HKS
£R8AL L 1) ELAR EE RA%h HAKRE HEfR TRR A% %
Ms. Kam Kar YUE on September 24, 2002 64,064 - 12,812 76,876 September 24, 2002 - September 23,2008 1.0000 0.8333
{Director) 9928 CEFCEARCTER [Note 2) Noe ) ~BF-FAR-1AARE
$&0at k] (K  —$$AEAA-T=H
(@%)
2002 Jene 11, 2007 80,000 - 16,000 96,000 June 11, 2007 - June 10, 2013 1.0000 08333
Z99-E8 CRRHERAT-A Z99tERA+-BE
Z9-ZERATH
W00 Sepiember 25, 2007 140,000 - 28,000 168,000 September 25, 2007 - September 24, 2013 10440 0.8700
Z9%-&  C99EEAA-fEA “$RLEAACTRAE
—$-Z€nA-tEA
284,064 - 56,812 340,876
Continyous contract 002 June 4, 2007 3,518,858 4221625 103,707 = lune 4, 2002 - June 3, 2008 1,0000 08333
employees Z¥9-F  -FT_EXARA Z¥P-ERAmOZ
BRaHEn Z¥9NAERRZH
7002 June i1, 2007 200,000 - 49,000 240,000 June 11, 2007 - June 10, 2013 1.0000 0.3333
Z¥¥-F  CERtEAAT-H ZRSEERAT-AE
Z§-Z§xE+E
1002 August 8, 2007 680,000 96,000 136,000 720,000 August 9, 2007 - Augusi 8, 2013 1.2780 +.0650
Z¥P-F CEREEMAAR Z¥RLENAAAE
Z¥-ZEMRAR
007 September 25, 2007 4,070,000 740,000 814,000 4,644,000 September 25, 2007 - September 24, 2013 1.0440 0.3700
¥¥-F C9PEEARA-tES Z99LENACTEAE
Z9-fNR-THEB
§468,858 4 558,625 1,693,767 5,604,000
16,397,856 5,200,471 3279566 14,476,951
! after adjustment for the Bonus Share 1ssue on May 9, 2008. * BN C-FENFERAABZABRSEITEHAE -
Netes: FidE -
1. Share options granted 1o Mr. Richard Man Fai LEE's spouse were included. 1. EEETEXMEAEIRBZBRZEHE -

2. The 76,876 Options (after adjustment) granted to Mr. Wing Sum LEE, 2.
the spouse of Ms. Kam Har YUE and former Director of the Company,
are included.
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PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF SECURITIES

During the six months ended June 30, 2008, the Company
and its subsidiaries have not repurchased, sold or redeemed
any of the Company’s securities.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

In the opinion of the Directors, the Company has complied
with the code provisiens of the Code on Corporate
Governance Practices as set out in Appendix 14 of the Rules
Governing the Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange of
Hong Kong Limited (“Listing Rules”} during the six-months
ended June 30, 2008 excepi in relation to the separation of
the role of Chairman and chief executive officer under the
code provision A.2.7.

Code provision A.2.1 stipulates that the roles of chairman
and chief executive officer should be separate and should
not be performed by the same individual. Mr. Richard Man
Fai LEE is the Executive Chairman and Chief Executive Officer.
The Board considers that this structure will not impair the
balance of power and authority between the Board and the
management. This is because the Board has adopted clear
guideline as to the power and authority of the Board and the
management. There is a guideline as to the power and duties
of Chief Executive Officer. The details are set out fully in the
corporate governance report in 2005 annual report.

In addition, the Board which comprises experienced and high
caliber individuals meets regularly to discuss issues and
operation of the Group. The Board believes that this structure
is conducive to strong and consistent leadership, enabling
the Group to make and implement decisions promptly and
efficiently.

COMPLIANCE WITH THE MODEL CODE FOR
SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS BY DIRECTORS OF
LISTED ISSUERS (THE "MODEL CODE")

The Company has adopted a code of conduct for transactions
in the Company’s securities by the Directors that complies
with the Model Code as set out in Appendix 10 of the Listing
Rules. Followed specific enquiries by the Company, all
Directors have confirmed that they have complied with the
required standards as set out in the Model Code throughout
the six months ended June 30, 2008.
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AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Company set up an Audit Committee comprising Mr,
Raymond Cho Min LEE (Chairman), Mr. Boon Seng TAN and
Mr. Ying Kwan CHEUNG, all of whom are Independent Non-
executive Directors of the Company. In establishing the terms
of reference for this Committee, the Directors have had regard
to "A Guide for Effective Audit Committee” issued by the
Hong Kong Society of Accountants {(now known as the Heng
Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants) in February
2002 and the Code on Corporate Governance Practices.

The Audit Committee of the Company has reviewed the
condensed interim accounts and the Interim Report 2008,
and was content that the accounting poticies of the Group
are in accordance with the current best practice in Hong
Kong.

By Order of the Board of Directors
Richard Man Fai LEE
Executive Chairman & CEC

Hong Kong, September 18, 2008
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The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited takes no responsibility for the contents of this announcement, makes no
representation as to its accuracy or completeness and expressly disclaims any liability whatsoever for any loss howsoever
arising from or in reliance upon the whole or any part of the contents of this announcement.
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(Incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability)

(Stock Code: 720)

VERY SUBSTANTIAL ACQUISITION
IN RELATION TO
THE ACQUISITION OF
80% INTEREST IN A COMPANY ENGAGING IN
THE BUSINESS OF RETAILING AND WHOLESALING OF

CHILDREN APPARELS,
GRANT OF PUT OPTION B
AND L e
RESUMPTION OF TRADING o2
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The Acquisition and the grant of the Put Option

On 2 September 2008, Smart Apex, a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company, entered into the
Sale and Purchase Agreement with the Vendors pursuant to which Smart Apex agrees to acquire
80% of the issued share capital in SKC for the aggregate consideration of HK$96,200,000,
subject to adjustment as detailed in the paragraph headed “Adjustment to the Aggregate
Consideration”. The SKC Group owns the “Kingkow” brand name with points of sales in the
Greater China Region, Korea, Southeast Asia and Middle East.

To the best of the Directors’ knowledge, information and belief having made all reasonable
enquiry, each of the Vendors and in case the Vendor is a corporate, its ultimate beneficial

owners, is a third party independent of and not connected with the Company or its connected
persons.

Upon completion of the Acquisition, SKC will be owned as to 80% by the Company and as

to 20% by the Vendors in aggregate. SKC and its subsidiaries will become subsidiaries of the
Company.

Pursuant to the Sale and Purchase Agreement, Smart Apex has granted the Put Option to the
Vendors exercisable during the period from 1 January 2011 to 31 December 2015. Further details
of the Put Option are set out in the paragraph headed “The Put Option”.




As the exercise price of the Put Option is to be calculated by reference to the relevant audited
consolidated net profit of SKC at the time of the exercise of the Put Option, the maximum total
consideration payable by Smart Apex under the Put Option cannot be determined as at the date
hercof. The grant of the Put Option which is to be classified as if it has been exercised under
Rule 14.74(1) of the Listing Rules together with the Acquisition is treated as constituting a very
substantial acquisition for the Company under the Listing Rules and is therefore conditional
on the approval of the Shareholders. None of the Vendors has any interest in the Company and
hence all Shareholders can vote on the resolutions in relation to the Acquisition and the Put
Option to be proposed at the special general meeting of the Company.

A circular containing, among other things, further particulars of the Acquisition and the Put
Option together with the notice of a special general meeting of the Company to be convened
for the purpose of approving the Acquisition and the Put Option will be despatched to the
Shareholders as soon as practicable and in accordance with the Listing Rules.

Resumption of trading

Trading in the Shares on the Stock Exchange has been suspended at the request of the Company
with effect from 9:30 a.m. on Wednesday, 3 September 2008 pending the release of this
announcement. Application has been made to the Stock Exchange for resumption in the trading
of the Shares at 9:30 a.m. on Friday, 5 September 2008.

THE SALE AND PURCHASE AGREEMENT DATED 2 SEPTEMBER 2008

Parties

Purchaser: Smart Apex Holdings Limited, a company incorporated in the British
Virgin Islands with limited liability and a wholly-owned subsidiary of the
Company

Vendors: Ms. Chu, Ms. Yeung and eight other SKC Shareholders as identified in the

table set out in the section headed “Information on the SKC Group”

To the best of the Directors’ knowledge, information and belief having made all reasonable enquiry,
each of the Vendors and in case the Vendor is a corporate, its ultimate beneficial owners, is a third
party independent of and not connected with the Company or its connected persons. None of the
Company and its connected persons has any prior business relationship with any of the Vendors, and
in case of York Talent Ltd., its ultimate beneficial owners, before the entering into of the Sale and
Purchase Agreement.

Assets to be acquired

The Sale Shares, being 80% of the issued share capital of SKC, are sold by the Vendors in proportion
to their respective percentage holding in SKC and as to 3,878 Sale Shares by Ms. Chu (representing
approximately 48.47% of the total Sale Shares), 1,237 Sale Shares by Ms. Yeung (representing
approximately 15.46% of the total Sale Shares) and 2,885 Sale Shares by eight other SKC Shareholders
(representing approximately 36.07% of the total Sale Shares).



The Aggregate Consideration

The aggregate consideration of HK$96,200,000 (subject to adjustments described below) is payable
by Smart Apex in cash in the following manner:

(a) as to HK$67,340,000 at Completion; and

(b) as to HK$28,860,000 (subject to adjustment detailed in the paragraph headed “Adjustment to
the Aggregate Consideration” below) within 5 business days of the agreement of the adjusted
amount between the parties and no later than 30 April 2010.

The Aggregate Consideration is to be received by the Vendors in proportion to the number of Sale
Shares to be sold by each of them to the total number of Sale Shares. The Aggregate Consideration
was determined after arm’s length negotiation between the Company and the Vendors with reference
to the Guaranteed Profits and a price earnings ratio of approximately 6.5 times. In arriving at the
Aggregate Consideration, the Company has compared the market statistics of companies engaging in
apparels distribution and retailing business and is of the view that the Aggregate Consideration (in
particular the 6.5 times price earnings ratio) is fair and reasonable and in the interests of the Company
and the Shareholders as a whole.

Adjustment to the Aggregate Consideration

Adjustment will be made to the audited consolidated net profits of SKC for the year ending
31 December 2009 by carving out the revenue and expenses relating to the operation of the SKC
Group in Taiwan for the year ending 31 December 2009 up to a maximum amount of HK$3,000,000
(the “Adjusted 2009 Net Profits”). The Vendors guarantee that the Adjusted 2009 Net Profits will
not be less than HK$18,500,000, ie. the Guaranteed Profits.

In the event the Adjusted 2009 Net Profits is less than HK$16,000,000, the Original Balance Payment
will be adjusted by reference to the following formula:

(Guaranteed Profits — Adjusted 2009 Net Profits) x 6.5 x 80%
If the Adjusted 2009 Net Profits is zero or a negative figure, zero will be adopted as “Adjusted 2009
Net Profits” in application of the formula. Should the Reduced Amount exceeds the Original Balance
Payment, the Reduced Amount will be equivalent to the Original Balance Payment.
There will not be upward adjustment to the Original Balance Payment.
Conditions
Completion is conditional upon satisfaction of the following conditions:
(a) Smart Apex being satisfied with the results of the legal and financial due diligence review of
the business, affairs, operation and financial position of SKC and the due incorporation of, the
valid existence of and the power and capacity of the SKC Group to carry on their respective

business;

(b) the obtaining of all necessary approvals, authorizations or consents in Hong Kong or elsewhere
in relation to the transactions contemplated under the Sale and Purchase Agreement;



(c) the SKC Group having entered into entrustment agreements in such form to be agreed between
the parties with Ms. Chu and Ms. Yeung respectively in respect of the business of the shops of
the SKC Group;

(d) the Company having obtained its shareholders’ approval of the Acquisition and transactions
contemplated under the Sale and Purchase Agreement at its general meeting in accordance with
the Listing Rules;

{e) SKC having obtained the consent to the change of ultimate benefictal owners of SKC from their
bankers providing loan facilities to the SKC Group in accordance with the terms and conditions
of such loan facilities, if required; and

(f) to the extent required in the lease agreement relating to SKC’s office in Manulife Tower as
well as the lease agreement for an office at Causeway Bay, SKC having obtained the necessary
consent from the landlord under the relevant lease agreement in relation to the transactions
contemplated in the Sale and Purchase Agreement.

Four of the points of sale of the SKC Group are operated in the name of Ms. Chu and Ms. Yeung,
the entrustment agreements referred to in (c) above are to rationalise and formalise the ownership of
such points of sales by the SKC Group.

If any of the conditions shall not have been satisfied (or waived, where applicable, by Smart Apex
pursuant to the Sale and Purchase Agreement) by the Long Stop Date, the Sale and Purchase
Agreement shall lapse and the Sale and Purchase Agreement and all provisions contained except for,
amongst others, provisions relating to restrictions on disclosure, shall, subject to the liability of any
party to the other parties in respect of any antecedent breach of the terms hereof, be null and void
and of no further effect.

Completion

Completion will take place on the fifth business day after satisfaction or waiver (as the case may be)
of the conditions set out in the Sale and Purchase Agreement, or such later date as the parties may
agree in writing prior to Completion.

The Put Option

Pursuant to the Sale and Purchase Agreement, Smart Apex has granted the Put Option to the Vendors
exercisable during the period from 1 January 2011 to 31 December 2015 by serving a written notice
on Smart Apex requiring Smart Apex to purchase up to 20% of the issued share capital of SKC. The
consideration payable will be determined by reference to a price earnings ratio of 6.5 times of the
audited consolidated net profit of SKC for the immediately preceding financial year in case the notice
to exercise the Put Option is served on or before 30 June or the audited consolidated net profit of
SKC for the immediately preceding 12 months up to 30 June in case the notice to exercise the Put
Option is served after 30 June.

As the majority shareholder of SKC upon Completion, Smart Apex does not want the SKC
Shareholders to sell their interest in SKC to outside parties when any of them wish to dispose of their
interest and hence agreed to the grant of the Put Option. On the other hand, the SKC Shareholders
can dispose of their interest in SKC to Smart Apex at a consideration to be determined by reference
to the agreed formula at the same price earnings ratio as the Acquisition without having to identify
a potential purchaser and to engage in lengthy discussion with such potential purchaser.




As the exercise price of the Put Option is to be calculated by reference to the relevant audited
consolidated net profit of SKC at the time of the exercise of the Put Option, the maximum total
consideration payable by Smart Apex under the Put Option cannot be determined as at the date hereof.
The grant of the Put Option which is to be classified as if it has been exercised under Rule 14.74(1)
of the Listing Rules together with the Acquisition will be treated as constituting a very substantial
acquisition for the Company under the Listing Rules.

The Company will comply with the disclosure requirement in Rule 14.74(2) of the Listing Rules upon
the exercise of the Put Option.

INFORMATION ON THE SKC GROUP

SKC is a company incorporated in Hong Kong with limited liability on 23 January 1998. The
following table sets out the shareholding structure of SKC as at the date of the Sale and Purchase
Agreement and upon Completion:

Shareholding structure of
SKC as at the date of the Sale =~ Shareholding structure of

and Purchase Agreement SKC upon Completion

Number of Approximate Number of Approximate

shares held percentage % shares held percentage %
Ms. Chu 4,847 48.47 969 9.69
Ms. Yeung 1,546 15.46 309 3.09
York Talent Lid. 1,031 10.31] 207 2.07
Chan Roy 515 5.15 103 1.03
Ho Cheung Hing 515 5.15 103 1.03
Chan Ka Lok 412 4.12 82 0.82
Leung Yuet Ming 412 4.12 82 0.82
Ho Keung Hing 258 2.58 52 0.52
Ho Yun Kit 258 2.58 52 0.52
Yeung Sui Lung Gloria 206 2.06 41 0.41
Smart Apex - - 8,000 80
Total 10,000 100 10,000 100

Notes:

1. Ms. Chu is the mother of Mr. Chan Roy.

2. Ms. Yeung and Ms. Yeung Sui Lung Gloria are sisters.

3. Mr. Ho Cheung Hing, Mr. Ho Keung Hing and Mr. Ho Yun Kit are brothers,

SKC has three wholly owned subsidiaries, Billion Treasure International Limited, Profit Dynamic
Limited and ¥ (L) B3ARAF (Yunli (Shanghai) Trading Co. Ltd."). Each of Billion
Treasure International Limited and Profit Dynamic Limited is incorporated in Hong Kong with
limited liability. #JF] ( L) #3BMR/A B (Yunli (Shanghai) Trading Co. Ltd.") is a wholly
foreign owned enterprise established in the PRC. The members of the SKC Group are principally
engaged in the retailing and wholesaling of children apparels. SKC also has a 46% interest in a
company incorporated in Singapore which is engaged in the retail sale of children and infants’
wear (including products and accessories for infants).
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The SKC Group owns the “Kingkow” brand name. “Kingkow” is a leading international specialty
retail chain with points of sales in the Greater China Region, Korea, Southeast Asia and Middle
East offering high quality and uniquely design clothing and accessories for newborn to 14-year old
children. The SKC Group has a long history and established customers base enabling it to expand
in various regions since its founding in Hong Kong more than 10 years ago. As at the date of this
announcement, the SKC Group has 98 points of sales located mainly in Hong Kong, Macau, PRC,
Singapore, Thailand, Korea, United Arab Emirates and Kazakhstan.

According to the audited consolidated financial statements of SKC as at 29 February 2008, the net
assets value of SKC was approximately HK$81.9 million. SKC recorded audited consolidated net
profit before and after tax for each of the two financial years ended 29 February 2008 as follows:

For the year ended For the year ended

29 February 2008 28 February 2007

(audited) (audited)

HK$ HK$

Net profit before tax 23,994,122 14,001,664
Net profit after tax 21,343,572 12,760,374

Upon completion of the Sale and Purchase Agreement, SKC will be owned as to 80% by Smart Apex
and will become an indirect subsidiary of the Company. The Vendors will own as to the remaining
20% of SKC. The results of the SKC Group will be consolidated into the Group’s financial results
for the financial year ending 31 December 2008. Ms. Chu and Ms. Yeung will remain as directors of
SKC and Smart Apex will nominate three persons to the board of directors of SKC.

REASONS FOR THE ACQUISITION

The Group is principally engaged in the import, marketing, distribution and after-sales service of
high quality, brand-name products serving customers in the Asian region, in particular, the markets
of the PRC, Hong Kong, Macau, Singapore and Malaysia, and property investment. The products
include principally cars and car accessories, motor yachts, helicopters, premium fashion apparel
and accessories, air-conditioning and refrigeration products, audio-visual equipment, car audio and
electronic products.

The children’s wear market in China is very large and highly fragmented. There are over 400 million
children in China and more than 100 million children living in urban areas. With growing urbanization
and affluence and the “One Child” policy, the Directors believe that China represents a significant
growing opportunity to the Group to further its brand building effort and to expand its coverage. The
Board is of the view that the Acquisition would enable the Group to expand and diversify its existing
fashion and accessories business line; and provide synergy to the Group’s wholesale and distribution
networks. The Directors believe that the corporate strategy of the Group is in line with the strategy
of the SKC Group to continue to expand its market leadership and to build its brand on the basis of
its existing solid foundation. On this basis, the Board is of the view that the Group’s profitability and
revenue stream shall be strengthened and further diversified by the Acquisition.




In view of the above, the Directors are of the view that the terms of the Sale and Purchase Agreement
including the Aggregate Consideration are fair and reasonable so far as the Shareholders are concerned
and the Sale and Purchase Agreement is in the interests of the Company and the Shareholders as a
whole.

GENERAL

The Acquisition together with the grant of the Put Option is treated as constituting a very substantial
acquisition for the Company under the Listing Rules and is therefore conditional on the approval of
the Shareholders. None of the Vendors has any interest in the Company and hence all Shareholders
can vote on the resolutions in relation to the Acquisition and the Put Option to be proposed at the
special general meeting of the Company.

A circular containing, among other things, further particulars of the Acquisition and the Put Option
together with the notice of a special general meeting of the Company to be convened for the purpose
of approving the Acquisition and the Put Option will be despatched to the Shareholders as soon as
practicable and in accordance with the Listing Rules.

RESUMPTION OF TRADING

Trading in the Shares on the Stock Exchange has been suspended at the request of the Company with
effect from 9:30 a.m. on Wednesday, 3 September 2008 pending the release of this announcement.
Application has been made to the Stock Exchange for resumption in the trading of the Shares at 9:30
a.m. on Friday, 5 September 2008.

DEFINITIONS

In this announcement, the following expressions shall have the meanings set out below unless the
context requires otherwise:

“Acquisition” the acquisition of 80% of the issued share capital of SKC pursuant to
the Sale and Purchase Agreement;

“Aggregate Consideration” the consideration for the Acquisition under the Sale and Purchase

Agreement;
“Board” the board of Directors;
“Company” Wo Kee Hong (Holdings) Limited, a company incorporated in Bermuda

with limited liability and the Shares are listed on the Main Board of
the Stock Exchange;

“Completion” completion of the Acquisition in accordance with the Sale and Purchase
Agreement;

L]

“connected person’ has the meaning ascribed to it under the Listing Rules;
“Directors” the directors of the Company;

“Group” the Company and its subsidiaries;



"

“Guaranteed Profits

“Hong Kong”

“Listing Rules”

“Long Stop Date”

“Ms. Chu”

“Ms. Yeung”
“Original Balance Payment”

“PRC” or “China”

“Put Option”

“Reduced Amount”

i‘SKC”

“SKC Group”

“SKC Shareholders”

“Sale Shares”

“Sale and Purchase
Agreement”

“Shareholders”

the guarantee by the Vendors that the Adjusted 2009 Net Profits shall
not be less than HK$18,500,000;

the Hong Kong Special Administrative Region of the People’s Republic
of China;

the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the Stock
Exchange;

15 November 2008 or such later date as the parties may agree in
writing;

Ms. Chu Wan Kam Sabrina, one of the Vendors and a director of
SKC;

Ms. Yeung Sui King, one of the Vendors and a director of SKC;
the amount of HK$28,860,000;

The People’s Republic of China and for the sole purpose of this
announcement shall exclude Hong Kong, Macau Special Administrative
Region and Taiwan;

the option granted by Smart Apex to the Vendors pursuant to the Sale
and Purchase Agreement as detailed in the paragraph headed “The Put
Option” in this announcement;

The amount to be deducted from the Original Balance Payment
calculated in accordance with the formula set out in the paragraph
headed “Adjustment to the Aggregate Consideration” in this
announcement;

SKC Group Limited, a company incorporated in Hong Kong with
limited liability and owned by the SKC Shareholders as at the date of
this announcement;

SKC and its subsidiaries;
Ms. Chu, Ms. Yeung and seven individuals and one body corporate
identified in the table set out in the section headed “Information on

the SKC Group”;

8,000 ordinary shares of HK$1.00 each in the issued share capital of
SKC;

the agreement for sale and purchase dated 2 September 2008 and
entered into between the Vendors and Smart Apex in relation to the

Acquisition and the grant of the Put Option;

the holders of the Shares;



“Share(s)” the ordinary share(s) of HK$0.10 each in the capital of the

Company;

“Smart Apex” Smart Apex Holdings Limited, a wholly owned subsidiary of the
Company;

“Stock Exchange” The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited;

“Vendors” Ms. Chu, Ms. Yeung and eight other SKC Sharecholders identified
in the table set out in the section headed “Information on the SKC
Group”; and

“HK$” or “Hong Kong Hong Kong dollars, the lawful currency of Hong Kong.

Dollars”

As at the date of this announcement, the Board comprises Mr. Richard Man Fai LEE (Executive
Chairman and Chief Executive Officer), Mr. Jeff Man Bun LEE, Mr. Tik Tung WONG and Mr. Waison
Chir Sing HUI, all of whom are executive Directors; Ms. Kam Har YUE, who is a non-executive
Director; Mr. Boon Seng TAN, Mr. Raymond Cho Min LEE, and Mr. Ying Kwan CHEUNG, all of

whom are independent non-executive Directors.

By Order of the Board
WO KEE HONG (HOLDINGS) LIMITED
Richard Man Fai LEE
Executive Chairman and Chief Executive Officer

Hong Kong, 4 September 2008

* for identification purposes only
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WO KEE HONG (HOLDINGS) LIMITED

(Incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability)
(Stock Code: 720)

SUSPENSION OF TRADING

At the request of Wo Kee Hong (Holdings) Limited (the “Company”), trading in its
shares was suspended with effect from 9:30 a.m. on Wednesday, 3 September 2008
pending the publication of an announcement by the Company regarding a major
acquisition.

By Order of the Board
Richard Man Fai LEE
Executive Chairman and Chief Executive

Officer

Hong Kong, 3 September 2008

As at the date of this announcement, the Board comprises Mr. Richard Man Fai LEE
(Executive Chairman and Chief Executive Officer), Mr. Jeff Man Bun LEE, Mr. Tik Tung
WONG and Mr. Waison Chit Sing HUI, all of whom are executive Directors;, Ms. Kam
Har YUE, who is a non-executive Director; Mr. Boon Seng TAN, Mr. Raymond Cho Min
LEE, and Mr. Ying Kwan CHEUNG, all of whom are independent non-executive
Directors.



The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited takes no responsibility for the contents of this announcement, makes no
representation as to its accuracy or completeness and expressly disclaims any liability whatsoever for any loss howsoever
arising from or in reliance upon the whole or any part of the contents of this announcement.

WO KEE HONG (HOLDINGS) LIMITED

(Incorporated in Bermuda with limited liabiliry)

(Stock Code: 720)

CONNECTED TRANSACTION -
PURCHASE OF A UNIT OF VINTAGE FERRARI FROM
A CONNECTED PERSON

On 18 September 2008, Auto Italia, an approximately 70.50% owned subsidiary of the Company
purchased a unit of vintage Ferrari from Mr. Richard Lee, a Director and controlling shareholder
of the Company, for a cash consideration of HK$4.68 million.

The Purchase was made in the ordinary course of business of Auto Italia. The Directors,
including the independent non-executive Directors, are of the view that the Purchase is in
the ordinary course of business of Auto Italia and the terms of the Purchase are on normal
commercial terms and fair to the shareholders as a whole.

Mr. Richard Lee, being a Director and a controlling shareholder of the Company, is a connected
person of the Company. Accordingly, the Purchase constitutes a connected transaction for the
Company. As the percentage ratios (other than the profits ratio) is more than 2.5% but less than
25% and the Consideration is less than HK$10,000,000, the Purchase is subject to disclosure
by way of an announcement under Rule 14A.32 of the Listing Rules. Details of the Purchase
will also be included in the next annual report of the Company.

THE PURCHASE

On 18 September 2008, Auto Italia, an approximately 70.50% owned subsidiary of the Company,
purchased a unit of vintage Ferrari from Mr. Richard Lee, a Director and controlling shareholder of the
Company, for a cash consideration of HK$4.68 million which is payable on or before 30 September
2008. The Consideration shall be paid through internal resources. The vintage Ferrari was purchased
by Mr. Richard Lee at the purchase cost of HK$1.4 million in 2002 for self-use.

Auto Italia is an approximately 70.50% owned subsidiary of the Company and is principally engaged
in the trading of cars and related accessories and provision of car repairing services. The Purchase
was made in the ordinary course of business of Auto Italia and the Consideration is determined by
reference to a valuation amount of US$600,000 (equivalent to approximately HK$4.68 million)
prepared by a qualified valuer which is an independent third party not connected with the connected
persons of the Company based on the market and cost approach. The Directors, including the
independent non-executive Directors, are of the view that the Purchase is in the ordinary course of
business of Auto Italia and the terms of the Purchase are on normal commercial terms and fair and
reasonable and in the interests of the Company and its shareholders as a whole.



REASONS FOR THE PURCHASE

The Group is principally engaged in the import, marketing, distribution and after-sales service of
high quality, brand-name products serving customers in the Asian region, in particular, the markets
of the PRC, Hong Kong, Macan, Singapore and Malaysia, and property investment. The products
include principally cars and car accessories, motor yachts, helicopters, premium fashion apparels
and accessories, air-conditioning and refrigeration products, audio-visual equipment, car audio and
electronic products.

The vintage Ferrari has a good resale value due to the limited supply in the market and as take in
used cars for resale is one of the principal businesses of Auto Italia, Auto Italia decided to purchase
the car.

GENERAL

Mr. Richard Lee, being a Director and a controlling shareholder of the Company interested in
approximately 39.25% of the issued share capital of the Company, is a connected person of the
Company. Accordingly, the Purchase constitutes a connected transaction for the Company. As
the percentage ratios (other than the profits ratio) is more than 2.5% but less than 25% and the
Consideration is less than HK$10,000,000, the Purchase is subject to disclosure by way of an
announcement under Rule 14A.32 of the Listing Rules. Details of the Purchase will also be included
in the next annual report of the Company.

DEFINITIONS

In this announcement, unless otherwise defined, terms used herein shall have the following
meanings:

“Auto Italia” Auto Italia Limited (tRE ¥MHEH R 2 ), a company incorporated
in Hong Kong and is owned as to approximately 70.50% by the
Company;

“Board” the board of Directors;

“Company” Wo Kee Hong (Holdings) Limited, an exempted company

incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability, whose shares are
listed on the Stock Exchange,

“connected person(s)” has the meaning ascribed thereto in the Listing Rules;
“Consideration” the amount of HK$4.68 million;

“Directors” the directors of the Company;

“Group” the Company and its subsidiaries; and members of the Group shall

be construed accordingly;

“HK$” Hong Kong dollars, the lawful currency of Hong Kong;




“Hong Kong”

“Listing Rules”

“Macau”

“Mr. Richard Lee”

b2

“percentage ratio(s)

“PRC”

“Purchase”

“Stock Exchange”

S(US$!’

The Hong Kong Special Administrative Region of the PRC;

The Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the Stock
Exchange;

The Macau Special Administrative Region of the PRC;

Mr. Richard Man Fai LEE, a Director and a controlling shareholder
of the Company within the meaning of the Listing Rules;

has the meaning ascribed thereto in the Listing Rules;

The People’s Republic of China and for the sole purpose of this
announcement shall exclude Hong Kong, Macau and Taiwan;

the purchase of a unit of vintage Ferrari from Mr. Richard Lee by
Auto Italia for the Consideration;

The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited; and

United States dollars, the lawful currency of the United States of
America.

In this announcement, all amounts in US$ are converted into HK$ at the exchange rate of HK$7.8:
US$1.00. The conversion rate is for the purpose of illustration only and does not constitute
a representation that any amounts have been, could have been, or may be exchanged at the
aforementioned or any other rates.

As at the date of this announcement, the Board comprises Mr. Richard Man Fai LEE (Executive
Chairman and Chief Executive Officer), Mr. Jeff Man Bun LEE, Mr. Tik Tung WONG and Mr. Waison
Chit Sing HUI, all of whom are executive Directors; Ms. Kam Har YUE, who is a non-executive
Director; Mr. Boon Seng TAN, Mr. Raymond Cho Min LEE, and Mr. Ying Kwan CHEUNG, all of

whom are independent non-executive Directors.

Hong Kong, 18 September 2008

By Order of the Board
WO KEE HONG (HOLDINGS) LIMITED
Richard Man Fai LEE
Executive Chairman and Chief Executive Officer
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WO KEE HONG (HOLDINGS) LIMITED

{Incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability)
(Stock Code: 720)

DATE OF BOARD MEETING

The board of directors (the “Board”) of Wo Kee Hong (Holdings) Limited (the
“Company”) announces that a meeting of the Board will be held on Thursday, 18
September 2008 for the purposes of, among other matters, approving the interim results of
the Company and its subsidiaries for the six months ended 30 June 2008 and considering
the recommendation of payment of interim dividend, if any.

As at the date of this announcement, the Board comprises Mr. Richard Man Fai LEE
(Executive Chairman and Chief Executive Officer), Mr. Jeff Man Bun LEE, Mr. Tik Tung
WONG and Mr. Waison Chit Sing HUI, all of whom are executive Directors, Ms. Kam
Har YUE, who is a non-executive Director, Mr. Boon Seng TAN, Mr. Raymond Cho Min
LEE and Mr. Ying Kwan CHEUNG, all of whom are independent non-executive Directors.

By order of the Board

WO KEE HONG (HOLDINGS) LIMITED
Phyllis NG

Company Secretary

Hong Kong, 5 September 2008



Form of Share Buyback Report to The Stock Exchange
of Hong Kong Limited (“the Exchange”)

Form G

To: The Head of the Listing Division
The Listing Division
The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited 12 August 2008
Dear Sir,
Name of Company: Wo Kee Hong (Holdings) Limited
Description of Securities: Ordinary Shares

A, Purchase Report

We hereby report the following purchases by our company of the above securities.

Price per
Number of Share or Lowest

Trading Securities Method of Highest Price.  Price Total

DayDate Purchased Purchase* Paid $ Paid $ Paid §
12 August 2008 485,000 On the 0.50 050 242.500.00

Exchange
Total 485,000 242,500.00
* Either on the Exchange, on another stock exchange (stating the name of the exchange), by private
arrangement or by general offer.

B. Additional Information for company’s whose primary listing is on the Exchange

1. Number of such securities purchased on the Exchange

in the year to dale (since orinary resolution} (a) 485,000
2. % ofissued share capital at time ordinary resolution

passed acquired on the Exchange since date of resolution

( (a)x 100 )

Issued share capital 0.1899%




We hereby confirm that the purchases set out in A above which were made on the Exchange were made in
accordance with the listing rules of the Exchange entitted “Rules Goveming the Listing of Securities” and that
there have been no material changes to the particulars contained in the Explanatory Statement dated 7_Apiil
2008 which has been filed with the Exchange. We also confirm that any purchases set out in A above which
were made on ancther stock exchange were made in accomdance with the domestic rules applying to
purchases made on that other exchange.

Yours faithfully,

Name: Phyllis Sum Yu NG
Company Secretary

for and on behalf of

Wo Kee Hong {Holdings) Limited




Form of Share Buyback Report to The Stock Exchange
of Hong Kong Limited (“the Exchange”)

Form G

To: The Head of the Listing Division
The Listing Division
The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited 13 August 2008
Dear Sir,
Name of Company. Wo Kee Hong (Holdings) Limited
Description of Securities: Ordinary Shares

A. Purchase Report

We hereby report the following purchases by our company of the above securities.

Price per
Number of Share or Lowest

Trading Securities Method of Highest Price,  Piice Total

Day/Date Burchased Purchase* Paid $ Paid $ Paid $
13 August 2008 800,000 On the 0.54 0.51 417,000.00

Exchange
Total 800,000 417,000.00
. Either on the Exchange, on another stock exchange (stating the name of the exchange), by private
arrangement or by general offer.

B. Additional information for company's whose primary listing is on the Exchange

1. Number of such securities purchased on the Exchange
in the year to date (since ordinary resolution} {(a) 1,285,000

2. % of issued share capilal at time ordinary resolution
passed acquired on the Exchange since date of resolution

{ (a)x 100 )

Issued share capital 0.5033%




We hereby confim that the purchases set out in A above which were made on the Exchange were made in
accordance with the listing rules of the Exchange entitled “Rules Goveming the Listing of Securities™ and that
there have been no material changes to the particulars contained in the Explanatory Statement dated 7_April
2008 which has been filed with the Exchange. We also confirm that any purchases set out in A above which
were made on another stock exchange were made in accordance with the domestic rules applying to
purchases made on that other exchange.

Yours faithfully,

Name: Phyllis Sum Yu NG
Company Secretary

for and on behalf of

Wo Kee Hong (Holdings) Limited




Form of Share Buyback Report to The Stock Exchange
of Hong Kong Limited (“the Exchange”)

Form G

To: The Head of the Listing Division
The Listing Division
The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited 14 August 2008
Dear Sir,
Name of Company: Wo Kee Hong (Holdings) Limited
Description of Securities: Ordinary Shares

A. Purchase Report

We hereby report the foliowing purchases by our company of the above securities.

Price per
Number of Share or Lowest
Trading Securities Method of Highest Price_ Price Total
Day/Date Purchased Purchasg* Paid $ Paid $ Paid $
14 August 2008 605,000 On the 0.51 0.51 308,550.00
Exchange
Total 605,000 308,550.00
* Either on the Exchange, on another stock exchange (stating the name of the exchange), by private

arrangement or by general offer.

B. Additional Information for company's whose primary listing is on the Exchange

1.  Number of such securities purchased on the Exchange
in the year to date (since ordihary resolution) {a} 1,890,000

2. % ofissued share capital at time ordinary resolution
passed acquired on the Exchange since date of resolution

( (a)x 100 )

Issued share capital 0.7402%



Woe hereby confim that the purchases set out in A above which were made on the Exchange were made in
accordance with the listing rules of the Exchange entitled “Rules Goveming the Listing of Securilies” and that
there have been no material changes to the particulars contained in the Explanatory Statement dated 7 April
2008 which has been filed with the Exchange. We also confirm that any purchases set out in A above which
were made on another stock exchange were made in accordance with the domestic rules applying to
purchases made on that other exchange.

Yours faithfully,

Name: Phyllis Sum Yu NG
Company Secretary

for and on behalf of

Wo Kee Hong (Holdings) Limited



Form of Share Buyback Report to The Stock Exchange
of Hong Kong Limited (“the Exchange”)

Form G

To: The Head of the Listing Division
The Listing Division
The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited 15 August 2008
Dear Sir,
Name of Company. Wo Kee Hong (Holdings) Limited
Description of Securities: Ordinary Shares

A, Purchase Report

We hereby report the following purchases by our company of the above securities,

Price per
Number of Share or Lowest

Trading Securities Method of Highest Price, ~ Price Total

Day/Date Purchased Purchase* Paid $ Paid § Paid $
15 August 2008 460,000 On the 0.51 051 234 ,600.00

Exchange
Total 460,000 234,600.00
* Either on the Exchange, on another stock exchange (stating the name of the exchange), by private
arrangement or by general offer.

B. Additional Information for company's whose primary listing is on the Exchange

1. Number of such securities purchased on the Exchange
in the year to date (since ordinary resolution) (a) 2,350,000

2. % ofissued share capital at time ordinary resclution
passed acquired on the Exchange since date of resolution

( (a) x 100 )

Issued share capital 0.9204%




We hereby confirm that the purchases set out in A above which were made on the Exchange were made in
accordance with the listing rules of the Exchange entitled “Rules Goveming the Listing of Securities™ and that
there have been no material changes to the particulars contained in the Explanatory Statement dated 7_April
2008 which has been filed with the Exchange. We also confirm that any purchases set out in A above which
were made on another stock exchange were made in accordance with the domestic ruies applying to
purchases made on that other exchange.

Yours faithfully,

Name: Phyllis Sum Yu NG
Company Secretary

for and on behalf of

Wo Kee Hong (Holdings) Limited




THIS CIRCULAR IS IMPORTANT AND REQUIRES YOUR IMMEDIATE ATTENTION

If you are in any doubt as to any aspect of this circular or as to the action 1o be taken. you should consult your licensed
securities dealer, bank manager, solicitor, professional accountant or vther professienal adviser.

If you have sold or transferred all your securities in WO KEE HONG (HOLDINGS) LIMITED, you should at once hand

this circular to the purchaser, transferee or Lo the bank, licensed securities dealer or other agent through whom the sale or
transfer was effected for transmission to the purchaser or the transferee.

The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited takes no responsibility for the contents of this circular. makes no representation

as to its accuracy or completeness and expressly discluims any liability whatsoever for any less howsoever arising from or
in reliance upon the whole or any part of the contents of this circular,
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(fncorporated in Bermuda with limited liability) o ::‘_‘
(Stock Code: 720) =3

VERY SUBSTANTIAL ACQUISITION
IN RELATION TO
THE ACQUISITION OF 2
80% INTEREST IN A COMPANY ENGAGING IN
THE BUSINESS OF RETAILING AND WHOLESALING OF
CHILDREN APPARELS AND GRANT OF PUT OPTION
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Financial adviser to the Company

Access
Capital

A notice convening a special general meeting of WO KEE HONG (HOLDINGS) LIMITED (the “Company™) to be held at
Crystal Room, 3rd Floor, Panda Hotel, 3 Tsuen Wah Street, Tsuen Wan, New Territories, Hong Kong, on Tuesday, 14 October
2008 at 10:00 a.m. or any adjournment thereof is set out on pages 187 to 189 of this circular.

Il you are not able to attend the special general meeting in person, please complete the form of proxy in accordance with
the instructions printed thereon and return it 10 the principal office of the Company in Hong Kong at 10th Floor, Block A,
Wo Kee Hong Building, 585-609 Castle Peak Road, Kwai Chung, New Territories, Hong Kong as soon as possible and in
any event, not less than 48 hours before the time fixed for holding of the special general meeting or any adjourned meeting
(as the case may be), Completion and return of the form of proxy will not preclude you from attending and voling in person
at the special general meeting or any adjourned meeting (as the case may be) or upon the poll concerned should you so wish.
In such event, the instrument appointing a proxy shall be deemed to be revoked.

*  for idemtification purpose only

26 September 2008
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DEFINITIONS

In this circular, the following expressions shall have the meanings set out below unless

the context requires otherwise:

“Acquisition”

“Aggregate Consideration”

“Board”
“Bye-laws”

“Company”

“Completion”

“connected person”
“Directors”
“Enlarged Group”
“Group”

“Guaranteed Profits”

“Hong Kong”

“L.atest Practicable Date”

“Listing Rules”

“Long Stop Date”

the acquisition of 80% of the issued share capital of SKC
pursuani to the Sale and Purchase Agreement;

the consideration for the Acquisition under the Sale and
Purchase Agreement;

the board of Directors;

the bye-laws of the Company;

Wo Kee Hong (Holdings) Limited, a company
incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability and the
Shares are listed on the Main Board of the Stock

Exchange;

completion of the Acquisition in accordance with the Sale
and Purchase Agreement,

has the meaning ascribed to it under the Listing Rules;

the directors of the Company;

the Group as enlarged by the Acquisition;

the Company and its subsidiaries;

the guarantee by the Vendors that the Adjusted 2009 Net
Profits shall not be less than HK$18,500,000;

the Hong Kong Special Administirative Region of the
People’s Republic of China;

24 September 2008, being the latest practicable date prior
to the printing of this circular for ascertaining certain
information contained herein;

the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the
Stock Exchange;

15 November 2008 or such later date as the parties may
agree in writing;
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*Macau”

“Ms. Chu”

“Ms. Yeung”

“Original Balance Payment”

“PRC” or “China”

“Put Option”

“Reduced Amount”

11}

“Sale and Purchase Agreement

“Sale Shares”

“SFO”

“Share(s)”

“Shareholders”

“S KC”

Macau Special Administrative Region of the PRC;

Ms. Chu Wan Kam Sabrina, one of the Vendors and a
director of SKC;

Ms. Yeung Sui King, one of the Vendors and a director of
SKC;

the amount of HK$28,860,000;

The People’s Republic of China and for the sole purpose
of this circular shall exclude Hong Kong, Macau and
Taiwan;

the option granted by Smart Apex to the Vendors pursuant
to the Sale and Purchase Agreement as detailed in the
paragraph headed “The Put Option” in the Letter from the
Board contained in this circular:

the amount to be deducted from the Original Balance
Payment calculated in accordance with the formula set
out in the paragraph headed “Adjustment to the
Aggregate Consideration” in the Letter from the Board
contained in this circular;

the agreement for sale and purchase dated 2 September
2008 and entered into between the Vendors and Smart
Apex in relation to the Acquisition and the grant of the
Put Option;

8,000 ordinary shares of HK$1.00 each in the issued
share capital of SKC,

Securities and Futures Ordinance (Chapter 571 of the
Laws of Hong Kong);

the ordinary share(s) of HK$0.10 each in the capital of
the Company;

holders of the Shares;
SKC Group Limited, a company incorporated in Hong

Kong with limited liability and owned by the SKC
Shareholders as at the Latest Practicable Date;
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“SKC Group”

“SKC Shareholders™ or
“Yendors”

“Smart Apex”

“Special General Meeting”

“Stock Exchange”

“HKS$"” or “Hong Kong Dollars”

SKC and its subsidiaries;

Ms. Chu, Ms. Yeung and seven individuals and one body
corporate identified in the table set out in the paragraph
headed “Information on the SKC Group” in the Letter
from the Board contained in this circular;

Smart Apex Holdings Limited, a wholly owned
subsidiary of the Company;

the special general meeting of the Company to be held
and convened for the purpose of considering and, if
thought fit, approving, confirming and ratifying the Sale
and Purchase Agreement and the t(ransactions
contemplated thereunder;

The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited; and

Hong Kong dollars, the lawful currency of Hong Kong.
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@

WO KEE HONG (HOLDINGS) LIMITED
Mt (RE)ARAA

{Incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability)

(Stock Code: 720)

Executive Directors: Registered office:
Mr. Richard Man Fai LEE Canon’s Court

(Executive Chairman & Chief Executive Officer) 22 Victoria Street
Mr. Jeff Man Bur LEE Hamilton HM 12
Mr. Tik Tung WONG Bermuda

Mr. Waison Chit Sing HUI
Principal office in Hong Kong:

Non-executive Director: 10th Floor, Block A

Ms. Kam Har YUE Wo Kee Hong Building
585-609 Castle Peak Road

Independent Non-executive Directors: Kwai Chung, New Territories

Mr. Boon Seng TAN Hong Kong

Mr. Raymond Cho Min LEE
Mr. Ying Kwan CHEUNG

26 September 2008
To the Shareholders

Dear Sir or Madam,

VERY SUBSTANTIAL ACQUISITION
IN RELATION TO
THE ACQUISITION OF
80% INTEREST IN A COMPANY ENGAGING IN
THE BUSINESS OF RETAILING AND WHOLESALING OF
CHILDREN APPARELS AND GRANT OF PUT OPTION

INTRODUCTION

The Company announced on 4 September 2008 that Smart Apex, a wholly-owned
subsidiary of the Company, entered into the Sale and Purchase Agreement with the Vendors
pursuant to which Smart Apex agrees to acquire 80% of the issued share capital in SKC for the
aggregate consideration of HK$96,200,000, subject to certain adjustment. The SKC Group
owns the “Kingkow” brand name with points of sales in the Greater China Region, Korea,
Southeast Asia and Middle East.

*  for identification purpose only
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Upon Completion, SKC will be owned as to 80% by the Company and as to 20% by the
Vendors in aggregate. SKC and its subsidiaries will become subsidiaries of the Company.

Pursuant to the Sale and Purchase Agreement, Smart Apex has granted the Put Option to
the Vendors exercisable during the period from ! January 2011 to 31 December 2015.

As the exercise price of the Put Option is to be calculated by reference to the relevant
audited consolidated net profit of SKC at the time of the exercise of the Put Option, the
maximum total consideration payable by Smart Apex under the Put Option cannot be
determined as at the Latest Practicable Date. The grant of the Put Option which is to be
classified as if it has been exercised under Rule 14.74(1) of the Listing Rules together with the
Acquisition is treated as constituting a very substantial acquisition for the Company under the
Listing Rules and is therefore conditional on the approval of the Shareholders.

The purpose of this circular is to provide you with further particulars of the Acquisition
and the Put Option together with the notice of the Special General Meeting to be convened for

the purpose of approving the Acquisition and the Put Option.

THE SALE AND PURCHASE AGREEMENT DATED 2 SEPTEMBER 2008

Parties

Purchaser :  Smart Apex, a company incorporated in the British Virgin Islands with
limited liability and a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company

Vendors :  Ms. Chu, Ms. Yeung and eight other SKC Shareholders as identified in the

table set out in the paragraph headed “Information on the SKC Group” below

To the best of the Directors’ knowledge, information and belief having made all
reasonable enquiry, each of the Vendors and in case the Vendor is a corporate, its ultimate
beneficial owners, is a third party independent of and not connected with the Company or its
connected persons. None of the Company and its connected persons has any prior business
relationship with any of the Vendors, and in case of York Talent Ltd., its ultimate beneficial
owners, before the entering into of the Sale and Purchase Agreement.

Assets to Be Acquired

The Sale Shares, being 80% of the issued share capital of SKC, are to be sold by the
Vendors in proportion to their respective percentage holding in SKC and as to 3,878 Sale
Shares by Ms. Chu (representing approximately 48.47% of the total Sale Shares), 1,237 Sale
Shares by Ms. Yeung (representing approximately 15.46% of the total Sale Shares) and 2,885
Sale Shares by eight other SKC Shareholders (representing approximately 36.07% of the total
Sale Shares).

The Aggregate Consideration

The aggregate consideration of HK$96,200,000 (subject to adjustments described below)
is payable by Smart Apex in cash in the following manner:

(a) as to HK$67,340,000 at Completion; and

-5
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(b) as to HK$28,860,000 (subject to adjustment detailed in the paragraph headed
“Adjustment to the Aggregate Consideration™ below) within 5 business days of the
agreement of the adjusted amount between the parties and no later than 30 April
2010.

The Aggregate Consideration is to be received by the Vendors in proportion to the number
of Sale Shares to be sold by each of them to the total number of Sale Shares. The Aggregate
Consideration was determined after arm’s length negotiation between the Company and the
Vendors with reference to the Guaranteed Profits and a price earnings ratio of approximately
6.5 times. In arriving at the Aggregate Consideration, the Group has compared the market
statistics of companies engaging in apparels distribution and retailing business and is of the
view that the Aggregate Consideration (in particular the 6.5 times price earnings ratio) is fair
and reasonable and in the interests of the Company and the Shareholders as a whole.

Adjustment to the Aggregate Consideration

Adjustment will be made to the audited consolidated net profits of SKC for the year
ending 31 December 2009 by carving out the revenue and expenses relating to the operation
of the SKC Group in Taiwan for the year ending 31 December 2009 up to a maximum amount
of HK$3,000,000 (the “Adjusted 2009 Net Profits”). The Vendors guarantee that Adjusted
2009 Net Profits will not be less than HK$18,500,000, i.e. the Guaranteed Profits.

In the event the Adjusted 2009 Net Profits is less than HK$16,000,000, the Original
Balance Payment will be adjusted by reference to the following formula:

(Guaranteed Profits — Adjusted 2009 Net Profits) x 6.5 x 80%

If the Adjusted 2009 Net Profits is zero or a negative figure, zero will be adopted as
“Adjusted 2009 Net Profits” in application of the formula. Should the Reduced Amount
exceeds the Original Balance Payment, the Reduced Amount will be equivalent to the Original
Balance Payment.

There will not be upward adjustment to the Original Balance Payment.
Conditions
Completion is conditional upon satisfaction of the fellowing conditions:

(a) Smart Apex being satisfied with the results of the legal and financial due diligence
review of the business, affairs, operation and financial position of SKC and the due
incorporation of, the valid existence of and the power and capacity of the SKC
Group to carry on their respective business;

(b) the obtaining of all necessary approvals, authorizations or consents in Hong Kong
or eisewhere in relation to the transactions contemplated under the Sale and
Purchase Agreement;

_6—
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(c) the SKC Group having entered into entrustment agreements in such form to be
agreed between the parties with Ms. Chu and Ms. Yeung respectively in respect of
the business of the shops of the SKC Group;

{d) the Company having obtained its shareholders’ approval of the Acquisition and
transactions contemplated under the Sale and Purchase Agreement at its general
meeting in accordance with the Listing Rules;

(e) SKC having obtained the consent to the change of ultimate beneficial owners of
SKC from their bankers providing loan facilities to the SKC Group in accordance
with the terms and conditions of such loan facilities, if required; and

(f) to the extent required in the lease agreement relating to SKC’s office in Manulife
Tower as well as the lease agreement for an office at Causeway Bay, SKC having
obtained the necessary consent from the landlord under the relevant lease agreement
in relation to the transactions contemplated in the Sale and Purchase Agreement.

Four of the points of sale of the SKC Group are operated in the name of Ms. Chu and Ms.
Yeung, the entrustment agreements referred to in (c) above are to rationalise and formalise the
ownership of such points of sales by the SKC Group.

If any of the conditions shall not have been satisfied (or waived, where applicable, by
Smart Apex pursuant to the Sale and Purchase Agreement) by the Long Stop Date, the Sale and
Purchase Agreement shall lapse and the Sale and Purchase Agreement and all provisions
contained except for, amongst others, provisions relating to restrictions on disclosure, shall,
subject to the liability of any party to the other parties in respect of any antecedent breach of
the terms hereof, be null and void and of no further effect.

Completion

Completion will take place on the fifth business day after satisfaction or waiver (as the
case may be) of the conditions set out in the Sale and Purchase Agreement, or such later date
as the parties may agree in writing prior to Completion.

The Put Option

Pursuant to the Sale and Purchase Agreement, Smart Apex has granted the Put Option to
the Vendors exercisable during the period from 1 January 2011 to 31 December 2015 by
serving a written notice on Smart Apex requiring Smart Apex to purchase up to 20% of the
issued share capital of SKC. The consideration payable will be determined by reference to a
price earnings ratio of 6.5 times of the audited consolidated net profit of SKC for the
immediately preceding financial year in case the notice to exercise the Put Option is served on
or before 30 June or the audited consolidated net profit of SKC for the immediately preceding
12 months up to 30 June in case the notice to exercise the Put Option is served after 30 June.
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As the majority shareholder of SKC upon Completion, Smart Apex does not want the SKC
Shareholders to sell their interest in SKC 1o outside parties when any of them wish to dispose
of their interest and hence agreed to the grant of the Put Option. On the other hand, the SKC
Shareholders can dispose of their interest in SKC to Smart Apex at a consideration to be
determined by reference to the agreed formula at the same price earnings ratio as the
Acquisition without having to identify a potential purchaser and to engage in lengthy
discussion with such potential purchaser.

As the exercise price of the Put Option is to be calculated by reference to the relevant
audited consolidated net profit of SKC at the time of the exercise of the Put Option, the
maximum total consideration payable by Smart Apex under the Put Option cannot be
determined as at the date hereof. The grant of the Put Option which is to be classified as if it
has been exercised under Rule 14.74(1) of the Listing Rules together with the Acquisition will
be treated as if it is a very substantial acquisition.

The Company will comply with the disclosure requirement in Rule 14.74(2) of the Listing
Rules upon the exercise of the Put Option.

INFORMATION ON THE SKC GROUP

SKC is a company incorporated in Hong Kong with limited liability on 23 January 1998.
The following table sets out the shareholding structure of SKC as at the date of the Sale and
Purchase Agreement and upon Completion:

Shareholding structure of
SKC as at the date of
the Sale and Shareholding structure of
Purchase Agreement SKC upon Completion

Number of Approximate Number of Approximate
shares held percentage % shares held percentage %

Ms. Chu 4.847 48.47 969 9.69
Ms. Yeung 1,546 15.46 309 3.09
York Talent Ltd. 1,031 10.31 207 2.07
Chan Roy 515 5.15 103 1.03
Ho Cheung Hing 515 5.15 103 1.03
Chan Ka Lok 412 4.12 82 0.82
Leung Yuet Ming 412 4.12 82 0.82
Ho Keung Hing 258 2.58 52 0.52
Ho Yun Kit 258 2.58 52 0.52
Yeung Sui Lung Gloria 206 2.06 41 0.41
Smart Apex - - 8,000 80
Total 10,000 100 10,000 100
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Notes:
1. Ms. Chu is the mother of Mr. Chan Roy.
2. Ms. Yeung and Ms. Yeung Sui Lung Gloria are sisters.

3. Mr. Ho Cheung Hing, Mr. Ho Keung Hing and Mr. Ho Yun Kit are brothers.

SKC has three wholly owned subsidiaries, Billion Treasure International Limited, Profit
Dynamic Limited and ##) ( L #) & % # R4 7 (Yunli (Shanghai) Trading Co. Ltd.*). Each
of Billion Treasure International Limited and Profit Dynamic Limited is incorporated in Hong
Kong with limited liability. 8 %[ ( ¥ ) % & B4 3 (Yunli (Shanghai) Trading Co. Ltd.*) is
a wholly foreign owned enterprise established in the PRC. The members of the SKC Group are
principally engaged in the retailing and wholesaling of children apparels. SKC also has a 46%
interest in a company incorporated in Singapore which is engaged in the retail sale of ¢hildren
and infants’ wear (including products and accessories for infants).

The SKC Group owns the “Kingkow” brand name. “Kingkow” is a leading international
specialty retail chain with points of sales in the Greater China Region, Korea, Southeast Asia
and Middle East offering high quality and uniquely design clothing and accessories for
newborn to 14-year old children. The SKC Group has a long history and established customers
base enabling it to expand in various regions since its founding in Hong Kong more than 10
years ago. As at the Latest Practicable Date, the SKC Group has 98 points of sales located
mainly in Hong Kong, Macau, PRC, Singapore, Thailand, Korea, United Arab Emirates and
Kazakhstan.

According to the audited consolidated financial statements of SKC as at 29 February
2008, the net assets value of SKC was approximately HK$81.9 million. SKC recorded audited
consolidated net profit before and after tax for cach of the two financial years ended 28
February 2007 and 29 February 2008 as follows:

For the For the
year ended  year ended
29 February 28 February

2008 2007

(audited) (audited)

HK$ HKS

Net profit before tax 23,994,122 14,001,664
Net profit after tax ' 21,343,572 12,760,374

Upon completion of the Sale and Purchase Agreement, SKC will be owned as to 80% by
Smart Apex and will become an indirect subsidiary of the Company. The Vendors will own as
to the remaining 20% of SKC. The results of the SKC Group will be consclidated into the
Group’s financial results for the financial year ending 31 December 2008. Ms. Chu and Ms,
Yeung will remain as directors of SKC and Smart Apex will nominate three persons to the
board of directors of SKC.
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REASONS FOR THE ACQUISITION

The Group is principally engaged in the import, marketing, distribution and after-sales
service of high quality, brand-name products serving customers in the Asian region, in
particutar, the markets of the PRC, Hong Kong, Macau, Singapore and Malaysia, and property
investment. The products include principally cars and car accessories, motor yachts,
helicopters, premium fashion apparel and accessories, air-conditioning and refrigeration
products, audio-visual equipment, car audio and electronic products.

The children’s wear market in China is very large and highly fragmented. There are over
400 million children in China and more than 100 million children living in urban areas. With
growing urbanization and affluence and the “One Child” policy, the Directors believe that
China represents a significant growing opportunity to the Group to further its brand building
effort and to expand its coverage. The Board is of the view that the Acquisition would enable
the Group to expand and diversify its existing fashion and accessories business line; and
provide synergy to the Group’s wholesale and distribution networks. The Directors believe that
the corporate strategy of the Group is in line with the strategy of the SKC Group to continue
to expand its market leadership and to build its brand on the basis of its existing solid
foundation. On this basis, the Board is of the view that the Group’s revenue stream shall be
strengthened and further diversified by the Acquisition.

In view of the above, the Directors are of the view that the terms of the Sale and Purchase
Agreement including the Aggregate Consideration are fair and reasonable so far as the
Shareholders are concerned and the Sale and Purchase Agreement is in the interests of the

Company and the Shareholders as a whole.
POSSIBLE FINANCIAL IMPACT OF THE ACQUISITION

Upon Completion, SKC will become an 80% owned subsidiary of the Company and the
financial results of the SKC Group will be consolidated into the Group.

Based on the unaudited pro forma financial information of the Enlarged Group as set out
in Appendix III to the Circular, the unaudited total assets and liabilities of the Enlarged Group
will be increased by approximately 4.3% and 4.5% respectively to approximately HK$835.0
million and HK$415.7 million respectively {audited total assets and liabilities of the Group
were approximately HK$800.7 million and HK$397.9 million respectively as at 31 December
2007).

The Directors consider that the Acquisition will contribute to the earnings base of the
Enlarged Group. However, the overall effects of the Acquisition on the future earnings of the
Enlarged Group will depend on, amongst other matters, the future performance of the SKC

Group.
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IMPLICATION UNDER THE LISTING RULES

The Acquisition together with the grant of the Put Option is treated as constituting a very
substantial acquisition for the Company under the Listing Rules and is therefore conditional on
the approval of the Shareholders. None of the Vendors has any interest in the Company and
there is no Shareholder who is interested in the Acquisition and/or the Put Option. Accordingly,
all Shareholders can vote on the resolutions in relation to the Acquisition and the Put Option
to be proposed at the Special General Meeting.

SPECIAL GENERAI. MEETING

A notice convening the Special General Meeting to be held at Crystal Room, 3rd Floor,
Panda Hotel, 3 Tsuen Wah Street, Tsuen Wan, New Territories, Hong Kong on Tuesday, 14
October 2008 at 10:00 a.m. or any adjournment thereof is set out on pages 187 to 189 of this
circular and a form of proxy for use at the Special General Meeting is herein enclosed. If you
are not able to attend the Special General Meeting in person, please complete the form of proxy
in accordance with the instructions printed thereon and return it to the principal office of the
Company in Hong Kong at 10th Floor, Block A, Wo Kee Hong Building, 585-609 Castle Peak
Road, Kwai Chung, New Territories, Hong Kong as soon as possible and in any event not less
than 48 hours before the time fixed for holding of the Special General Meeting or any
adjourned meeting (as the case may be). Completion and return of the form of proxy will not
preclude you from attending and voting in person at the Special General Meeting or any
adjourned meeting (as the case may be) or upon the poll concerned should you so wish. In such
event, the instrument appointing a proxy shall be deemed to be revoked.

PROCEDURES FOR DEMANDING POLL

Pursuant to bye-law 70 of the Bye-laws, a poll may be demanded in relation to any
resolution put to the vote of the Special General Meeting (before or on the declaration of the
results of the show of hands or on the withdrawal of any other demand for a poll):

(a) by the chairman of the meeting; or

(b} by at least three Shareholders present in person or by a duly authorised corporate
representative or by proxy for the time being entitled to vote at the meeting; or

(¢) by any Shareholder or Sharcholders present in person or by a duly authorised
corporate representative or by proxy and represeating not less than one-tenth of the
total voting rights of all the Sharehelders having the right to attend and vote at the
meefing; or

{d) by any Shareholder or Shareholders present in person or by a duly authorised
corporate representative or by proxy and holding Shares conferring a right to vote
at the meeting being Shares on which an aggregate sum has been paid up equal to
not less than one-tenth of the total sum paid up on all the Shares conferring that
right.
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RECOMMENDATION

The Board considers that terms of the Sale and Purchase Agreement are fair and
reasonable and in the interest of the Company and the Shareholders as a whole, and therefore
recommends the Shareholders to vote in favour of the resolution to be proposed at the Special

General Meeting.
ADDITIONAL INFORMATION

Your attention is drawn to the additional information contained in the appendices to this

circular.

Yours faithfully,
For and on behalf of
W0 KEE HONG (HOLDINGS) LIMITED
Richard Man Fai LEE
Executive Chairman and Chief Executive Officer

*  for identification purpose only
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FINANCIAL INFORMATION ON THE GROUP

1. FINANCIAL SUMMARY

The following is a summary of the audited consolidated financial information of the
Group for each of the three years ended 31 December 2005, 2006 and 2007, as extracted from
the annual reports of the Company for which the auditors of the Company, HLB Hodgson
Impey Cheng, Chartered Accountants, Certified Public Accountants, expressed unqualified

opinicn.

Results

Turnover

Profit from operations
Finance costs

Other non-operating income
Other non-operating expenses
Share of results of associates

Profit before tax
Income tax expenses

Profit for the year

Attributable to:
Equity holders of the Company
Minority interests

Assets, liabilities and equity

Total assets
Total {iabilities

Net assets

Equity attributable to equity holders of the

Company
Minority interests

Year ended 31 December

2007 2006 2005
HK$ 000 HKS$'000 HK$ 000
1,153,201 786,580 697,454

4,135 27,730 76,322

(14,355) (11,381) (6,685)
76,021 28,624 -
(15,468) {25,658) -
(1,169) (7,777 (20,739)
49,164 11,538 48,898
(6,256) (1,141) (11,502)
42 908 10,397 37,396
35,677 7.114 35.461
7,231 3,283 1,935
42,908 10,397 37,396
As at 31 December

2007 2006 2005

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
800,723 721,686 615,606
(397,869) (402,707 (311,085)
402,854 318,979 304,521
380,378 303,976 300,977
22,476 15,003 3,544
402,854 318,979 304,521
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2. AUDITED CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The following is the audited consolidated financial statements of the Group for the year
ended 31 December 2007 together with the accompanying notes, extracted from the annual

report of the Company for the year ended 31 December 2007.

CONSOLIDATED INCOME STATEMENT
For the year ended 31 December 2007

2007 2006
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
Turnover 5 1,153,201 786,580
Cost of sales (938,222) (624,947)
Gross profit 214,979 161,633
Other operating income 7 4,479 16,245
Distribution costs (72,125) (55,121)
Administrative expenses (143,220) (120,198)
Gain on disposal of properties held for sale - 5
Loss on disposal of investment properties - (260)
Fair value gains on investment properties 14 2,022 25,026
Reversal of write-down of properties held for sale
to net realisable value - 400
Profit from operations 8 4,135 27,730
Finance costs 9 (14,355) {11,381)
Impairment on available-for-sale financial assets 24 (6,000) -
Provision for guarantee 27 (7,500) -
Loss on disposal of a subsidiary 36 - (15,935)
Gain on disposal of subsidiarics 36 76,021 28,624
Loss on disposal of an associate 20 (1,968) (9,723)
Share of results of associates 20 {1,169) (7,777)
Profit before tax 49,164 11,538
Income tax expenses 10 (6,256) {(1,141)
Profit for the year 42 908 10,397
Attributable to:
Equity holders of the Company 35,677 7,114
Minority interests 7,231 3,283
42,908 10,397
Earnings per share of profit attributable to
equity holders of the Company
~ Basic and diluted 11 HK$0.15 HK$0.03
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FINANCIAL INFORMATION ON THE GROUP

CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET
At 31 December 2007

Non-current assets
Investment properties
Property, plant and equipment
Prepaid lease payments
Goodwill
Interests in associates
Available-for-sale financial assets
Deferred tax assets

Current assets
Inventories
Properties held for sale, at net realisable value
Trade and other receivables
Amounts due from associales
Other financial assets at fair value through
profit or loss
Cash and cash equivalents

Current liabilities

Trade and other payables

Bills payables

Tax payables

Amounts due to related companies

Convertible loan note

Obligations under finance leases
— due within one year

Borrowings — due within one year

Net current assets

Total assets less current liabilities

~ 15—

Notes

14
15
16
17
20
24
32

21

22
23

25

26

29

28

30
31

2007 2006
HK$’000 HK$'000
9,600 234,918
44,541 100,479
1,558 -
2,787 2,597

- 10,727
30,527 527
16 4,215
89,029 353,463
124,993 150,477
23,400 23,400
185,075 149,440
14,260 3,951
17 11
363,949 40,944
711,694 368,223
243,956 163,567
36,758 45,984
162 296
1,343 6,914
30,207 -
936 1,387
70,827 122,671
384,189 340,819
327,505 27.404
416,534 380,867
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Non-current liabilities
Convertible loan note
Obligations under finance leases

— due after one year
Borrowings — due after one year
Deferred tax liabilities

Net assets

Capital and reserves
Share capital
Reserves

Equity attributable to equity holders of the
Company
Minority interests

Total equity

- 16 -

Notes

28
30

3!
32

33

2007 2006
HK$'000 HK$'000
- 29,549

168 1,121
13,506 11,303
6 19,915
13,680 61,888
402,854 318,979
255,314 221,615
125,064 82,361
380,378 303,976
22,476 15,003
402,854 318,979
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BALANCE SHEET
At 31 December 2007

Non-current assets
Property, plant and equipment
Investments in subsidiaries

Current assets
Trade and other receivables
Amounts due from subsidiaries
Amounts due from associates

Notes

15
19

23
23

Other financial assets at fair value through

profit or loss
Cash and cash equivalents

Current liabilities
Trade and other payables
Amounts due to subsidiaries
Amounts due to related companies
Convertible loan note
Financial guarantee contracts

Net current liabilities

Total assets less current liabilities

Non-current liabilities
Convertible loan note

Net assets

Capital and reserves attributable to
equity holders of the Company
Share capital
Reserves

Total equity

25

23
29
28

28

33
34

17 -

2007 2006
HK$'000 HK$000
560 1,586
271,075 277,894
271,635 279,480
726 557
36,918 -
114 -

17 11

318 327
38,093 895
4,092 3,689
180,127 156,704
44] 553
30,207 -
8,307 15,126
223,174 176,072
(185,081) (175,177)
86,554 104,303
- 29,549
86,554 74,754
255,314 221,615
(168,760) (146,861)
86,554 74,754
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

For the year ended 31 December 2007

At | January 2006

Exchange differences
wrising on translation of
financial statements of
OVErseas operations not
recognised in the income
statement

Net income recognised
directly in equity
Profit for the year

Total recognised income
for the year

Release upon disposal of
subsidiaries

A1 31 December 2006 and
1 January 2007

Exchange differences
arising on twanslation of
financial statements of
overseas operations not
recognised in the income
statement

Recogrition of equity-
setiled share-based
payment

Net income recognised
directly in equity
Profit for the year

Total recognised income
far the year

[ssue of shares upon
exercise of share options

[ssue of shares zpon
acquisition of available.
for-sale financial assets

Lapse of share options

At 31 December 2007

Attributable to equity holders of the Company

Equity

component

Capital Share of

Share Share  redetoplion options  Exchange convertible Other Accumulated Minority
capital premium reserve reserve reserve  loan note reserve losses imterests Total
HES 000 HKS'000 HKY'000 HKS'000 HES"000 HK$'000 HKS$"000 HK3°000 HKS'000 HKS000
{rote}

221,615 - 916 - 40 185 151,236 (72.935) 3,543 304,521
- - - - (6,358) - - - - {6,358}
- - - - (6,358) - - - - (6.358)
- - - - - - - .14 3,283 10,397
- - - - (6,358) - - 1.4 3,283 4039
- - - - 2243 - - - B.176 10419
221,615 - 916 - (4,155) 183 151,236 (65,821) 15003 318979
- - - - (15) - - - 42 227
- - - 2,153 - - - - - 2153
- - - 2,153 {15 - - - 42 2,380
- - - - - - - 35,677 7.231 42,908
- - - 2,153 {15) - - 35,671 TA4T3 45,288
2433 226 - 1) - - - - - 2,587
31,266 4734 - - - - - - - 36,000
- - - (64) - - - 64 - -
255314 4,960 914 2017 #.170) 185 151,236 {30,080) 12,476 402,854

- 18 -
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Included in the above is the Group’s share of post-acquisition accumulated losses of
associates, as follows:

HK$ 000
At 1 January 2006 (68,098)
Loss for the year (1,777
At 31 December 2006 and 1 January 2007 (75,875)
Loss for the year (1,169)
At 31 December 2007 (77,044)

Nore:  The other reserve of the Group was transferred from the share premium account pursuant Lo the capital
re-organisation on 18 September 2002,

19—
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CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOW STATEMENT
For the year ended 31 December 2007

Operating activities
Profit before tax
Adjustments for:
Share of results of associates
Interest income
Interest expenses
Finance lease charges
Depreciation
Amortisation of prepaid lease payments
Negative goodwill
Gain on disposal of properties held for sale
Loss on disposal of investment properties
{Gain)/loss on disposal of property, plant and
equipment
Fair value (gain)/loss on other financial assets at
fair value through profit or loss
Fair value gain on derivative financial instruments
Provision for guarantee
Reversal of write-down of properties held for sale to
net realisable value
Fair value gains on investment properties
Loss on disposal of a subsidiary
Gain on disposal of subsidiaries
Loss on disposal of an associate
Impairment loss on goodwill
Impairment loss on available-for-sale financial assets
Share-based payment expenses

Operating cash flows before movements in
working capital

Decrease/(increase) in inventories

Decrease in properties held for sale

Increase in trade and other receivables

(Increase)/decrease in amounts due from associates

Increase in trade and other payables

(Decrease}/increase in bills payables

Decrease in amounts due to related companies

Cash generated from/(used in) operations

Hong Kong Profits Tax paid
Overseas tax paid

Net cash generated from/(used in)
operating activities

- 20 -

2007 2006
HK$°000 HK$'000
49,164 11,538
1,169 7,777
(1,922) (348)
14,013 10,917
20 14
10,754 9,036
5 -
- (8,008)
- (5)
- 260
(444) 9
{(6) 9
(57) -
7,500 -
- (400)
(2,022) (25,026)
- 15,935
(76,021) (28,624)
1,968 9,723
118 -
6,000 -
2,153 -
12,392 2,807
26,026 (67.376)
- 1,856
(36,301) (39,500)
(10,309) 577
76,927 44,957
(9,226) 26,968
(5.571) (2,538)
53,938 (32,249)
(693) -
- (418)
(693) (418)
53,245 (32,667)
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Investing activities

Purchase of investment properties

Proceeds from disposal of investment properties

Purchase of property, plant and equipment

Proceeds from disposal of property, plant and
equipment

Proceeds from disposal of right of distribution of
products

Proceeds from disposal of an associate

Net cash inflow/(outflow) from acquisition of
subsidiaries

Net cash inflow from disposal of subsidiaries

Interest received

Net cash generated from investing activities

Financing activities

New bank loans

New obligations under finance leases
Proceeds from exercise of share options
Repayment of bank loans

Interest paid

Repayment of obligations under finance leases
Finance lease charges paid

Net cash (used in)/generated from
financing activities

Net increase in cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents at 1 January

Effect of foreign currency exchange rate changes

Cash and cash equivalents at 31 December

Analysis of the balances of cash and cash
equivalents

Being:

Cash and cash equivalents
Bank overdrafts

—21 -

2007 2006
HK$"000 HK$'000
- (4,944)

- 1,140
(32,673) (12,422)
1,983 142

- 5,873

6,791 26,161
8 (1,113)
352,746 -
1,922 348
330,777 15,185
496,629 347,457
- 2,600

2,587 -
(528,963) (312,498)
(13,355) (10,319)
(1,404) (493)
(20) (14)
(44,526) 26,733
339,496 9,251
22,023 18,603
1,847 (5,831)
363,366 22,023
363,949 40,944
(583) (18,921)
363,366 22,023
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the year ended 31 December 2007

1. GENERAL INFORMATION

The Company is a public limited company incorporated in Bermuda and its shares are listed on the Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange™). The address of the registered office and principal place
of business of the Company is disclosed in the corporate information section of the annual report.

The Company is a holding company with major subsidiaries engaged in the import, marketing, distribution and
after-sales service of high quality, branded products serving customers in the Asian region and, in particular, the
markets of the People’s Republic of China (“PRC”), Hong Kong, Macau, Singapore and Malaysia, The products
include principally cars and car accessories, motor yachts, helicopters, premium fashion apparels and accessories,
air-conditioning and refrigeration products, audio-visual equipment, car audio and electronic products and property
investment,

The financial statements are presented in Hong Kong dollars, which is the same as the functional currency of
the Company. These financial statements were approved and authorised for issue by the Board of Directors on 28
March 2008,

2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(“HKFRSs”)

In the current year, the Group has applied, for the first time, the fol!o.wing of new standards, amendments and
interpretations {the “new HKFRSs™) issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants (the
“HKICPA™}, which are effective for the Group’s financial year beginning | January 2007,

HKAS 1 (Amendment) Capital Disclosures
HKFRS 7 Financial Instruments: Disclosures
HK(IFRIC} — Int 7 Applyving the Restatement Approach under HKAS 29

Financial Reporting in Hyperinflationary Economies

HK(IFRIC) ~ Int 8 Scope of HKFRS 2
HK(IFRIC) — Int 9 Reassessment of Embedded Derivatives
HK(IFRIC) ~ Int 10 Interim Financial Reporting and Impairment

The adoption of the new HKFRSs had no material effect on how the results and financial position for the
current or prior accounting periods have been prepared and presented. Accordingly, no prior period adjustment has
been required.

The Group has applied the disclosure requirements under HKAS 1 (Amendment) and HKFRS 7 retrospectively.
Certain information presented in prior year under the requirements of HKAS 32 has been removed and the relevant
comparative information based on the requirements of HKAS 1 (Amendment) and HKFRS 7 has been presented for
the first time in the current year.
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The Group has not early applied the following new and revised standards or interpretations that have been
issued but are not yet effective.

HKAS 1 (Revised) Presentation of Financial Statements!

HKAS 23 (Revised) Borrowing Costs'

HKERS 8 Operating Segments'

HK(IFRIC) - Int 11 HKFRS 2 - Group and Treasury Share Transactions?

HK(IFRIC) — Int 12 Service Concession Arrangements®

HK({IFRIC) - Int 13 Customer Loyalty Programmes®

HK(FRIC) - Int 14 HKAS 19 — The Limit on a Defined Benefit Asset, Minimum Funding

Requirements and their Interaction®

Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2009
Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 March 2007
Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2008
Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 July 2008

The directors of the Company anticipate that the application of these standards or interpretations will have no
material impact on the results and the financial position of the Group.

3 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards (“HKFRSs"), which term coliectively included Hong Kong Accounting Standards (“HKASs™) and
Interpretations (the “Interpretations”) issued by the HKICPA, accounting principles generally accepted in Hong Kong
and the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance and the applicable disclosure requirements
of the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the Stock Exchange (the “Listing Rules").

Basis of preparation

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared under the historical cost convention, as
modified by the revaluation of available-for-sale financial assets, financial assets and liabilities at fair value
through profit or loss (including derivative financial instruments) and investment properties, which are carried
a1 fair value.

The preparation of consolidated financial statements in conformity with HKFRSs requires the use of
cerlain critical accounting estimates. It also requires management to exercise its judgement in the process of
applying the Group’s accounting policies.

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements incorporate the financial statements of the Company and its
subsidiaries made up to 31 December each year.

The results of subsidiaries acquired or disposed of during the year are included in the consolidated
income statement from the effective date of acquisition or up to the effective date of disposal, as appropriate.

Where necessary, adjustments are made to the financial statements of subsidiaries to bring their
accounting policies into line with those used by other members of the Group.

All intra-group transactions, balances, income and expenses are eliminated on consolidation.
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Business combinations

The acquisition of businesses is accounted for using the purchase method. The cost of the acguisition
is measured at the aggregate of the fair values, at the date of exchange, of assets given, liabilities incurred or
assumed. and equity instruments issued by the Group in exchange the control of the acquiree, plus any costs
directly attributable to the business combination. The acquiree’s identifiable assets, liabilities and contingent
liabilities that meet the conditions for recognition under HKFRS 3 Business Combinations are recognised at
their fair values at the acquisition date, except for non-current assets (or disposal groups) that are classified
as held for sale in accordance with HKFRS 5 Non-current Assets Held for Sale and Discontinued Operations,
which are recognised and measured at fair value less costs to sell.

Goodwill arising on acquisition is recognised as an asset and initially measured at cost, being the excess
of the cost of the business combination over the Group's interest in the net fair value of the identifiable assels,
liabilities and contingent liabilities recognised. If, after reassessment, the Group's interest in the net fair value
of the acquiree’s identifiable assets, liabilities and contingent liabilities exceeds the cost of the business
combination, the excess is recognised immediately in profit or loss.

The interest of minority shareholders in the acquiree is initially measured at the minority’s proportion
of the net fair value of the assets, labilities and contingent liabilities recognised.

Minority interests in the net assets of consolidated subsidiaries are presented separately from the
Group's equity therein. Minority interests in the net assets consist of the amount of those interests at the date
of the original business combination and the minority’s share of changes in equity since the date of the
combination. Losses applicable to the minority in excess of the minerity's interest in the subsidiary’s equity
are allocated against the interests of the Group except to the extent that the minority has a binding obligation
and is able to make an additional investment to cover the losses.

Investments in subsidiaries

Subsidiaries are all entities (including special purpose entities) over which the Group has the power to
govern the financia! and operating policies generally accompanying a shareholding of more than one half of
the vating rights. The existence and effect of potential voting rights that are currently exercisable or
convertible are considered when assessing whether the Group controls another entity.

investmenis in subsidiaries are included in the Company's balance sheet at cost less any identified
impairment loss.

Investments in associates

Associates are all entities over which the Group has significant influence but not control, generally
accompanying a shareholding of between 20% and 50% of the voting rights.

The results and assets and liabilities of associales are incorporated in these financial statements using
the equity method of accounting. Under the equity method, investments in associates are carried in the
consolidated balance sheet initially at cost as adjusted for the post-acquisition changes in the Group's share
of the profit or loss and of changes in equity of the associute, less any identified impairment loss. When the
Group’s share of losses of an associate equals or exceeds its interest in (hat associate (which includes any
long-term interests that, in substance, from part of the Group’s net investment in the associate), the Group
discontinues recognising its share of further losses. An additional share of losses is provided for and a liability
is recognised only to the extent that the Group has incurred legal or constructive obligation or made payments
on behalf of that associate.

Any excess of the cost of acquisition over the Group’s share of the net fair value of the identifiable
assets, liabilities and contingent liabilities of the associate recognised at the date of acquisition is recognised
as goodwill. The goodwill is included within the carrying amount of the investment and is assessed for
impairment as part of the investment.

Any excess of the Group’s share of the net fair value of the identifiable assets, liabilities and contingent
liabilities over the cost of acquisition, after reassessment, is recognised immediately in profit or loss.

Where a Group’s entity transacts with an associate of the Group, profits and losses are eliminated to the
extent of the Group's interest in the relevant associate.
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Goodwill
Goodwill arising on acquisitions prior to 1 January 2005

Goodwill arising on an acquisition of net assets and operations of a subsidiary or a jointly controlled
entity for which the agreement date is before 1 January 20035 represents the excess of the cost of acquisition
over the Group's interest in the fair value of the identifiable assets and liabilities of the retevant subsidiary or
the relevant jointly controiled entity at the date of acquisition.

For previously capitalised goodwill arising on acquisitions of net assets and operations of subsidiaries
or a jointly controlled entity after 1 January 2001, the Group has discontinued amortisation from 1 January
2005 onwards, and such goodwill (net of cumulative amortisation as at 31 December 2005) is tested for
impairment annually, and whenever there is an indication that the cash generating unit to which the goodwill
relates may be impaired (see the accounting policy below).

Goodwill arising on acquisitions on or after 1 January 2005

Goodwill arising on an acquisition of a subsidiary or a jointly controlled entity (which is accounted for
using proportionate consolidation) for which the agreement date is on or after 1 January 2005 represents the
excess of the cost of acquisition over the Group’s interest in the fair value of the identifiable assets, liabilities
and contingent liabilities of the relevant subsidiary or jeintly controlled entity at the date of acquisition. Such
goodwill is carried at cost less any accumulated impairment losses.

Capitalised goodwill arising on an acquisition of a subsidiary or a jointly controlled entity is presented
separately in the consolidated balance sheet.

For the purposes of impairment testing, goodwill arising from an acquisition is allocated to each of the
relevant cash-generating units, or groups of cash-generating units, that are expected to benefit from the
synergies of the acquisition. A cash-generating unit to which goodwill has been allocated is tested for
impairment annually, and whenever there is an indication that the unit may be impaired. For goodwill arising
on an acquisition in a financial year, the cash-generating unit to which goodwill has been allocated is tested
for impairment before the end of that financial year. When the recoverable amount of the cash-generating unit
is less than the carrying amount of the unit, the impairment loss is allocated to reduce the carrying amount of
any goodwill allocated to the unit first, and then to the other assets of the unit pro rata on the basis of the
carrying amount of each asset in the unit. Any impairment loss for goodwill is recognised directly in the
consolidated income statement. An impairment loss for goodwill is not reversed in subsequent periods.

On subsequent disposal of a subsidiary or a jointly controlled entity, the attributable amount of goodwill
capitalised is included in the determination of the amount of profit or loss on disposal.

Revenue recognition
Revenue comprises the fair value of the consideration received or receivable for the sale of goods and
services in the ordinary course of the Group’s activities. Revenue is shown, net of returns, rebates and

discounts and after eliminating sales within the Group. Revenue is recognised as follows:

Sale of goods is recognised when goods are delivered and the significant risks and rewards of ownership
of the goods have passed to the buyer.

Maintenance services income is recognised when services are rendered.
Interest income from a financial asset is accrued on a time basis, by reference to the principal
outstanding and at the effective interest rate applicable, which is the rate that exactly discounts the estimated

future cash receipts through the expected life of the financial asset to that asset’s net carrying amount.

Rental income arising from operating leases is recognised on a straight-line basis over the terms of the
relevant leases.

Commission income is recognised when the relevant services are rendered.

Dividend income from investments is recognised when the shareholders’ rights to receive payment have
been established.
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Segment reporting

A business segment is a group of assets and operations engaged in providing products or services that
are subject to risks and returns that are different from those of other business segments. A geographical
segment is engaged in providing products or services within a particular economic environment that are subject
to risks and returns that are different from those of segments operating in other economic environments.

Leasing

Leases are classified as finance leases whenever the terms of the lease transfer substantially all the risks
and rewards of ownership to the lessee. All other leases are classified as operating leases.

The Group as lessor

Amounts due from lessees under finance feases are recorded as receivables at the amount of the Group’s
net investment in the leases. Finance lease income is allocated to accounting periods so as to reflect a constant
periodic rate of return on the Group’s net investment outstanding in respect of the leases.

Rental income from operating leases is recognised in the consolidated income statement on a
straight-line basis over the terms of the relevant leases.

The Group as lessee

Assets held under finance leases are recognised as assets of the Group at their fair value at the date of
acquisition (or, if lower, at the present value of the minimum lease payments). The corresponding liabilities
to the lessors are included in the balance sheet as finance lease obligations. Finance costs are charged to the
income statement over the terms of the relevant leases so as to produce a constant periodic rate of charge on
the remaining balance of the obligations for each accounting period,

Rental payables under operating leases are charged to the income statement on a straight-line basis over
the terms of the relevant leases.

Leasehold land

Interest in leasehold land is accounted for as operating leases and amortised over the lease term on a
straight-line basis.

Foreign currencies

In preparing the financial statements of each individual group entity, transactions in currencies other
than the functional currency of that entity (foreign currencies) are recorded in its functional currency (i.e. the
currency of the primary economic environment in which the entity operates) at the rates of exchanges
prevailing on the dates of the transactions. At each balance sheet date, monetary items denominated in foreign
currencies are retranslated at the rates prevailing on the balance sheet date. Non-monetary items carried at fair
value that are denominated in foreign currencies are retranslated at the rates prevailing on the daie when the
fair value was determined. Non-monetary items that are measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign
currency are not retranslated.

Exchange differences arising on the settlement of monetary items, and on the translation of monetary
items, are recognised in profit or loss in the period in which they arise, except for exchange differences arising
on a monetary item that forms part of the Group’s net investment in a foreign operation, in which case, such
exchange differences are recognised in equity in the consolidated financial statements. Exchange differences
arising on the retranslation of non-monetary items carried at fair value are included in profit or loss for the
period except for differences arising on the retranslation of non-monetary items in respect of which gains and
losses are recognised directly in equity, in which cases, the exchange differences are also recognised directly
in equity.
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For the purposes of presenting the consolidated financial statements, the assets and liabilities of the
Group's foreign operations are translated into the presentation currency of the Group (i.e. Hong Kong dollars)
at the rate of exchange prevailing at the balance sheet date, and their income and expenses are translated at
the average exchange rates for the year, unless exchange rates fluctuate significantly during the year, in which
case, the exchange rates prevailing at the dates of transactions are used. Exchange differences arising, if any,
are recognised as a separate component of equity (the exchange reserve}. Such exchange differences are
recognised in profit or loss in the period in which the foreign operation is disposed of.

Goodwill and fair value adjusiments on identifiable assets acquired arising on an acquisition of a foreign
operation on or after | January 2005 are treated as assets and liabilities of that foreign operation and translated
at the rate of exchange prevailing at the balance sheet date. Exchange differences arising are recognised in the
exchange reserve.

Borrowing costs

All borrowing costs are recognised as and included in finance costs in the income statement in the period
in which they are incurred.

Retirement benefit costs

Payments to defined c‘ontribulion relirement schemes are charged as an expense as they fall due.
Taxation

Income tax expense represents the sum of the tax currently payable and deferred tax.

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for the year. Taxable profit differs from net profit
as reported in the consolidated income statement because it excludes items of income or expense that are
taxable or deductible in other years, and it further excludes income statement items that are never taxable or
deductible.

Deferred tax is the tax expected to be payable or recoverable on differences between the carrying
amount of assets and liabilities in the consolidated financial statements and the corresponding tax bases used
in the computation of taxable profit. Deferred tax liabilities are generally recognised for all taxable temporary
differences and deferred tax assets are recognised to the extent that it is probable that taxable profit will be
available against which deductible temporary can be utilised. Such assets and liabilities are not recognised if
the temporary difference arises from goodwill or from the initial recognition {other than in a business
combination) of other assets and liabilities in a transaction that affects neither the taxable profit nor the
accounting profit.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable temporary differences arising on investment in
subsidiaries and associates, except where the Group is able to control the timing of the reversal of the
temporary difference and it is probable that the temporary difference will not reverse in the foreseeable future.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at each balance sheet date and reduced to the
extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profit will be available to allow all or part of the asset
to be recovered.

Deferred tax is calculated at the tax rates that are expected to apply in the period when the liability is
settled or the asset is realised. Deferred tax is charged or credited to profit or loss, except when it relates 1o
items that are charged or credited directly to equity, in which case the deferred tax is also dealt with in equity.
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Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment are stated at cost less subsequent accumulated depreciation and
accumulated impairment losses.

Depreciation is provided to write off the cost of items of property, plant and equipment over their
estimated useful lives and after taking into account of their estimated residual values, using the straight-line
method, at the following rates per annum:

Land held under medium-term lease Over the unexpired term of lease
Buildings on land held under medium-lerm lease 22 = 5%

Leasehold improvements 20% or over the lease term
Furniture, fixtures and equipment 10 - 20%

Machinery and tools 20 - 33%4%

Motor vehicles 20 - 25%

Motor yacht 5%

Assets held under finance leases are depreciated over their expected useful lives on the same basis as
owned assets or, where shorter, the term of the relevant leases.

The land and buildings elements of a lease of land and buildings are considered separately for the
purposes of lease classification, unless the lease payments cannot be allocated reliably between the land and
buildings elements, in which case, the entire lease is generally treated as a finance lease. To the extent that the
allocation of the lease payments between the land and buildings elements can be made reliably, the leasehold
interests in land are reclassified to prepaid lease payments under operating leases, which are carried at cost and
amortised over the lease term on a straight-line basis. Alternatively, where the allocation between the land and
buildings elements cannot be made reliably, the leasehold interests in land continue to be accounted for as
property, plant and equipment. As the directors consider the allocation between the land and buildings elements
cannot be made reliably, no restatement has been made in the financial statements.

An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognised upon disposal or when no future economic
benefits are expected to arise from the continued use of the asset. Any gain or loss arising on derecognition
of the asset (calculated as the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the
item) is included in the consolidated income statement in the year in which the item is derecognised.

Investment properties

Investment properties are completed properties which are held for their investment potential, any rental
income being negotiated at arm’s length.

On initial recognition, investment properties are measured at cost, including any directly attributable
expenditure. Subsequent to initial recognition, investment properties are measured at fair values using the fair
value model. Gains or losses arising from changes in the fair value of investment properties are included in
profit or loss for the period in which they arise.

An investment property is derecognised upon disposal or when the investment property is permanently
withdrawn from use or no future economic benefits are expected from its disposals. Any gain or loss arising
on derecognition of the asset {calculated as the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying
amount of the asset) is included in the income statement in the year in which the item is derecognised.

[nventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable value. Cost is calculated using the first-in,
firsi-out method. Net realisable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business less
applicable variable selling expenses.
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Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents are carried in the balance sheet at cost. For the purposes of the cash flow
statement, cash and cash equivalents comprise cash on hand, deposits held at call with banks, cash investments
with a maturity of three months or less from date of investment and bank overdrafts. Bank overdrafts are shown
within borrowings in current liabilities on the balance sheet.

Provisions and contingent liabilities

Provisions are recognised when the Group has a present obligation as a result of a past event, and it is
probable that the Group will be required to settle that obligation. Provisions are measured at the directors” best
estimate of the expenditure required to settle the obligation at the balance sheet date, and are discounted to
present value where the effect is material.

A contingent liability is a possible obligation that arises from past events and whose existence will only
be confirmed by the occurrence or non-cccurrence of one or more uncertain future events not wholly within
the control of the Group. It can also be a present obligation arising from past events that is not recognised
because it is not probable that outflow of economic resources will be required or the amount of obligation
cannot be measured reliably.

A contingent liability is not recognised but is disclosed in the notes to the financial statemenis. When
a change in the probability of an outflow occurs so that outflow is probable, it will then be recognised as a
provision.

Financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised on the balance sheet when a group entity
becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the instrument. Financial assets and financial liabilities are
initially measured at fair value. Transaction costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition or issue of
financial assets and financial liabilities (other than financial assets and financial liabilities at fair value through
profit or loss) ure added to or deducted from the fair value of the financial assets or financial liabilities, as
appropriate, on initial recognition. Transaction costs directly attributable to the acquisition of financial assets
or financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss are recognised immediately in profit or loss.

Financial assets

The Group's financial assets are classified into one of the four categories, including financial assets at
fair value through profit or loss, loans and receivables, held-to-maturity investments and available-for-sale
financial assets. All regular way purchases or sale of financial assets are recognised and derecognised on a
trade date basis. Regular way purchases or sales are purchases or sales of financial assets that require delivery
of assets within the time frame established by regulation or convention in the marketplace. The accounting
policies adopted in respect of each category of financial assets are set out below.

Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the amortised cost of a financial asset and of
allocating interest income over the relevant period. The effective interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts
estimated future cash receipts {including all fees on points paid or received that form an integral part of the
effective interest rate, transaction costs and other premiums or discounts) through the expected life of the
financial asset, or, where appropriate, a shorter period.

Income is recognised on an effective interest basis for debt instruments other than those financial assets
designated as at financial assets at fair value through profit or loss, of which interest income is included in net
gains or losses.
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Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss has two subcategories, including financial assets held
for trading and those designated as at fair value through profit or loss on initial recognition.

A financial asset is classified as held for trading if:
(a) it has been acquired principally for the purpose of selling in the near future; or

(b) itis a part of an identified portfolio of financial instruments that the Group manages together and
has a recent actual pattern of short-term profit-taking: or

{¢) it is a derivative that is not designated and effective as a hedging instrument.

A financial asset other than a financial asset held for trading may be designated as at fair value through
profit or loss upon initial recognition if:

(a)  such designation eliminates or significantly reduces a measurement or recognition inconsistency
that would otherwise arise; or

(b}  the financial asset forms part of a group of financial assets or financial liabilities or both, which
is managed and its performance is evaluated on a fair value basis, in accordance with the Group's
documented risk management or investment strategy, and information about the grouping is
provided internally on that basis; or

(¢) it forms part of a contract containing one or more embedded derivatives, and HKAS 39 permits
the entire combined contract (asset or liability) to be designated as at fair value through profit or
loss.

At each balance sheet date subsequent to initial recognition, financial assets at fair value through profit
or loss are measured at fair value, with changes in fair value recognised directly in profit or loss in the period
in which they arise. The net gain or loss recognised in profit or loss includes any dividend or interest earned
on the financial assets.

Loans and receivables

Loans and recetvables are non-derivative financial assets with fixed or determinable payments that are
not quoted in an active market. At each balance sheet date subsequent to initial recognition, loans and
receivables (including trade and other receivables, cash and cash equivalentsand amounts due from associates)
are carried at amortised cost using the effective interest method, less any identified impairment losses. An
impairment loss is recognised in profit or loss when there is objective evidence that the asset is impaired, and
is measured as the difference between the asset's carrying amount and the present value of the estimated future
cash flows discounted at the original effective interest rate. Impairment losses are reversed in subsequent
periods when an increase in the asset’s recoverable amount can be related objectively to an event occurring
after the impairment was recognised, subject to a restriction that the carrying amount of the asset at the date
the impairment is reversed does not exceed what the amortised cost would have been had the impairment not
been recognised.

Available-for-sale financial assets

Available-for-sale financial assets are non-derivatives that are either designated or not classified as any
of the other categories (set out above). At each balance sheet date subsequent to initial recognition,
available-for-sale financial assets are measured at fair value. Changes in fair value are recognised in equity,
until the financial asset is disposed of or is determined to be impaired, at which time, the cumulative gain or
loss previously recognised in equity is removed from equity and recognised in profit or loss. Any impairment
losses on available-for-sale financial assets are recognised in profit or loss when there is objective evidence
that the assets are impaired. The amount of the impairment loss is measured as the difference between the
carrying amount of the assets and the present value of the estimated future cash flows discounted at the current
markel rate of return for similar financial assets. Impairment losses on available-for-sale equity investments
will not reverse in subsequent periods, except for available-for-sale debt investments, which impairment losses
are subsequently reversed if an increase in the fair value of the investment can be objectively related to an
event occurring after the recognition of the impairment loss.
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For available-for-sale equity investments that do not have a quoted market price in an active market and
whose fair value cannot be reliably measured and derivatives that are linked to and must be settled by delivery
of such unquoted equity instruments, they are measured at cost less any identified impairment losses at each
balance sheet date subsequent to initial recognition. An impairment loss is recognised in profit or loss when
there is objective evidence that the asset is impaired. The amount of the impairment loss is measured as the
difference between the carrying amount of the asset and the present value of the estimated future cash flows
discounted at the current market rate of return for a similar financial asset. Such impairment losses will not
reverse in stbsequent periods.

Impairment of financial assets

Financial assets, other than those at financial assets at fair value through profit or loss, are assessed for
indicators of impairment at each balance sheet date. Financial assets are impaired where there is objective
evidence that, as a result of one or more events that occurred after the initial recognition of the financial asset,
the estimated future cash flows of the financial assets have been impacted.

For an available-for-sale equity investment, a significant or prolonged decline in the fair value of that
investment below its cost is considered to be objective evidence of impairment.

For all other financial assets, objective evidence of impairment could inctude:

(a)  significant financial difficulty of the issuer or counterparty; or

(b)  default or delinquency in interest or principal payments; or

{¢) it becoming probable that the borrower will enter bankruptcy or financial re-organisation,

For certain categories of financial asset. such as trade receivables, assets that are assessed not to be
impaired individually are subsequently assessed for impairment on a collective basis. Objective evidence of
impairment for a portfolio of receivables could include the Group's past experience of collecting payments, an
increase in the pumber of delayed payments in the portfolio past the average credit period of 7 to 90 days,
observable changes in national or local economic conditions that correlate with default on receivables.

For financial assets carried at amortised cost, an impairment loss is recognised in profit or loss when
there is objective evidence that the asset is impaired, and is measured as the difference between the asset’s
carrying amount and the present value of the estimated future cash flows discounted at the original effective
interest rate,

For financial assets carried at cost, the amount of the impairment loss is measured as the difference
between the asset’s carrying amount and the present value of the estimated future cash flows discounted at the
current market rate of return for a similar financial asset. Such impairment loss will not be reversed in
subsequent periods.

The carrying amcunt of the financial asset is reduced by the impairment loss directly for all financial
assets with the exception of trade receivables, where the carrying amount is reduced through the use of an
allowance account, Changes in the carrying amount of the allowance account are recognised in profit or loss.
When a trade receivable is considered uncollectible. it is written off against the allowance account. Subsequent
recoveries of amounts previously written off are credited to profit or loss.

For financial assets measured at amortised cost, if, in a subsequent period, the amount of impairment
loss decreases and the decrease can be related objectively to an event occurring after the impairment losses was
recognised, the previously recognised impairment loss is reversed through profit or loss to the extent that the
carrying amount of the asset at the date the impairment is reversed does not exceed what the amortised cost
would have been had the impairment not been recognised.

Impairment losses on available-for-sale equity investments will not be reversed in profit or loss in
subsequent periods. Any increase in fair value subsequent to impairment loss is recognised directly in equity.
For available-for-sale debt investments, impairment losses are subsequently reversed if an increase in the fair
value of the investment can be objectively related to an event occurring after the recognition of the impairment
loss.
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Financial liabilities and equity instruments

Financial liabilities and equity instruments issued by a group entity are classified according to the
substance of the coniractual arrangements entered into and the definitions of a financial liability and an equity
instrument.

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a residual interest in the assets of the Group after
deducting al! of its liabilities. The Group’s financial liabilities are generally classified into financial liabilities
at fair value through profit or loss and other financial liabilities. The accounting policies adopted in respect
of financial liabilities and equity instruments are set out below,

Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the amortised cost of a financial liability and
of allocating interest expense over the relevant period. The effective interest rate is the rate that exactly
discounts estimated future cash payments through the expected life of the financial liability, or, where
appropriate, a shorter period.

Interest expense is recognised on an effective interest basis other than those financial liabilities
designated as at financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss, of which the interest expense is
included in net gains or losses.

Other financial liabilities

Other financial labilities including trade and other payables, amounts due to related companies, bank
borrowings and obligations under finance leases are subsequently measured at amortised cost, using the
effective interest rate method.

Convertible loan note

Convertible loan note issued by the Company that contain both financial liability and equity components
are classified separately into respective liability and equity components on initial recognition.

On initial recognition, the fair value of the liability component is determined using the prevailing market
imerest rate of similar non-convertible debts. The difference between the gross proceeds of the issue of the
convertible loan notes and the fair value assigned to the liability component, representing the embedded call
option for the holder to convert the loan note into equity, is included in equity {convertible loan note equity
reserve).

In subsequent periods, the liability component of the convertible loans note is carried at amortised cost
using the effective interest method. The equity component, represented by the option to convert the liability
component into ordinary shares of the Company, will remain in convertible loan note equity reserve until the
embedded option is exercised, which the convertible loan note equity reserve and the carrying amount of the
liability component at the time of conversion, is transferred to share capital and share premium as
consideration for the shares issued. Where the option remains unexercised at the expiry date. the balance stated
in convertible loan note equity reserve will be released to the accumulated losses. No gain or loss is recognised
in profit or loss upon conversion or expiration of the option.

Transaction costs that relate to the issue of the convertible loan note are allocated to the liability and
equity components in proportion to the allocation of the proceeds. Transaction costs relating to the equity
component are charged directly to equity. Transaction costs relating to the liability component are included in
the carrying amount of the liability portion and amortised over the period of the convertible loan note using
the effective interest method.
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Derivative financial instruments and hedging

Derivatives are initially recognised at fair value at the date a derivative contract 1s entered into and are
subsequently remeasured to their fair value at each balance sheet date. The resulting gain or loss is recognised
in profit or loss immediately unless the derivative is designated and effective as a hedging instrument, in which
event the timing of the recognition in profit or loss depends on the nattre of the hedge relationship. The Group
designates certain derivatives as either hedges of the fair value of fixed-rate bank borrowings (fair value
hedges) and hedges of highly probable forecast transactions for foreign currency exposure {cash flow hedges),
or hedges of net investments in foreign operations.

Financial guarantee contracts

A financial guarantee contract is a contract that requires the issuer to make specified payments to
reimburse the holder for a loss it incurs because a specified debtor fails to make payment when due in
accordance with the original or modified terms of a debt instrument. A financial guarantee contract issued by
the Group and not designated as at fair value through profit or loss is recognised initially at its fair value less
transaction costs that are directly attributable to the issue of the financial guarantee contract. Subsequent to
initial recognition, the Group measures the financial guarantee contact at the higher of: (i) the amount
determined in accordance with HKAS 37 Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets; and (ii) the
amount initially recognised less, when appropriate, cumulative amortisation recognised in accordance with
HKAS |8 Revenue.

Derecognition

Financial assets are derecognised when the rights 1o receive cash flows from the assets expire or, the
financial assets are transferred and the Group has transferred substantially all the risks and rewards of
ownership of the financial assets, On derecognition of a financial asset, the difference between the asset’s
carrying amount and the sum of the consideration received and the cumulative gain or loss that had been
recognised directly in equity is recognised in profit or loss.

Financial liabilities are derecognised from the Group’s consolidated balance sheet when the obligation
specified in the relevant contract is discharged, cancelled or expires. The difference between the carrying
amount of the financial liability derecognised and the consideration paid or payable is recognised in profit or
loss.

Properties held for sale
Properties held for sale are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable value.
Impairment

At each balance sheet date, the Group reviews the carrying amounts of its tangible assets and intangible
assets to determine whether there is any indication that those assets have suffered an impairment loss or the
impairment loss recognised in prior years is no longer exist or have decreased. If the recoverable amount of
an assel is estimated to be less than its carrying amount, the carrying amount of the asset is reduced to its
recoverable amount. An impairment loss is recognised as an expense immediately.

Where an impairment loss subsequently reverse, the carrying amount of the asset other than goodwill
is increased to the revised estimate of its recoverable amount, but so that the increased carrying amount does
not exceed the carrying amount that would have been determined had no impairment loss been recognised for
the asset in prior years. A reversal of an impairment loss is recognised as income immediately.
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Share-based payment transactions
Equiry-settled share-based payment transactions
Share options granted to employees

For grants of share options which are conditional upon satisfying specified vesting conditions, the fair
value of services received determined by reference to the fair value of share options granted at the grant date
is expensed on a straight-line basis over the vesting period, with a corresponding increase in equity (share
options reserve). The impact of the revision of the original estimates during the vesting period, if any, is
recognised in profit or loss with a corresponding adjustment to share opticns reserve.

For share options which are vested at the date of grant, the fair value of the share options granted is
expensed immediately to profit or loss.

At the time when the share options are exercised, the amount previously recognised in share options
reserve will be transferred to share premium. When the share options are forfeited after the vesting date or are
still not exercised at the expiry date, the amount previously recognised in share options reserve will be
transferred to retained profits.

Accounting for derivative financial instruments and hedging activities

Derivatives are initially recognised u1 fair value on the date a derivative contract is entered into and are
subsequently remeasured at their fair value. The method of recognising the resulting gain or loss depends on
whether the derivatives designated as a hedging instrument, and if so, the nature of the item being hedged. The
Group designates certain derivatives as either: (i) hedges of the fair value of recognised assets or liabilities or
a firm commitment {fair value hedge); and (ii} hedges of highly probable forecast transactions (cash flow
hedge).

The Group documents at the inception of the transaction the relationship between hedging instruments
and hedged items, as well as its risk management objective and strategy for undertaking various hedge
transactions. The Group also documents its assessment, both at the inception of the hedge and on an ongeing
basis, of whether the derivatives that are used in hedging transactions are highly effective in offsetting changes
in fair values or cash flows of the hedged items.

(i) Fair value hedge

Changes in the fair value of derivatives that are designated and qualify as fair value hedges are
recognised in the consoclidated income statement, together with any changes in the fair value of the
hedged asset or liability that are attributable 1o the hedged risk. Changes in the fair value of derivatives
that are designated as fair value hedge that hedge foreign currency commitments 1o complete the
construction of a cruise ship are deferred and included in the cost of the ship when the commitment is
paid. To the extent that the derivative is not effective as a hedge. gains and losses are recognised in the
consolidated income statement as gains or losses on foreign exchange.

(i)  Cash flow hedge

The effective portion of changes in the fair value of derivatives that are designated and qualify
as cash flow hedges are recognised in equity. The gain or loss relating to the ineffective portion is
recognised immediately in the consolidated income statement. Amounts accumulated in equity are
recognised in the consolidated income statement as the underlying hedged items are recognised. When
a hedging instrument expires or is sold, or when a hedge no longer meets the criteria for hedge
accounting, any cumulative gain or loss existing in eguity at that time remains in equity and is
recognised when the forecast transaction is ultimately recognised in the consolidated income statement.
When a forecast transaction is no longer expected to occur, the cumulative gain or loss that was reported
in equity is immediately transferred to the consolidated income statement.

(iii)  Derivatives that do not qualify for hedge accounting and those not designated as hedges

Changes in the fair value of any derivative instruments that do not qualify for hedge accounting
and those not designated as hedges are recognised immediately in the consolidated income statement.
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4. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUBGEMENTS AND KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY

In the application of the Group’s accounting policies, which are described in note 3, management is required
to make judgements, estimates and assumptions about the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities that are not
readily apparent from other sources. The estimates and associated assumptions are based on historical experience and
other factors that are considered (o be relevant. Actual results may differ from these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accoumting
estimates are recognised in the period in which the estimate is revised if the revision affects only that period, or in
the period of the revision and future periods if the revision affects both current and future periods.

Provision for impairment loss on trade and other receivables

The provision for impairment loss on trade and other receivables of the Group is based on the evaluation
of collectability and aging analysis of accounts and on management’s judgment. A considerable amount of
judgment is required in assessing the ultimate realisation of these receivables, including the current
creditworthiness and the past collection history of each account. If the financial conditicns of the debtors were
to deteriorate, resulting in an impairment of their ability 1o make payments, additional allowances may be
required.

Provision for obsolete inventories

The management of the Group reviews an aging analysis at each balance sheet date, and makes provision
for obsolete and slow-moving inventory items. The management estimates the net realisable value for such
finished goods based primarily on the latest invoice prices and current market conditions. The Group carries
out an inventory review on a product-by-product basis at each balance sheet date and makes provision for
obsolete items.

Estimated impairment for goodwill

Determining whether goodwill is impaired requires an estimation of the value in use of the cash
generating units to which goodwill has been allocated. The value in use calculation requires the Group to
estimate the fuiure cash flows expected to arise from the cash-generating unit and a suitable discount rate in
order to calculate the present value. As at 31 December 2007, the carrying amount of goodwill was
approximately HK$2,787.000 (2006: HK$2,597,000). Details of the recoverable amount calculation are
disclosed in note 17.

Income taxes

The Group is subject to income taxes in numerous jurisdictions, Significant judgement is required in
determining the worldwide provision for income taxes. Where the final tax outcome of these matters is
different from the amounts that were initially recorded, such differences will accordingly be adjusted in the

relevant tax account in the year in which such determination is made.

5. TURNOVER

2007 2006

HKS$'000 HK$'000

Sales of goods to customers, less returns and discounts 1.071.904 717.903
Maintenance service income 65.866 58,991
Rental income 15.431 9,686
1,153,201 786,580
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6.

BUSINESS AND GEOGRAPHICAL SEGMENTS
Business segments

Principal activities of the Group are as follows:

Cars and car accessories Trading of cars and related accessories and provision of car
repairing services

Electrical appliances Distribution of air-conditioning products. audio-visual
equipment, including car audio, home appliances and

installation of air-conditioning products

Property investment Rental of investment properties and properties held for sale

Segment information about these businesses is presented below.

2007

Cars and

car Electrical Property
accessories appliances investment Others Eliminations Consolidated

HK3'000 HK$'000 HK§'000 HK$ 000 HK$'000 HK$'000
Turnover
External sales 883,787 208,526 15,431 45.457 - 1,153,201
Inter-segment sales - 110 - - (1) -
Total turnover 883,787 208,636 15,431 45,457 (1) 1,153,201

Inter-segment sales are
charged at prevailing
market rates.

Results
Segment results 23.148 1,834 11,884 (6,270) - 30,596
Unallocated corporate

expenses (26.461)
Profit from operations 4,135
Finance costs (14,355)

Impairment on
available-for-sale

financial assets (6.000)
Provision for guazrantee (7.500)
Gain on disposal of

subsidiartes 76,021
Loss on disposal of an

associate (1,968)
Share of result of an

associate (1.169) - - - - (1,169)
Profit before tax 49,164
Income tax expenses (6.256)
Profit for the year 42,908
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2007

Consolidated balance
sheet

Assets

Segment assets

Interests in associates

Unallocated corporate
assets

Consolidated total
assels

Liabilities

Segment liabilities

Unallocated corporate
liabilities

Ceonsolidated total
liabiiities

Other information
Capital expenditures
Depreciation
Amortisation of prepaid
lease payments
Fair value gains on
investment properties
Gain/(loss) on disposal
of property, plant and
equipment
[mpairment on
available-for-sale
financial assets
Impairment on goodwill
Provision for guarantee

Cars and
car
accessories
HK$'000

280.548

215,670

Cars and
car
accessories
HK$'000

8,639
6,713

Electrical
appliances
HK3 000

84,476

42,390

Electrical
appliances
HK3'000

1,149
573

(8)

118

Property
investment
HK3000

33.366

668

Property
investment
HK$'000

13
15

2,022

HK3'000

Others Eliminations Consolidated
HK3'000 HK3000

31,861 - 430,251

370,472

800,723

13,698 - 269,426

128,443

397,869

Others Unallocated Consolidated

HK$'000  HKS$'000  HK3$'000
3426 19,501 32,788
254 3,199 10,754

4 - 5

- - 2,022

- 437 444

- 6,000 6,000

- - 118

- 7.500 7.500
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2006
Cars and
car  Electrical Property
accessories appliances investment Others Eliminations Consolidated
HK3'000 HK3$'000 HK3'000 HK3'000 HK$ 000 HK$ 000
Turnover

External sales
Inter-segment sales

Total turnover

Inter-segment sales are
charged at prevailing
market rates.

Results
Segment results

Negative goodwill
Unallocated corporate
expenses

Profit from operations

Finance costs

Loss on disposal of a
subsidiary

Gain on disposal of a
subsidiary

Loss on disposal of an
associate

Share of results of
associates

Profit before tax
Income tax expenses

Profit for the year

550,632 225,379 9,686 283 - 786,580
- 948 - - (948) -

550,632 226,327 9.686 383 (948) 786,580

13,872 4,653 25,735 (3,600} - 40,660

8,008

(20,938)

27,730
(11,381)

(15,935)
28,624
(9,723)

2,785 (10,562) - - - 7,77

11,538
(1,141

10,397
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2006
Cars and
car  Electrical Property
accessories appliances investment Others Eliminations Consolidated

HK$ 000 HK$'000 HK3'000 HK3$'000 HKS$°000 HK$'000

Consolidated balance

sheet
Assets
Segment assets 214,393 89,004 259,646 50,919 - 613,962
Interests in associates 10,727 - - - - 10,727
Unallocated corporate

assels 96,997

Consolidated total
assets 721,686

Liabilities

Segment liabilities 164,756 37,854 5.839 1,127 - 209,576
Unallocated corporate

liabilities 193,131

Consolidated total
liabilities 402,707

QOther information

Capital expenditures 6.952 737 4,944 4,733 - 17,366
Depreciation 4416 535 - 4,085 - 9,036
Fair value gains on

investment properiies - - (25,026) - - (25,026)

Reversal of write-down
of properties held for
sale to net realisable
value - - (400) - - (400)
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Geographical segments

The Group's operations are mainly located in Hong Kong, Singapore, Malaysia, PRC and Macau. The
following table provides an analysis of the Group's turnover by geographical market, irrespective of the origin
of the goods/services:

Turnover by Contribution to
geographical market operating results
2007 2006 2007 2006
HK$ 000 HK3$'000 HK$ 000 HK3000
Hong Kong 980,599 675,901 23,947 34,879
Singapore 69,539 57,222 1,999 1,811
Malaysia 33,532 29,659 1,727 1,879
PRC 57,017 9,359 (1,954) (6,260)
Macau 11,175 12,567 280 83
Others 1,339 1.872 118 31
1,153,201 786,580 26,117 32,423
Other operating income 4,479 16,245
Unallocated corporate
expenses (26,461) (20,938)
Profit from operations 4,135 27,730

The following is an analysis of the carrying amount of segment assets and capital expenditures analysed
by the geographical area in which the assets are located:

Carrying amount of

segment assets Capital expenditures
2007 2006 2007 2006
HK$'000 HK3$'000 HK$000 HK$ 000
Hong Kong 694,613 617,109 29,224 8.876
Singapore 30,750 24,928 192 17
Malaysia 18,052 20,434 216 88
PRC 57,308 59,185 3.156 8,385
Macau - 30 - -
800,723 721,686 32,788 17,366

7. OTHER OPERATING INCOME

2007 2006
HK$ 000 HK$'000
Commission income 2,479 2,364
Gain on disposal of right of distribution of products - 5,873
Management fee refunded 1,900 -
Negative goodwill - 8,008
Sundry income 100 -
4,479 16,245
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9.

PROFIT FROM OPERATIONS

Profit from operations has been arrived at afier charging:

Auditors’ remuneration

Cost of inventories recognised as expenses (included write-down of
inventories to net realisable value of approximately HK$1,029,000

(2006: HKS1,083,000))
Amortisation of prepaid lease payments
Depreciation of:
Owned assets
Assets held under finance leases
Staff costs, including Directors’ emoluments
Operating lease rental in respect of land and buildings
Loss on disposal of property, plant and equipment
Fair value losses:
Other financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
Derivative financial instruments
Share-based payment expenses

and crediting:

Interest income

Foreign exchange differences, net

Fair value gains:
Other financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
Derivative financial instruments

Gain on disposal of property, plant and equipment

FINANCE COSTS

Interest expenses on:

Bank loans, trust receipts loans and overdrafts wholly repayable

within five years
Bank loans wholly repayable after five years
Other loans wholly repayable within five years
Effective interest expense on

convertible loan note (note 28)

Finance lease charges
Bank charges

4] -

2007 2006
HK$°000 HK$°'000
915 3,012
938,222 624,947
5 —

9,871 8,582
883 454
88,749 68,222
15,916 10,925
- 9

- 9

- 57

2,153 -
1,922 348
593 769

6 -

57 -

444 -
2007 2006
HK$°000 HK$'000
£1,005 8,036
9] 80

84 28
2,833 2,773
14,013 10,917
20 14

322 450
14.355 11.381
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10.

INCOME TAX EXPENSES

Hong Kong Profits Tax is calculated at 17.5% (2006: 17.5%) of the estimated assessable profit arising in Hong
Kong for the year.

Overseas taxation is calculated at the rates prevailing in the respective jurisdictions.

2007 2006
HKE 000 HK3'000

Current tax:

Hong Kong Profits Tax 2,058 76

QOverseas income tax 193 217

2,251 293

Deferred tax:

Current year (note 32} 4,005 848
Income tax expenses attributable to

the Company and its subsidiaries 6,256 1,141
The tax expenses for the year can be reconciled to the profit before tax as follows:

2007 2006
HK3'000 % HK$'000 %

Profit before tax 49,164 11,538
Tax at the Hong Kong Profits Tax

rate of 17.5% 8,604 17.5 2,019 17.5
Tax effect of expenses that are not

deductible for tax purposes 5,576 11.3 9,100 78.9
Tax effect of income that are not

taxable for tax purposes (15,065) {30.6) (10,148) (87.9)
Uhilisation of deferred tax assets

previously not recognised (294) (0.6) (2,1000 (18.2)
Tax effect of tax losses not

recognised 8,062 16.4 2,820 244
Effect of different tax rates of

subsidiaries and associates

operating in other jurisdictions (627} (1.3) (550) (4.8)
Tax expense and effective tax rate

for the year 6,256 12.7 1,141 9.9

There was no share of tax attributable to associates at 31 December 2007. At 31 December 2006, the share of
tax attributable to associates amounting to approximately HK$1,638,000 was included in “Share of results of

associates” on the face of the consolidated income statement.
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1.  EARNINGS PER SHARE

The calculation of the basic earnings per share is based on the profit attributable to equity holders of the
Company of approximately HK$35,677,000 (2006: HK$7,114,000) and on the weighted average number of
233,898,682 (2006: 221,615,433) ordinary shares in issue during the year,

Diluted earnings per share for the years ended 31 December 2007 and 2006 were the same as the basic earnings
per share. The Company’s outstanding share options and convertible loan note were not included in the calculation
of diluted earnings per share because the effects of the Company’s outstanding share options and convertibie loan
note were anti-dilutive.

12, DIRECTORS’ AND EMPLOYEES’ EMOLUMENTS

(a) Directors’ emoluments

The emoluments paid or payable to each of the ten Directors (2006: nine Directors) were as follows:

Other emoluments

Performance Retirement

Salaries related benefit
and other incentive scheme Total
Fees benefits payments contributions emoluments

HK3000 HK$ 000 HK3'000 HK$'000 HK$ 000

Executive Directors
Wing Sum LEE (Resigned

on 31 May 2007) - 1,800 - - 1,800
Richard Man Fai LEE - 2,482 170 i2 2,664
Jeff Man Bun LEE - - 20 1 21

Sammy Chi Chung SUEN
(Resigned on 19 April

2007) - 277 30 4 3h
Tik Tung WONG - 949 60 12 1.021
Waison Chit Sing HUI - 1,027 20 12 1,059

- 6.535 300 41 6.876

Non-executive Director
Kam Har YUE 33 I - - 33

Independent Non-
executive Directors

Raymond Cho Min LEE 88 - - - 88
Boon Seng TAN 88 ~ - - 88
Ying Kwan CHEUNG 88 - - - 88

264 - - - 264
Total for 2007 297 6,535 300 41 7173
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Other emoluments

Performance Retirement

Salaries related benefit
and other incentive scheme Total
Fees benefits payments contributions emoluments

HK3'000 HK$ 000 HK3$'000 HK§'000 HK$'000

Executive Directors

Wing Sum LEE - 1,800 - - 1,800
Richard Man Fai LEE - 2,478 - 12 2,490
Sammy Chi Chung SUEN - 877 - 12 889
Tik Tung WONG - 923 - 12 935

Waison Chit Sing HUI
(Appointed on 16
March 2006) - 815 - 10 825

6,893 - 46 6,939

Non-executive Director
Kam Har YUE 33 - - - 33

Independent Non-
executive Directors

Raymond Cho Min LEE 88 - - - 88
Boon Seng TAN 88 - - - 88
Ying Kwan CHEUNG 88 - - - 88

264 - - - 264
Total for 2006 297 6,893 - 46 7,236

The performance related incentive payments are determined as a percentage of the turnover or the profit
after tax of the Group.

There was no arrangement under which a Director waived or agreed to waive any remuneration during
the year.
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(b) Employees’ emoluments

During the year, the five highest paid individuals included two Directors (2006: two Directors), details
of whose emoluments are set out in note 12(a) above. The emoluments of the remaining highest paid

individuals were as follows:

Salaries and other benefits

Retirement benefits scheme contributions

The emoluments of the remaining highest paid individuals fell within the following bands:

HK$1,000,001 — HK$1,500,000
HK$1,500,001 - HK$2,000,000
HK$2,000,001 — HK$2,500,000
HK$3,000,001 - HK33,500,000

13. RETIREMENT BENEFIT SCHEME

2007 2006
HK$'000 HK$'000
6,462 4,979

25 23

6,487 5,002
2007 2006
Number of Number of
employees employees
1 2

| _

- 1

1 _

3 3

The Group operates a mandatery provident fund ("MPF”) scheme for all qualifying employees of its Hong
Kong subsidiaries. The assets of the scheme are held separately from those of the Group in funds under the control
of trustees. The retirement benefit cost charged to the income statement during the year amounted to approximately
HK$2,511,000 (2006: HK$1,971,000), which represents contributions paid or payable to the fund by the Group at the

rates specified in the MPF Ordinance.

For subsidiaries other than in Hong Kong, contributions are made to the defined contribution schemes by the
Group at rates specified in the rules of the schemes at the relevant jurisdiction. The contributions made by
subsidiaries other than in Hong Kong during the year amounted to HK$1,017,000 (2006: HK$842,000).
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INVESTMENT PROPERTIES

Investment Investment
properties in properties
Hong Kong outside Hong
held under Kong held
medium-term  under medium-
leases term leases Total
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
The Group
Fair value
At 1 January 2006 197,199 3.648 200,847
Additions - 4,944 4,944
Disposals - (1,400) {1,400)
Transfer from property, plant and equipment
{note 15) 24,896 - 24,896
Transfer to property, plant and equipment
(note 15) (19,395) - (19,395)
Increase in fair value recognised in the
income statement 24,640 186 25,026
At 31 December 2006 and 1 January 2007 227,340 7,578 234918
Disposal of subsidiaries (227,340) - (227,340
Increase in fair value recognised in the
income statement - 2,022 2,022
At 31 December 2007 - 9,600 9,600

The investment properties of the Group were revalued at 31 December 2007 by Raffles Appraisals Limited
(2006: Malcolm & Associate Appraisal Limited), independent qualified professional valuers. Raffles Appraisals
Limited is the member of the Hong Kong Institute of Valuers, and has appropriate qualifications and recent
experiences in the valuation of similar properties in relevant locations. The valuation, which conforms to
International Valuation Standards, was arrived by reference to an open market, existing use basis.

The Group's investment properties are measured wsing the fair value model.

The investment properties of the Group are rented out or available for rent under operating leases, further
summary details of which are included in note 39 to the financial statements.

The Group had pledged investment properties with a carrying amount of approximately HK$7,100,000 (2006:
HK$232,418,000) to secure facilities granted to the Group (note 43},
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15.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

The Group

Cost or valuation

At | January 2006

Exchange difference

Acquisition of a subsidiary

Additions

Transfer to investment
propertics

Transfer from investment
properties

Disposal of a subsidiary
Disposals

At 31 December 2006 and
1 January 2007

Exchange difference
Additions

Disposal of subsidiaries
Disposals

At 31 December 2007

Representing:
At cost
At valuation

Accumulated depreciation
At 1 January 2006
Exchange difference
Acquisition of a sebsidiary
Provided for the year
Transfer to investment
properties
Reclassification
Disposal of a subsidiary
Eliminated upon disposals

At 31 December 2006 and
1 Jaouary 2007

Exchange difference
Provided for the year
Disposal of subsidiaries
Eliminated upon disposals

At 31 December 2007

Net book values
A1 31 December 2007

At 31 December 2006

Land and
buildings Land and
oulside buildings
Hong in Hong
Kong held Kong held
under under Furniture,
medium- medium- fixtures
term lerm Leasehold and  Machinery Maotor Motor
leases leases improvements  equipment and toels vehicles yacht Total
HES'000 HE$'000 HK3'006 HE$'600 HKS$"000 HK$'060 HK$000 HK$'000
- 106,523 24,125 32131 7.618 6.864 - 177,261
- - 9 109 6 04 - 218
- - - 1,229 - - - 1,229
- - 3,357 1,296 69 7,700 - 12,422
- (25,463) - - - - - (25,463)
- 19.395 - - - - - 19,395
- - - (15) (63) - - {78}
- - - (1.929) 9) (63) - (2.001)
- 100.455 27491 32821 7,621 14,595 - 182,983
- - 205 146 4 1i0 - 463
838 - 3.967 2784 274 3.042 17,636 31191
- (100.453) - - - - - (100,455)
- - {6) {135) - (3,648) - (3,789
888 - 33,657 35,616 8,499 14,099 17,636 110,393
BE8 - 33.657 35616 5,499 14,099 17,636 110,395
888 - 33,657 35,616 8,499 14,099 17,636 110,395
- 22,176 13,956 28,508 4,990 4,967 - 74,597
- - 1 105 - 47 - 163
- - - 1,154 - - - 1,154
- 2,685 2,520 1312 649 1870 - 9.036
- (567) - - - - - {367)
- - - (82) 82 - - -
- - - (12} an - - (29)
- - - (1.778) V)] 63) - (1.850)
- 24,294 16,487 29,207 5,695 6.821 - 82,504
- - 70 111 4 70 - 235
4 1,115 4,353 1,480 01 2,219 882 10,754
- (25.409) - - - - - (25.409)
- - (5} (122) - (2.123) - (2.250)
4 - 20,905 30,676 6,400 5,987 882 65,854
884 - 12,752 4,940 2099 7,112 16,754 44,541
- 16,161 11,004 3,614 1,926 7,774 - 10d,479
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At 31 December 2007, the net book value of the Group’s motor vehicles included an amount of HK$2,034,000
(2006: HK$2,905,000) in respect of assets held under finance leases.

There was no land and buildings pledged to secure facilities granted to the Group at 31 December 2007. At
31 December 2006, the Group had pledged land and buildings having a carrying amount of approximately
HK$76,161,000 to secure facilities granted to the Group (note 43).

Furniture,
Leasehold fixtures and Motor
improvements equipment vehicles Total
HK3'000 HK$'000 HK$ 000 HK$000
The Company
Cost
At 1 January 2006 6,244 16,348 1,997 24,589
Additions - 438 1,237 1,675
At 31 December 2006 and
1 January 2007 6,244 16,786 3,234 26,264
Additions 28 195 - 223
Disposals - - (1,548) (1,548}
At 31 December 2007 6.272 16,981 1,686 24,939
Accumulated depreciation
At 1 January 2006 6,228 15,945 1,993 24,168
Provided for the year 7 255 248 510
At 31 December 2006 and
1 January 2007 6,235 16,200 2,243 24,678
Provided for the year 13 245 1 259
Eliminated upon disposals - - (558) (558)
At 31 December 2007 6,248 16,445 1,686 24,379
Net book values
At 31 December 2007 24 536 — 560
At 31 December 2006 9 586 991 1,586
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16,

PREPAID LEASE PAYMENTS

The Group

Cost
At 1 January
Additions

At 31 December

Accumulated amortisation
At | January
Charge for the year

At 31 December

Net book value
At 31 December

The Group’s prepaid lease payments comprise:

Land outside Hong Kong:
Medium term lease

Analysed for reporting purposes as:
Current assets (included in trade and other receivables)
Non-current assets
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17. GOODWILL

Total

HK3 000
The Group
Cost
At 1 January 2006 2,306
Acquisition of subsidiaries 29}
At 31 December 2006 and 1 January 2007 2,597
Acquisition of a subsidiary 308
At 31 December 2007 2,905
Accumulated impairment
At 1 January 2006, 31 December 2006 and | January 2007 -
Impairment loss 118
At 31 December 2007 118

Carrying value
At 31 December 2007 2,787

At 31 December 2006 2,597

During the year ended 31 December 2007, the Group assessed the recoverable amount of goodwill, and
determined that goodwill associated with the Group’s electrical appliances operations was impaired by approximately
HK$118,000 (2006: nil). The recoverable amount of the electrical appliances operations was assessed by reference
to value in use. A discount factor of 10% per annum was applied in the value in use model,

The main factor contributing to the impairment of the cash-generating unit was the decrease in the estimated
cash flow generated from the electrical appliances operations.

Particulars regarding impairment testing on goodwill are disclosed in note 18.
18. IMPAIRMENT TESTING ON GOODWILL

As explained in note 6, the Group uses business segments as its primary segment for reporting segment
information. For the purposes of impairment testing, goodwill with indefinite useful lives set out in note 17 has been
allocated to an individual cash generating unit (CGU), including subsidiaries in “the car and car accessories™ and
“electrical appliances” segments. The carrying amount of goodwill (net of accumulated impairment losses) at 31
December 2007 was approximately HK$2,787,000 (2006: HK$2,597,000).

The recoverable amount of the above CGU has been determined based on a value in use calculation. That
calculation uses cash flow projections based on financial budgets approved by management covering a five-year
period, and discount rate of 10% per annum (2006: 10% per annum). Another key assumption for the value in use
calculations is the budgeted gross margin, which is determined based on the CGU’'s past performance and
management’s expectations for the market development.

—50—



APPENDIX I FINANCIAL INFORMATION ON THE GROUP

19.

20,

INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES

The Company

2007 2006

HKS$ 000 HK$'000

Unlisted shares, at cost 301.811 308,630
Less: Impairment loss recognised (30,736) (30,736)
271,075 277.894

Particulars of the Company's principal subsidiaries at 3t December 2007 are shown in note 49.

INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES

The Group
2007 2006
HK$'000 HK$'000
Share of net assets of associates (nore d) - 10,727

Notes:

(a)  On 30 December 2005, Italian Motors (Sales & Service) Limited, a subsidiary of the Company, and
Ferrari S.p.A entered into an equily interest transfer agreement relating to the transfer of 29% equity
interest (“Equity Transfer”) in Ferrari Maserati Cars International Trading (Shanghai) Co., Ltd.
(“FMC™}), for a consideration of US$870,000, equivalent to approximately HK$6.8 million. The net
assets of FMC as at the date of transfer was approximately HK$35 million and the resulting loss from
disposal of 29% equity interest in FMC together with the realisation of accumuiated exchange
differences was approximately HK$2.0 million.

{b)  On 30 June 2006, Metro Global Limited (“Metro Global™}, a wholly owned subsidiary of the Company,
IM Washing Machine Factory and Candy Elettrodomestici S.r.). entered into a share purchase and
subscription agreement relating to, among other things, the disposal of 50% equity interest in
ERUERAHRAE CEHE|E. a Sino-foreign equity joint venture established in the PRC, by Metro
Global for a cash consideration of approximately RMB27 million {“Consideration™), which is equivalent
to approximately HK$26 million. The net assets of &% B2 as at the date of transfer was
approximately HK$87 million and the resulting loss from the disposal of 50% equity interest in
£ ¥ 18 #F together with the realisation of accumulated exchange differences was approximately HK$9.7
millton.

(c)  On I5 fuly 2006, Corich Enterprises knc. (“Corich™), an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of the
Company, and Mr, Herbert Adamczyk ("Mr. Adamczyk™), as sellers entered into a share exchange
agreement (“Share Exchange Agreement™) with China Premium Lifestyle Enterprise, Inc. (“CPMM™) as
the purchaser, Mr. Fred De Luca (“*Mr. Luca™) and Technorient Limited (“Technorient™), a principal
indirect subsidiary of the Company, in relation to the sale of an aggregate of 49% of the issued share
capital of Technorient in consideration for the issue by CPMM of an aggregate of 972,728 CPMM's
preference convertible shares of par value of US$0.001 each convertible into an aggregate of 89,689,881
CPMM’s common shares of par value of US$0.001 each.
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21.

(d) The summarised financial information in respect of the Group's associates is set out below:

2007 2006

HK$'000 HK$'000

Total assets 8,884 242,195
Total liabilities (15.819) (206,437
Net {liabilities)/assets (6,935) 35,758
Group's share of net assets of associates - 10,727
Turnover 72 439,140
(Loss)/Profit for the year (5.244) 9,284
Group’s share of results of associates for the year (1,169 (7,777)
Market value of listed securities 84,822 156,503

Particulars of the Group's principal associates at 31 December 2007 are shown in note 50.

INVENTORIES
The Group
2007 2006
HK$'000 HK$'000
Finished goods 109.361 137.923
Spare parts 15,632 12,554
124,993 150,477

Included in the above figure are finished goods of approximately HK$19,601,000 (2006: HK$24,299,000)

which have been pledged as security for bank loans (note 43).

22,

TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES

The Group
2007 2006
HKE'000 HK$°000
Trade receivables 130,118 122,565
Less: Allowance for doubtful debts (4,832) (5,731)
Total trade receivables, net of allowance for doubtful debts 125,286 116,834
Deposits, prepayments and other receivables 59,789 32.606
185,075 149,440
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The following is an aged analysis of trade receivables net for allowance of doubtful debts at the balance sheet

date:
The Group
2007 2006
HK$ 000 HK$ 000
Within 30 days 82,794 93,422
31 to 60 days 18,699 14,405
61 to 90 days 6,048 3,999
9t days to | year 16,396 3,492
Over | year 1,349 1,516
Total 125,286 116,834

The Group allows an average credit period of 7 to 90 days to its customers.

Before accepting any new customer, the Group uses credit scoring system to assess the potential customer’s
credit quality and defines credit limits by customer. Limits and scoring attributed to customers are reviewed twice
a year. Approximately 80% of the trade receivables that are neither past due nor impaired have the best credit scoring
atiributable under the credit scoring system used by the Group.

Included in the Group’s trade receivable balance were debtors with a carrying amount of HK$17,745.000
(2006: HK$5,008,000) which are past due at the reporting date for which the Group has not provided for impairment
loss. The Group does not hold any collateral over these balances.

Ageing of trade receivables which are past due but not impaired

The Group

2007 2006

HK$'000 HK$ 000

91 days to | year 16,396 3,492
Over | year 1,349 1,516 .

Total 17,745 5,008
i
Movement in the allowance for doubtful debts .
The Group )
2007 2006 :

HK3'000 HK3'000
Balance at beginning of the year 5.731 6,548 :
Impairment losses recognised on receivables 1,676 717 '
Amounts recovered during the year (2,575) (1,534) !
Balance at end of the year 4,832 3,731 !

Included in the allowance for doubtful debts arc individually impaired trade receivables with a balance of i
HK$1,676,000 (2006: HK$717,000) which were past due and not recoverable. The impairment recognised !
represented the carrying amount of these trade receivables and the Group does not hold any collateral over these '
balances.

|
i
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23.

24,

Ageing of impaired trade receivables

Within 30 days
91 days to 1 year
Over | year

Total

The Group
2007 2006
HK3$'000 HK$'000
913 1,385
763 186
3,156 4,160
4,832 5.731

The fair values of the Group's trade and other receivables at 31 December 2007 approximate to the

corresponding carrying amounts.

AMOUNTS DUE FROM/TO ASSOCIATES/SUBSIDIARIES

The amounts dite are unsecured, interest-free and have no fixed terms of repayment. In the opinion of the
Directors of the Company, the carrying amounts of the amounts due from or to associates or subsidiaries at 31
December 2007 approximate to their fair values.

AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE FINANCIAL ASSETS

At 1 Januvary
Additions
Impairment loss on available-for-sale financial assets (nore (c)}

At 31 December

Available-for-sale financial assets at 31 December comprise of:

Unlisted securities:
Debt securities without interest and maturity date (note {a})
Equity securities (nore (b))

Analysed for reporting purposes as:
Cutrent assels
Non-current assets

Notes:

The Group
2007 2006
HK$'000 HE$'000
527 527
36,000 -
(6,000} -
30,527 527
527 527
30,000 -
30,527 527
30,527 527
30,527 527

(a) The fair values of unlisted available-for-sale debt securities have been estimated based on observable

market prices or rates.

(b) The unlisted equity securities are measured at fair value. Fair value is estimated based on observable
market prices or rates of similar equity securities. In determining the fair value, a risk adjusted discount

rate factor of 15.04% was used.
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(c)  During the year ended 31 December 2007, the Group assessed whether there was any objective evidence
that the unlisted equity securities were impaired and determined that the unlisted equity securities were
impaired by approximately HK$6,000,000 (2006: nil). The main factor contributing to the impairment
was the significant decrease in estimated future cash flows of the unlisted equity securities due to
changes in its revenue base.

25, OTHER FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE THROUGH PROFIT OR LOSS

The Group and
the Company

2007 2006
HK$'000 HK3$'000
At | January il 20
Reversal of fair value losses on other financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss 6 -
Fair value losses on other financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss - (% :
i
At 31 December 17 11 |
Listed securities:
Equity securities listed in Hong Kong 17 11

The carrying amounts of the above financial assets were classified as held for trading.

All financial assets at fair value through profit or loss are stated at fair values. Fair values of the listed
investments are determined by reference to the quoted market bid prices available on the Stock Exchange of Hong

Kong Limited.

26. TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES

The following were an aged analysis of trade payables at the balance sheet date:

The Group
2007 2006
HK3$'000 HK$'000
Within 30 days 7,995 7.518
31 to 60 days 3.111 3,314
61 to 90 days 8.953 4,832
91 days to 1 year 1.410 3.312
Over | year 2,314 543
Total trade payables 23,783 19,519
Derivative financial instruments - 57
Customers’ deposits, accruals and other payables 220,173 143,991
243,956 163,567

The fair values of the Group’s trade and other payables at 31 December 2007 approximate to the corresponding

cnrrying amounts.
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27. PROVISION FOR GUARANTEE

Under a share purchase and subscription agreement signed on 30 June 2006, a subsidiary of the Company
provided a guarantee amounting to 2 maximum of RMBI1! million (approximately HK$11.8 million) to cover the
warranty and indemnity clauses stipulated therein. During the year ended 31 December 2007, HK$7,500,000 (2006:
nil} were agreed and due under the guarantee, and a provision for this amount has been recognised in the consolidated
financial statements of the Group,

28. CONVERTIBLE LOAN NOTE

The Company issued a 7.25% convertible loan note in the principal amount of HK$30,000,000 on 18 August
2005 to Hanny Holdings Limited (“Hanny™). The convertible loan note is denominated in Hong Kong dollars. The
convertible loan note entitles the holder to convert it into ordinary shares of the Company at any time between the
date of issue of the convertible loan note and the settlement date on 5 September 2008 at a conversion price of
HEK$1.00 per convertible loan note. If the convertible loan note has not been converted, it will be redeemed on 5
September 2008 at par. Interest of 7.25% will be paid semi-annually up unti! the settlement date. Further details of
which are set out in the announcement of the Company dated |8 August 2003.

The convertible loan note contains two components, liability and equity components. Upon initiat recognition,
the convertible loan note was split between the liability and equity components. The equity component is presented
in equity heading “Equity component of convertible loan note”, The effective interest rate of the liability component
is 10%.

The movement of the liability component of the convertible loan note for the year is set out below:

The Group and
the Company

2007 2006

HK$'000 HK$000

Face value of convertible loan note 30,600 30,000
Transaction cost (1,735) (1,735)
Equity component (185) (185)
Liability component on initial recognition at 18 August 2005 28,080 28,080
Interest charged 6,477 3,644
Interest paid (4,350} (2.175)
Liability component at 31 December 30,207 29,549

The fair value of the liability component of the convertible loan note at 31 December 2007, determined based
on the present value of the estimated future cash outflows discounted at the prevailing market rate for an equivalent
non-convertible loan at the balance sheet date, was approximately HK$30,207,000 (2006: HK$29,549,000).
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29. AMOUNTS DUE TO RELATED COMPANIES

The Group The Company
2007 2006 2007 2006
HK$' 000 HK$'000 HK3$°000 HK$ 000
Amounts repayable within one year 1,343 6,914 441 553

The amounts included in the current liabilities are unsecured, non-interest bearing and have no fixed terms of
repayment. The related companies are controlled by certain Directors of the Company. The fair value of the amounts
due to related companies as at 31 December 2007 approximates to the corresponding carrying amounts.

30. OBLIGATIONS UNDER FINANCE LEASES

Present value of minimum

Minimum lease payments lease payments
2007 2006 2007 2006
HK$'000 HK$'000 HKE'000 HK$'000
The Group
Amounts payable under finance
leases:
Within one year 1,003 1,486 936 1,387
In the second to fifth year inclusive 194 1,217 168 1,121
1,197 2,703 1.104 2,508
Less: Future finance charges (93) (195) - -
Present value of lease obligations 1,104 2,508 1,104 2,508
Analysed as:
Amounts due within one year shown
under current lizbilities 936 1,387
Amounts due after one year 168 1,121
1,104 2,508

For the year ended 31 December 2007, the average effective borrowing rate was approximately 4% (2006: 4%)
per annum. Interest rates are fixed at the contract date. All leases were on a fixed repayment basis and no arrangement
had been entered into for contingent rental payments. The Group’s obligations under finance leases were secured by
the lessor's charge over the leased assets. The carrying amount of the obligations under finance leases approximates
to their fair values. The Group's obligations under finance leases were secured by the charge over the leased assets.
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31. BORROWINGS

The Group
2007 2006
HK$ 000 HK$000
Bank overdrafts 583 18,921
Bank loans 83,750 115,053
84,333 133,974
Secured (note 43) 75,309 123,869
Unsecured 9,024 10,105
84,333 133,974
The maturities of the above loans are as follows:
Within one year 70,827 122,671
More than one year, but not exceeding two years 2,760 7,812
More than two years, but not exceeding five years 4,305 606
More than five years 6,441 2,885
84,333 133,974
Less: Amounts due within one vear shown vnder current liabilities (70,827 (122,671)
Amounts due after one year 13,506 11,303

The ranges of effective interest rates (which are also equal to contracted interest rates) on the Group’s
borrowings are as follows:

2007 2006

Effective interest rate:
Variable-rate borrowings 5.24% to 4.835% to
8.75% 9.25%

The Group's borrowings that are denominated in currencies other than the functional currency are set out

below:
JPY*000 MYR’000 SGD'000 usp’o00
At 31 December 2007 25,549 1,887 823 226
At 31 December 2006 - 1,982 1.516 1,575

During the year, the Group obtained new borrowings in the amount of approximately HK$496,629,000 (2006:
HK$349,897,000). The borrowings bear interest at market rates and the proceeds were used to finance the working
capital.

The fair values of the Group’s borrowings at 31 December 2007 approximate to the corresponding carrying
amounts.

The borrowings were secured by certain assets of the Group, details were set out in note 43.
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32. DEFERRED TAX (ASSETS)/LIABILITIES

The Group
Accelerated
tax
depreciation Tax losses Total
HK3'000 HK3'000 HK3'000
At | Janwvary 2006 21,152 (6,300) 14,852
(Creditedy/charged (o income statement for
the year (1.237) 2,085 848
At 31 December 2006 and 1 January 2007
19,915 4.215) 15,700
Released on disposal of subsidiaries (19,909) 194 (19,715)
Charged to income statement for the year - 4,003 4,005
At 31 December 2007 6 {16) (10}
The following is the analysis of the deferred tax balances for financial reporting purposes:
2007 2006
HK$ 000 HK$'000
Deferred tax liabilities 6 19,915
Deferred tax assets (i6) (4,215)
(10 15,700

At 31 December 2007, the Group has unused tax losses of approximately HK31,053,600,000 (2006:
HK$1,007,532,000) available for offset future profits. A deferred tax asset has been recognised in respect of
approximately HK$91,000 (2006: HK$24,086,000) of such losses. No deferred tax asset has been recognised
in respect of the remaining amount of approximately HK$1,053,509,000 (2006: HK$983,446,000) duc to the
unpredictability of future profit streams. The tax losses may be carried forward either 5 years or indefinitely.
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33.

SHARE CAPITAL

Number of shares Nominal value
HK$'000
Authorised:
At 1 January 2006 of HK$0.10 each 3,500,000,000 350,000
Effect of share consolidation {3,150,000,000) -
At 31 December 2006, 1 January 2007and 31 December 2007
of HK$1.00 each 350,000,000 350,000
Issued and fully paid:
At 1 January 2006 of HK$0.10 each 2,216,154,331 221,615
Effect of share consolidation {nofte a} {1,994,538,898) -
At 31 December 2006 and 1 January 20070of HK$1.00 each 221,615,433 221,615
Exercise of share options (note b) 2,433,042 2,433
Issue of shares upon acquisition of available-for-sale financial
assets (note c) 31,266,284 31,266
At 31 December 2007 of HK$1.00 each 255,314,759 255,314
(a)  Pursuant to a resolution passed by the shareholders of the Company at a special general meeting held

(b)

{c)

on 15 June 2006, every ten issued and unissued ordinary shares of HK$0.10 each in the share capital
of the Company as at that date were consolidated into one share of HK3$1.00 each. The share
consolidalion was effective from 15 June 2006.

During the year ended 31 December 2007, 2.433.042 share options were exercised and 2,433,042
ordinary shares of HK$1.00 each were issued. The subscription money of approximately HK$2,433,000
was credited to share capital.

On 13 August 2007, National Cape Development Limited, an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of the
Company, entered into a share acquisition agreement with Yang Pei, Executive Talent Limited, Ye Ai
Fang, as vendors, Lau Chi Yuen, Joseph and Yuen Nim Cho, as guarantors, to acquire 10% issued share
capital in Corning Investments Limited at a consideration of HK$36 million. Corning Investments
Limited is interested in the entire issued share capital of Digital Outdoor Television (Hong Kong)
Limited which together with its wholly-owned subsidiary. Today's Media Limited, are principally
engaged in the business of the provision of outdoor media advertising and broadcasting network. The
acquisition was completed on 24 August 2007. A total of 31,266,284 new shares of the Company had
been issued and allotted as consideration upon completion.
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34,

RESERVES

The Company

At | January 2006
Loss for the year

At 31 December 2006
and 1 January 2007

Recognition of equity-
settled share-based
payment

[ssue of shares upon
exercise of share
options

Issue of shares upon
acquisition of
available-for-sale
financial assets

Lapse of share options

Lass for the year

At 31 December 2007

Capital Share  Convertible

Share  redemption options loan nete  Contributed Accumulated
premium reserve Teserve reserve surplus losses Total
HKS8'000 HK§000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$ 000 HE$000 HE 000
- 916 - 185 361491 (335,632 26,960
- - - - - (173.821) (173,821)
- 916 - 185 361,491 (509.433) (146,861)
- - 2,153 - - - 2,153
226 - (72) - - - 154
4,734 - - - - - 4734
- - (64) - - 64 -
- - - - - (28.940) {28.940)
4,90 916 2017 185 361,491 (538,329) (168,760}

Under the Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda (as amended), the Company can make a distribution out of
contributed surplus. However, the Company cannot declare or pay a dividend, or make a distribution out of

contributed surplus if:

(a} it is, or would after the payment be, unable to pay its liabilities as they become due; or

{b)  the realisable value of its assets would thereby be less than the aggregate of its liabilities and its issued
share capital and share premium accounts.

At 31 December 2007 and 31 December 2006, the Company did not have any distributable reserves available
for distribution.
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35.  ACQUISITION OF SUBSIDIARIES
On 31 July 2007, the Group further acquired 5% of the issued share capital of Dalian Auto Italia Car Trading
Co. Limited for considerations of approximately HK$287,000. The amount of goodwill arising as a result of the

acquisition was approximately HK$308,000.

The net assets acguired in the transaction and the goodwill arising were as follows:

Acquiree’s

carrying
amount before Fair value Total fair
combination adjustment value
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK3'000

Net assets/(liabilities) acquired:

Property, plant and equipment 115 - 115
Inventories 542 - 542
Trade and other receivables 103 - 103
Cash and cash equivalents 295 - 295
Trade and other payables (1,076) - (1,076)
(21) - 2n
Goodwill 308
Total consideration 287

Satisfied by:
Cash 287

Net cash inflow from acquisition:

Cash consideration (287)
Cash and cash equivalents acquired 295
8

Goodwill arose in the business combination because the cost of the combination included a control premium
paid to acquire Dalian Auto Italia Car Trading Co. Limited. In addition, the consideration paid for the combination
effectively included amounts in relation to the benefit of expected synergies, revenue growth, future market
development and the assembled workforce of Dalian Auto Italia Car Trading Co. Limited. These benefits are not
recognised separately from goodwill as the future economic benefits arising from them cannot be reliably measured.

Further acquisition of 5% issued share capital of Dalian Auto Italia Car Trading Co. Limited contributed
approximately HK$54,000 to the Group’s profit for the period between the date of acquisition and the balance sheet
date respectively.

If the acquisition had been completed on 1 January 2007, the profit for the year attributable to equity holders
of the Company would have been approximately HK$35,621,000. The proforma information is for illustrative
purposes only and is not necessarily an indication of profit for the year attributable to equity holders of the Company
that actually would have been achieved had the acquisition been completed on 1 January 2007, nor is it intended to
be a projection of future results.

On 31 January 2006, the Group acquired 100% of the issued share capital of Firmmark Limited for
considerations of approximately HK$935,000. In addition, the Group further acquired 0.08% of the issued share
capital of a subsidiary, Technorient Limited for considerations of HK$200,000 on 31 May 2006. The amount of
goodwill arising as a result of the acquisitions was HK$291,000 in aggregate.
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36.

The net assets acquired in the transaction and the goodwill arising were as follows:

Net assets/(liabilities) acquired:

Property, plant and equipment
Interest in an associate

Deferred tax assets

Inventories

Trade and other receivables

Cash and cash equivalents

Trade and other payables

Bills payables

Borrowings — due within one year

Goodwill

Total consideration

Satisfied by:
Cash

Net cash outflow from acquisition:

Cash consideration

DISPOSAL OF SUBSIDIARIES

(a) Loss on disposal of a subsidiary

The net assets of a subsidiary at the date of disposal were as follows:

Net assets disposed of:

Property, plant and equipment

Interest in an associate
Deferred tax assets
Inventories

Trade and other receivables
Cash and cash equivalens
Trade and other payables

Borrowings — due within one year

Loss on disposal of a subsidiary

Total consideration

Acquiree’s
carrying

amount before Fair value Total fair

combination adjusiment value

HK$'000 HK$000 HK$'000

88 - 88

4 - 4

5 - 5

1.944 - 1,944

6,678 - 6.678

22 - 22

(4,601} - (4,601)

(856) - (856)

(2,440) - (2.440)

844 - 844

291

1,135
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each. The resulting loss of the disposal was approximately HK$15.9 miltion.

()

During the year ended 31 December 2006, the Company disposed interest in certain subsidiaries. Corich,
an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company. disposed 39% interest in Technorient in consideration
for the issue by CPMM of an aggregate of 727,273 CPMM's preference convertible shares of par value of
US3%0.001 each convertible into an aggregate of 67,057,843 CPMM's commeon shares of par value of US$0.001

Gain on disposal of subsidiaries

The net assets of subsidiaries at the date of disposal were as follows:

Net assets disposed of:

Investments properties
Properties, plant and equipment
Deferred tax assets

Trade and other receivables
Cash and cash equivalents
Provision of a legal claim
Trade and other payables

Tax payable

Deferred tax liabilities
Realisation of exchange reserve

Net consideration

Transaction costs

Gain on disposal of subsidiaries

Satisfied by:
Cash

Net cash inflow from disposal:
Cash consideration
Transaction costs paid

Cash and cash equivalents disposed

2007 2006
HK$"000 HKS$'000
227,340 -
75,046 -
194 -

£03 702

149 -

- (30.656)
(5.057) (913)
(1,692) -
(19.909) -
- 2,243
276,874 (28,624)
(357.613) -
80,739 28.624
(4.718) -
76.021 28.624
357,613 -
357,613 -
(4,718) -
(149) -
352,746 -

(i) On 13 September 2007, Wo Kee Hong (B.V.I) Limited ("WKH BVI"), a wholly-owned
subsidiary of the Company, entered into a sale and purchase agreement that WKH BV1 agreed to
sell the entire issued share capital of Wo Kee Hong Estates Limited (“WKH Estates™) and Ever
Rising Investments Limited (“Ever Rising”}, two wholly-owned subsidiaries of WKH BVI for a
total consideration of HK$373.000,000. Pursuant to the sale and purchase agreement, WKH BVI
and the purchaser shall agree to the adjustments on assets and liabilities of WKH Estates and Ever
Rising which is determined by reference to the balance sheets of WKH Estates and Ever Rising.
The adjusted liabilities exceed the adjusted assets by approximately HK$15,387,000 and the
resulting net consideration received by WKH BVI was approximately HK3$357,613,000. The
disposal was completed on 29 November 2007 and the transaction costs incurred was
approximately HK$4,718,000. The gain of such disposal was approximately HK$76.021,000.
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(ii)  On 14 November 2006, the Company announced that WKH BV1I as the vendor entered into an
agreement with Surestatus as the purchaser whereby WKH BVI has agreed to sell and Surestatus
agreed to purchase 100% interest in the issned share capital of Che Chuen for a consideration of
HEK$1.00. The resulting gain of such disposal was approximately HK$28.6 million.

37. MAJOR NON-CASH TRANSACTIONS

On 13 August 2007, National Cape Development Limited, an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of the
Company, entered into a share acquisition agreement with Yang Pei, Executive Talent Limited, Ye Ai Fang, as
vendors, Lau Chi Yuen, Joseph and Yuen Nim Cho, as guarantors to acquire 10% issued share capital in Corning
Investments Limited at a consideration of HK$36 million. Corning Investments Limited is interested in the entire
issued share capital of Digital Outdoor Television (Hong Kong) Limited which together with its wholly-owned
subsidiary, Today’s Media Limited, are principally engaged in the business of the provision of cutdoor media
advertising and broadcasting network. The acquisition was completed on 24 August 2007. A total of 31,266,284 new
shares of the Company had been issued and allotted as consideration upon completion. The details of the acquisition
set out in the circular of the Company dated 30 August 2007.

38. MATERIAL RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

[n addition to the balances with related parties disclosed elsewhere in the financial statements, during the year,
the Group entered into the following significant related party transactions:

2007 2006
HK$'000 HK$'000

Management and agency fee paid to a related company

which received the amounts on behalf of a building

management fund (a), (b) 3,822 4,187
Advisory fee paid to a related company (a) 40 -
Purchase of goods from a related company (a) 150 bl
Purchase of goods from a Director (a) 1,350 -
Sales of goods to related companies (a) 4,596 42

(a)  The pricing of transactions regarding advertising sponsorship, air-conditioning maintenance service fee,
artist fee received, management and agency fees, advisory fee, goods sold to a related company and
goods purchase from a related company/a director were determined by the Directors on the basis of
estimated market value.

(b}  The related companies acted as a building manager 10 operate a building management fund for a building
owned by the Group and collected the management and agency fee from the Group on behalf of the
building management fund. During the year ended 31 December 2007, management fee of
approximately HK$313,000 (2006: HK$417,000) and accounting service fee of approximately
HK$162,000 (2006: HK$162,000) were paid to the related company by the building management fund.

(c)  During the year ended 31 December 2006, a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company disposed its
100% interest in the issued share capital of Che Chuen to Surestatus, a company wholly-owned by Mr.
Richard Man Fai LEE. The transaction was on normal commercial terms and in the ordinary and usual
course of business of the Company. For details, please refer to note 36.
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Compensation of key management personnel

The remuneration of Directors and other members of key management during the year were as follows:

2007 2006

HK$'000 HK$'000

Fees 297 297
Salaries and other benefits 6,535 6,893
Performance related incentive payments 300 -
Retirement benefit scheme contributions 41 46
Short-term employee benefits T.173 7,236

The remuneration of Directors and other members of key management are determined by the
remuneration committee having regard to the performance of individuals and market trends.

39. OPERATING LEASES
The Group as lessor
Property rental income earned, net of outgoings of approximately HK$4,926,000 (2006: HK$5,948,000)
during the year was approximately HK$10,505,000 (2006: HK$3,738,000). The property held has committed

tenants for the next year.

At the balance sheet date, the Group had contracted with tenants for the following future minimum lease
payments which fall due:

2007 2006
HK$ 000 HK$ 000
Within one year 373 11,094
In the second to fifth year inclusive - 9,240
373 20,334
The Group as lessee

2007 2006
HK$'000 HK$'000

Minimum lease payments under operating leases recognised
in the income statement for the year 15,916 10,925
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At the balance sheet date, the Group had commitments under non-cancellable operating leases, which

fall due as follows:

2007 2006

HK$'000 HK$ 000

Within one year 22,947 12,202
In the second to fifth year inclusive 25,096 10,005
48,043 22,207

Operating lease payments represent rentals payable by the Group for certain of its office premises.

Leases are negotiated for an average term of two years and rentals are fixed for an average of one year.

At 31 December 2007, the Company had no significant commiiments under non-cancellable operating

leases (2006 nil).

40, CAPITAL COMMITMENTS

The Group
2007 2006
HK$ 000 HK$ 000
Authorised but not contracted for 579 -
Contracted but not provided for 46 2,380
625 2,380

At the balance sheet date, the Company did not have any significant capital commitments.

41. CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

(a)

(b)

(c)

At the balance sheet date, the Group and the Company had the following outstanding contingent
liabilities which are not provided for in the financial statements in respect of banking facilities and other
facilities made available to subsidiaries:

The Group The Company
2007 2006 2007 2006
HK3'000 HK3'000 HK$'000 HK3'000

Guarantees given for banking

facilities made available to

subsidiaries - - 279,862 320,540
Guarantees given for other

facilities made available to

subsidiaries - - 24,559 5,079

- - 304,421 325.619

At 31 December 2006, the Group had contingent liabilities of approximately HK$1.2 million in respect
of proceedings involving a subsidiary of the Company in India.

Under a share purchase and subscription agreement signed on 30 June 2006, a subsidiary of the
Company provided a guarantee amounting to a maximum of RMBII million (approximately HK$11.8
million) in settlement of certain liabilities of the disposed entity incurred prior to disposal. During the
year ended 31 December 2007, HK$7,500,000 (2006: nil} were agreed and due under the guarantee, and
a proviston for this amount has been recognised in the consolidated financial statements of the Group.
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42, DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

At 31 December 2007, the Group had entered into forward contracts denominated in Hong Kong Dollar
(*HKD™), United States Dollar (“USD™), Japan Yen (“JPY"), Euro (“"EUR™) and Singapore Dotlar (“SGD™). The
major terms of the foreign currency forward contracts are as follows:

Notional amount Maturity Exchange rates

Sell HKD1,340 17 January 2008 HKD{}.0687 to JPY]
Sell HKD142,342 31 January 2008 HKD10.565 to EURI
Sell HKD4,582,800 17 June 2008 HKD11.503 to EURI
Sell SGD27,056 15 February 2008 SGD1.4475 to USDI
Sell SGD156,642 15 February 2008 SGD1.4475 1o USDI
Sell SGD25,243 15 February 2008 SGI1.4460 to USDI
Sell SGD76,385 15 February 2008 SGID1.4460 to USDI
Sell SGDS5,339 15 February 2008 SGD1.4460 1o USDI
Sell SGD421,499 28 February 2008 SGD1.4420 to USDI
Sell SGD348,313 4 February 2008 SGD1.45 to USDI
Sell SGD29,665 4 January 2008 SGD0.01327 to JPY1
Sell SGD61,450 4 February 2008 SGD0.01339 to JPYI

The above derivatives are measured at fair value at each balance sheet date. Their fair values are determined
based on the quoted market prices for equivalent insiruments at the balance sheet date.

43. PLEDGE OF ASSETS

The Group
2007 2006
HK$'000 HK$'000
Land and buildings - 76,161
Inventories 19,601 24,299
Investment properties 7,100 232,418
Properties held for sale 23,400 23,400
Deposits in bank 86,796 8.500
All assets of a subsidiary 19,602 20,345

The amount represents assets pledged to banks and other licensed financial institutions to secure banking
facilities granted to the Group. The pledged assets will be released upon the settlement of relevant bank borrowings.

44, EVENTS AFTER BALANCE SHEET DATE

(i) On 18 January 2008, Wo Kee Hong (B.V.L.) Limited (“WKH BVI™}, a wholly-owned subsidiary of the
Company, entered into a sale and purchase agreement with Mr. Richard Man Fai LEE, as vendor,
pursuant to which WKH BVI agreed to acquired the entire issued share capital in Sunny Villa Holdings
Limited (“Sunny Villa™) and a non-interest bearing loan in the amount of approximately HK$1.8 million
owned by Sunny Villa to Mr. Richard Man Fai LEE, at an aggregate consideration of HK$4.3 million
which shall be settled by internal resources of the Company and payable in cash at completion. Mr.
Richard Man Fai LEE, is the Executive Chairman, the Chief Executive Officer and a controlling
shareholder of the Company. Further details were set out in the announcement of the Company dated
18 January 2008,
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(ii}y  On 28 March 2008, the Company announced its proposal to effect a capital reorganisation which will

involve:

(a)  the reduction of the nominal value of each share in issue from HK$1.00 to HK$0.10 by canceling
paid up capital to the extent of HK30.9 for each issued share on the date the capital reduction

becoming effective:

{b)  the subdivision of each authorised but vnissued share into 10 adjusted shares of HK$0.10 each;

(c)  the transfer of the credit arising from the capital reduction to the contributed surplus account of

the Company; and

(d) the utilisation of the comtributed surplus account of the Company resulting in (c) above to

eliminate the entire balance of the accumulated losses.

The Company alse proposed to refresh the scheme limit under the 2002 Share Option Scheme and a
bonus share issue on the basis of one bonus share of HK3$0.10 for every five adjusted shares of HK$0.10 each

held by the shareholders whose names appear on the register of members of the Company on the record date
and such bonus shares will be issued and credited as fully paid and will rank pari passu with the then issued
adjusted shares in all respects with effect from the date of issue. Further details were set out in the

announcement of the Company dated 28 March 2008.

45, CAPITAL RISK MANAGEMENT

The Group manages its capital to ensure that entities in the Group will be able to continue as a going concern
while maximising the return to stakeholders through the optimisation of the debt and equity balance. The Group’s

overall strategy remains unchanged from prior year.

The capital structure of the Group consists of debt (which includes borrowings, convertible loan note and
obligations under finance leases), cash and cash equivalents and equity attributable to equity holders of the Company,

comprising issued share capital, reserves and accumulated losses.
Gearing ratio

The gearing ratios at 31 December 2007 and 31 December 2006 were as follows:

2007 2006

HK$'000 HK§'000

Debt (note (a)) 115,644 166,031
Cash and cash equivalents (363,949 (40,944)
Net debt (248,305) 125,087
Equity (note {b)) 380,378 303,976
Gearing ratio N/A 41.15%

Notes:

(a)  Debt comprises long-term and short-term borrowings, obligations under finance leases and

convertible loan note as detailed in notes 31, 30 and 28 respectively.

(b)  Equity includes all capital and reserves of the Group.
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46. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

(a)

(b)

Categorties of financial instruments

2007 2006

X HK$'000 HK$ 000
Financial assets
Fair value through profit or loss

— Held for trading 17 11
Loans and receivables (including cash and cash equivalents) 560,072 164,335
Available-for-sale financial assets 30,527 527
Financial liabilities
Amortised cost 397,863 382,735

Financial risk management objectives and policies

The Group's activities expose it o a variety of financial risks: market risk (including currency risk,

interest rate risk and other price risk), credit risk and liquidity risk. The Group's overall risk management
programme focuses on the unpredictability of financial markets and seeks to minimise potential adverse effects
on the Group’s financial performance.

(i} Market risk

The Group's activities expose it primarily to the financial risks of changes in foreign exchange
rates, interest rates and equity prices. The Group enters into a variety of derivative financial instruments
10 manage its exposure to foreign currency risks, including:

. forward foreign exchange contracts are entered into in respect of highly probable foreign
currency forecast sales to limit its exposure to exchange rate risk in relation to foreign
currency denominated monetary items.

Market risk exposures are measured using sensitivity analysis.

There has been no change to the Group’s exposure to market risks or the manner in which it
manages and measures the risk,

Foreign currency risk management
Several subsidiaries of the Group have foreign currency sales and purchases, which expose
the Group to foreign currency risk. The management monitors foreign exchange exposure and

will consider hedging significant foreign currency exposure should the need arises,

The carrying amounts of the Group’s foreign currency denominated monetary assets and
monetary liabilities at the reporting date are as follows:

Liabilities Assets

2007 2006 2007 2006

HK3'000 HK3$'000 HK$ 060 HKS$'000

UsD 40,577 56,352 635 346
RMB 6,371 2,208 36,559 23,543
EUR 1,557 75 1,212 22
Py 3.597 5,479 - -
SGD 12,559 11,025 30,743 26,396
MYD 17,311 22,605 18,036 22,708
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Sensitivity analysis

The Group is mainly exposed to the effects of fluctation in USD, RMB, EUR, JPY,
SGD and MYD.

The following table details the Group’s sensitivity to a 5% increase and decrease in
the Hong Kong dollars against the relevant foreign currencies. 5% is the sensitivity rate
used when reporting foreign currency risk internally to key management personnel and
represents management's assessment of the reasonably possible change in foreign
exchange rates. The sensitivity analysis includes outstanding foreign currency
denominated monetary items and foreign currency forward contracts, and adjusts their
translation at the period end for a 5% change in foreign currency rates. The sensitivity
analysis includes external loans as well as leans to foreign operations within the Group
where the denomination of the loan is in a currency other than the currency of the lender
or the borrower. A positive number below indicates an increase in profit and other equity
where the Hong Kong dollars strengthen 5% against the relevant currency. For a 3%
weakening of the Hong Kong dollars against the relevant currency, there would be an equal
and opposite impact on the profit and other equity, and the balances below would be
negative.

Impact of USD

Impact of RMB

2007 2006 2007 2006
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK3'000 HK$'000
Profit or loss (note) 1,997 2,800 1,509 1,067

Impact of EUR

lImpact of JPY

2007 2006 2007 2006
HK$'000 HK$ 000 HK$'000 HK$°000
Profit or loss {note} 17 3 18O 274

Impact of SGD

Impact of MYD

2007 2006 2007 2006
HK$ 000 HK$'000 HK§'000 HK$'000
Profit or loss (note) 909 769 36 5

Note:

This is mainly atiributable to the exposure outstanding on receivables and payables
denominated in respective currencies at the year end.
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Interest rate risk management

The Group's cash flow interest rate risk relates primarily to variable-rate borrowings (note
31). It is the Group's policy to keep its borrowings at floating rate of interests so as to minimise
the fair value interest rate risk.

The Group’s exposures to interest rates on financial assets and financial liabilities are
detailed in the liquidity risk management section of this note, The Group's cash flow interest rate
risk is mainly concentrated on the fluctuation of HIBOR arising from the Group’s Hong Kong
dollar denominated borrowings.

Sensitivity analysis

The sensitivity analyses below have been determined based on the exposure to
interest rates for both derivatives and non-derivative instruments at the balance sheet date.
For variable-rate borrowings, the analysis is prepared assuming the amount of liability
outstanding at the balance sheet date was outstanding for the whole year. A 50 basis point
increase or decrease in HIBOR is used when reporting interest rate risk internally to key
management personnel and represents management's assessment of the reasonably possible
change in interest rates.

If interest rates had been 50 basis points higher/lower and all other variables were
held constant, the Group’s profit for the year ended 31 December 2007 would
decreasefincrease by approximately HK$42,000 (2006: HK$67.000). This is mainly
attributable to the Group’s exposure to interest rates on its variable rate borrowings.

The Group’s sensitivity to interest rates has decreased during the current period
mainly due to the reduction in variable rate borrowings.

Other price risks

The Group is exposed 1o equity price risk through its investment in listed equity securities.
The management manages this exposure by maintaining a portfolio of investments with different
risk and return profiles. The Group’s equity price risk is mainly concentrated on equity securities
operating in logistics, manufacturing and trading sectors quoted in The Stock Exchange of Hong
Kong Limited. In addition, the Group has monitor the price risk and will consider hedging the risk
exposure should the need arise.

Sensitivity analysis

The sensitivity analyses below have been determined based on the exposure {0
equity price risk at the reporting date.

If equity prices had been 5% higher/lower, the Group’s net profit for the year ended
31 December 2007 would increase/decrease by approximately HK$1,000 (2006:
increase/decrease by HK$1,000). This is mainly due to the changes in fair value of other
financial assets at fair value through profit or loss,

The Group's sensitivity to equity prices has not changed significantly from prior
year.
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(i])  Credit risk

As at 31 December 2007, the Group’s maximum exposure to credit risk which will cause a
financial loss to the Group due to failure to discharge an obligation by the counterparties and financial
guarantees provided by the Group is arising from:

. the carrying amount of the respective recognised financial assets as stated in the
consolidated balance sheet; and

. the amount of contingent liabilities in relation to the financial guarantees provided by the
Group as disclosed in note 41.

In order to minimise the credit risk, the management of the Group has delegated a team
responsible for determination of credit limits, credit approvals and other monitoring procedures to
ensure that follow-up acticn is taken to recover overdue debis. In addition, the Group reviews the
recoverable amount of each individual trade debt and debt investments at each balance sheet date to
ensure that adequate impairment losses are made for irrecoverable amounts. In this regard, the directors
of the Company consider that the Group's credit risk is significantly reduced.

The credit risk on liquid funds is limited because the counterparties are banks with high credit
ratings assigned by international credit-rating agencies,

Other than concentration of credit risk on liquid funds which are deposited with several banks
with high credit ratings, the Group does not have any other significant concentration of credit risk. Trade
receivables consist of a large number of customers, spread across diverse industries and geographical
areas.

(iii}  Liquidity risk management

Ultimate responsibility for liquidity risk management rests with the board of direciors, which has
built an appropriate liquidity risk management framework for the management of the Group's short,
medium and long-term funding and liquidity management requirements. The Group manages liquidity
risk by maintaining adequate reserves, banking facilities and reserve borrowing facilities, by
continuously monitoring forecast and actual cash flows and matching the maturity profiles of financial
assets and liabilities.

As at 31 December 2007, the Group has available unutilised overdrafts and short and medium
term bank loan facilities of approximately HK$20 million (2006: HK$19 million) and HK$129 million
(2006: HK$103 million) respectively.

The following tables detail the Group’s remaining contractual maturity for its financial liabilities
as well as derivative and certain non-derivative financial assets which are included in the maturity
analysis provided internally to the key management personnel for the purpose of managing liquidity
risk, For non-derivative financial assets, the tables have been drawn up based on the undiscounted
contractual maturities of the financial assets inclﬁding interest that will be earned on those assets except
where the Group anticipates that the cash flow will occur in a different period. For non-derivative
financial liabilities, the tables reflect the undiscounted cash flows of financial liabilities based on the
earliest date on which the Group can be required to pay. The tables include both interest and principal
cash flows,

For derivative instruments settle on a net basis, undiscounted net cash inflows/{(outflows) are
presented. Whereas they require gross settlement, the undiscounted gross inflows and (outflows) on
these derivatives are shown in the table.
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At 31 December 2007

Weighted
average
effective
interest
rate
%
Non-derivative
financial assets
Equity securities -
Debt securities -
Cash and cash
equivalents 0.44%
Others -
Non-derivative
financial
liabilities
Trade and other
payables -
Bills payables -
Amounts due to
related companies -
Obligations under
finance leases 4.00%
Borrowings 6.99%
Convertible loan
note 10.00%

Derivative - net
settlement

Foreign exchange
forward contracts

Total Total

Within 1 2t0 5 Over 5 undiscounted  carrying
year years years cash flows amount
HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000 HK$'000  HK$'000
17 30,000 - 30,017 30,017

- 527 - 527 527
363,949 - - 363,949 363,949
196,123 - - 196,123 196,123
560,089 30,527 - 590,616 590,616
(243.956) - - (243,956) (243,956)
(36,758) - - (36,758) (36,758)
(1,343) - - (1,343) {1,343)
(936) (168) - (1,104) (1,104)
(70,827) (13,506) - (84,333) (84,333)
(30,000} - - (30,000) (30,207}
(383,820) (13,674) - (397,494) (397,701}
176,269 16,853 - 193,122 192,915
7 - - 7 7
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(c)

the consolidated financial statements approximate their fair values.

At 31 December 2006

Nan-derivative
financial assets
Equity securities
Debt securities
Cash and cash
equivalents
Others

Non-derivative
financial
liabilities

Trade and other
payables

Bills payables

Amounts due to
related companies

Obligations under
finance leases

Borrowings

Convertible loan
note

Derivative — net
settlement

Foreign exchange
forward contracts

Fair value of financial instruments

Weighted
average
effective
interest
rate

%

0.85%

4.00%
7.05%

10.00%

Total Total

Within 1 2to 5 Over 5 undiscounted  carrying
year years years cash flows amount
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK3'000 HK$'000  HK$'000
1" - - 11 11

- 527 - 527 527
40,944 - - 40,944 401,944
153,391 - - 153,361 153,391
194,346 527 - 194,873 194,873
(163,567) - - (163.567) (163,567)
(45,984) - - (45,984) (45,984)
(6,914) - - (6,914) (6,914)
(1,387 (L,121) - (2,508) (2,508)
(122,671) (11,303) - (133,974)  (133,974)
- (30,000) - (30,000) (29,549)
(340.523) (42,424) - (382,947)  (382,496)
(146,177) (41,897) - (188,074) (187.623)
57 - - 57 57

The fair value of financial assets and financial liabilities are determined as follows:

(i) the fair value of financial assets and financial liabilities (including derivative instruments) with
standard terms and conditions and traded on active liquid markets are determined with reference
to quoted market bid prices and ask prices respectively; and

(i)  the fair value of other financial assets and financial liabilities (including derivative instruments)
are determined in accordance with generally accepted pricing models based on discounted cash
flow analysis using prices or rates from observable current market transactions as input. For an
option-based derivative, the fair value is estimated using option pricing model (for example, the
Black-Scholes option pricing model).

The directors consider that the carrying amounts of financial assets and financial liabilities recorded in
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47.

SHARE OPTIONS SCHEMES
1991 Scheme

The Company’s share option scheme was adopted on 22 June 1991 (“1991 Scheme™) for the primary
purpose of providing incentives to Directors and eligible employees and expired on 21 June 2001. The
Directors may, at their discretion, grant options to all eligible employees, including executive Directors of the
Company and its subsidiaries.

The total number of shares in respect of which options may be granted under the 1991 Scheme is not
permitied to exceed 10% of the issued share capital of the Company at any point in time. The number of shares
in respect of which options may be granted to any individual is not permitted to exceed 25% of the maximum
aggregate number of shares of the Company for the time being issued and issuable under the 1991 Scheme.

Options granted must be taken up within 28 days of the date of grant, upon payment of HKS$! per grant.
Options are exercisable within a period of 6 years commencing one month from the date of acceptance of
options.

The subscription price is determined by the Directors, and will not be less than the higher of a price
being not less than 80% of the average of the closing prices of the shares on the Stock Exchange on the five
trading days immediately preceding the date of grant, and the nominal value of a share of the Company.

As at 31 December 2007, all outstanding options under the 1991 Scheme had been expired.
2001 Scheme

Another share option scheme (“2001 Scheme™) was subsequently adopted pursuant to a resolution
passed on 28 June 2001 for the primary purpose of providing incentives to Directors and eligible employees,
and was terminated on 30 May 2002 pursuant to a resolution passed on that date.

Under the 2001 Scheme, the Directors may grant options to any full-time employees, including
executive and non-executive Directors of the Company and its subsidiaries, to subscribe for shares in the
Company.

The total number of shares in respect of which options may be granted under the 2001 Scheme is not
permitted to exceed 10% of the issued share capital of the Company at any point in time. The number of shares
in respect of which options may be granted to any individual is not permitted to exceed 25% of the maximum
aggregate number of shares of the Company for the time being issued and issuable under the 2001 Scheme.

Options granted must be taken up within 28 days of the date of grant, upon payment of HK$1 per grant.
Options are exercisable within a period of 6 years commencing one month from the date of acceptance of
options.

The subscription price is determined by the Directors, and will not be less than the higher of a price
being not less than 80% of the average of the closing prices of the shares on the Stock Exchange on the five
trading days immediately preceding the date of grant, and the nominal value of a share of the Company.

Upon termination of the 2001 Scheme, no further options will be granted but in all other respects, the
provisions of the 2001 Scheme shall remain in force and all granted prior to such termination shall continue

to be valid and exercisable in accordance therewith.

As at 3] December 2007, all outstanding options under the 2001 Scheme had been expired,

—76 -



APPENDIX I FINANCIAL INFORMATION ON THE GROUP

2002 Scheme

On 23 August 2001, the Stock Exchange has announced amendments to Chapter 17 of the Listing Rules,
which has come into effect on | September 2001. In compliance with the amendments to the Listing Rules and
the announcement of the Stock Exchange, the Company adopted a new share option scheme (*2002 Scheme™)
and terminated the 2001 Scheme on 30 May 2002 pursuant to a resolution passed on that date. The purpose
of the 2002 Scheme is to provide incentives or rewards to participants for their contribution to the Group and
enable the Group to recruit and retain high calibre employees and attract human resources that are valuable
to the Group and any companies in which the Group holds any equity interest. The 2002 Scheme will expire
on the 10th anniversary of date of adoption.

Under the 2002 Scheme, the Board of Directors of the Company may at their discretion grant options
to the following participants of the Company, its subsidiaries and any companies in which the Group holds any
equity interest, to subscribe for shares in the Company:

1. eligible employees, including Directors; or

2, suppliers or customers; or

3 any person or entity that provides research, development or other technological support; or

4. shareholders; or

5. employees, partners or Directors of any business partners, joint venture partners, financial

advisers and legal advisers.

Options granted to a Director, chief executive or substantial sharcholder of the Company, or any of their
respective associates must be approved by the Independent Non-executive Directors of the Company
(excluding any Independent Non-executive Director who is the grantee),

The total number of shares in respect of which options may be granted under the 2002 Scheme and any
other schemes is not permitted to exceed 30% of the issued share capital of the Company from time to time.
Subject to the above rule, the total number of shares in respect of which options may be granted under the 2002
Scheme and any other schemes must not in aggregate, exceed 10% of the issued share capital of the Company
at the adoption date of the 2002 Scheme without prior approval from the Company’s shareholders.

The number of shares in respect of which options may be granted to any participant in any one year is
not permitted to exceed 1% of the shares of the Company in issue at any point of time, without prior approval
from the Company’s shareholders. Options granted to a substantial shareholder, or an Independenmt
Non-executive Director of the Company, or any of their respective associates under the 2002 Scheme and any
other schemes in any one year in excess of 0.1% of the Company's issued share capital or with a valuee, based
on the closing price of the shares of the Company at the date of each grant, in excess of HK$5 million must
be approved in advance by the Company's shareholders.

Options granted must be taken up within 28 days of the date of grant upon payment of HK$1 per each
grant of options. The exercise period of the share options granted under the 2002 Scheme shall be determined
by the Board of Directors when such options are granted, provided that such period shall not end later than
6 years from the date of grant. The subscription price is determined by the Board of Directors of the Company,
and will not be less than the higher of the closing price of the Company’s shares on the date of grant, or the
average closing price of the shares for the five trading days immediately preceding the date of grant, or the
nominal value of a share of the Company.

For the year ended 31 December 2007, the number of Share Options granted and exercised were
10,760,000 and 2,433,042 respectively.

As at 31 December 2007, the number of shares in respect of which options had been granted and
remained outstanding under the 1991 Scheme, 2001 Scheme and 2002 Scheme were 0, 0 and 16,397,866 (2006:
670,163, 11,861,598 and 8,414,686 respectively), representing 0%, 0% and 6.4% (2006: 0.3%, 5.4% and 3.8%
respectively) of the issued share capital of the Company at that date respectively.
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The fair value of the options granted in the current year measured as at the date of grant on 11 June 2007,
9 August 2007 and 25 September 2007 were approximately HK$172,000, HK$322,000 and HK$1,659,000
respectively und it had been expensed as share-based payments during the year. Options were priced using the
Black-Scholes model. The following significant assumptions were used to derive the fair value using the

Black-Scholes option pricing model at the dates of grant:

Date of share options granted

Grant date share price (HK$)
Exercise price (HK$)
Expected volatility (%)
Option life (years)

Dividend yield (%)
Risk-free interest rate (%)

11 June
2007

0.80
1.00
83.12
0.58
0.00
4.088

9 August
2007

1.23
1.278
102.30
0.58
0.00
3920

25 September

2007

0.97
1.044
113.75
0.25
0.00
3791

Where relevant, the expected life used in the model has been adjusted, based on management’s best
estimate, for the effects of non-transferability, exercise restrictions (including the probability of meeting
market conditions attached 1o the option), and behavioural considerations. The expected volatility is based on

the historical share price volatility.

The following table discloses details of the Company’s share options held by employees (including
Directors} and movements in such heldings during the year:

Outstanding QOutstanding

at 1 January st N

2007 Option Option Option December

Scheme type Date of grant Afrer Adjustment” granted lapsed exercised 2007
1991 18 Janvary 2001 40,901 - {40,901y - -
1991 28 May 2001 629,262 - (629.262)* - -
2001 10 August 2001 11,169,415 - (11014415 (155.0000" -
2001 29 August 2001 534,868 - (456,211)* (78,657) -
2001 23 Neyvember 2001 157,315 - (5135 - -
2002 4 June 2002 5,789,206 - (237,235 (1,498,241) 4053730
2002 24 September 2002 2,625,480 - (2000 (201,144 2,424,136"
2002 11 June 2007 - 1,200,000 - (500,000) 700,000
2002 9 August 2007 - 680,000 - - 680,000
2002 25 September 2007 - §,380,000 (340,000} - 8,540,000
Grand Total: 20,946,447 10760000  (12,875,539)  (2.433,042) 16,397,866
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After adjustment for the share consolidation in June 2006.

Exercisable period

& March 2001 -

14 March 2007

29 June 2001 -

29 June 2007

14 September 2001 -
18 September 2007
30 September 2001 -
30 September 2007
23 December 2001 -
22 December 2007

4 June 2002 -

3 June 2008

24 September 2002 -
23 September 2008
1 June 2007 -

10 June 2013

9 Angust 2007 -

8 August 2013

25 September 2007 -
24 September 2013

Exercise
price
HKS
1.6610"
1.6610*
1.6610*
1.6610°
1.6610*
1.0000"
1.0000°
1.0000

1.278¢

1.0440
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Scheme type

1991
1991
1991
1991
1991
2001
2001
2001
2002

2002

Grand Total:

Scheme type

1991
2001
2001
2002
2002
2002

2002

Grand Total:

Date of grant

21 December 1999
11 February 2000
8 September 2000
18 January 2001
28 May 2001

10 August 2001

29 August 2001

23 November 2001
4 June 2002

24 September 2002

Details of the share options held by the Directors included in the above table are as follows:

Ouitstanding Outstanding at
at 1 January 31 December
2006 2006

Before Option After
Adjustment lapsed Adjustment *
22,890,928 22,890,928 -
11,531,229 11,531,229 -
4,719,470 471,947 -~
409,019 - 40,901
6,292,629 - 629,262
111,694,164 - 11,169,415
5,348,712 - 534,868
1,573,156 - 157.315
57,892,158 - 5,789,206
26,254,800 - 2,625,480
248,606,265 34,894,104 20,946,447

After adjustment for the share consolidation in June 2006.

Exercisable period

1 February 2000 -

21 March 2006

18 March 2000 -

21 March 2006

5 November 2000 -
4 November 2006

6 March 2001 -

14 March 2007

29 June 2001 -

29 june 2007

14 September 2001 -
18 September 2007
30 September 2001 —
30 September 2007
23 December 2001 -
22 December 2007

4 June 2002 -

3 June 2008

24 September 2002 -
23 September 2008

Outstanding Option Outstanding

at 1 January lapsed at 31

2007 Option After Option  December
Date of grant After Adjustment” granted Adjustmen’”  exercised 2007 Exercisable period
28 May 2001 629,262 - 629,262 - - 29 June 2001 -
29 June 2007
10 August 2001 11,012,100 - 1012100 - - 14 September 2001 -
18 September 2007
29 August 2001 157.314(a) - 78,657 78.657(a)" - 30 September 2001 -
29 September 2007
4 June 2002 755,113 - - 220,241° 534,872° 4 June 20002 -
3 June 2008
24 September 2002 2,425,280 - - 1,144*  2,424,136" 24 September 2002 -
23 September 2008
11 June 2007 - 850,000 - 350,000 500,000 11 June 2007 -
10 June 2013
25 September 2007 - 4.470.000(a) - - 4470.000(a) 25 September 2007 -
24 September 2013

14.979,069 5,320,000 11,720,019 650,042 7,929,008

After adjustment for the share consolidation tn June 2006,

Exercise
price
HKS
0.2325
0.5422
2.3470*
1.6610*
1.6610*
1.6610%
1.6610%
1.6610%

1.0000*

1.0000"

Exercise

price

HKS
1.6610"
1.6610%
1.6610%
1.0000*
1.0000*

1.0600

1.0440

(a) Share Options grunted to Mr. Richard Man Fai LEE's spouse were included. Mr. Richard Man Fai LEE is a Director of the

Company.
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Scheme type  Date of grant

1991 21 December 1999

1991 11 February 2000
1991 18 January 2001
1991 28 May 2001

2001 10 August 2001
2001 29 August 2001
2002 4 June 2002

2002 24 September 2002
Grand Total:

Outstanding
at 1 Outstanding at
January 31 December
2006 2006
Before Option After Exercise
Adjusiment lapsed Adjustment * Exercisable period price
HKS
21,237.613{a) 21,237,613 - 6 February 2000 - 0.2325
10 February 2006
11,012,093 11,012,093 - I8 March 2000 - 0.5422
21 March 2006
409,019 - 40,901 6 March 2001 - 1.6610%
5 March 2007
6,292,629 - 629.262 29 June 2001 - 1.6610*
29 June 2007
111,694,164 - 11,169,415 14 September 2001 - 1.6610"
18 September 2007
1,573,150(a) - 157,314 30 September 2001 - L.6610"
29 September 2007
13,843,779 - 1,384,375 4 June 2002 - 1.0000"
3 June 2008
26,254,800 - 2,625,480 24 September 2002 - 1.0000*
23 September 2008
192,317,247 32,249,706 16,006,747

Afiler adjustment for the share consolidation in June 2006.

(a) Share Options granted to Mr. Richard Man Fai LEB's speuse were included, Mr. Richard Man Fai LEE is a Director of the

Company.

In 2007, approximately HK$2,433,000 was received during the year from employees (including
Directors) for taking up the options granted (2006: nil).

48. DIVIDEND

No dividend was paid or proposed for 2006 and 2007, nor has any dividend been proposed since the balance

sheet date.
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49. PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES

Particulars of the Company’s principal subsidiaries are as follows:

Name of subsidiaries
Direct Subsidiary
Wo Kee Hong (B.V.L)

Limited

Indirect Subsidiaries
Auto Italia Limited

Auto Sportiva Limited

Corich Enterprises Inc.

Dalian Auto halia Car
Trading Co., Lid

Italian Motors {Sales &
Service) Limited

Keyforce Holdings
Limited

King Express Group
Limited

Home Crown Enterprises
Ltd.

Metro Global Limited

Mighty Will International
Limited

Most Advance
International Ltd.

Place of
incorporation/
registration

British Virgin
Islands

Hong Kong

Horng Kong

British Virgin

Islands

PRC

Hong Kong

Hong Kong

Hong Kong

British Virgin

Islands

Hong Kong

Hong Kong

British Virgin
Islands

Percentage of
equity interest
attributable to

the Group

100.0

70.5

90.0

100.0

70.5

70.5

90.0

70.5

100.0

100.0

100.0

100.0

—81 -

Issued and fully
paid share capital
or registered
capital

30,000 shares of
US$0.01 each

10,000 shares of
HK$10 each

20,000,000 shares
of HK$1 each

100 shares of
US$1 each

Registered and
fully paid capital
of RMBS$,000,000

60,000 shares of
HK$10 each

1 share of HK$1
each

1 share of HK$1
each

| share of US$1
each

2 non-voting
deferred shares of
HKS$1 each and
1,000 ordinary
shares of HK$1
each

|1 share of HK$1
each

1 share of US$I
each

Principal activities

Investment holding

Trading of cars and
related accessories
and provision of car
repairing services

Car distribution and
services

Investment holding

Trading of cars and
general trading

Investment holding

Trading of yachts and

accessorics

Helicopters distribution
and services

Investment holding

Investment holding

Property holding

investment holding
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Name of subsidiaries

National Cape
Development Limited

Noble Brand Invesiments
Limited

Rogers Entertainment
International Limited

Rogers International
Limited

Technorient Limited

Top Up Group Limited

Trendy Move
International Limited

Turbo Fast Limited

Wo Kee Hong
Distribution Pte Lid

Wo Kee Hong Electronics

Sdn Bhd

Wo Kee Hong Finance
Limited

Wo Kee Hong Limited

Place of
incorporation/
registration

British Virgin
Islands

Hong Kong

Heng Kong

Bahamas

Hong Kong

Hong Kong

British Virgin
Islands

Hong Kong

Singapore

Malaysia

Hong Kong

Hong Kong

Percentage of
equity interest
attributable to

the Group
100.0
90.0

100.0

100.0

70.5

100.0

100.0

100.0

100.0

100.0

100.0

100.0
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Issued and fully
paid share capital
or registered
capital

1 share of USS$1
each

1 share of HKS1
each

45,000 non-voting
deferred shares of
HK$100 each and
2 ordinary shares

of HK$100 each

2 shares of US§1
each

461,687 shares of
HK$100 each

1 share of HK$1
each

1 share of US$I
each

| share of
HKS$1.00 each

4,500,000 ordinary
shares of $$1 each

1,000,000 ordinary
shares of RM$1
each

2 shares of HK$1
each

10,000 non-voting
deferred shares of
HK$1,000 each
and 2 ordinary
shares of
HK$1,000 each

Principal activities

Investment holding

Trading of yachts and
accessorics

Entertainment services,
and music and
software production

Trading brand holding

Investment holding

Trading, distribution
and retail of fashion
apparel

Investment holding

Trading, distribution
and retail of fashion
apparel

Distribution of home
audio and car audio
equipment and
accessories

Distribution of audio-
visual equipment

Finance and money
lending

Investment holding and
distribution of audio-
visual equipment, car
audio and electronic
products, air-
conditioning and
refrigeration
products, electrical
appliances and
electronic appliances
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Name of subsidiaries

Wo Kee Hong Marketing
Pte Lid (Formerly
known as Wo Kee
Hong Professional Air
Conditioning Pte Ltd)

Wo Kee Hong Trading
Sdn Bhd

Wo Kee Joyful Limited

Wo Kee Services Limited

Place of
incorporation/
registration

Singapore

Malaysia

Hong Kong

Hong Kong

Perceniage of
equity interest
attributable to

the Group

94.8

100.0

100.0

100.0

Issued and fully
paid share capital
or registered
capital

6,200,000 shares
of 831 each

5,100,000 ordinary
shares of RM$1
each

2,000,000 shares
of HK$!1 each

2 non-voting
deferred shares of
HK$100 each and

19,998 ordinary
shares of HK$100
each

None of the subsidiaries had issued any debt securities at the end of the year.

Principal activities

Distribution of air-
conditioning products

Distribution of audio-
visual equipment

Company secretarial
service

Provision of
warehousing,
delivery, repairs and
maintenance services

The above table lists the subsidiaries of the Company which, in the opinion of the Directors, principally affect
the results or assets of the Group. To give details of other subsidiaries would, in the opinton of the Directors, result

in particulars of excessive length.

50. PRINCIPAL ASSOCIATES

Particulars of the Group's principal associates are as follows:

Name of associates

China Premium Lifestyle
Enterprise, inc.

CPMM (Asia) Limited

Place of

incorporation/
_registration

USA

Hong Kong

Percentage of
equity interest
attributable to

the Group

398

308
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Issued and fully
paid share capital
or registered
capital

24,534,491 shares
of common stock
of US$0.005 each
and 495,791 shares
of preferred stock
of US$0.001 each

300,000 ordinary
shares of HK§!
each

Principal activities

Investment holding

Trading and
distribution of
luxury products
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3. UNAUDITED CONDENSED CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMNTS OF
THE GROUP FOR THE SIX MONTHS ENDED 30 JUNE 2008

The following is the unaudited condensed consolidated financial statements of the Group
for the six months ended 30 June 2008 together with the accompanying notes, extracted from
the interim report of the Company for the six months ended 30 June 2008.

CONDENSED CONSOLIDATED INCOME STATEMENT

For the six months ended 30 June

2008 2007
Notes HK$ 000 HKE'000
(Unaudited)  (Unaudited)

Turnover 3 540,921 457,546
Cost of sales (437,954) (372,325)
Gross profit 102,967 85,221

Other operating income 2,807 1,447

Distribution costs (41,335 (30,990)
Administrative expenses (72,517) (66,232)
Fair value gains on investment properties - 508

Loss from operations 4 (8,078) (10,046)
Finance costs 3 (3,812) (7,690)
Provision for guarantee (950) -
Share of results of associates - {609)
Loss before tax (12,840) (18,345
Income tax expenses 6 473) (18%)
Loss for the period (13,313) (18,530)

Attributable to:

Equity holders of the Company (17,825) (20,565)
Minority interests 4,512 2,035
(13,313) (18,530)

L.osses per share for losses attributable to the

equity holders of the Company
— Basic and diluted (restated) 7 (5.82) cents (7.54) cents

Dividends 8 NIL NIL
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CONDENSED CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET

June 30, December 31,

2008 2007

Notes HK$'000 HK$ 000
(Unaudited) {Audited)

Non-current assets

Investment properties 9 17,641 9,600
Property, plant and equipment 10 47,453 44,541
Prepaid lease payments 1,565 1,558
Goodwill 27,087 2,787
Interests in associates 114 -
Available-for-sale financial assets 30,527 30,527
Deferred tax assets 18 16

124,405 89,029

Current assets

Inventories H 248,206 124,993
Properties held for sale, at net realisable value 23,400 23,400
Trade and other receivables 12 221,596 185,075
Amounts due from associates 34,974 14,260

Other financial assets at fair value through
profit or loss 17 17
Cash and cash equivalents 248,850 363,949
777,043 711,694

Current liabilities

Trade and other payables 13 359,670 243,956
Bills payables 32,903 36,758
Tax payables 1,363 162
Amounts due to related companies 974 1,343
Convertible loan note 30,538 30,207
Obligations under finance leases '
- due within one year 74 936
Borrowings — due within one year 14 69,799 70,827
495,321 384,189
Net current assets 281,722 327.505
Total assets less current liabilities 406,127 416,534
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Non-current liabilities
Obligations under finance leases
— due after one year
Borrowings — due after one year
Deferred tax liabilities

Net assets

Capital and reserves
Share capital
Reserves

Equity attributable to equity holders of the
Company
Minority interests

Total equity

— 86 -

June 30, December 31,

2008 2007

Notes HK$'000 HK3'000
(Unaudited) {(Audited)

141 168

14 22,285 13,506
6 6

22,432 13,680

383,695 402,854

15 30,638 255,314
334,476 125,064

365,114 380,378

18,581 22,476

383,695 402,854
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CONDENSED CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOW STATEMENT

2008 2007
HK$000 HK$ 000
(Unaudited) (Unaudited)
Net cash used in operating activities (91,643) (17,062)
Net cash used in investing activities (24,155) (6,209)
Net cash used in financing activities (2,466) (5,755)
Net decrease in cash and cash equivalents (118,264) (29,026)
Cash and cash equivalents at January | 363,366 22,023
Effect of foreign currency exchange rate changes 2,601 448
Cash and cash equivalents at June 30 247,703 (6,555
Analysis of the balances of cash and
cash equivalents
Being:
Cash and cash equivalents 248,850 17,870
Bank overdrafts (1,147) (24,603)
Cash and cash equivalents included in non-current
assets held for sale - 178
247,703 (6,555)
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CONDENSED CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

Al January 1, 2008

Arising from czpital reduction
Elimination of accumulated losses

upon capital reorganisation

Issue of bonus shares

Exchange difference arising on
translation of financial staiements
of overseas eperations not

recopnised in the income

statement

Increase in minerity interest

resulting from acquisition

of a subsidiary

{Loss)iprofit for the period

At June 30, 2008

At January 1, 2007

{Unatdited)
Attributable to equity holders of the Company

Issuc of ordinary shares upon exercise

of share options

Exchange difference amising en

translation of financial statements

of overseas operations not

recognised in the income statement -

Share-based payment expenses
(Loss)profit for the period

At Juae 30, 2007

Equity
component {Accumulated
Capital  Share of lnsses)f
Share  Share redemption  options Exchange convertible Contributed  Other retained  Minority
capital  premium reserve  reserve  reserve  loan nole  surplus  reserves profit  interests Total
HKS'000 HES'000  HESOO0 HKS'000 HES'O0D  HESD00  HKS000 HKS'000  HEKS'000 HKS000 HKS'000
255,314 4960 916 2017 @I 185 - 151.23% (30080} 22476 402854
(229,782) - - - - - mm - - - -
- - - - - - 09,780 - 229,782 - -
5,106 - - - - - - - (5,106) - -
- - - - 2,561 - - - - 281 2848
- - - - - - - - - (869 (3694
- - - - - - - - (17825) 4512 (13313)
30,638 4,960 916 207 (1609 185 - 151,236 176,71 18,581 383,603
(Unaudited)
Attributable to equity holders of the Company

Equity

component

Capital  Share of

Share  Share redemption  options Exchange convertible  Other Accumulated Minority

capital premiom  reserve  reserve  reserve loan mote  reserves Losses  interests Total
HEKS'000 HKS'000 HKS000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HK$'000 HKS'000
221,615 - 916 - {4,155) 185 151,236 (65821 15003 31897
100 - - - - - - - - 100
- - - 146 - - - 302 448
- - - 172 - - - - - 172
- - - - - - - (2565) 2035 (18,530)
221,715 - 916 172 {4,009} 185 151,236 (86,386} 17,340 300169
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Notes.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
Basis of preparation

The unaudited condensed consclidated financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the
Hong Kong Accounting Standard (“HKAS") 34 “Interim Financial Reporting”, other relevant Hong Kong
Accourting  Standards (“HKASs"), Interpretations and the Hong Kong Financial Report Standards
(“HKFRSs") issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants (the “HKICPA™) and the
disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance and the applicable disclosure requirements
of the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited.

The unaudited condensed conselidated financial statements have been prepared under the historical cost
basis, except for certain financial instruments that are measured at fair values.

The unaudited condensed consolidated financial statements should be read in conjunction with the
Group's annual financial statements for the year ended December 31, 2007.

The accounting policies used in the preparation of these unaudited condensed censolidated financial
statements are consistent with those used in the preparation of the Group’s annual consolidated financial
statements for the year ended December 31, 2007, except for the accounting policy disclosed herein.

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HKFRSS

The HKICPA has issued a number of new standards, amendments and interpretations, which are effective for

accounting periods beginning on oc after January 1, 2008. The Group adopted the following new/revised HKFRSs

which

are relevant to its operations:

HK(IFRIC) - Int 11 HKFRS 2: Group and Treasury Share Transactions
HK{IFRIC) - Im 12 Service Concession Arrangements

HK({IFRIC) - Int 14 HKAS 19 — The Limit on a Defined Benefit Asset, Minimum

Funding Requirement and their Interaction

The directors of the Company assessed the impacts of the adoption of these new interpretation and concluded

that the adoption of these new interpretation had no material impact on the results or the financial position of the

Group

for the current or prior accounting period. Accordingly, no prior period adjustment has been recognised.

The Group has not sarly applied the following new and revised HKASs and HKFRSs or interpretations that

have been issued but are not yet effective in the unaudited condensed consolidated financial statements for the six

month

s ended June 30, 2008:

HKAS | (Revised) Presentation of Financial Statements'

HKAS 23 (Revised) Borrowing Costs'

HEKAS 27 (Revised) Consolidated and Separate Financial Statements®

HKAS 32 & | (Amendments) Puttable Financial Instruments and Obligations Arising on
Liquidation'

HKFRS 2 {(Amendment) Vesting Conditions and Cancellations’

HKFRS 3 (Revised) Business Combinations?
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HKFRS 8 Operating Segments'

HK(IFRIC) - Int 13 Customer Loyally Programmes®

Effective for annual periods beginning on or after January 1, 2009
: Effective for annual pericds beginning on or after July 1, 2009
3 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after July 1, 2008
BUSINESS AND GEOGRAPHICAL SEGMENTS
Business segments

The principal activitics of the Group are cars and car accessories, electrical appliances and property
investment. These divisions are the basis on which the Group reports its primary segment information.

Segment information about these businesses is presented below,

Six months ended June 30, 2008

Cars and
car Electrical Property
accessories appliances  investment Others Eliminations Consolidated

HK3 000 HK3'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HKE'000
(Unaudited)  (Unaudited) (Unaudited) (Unaudited) (Unaudited) (Unaudited)

Turnover
External sales 428,437 103,512 515 8,457 - 540,921
Inter-segment

sales - - - - - -
Total turnover 428,437 103,512 515 8,457 - 540,921
Results
Segment results 13,915 2,073 151 (12,311) - 3,828
Unallocated

corporate

expenses (11,506)
Loss from

operations (8,078)
Finance costs (3,812)
Provision for

guarantee (950)
Loss before tax (12,840)
Income tax

expenses (473)

Loss for the
period (13,313)
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Six months ended June 30, 2007

Turnover

External sales

Inter-segment
sales

Total turnover

Results
Segment results

Unallocated
corporate
expenses

Loss from
operations
Finance costs
Share of result

of an
associate

Loss before tax
Income tax
expenses

Loss for the
period

Cars and
car
accessories
HK3 000
(Unaudited)

338,573

Electrical
appliances
HK3'000
(Unaudited)

98,910

Property
investment
HK$'000
{(Unaudited)

7,463

Others
HK3 000
{Unaudited)

12,600

Eliminations
HK$'000
{Unaudited)

Consolidated
HK$'000
(Unaudited)

457,546

338,573

98,910

7.463

12,600

457,546

2,123

27

3,384

(5,286)

(609}

—91 -

248

(10,294)

(10,046)
(7,690)

(609)

(18,345)

{185)
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Geographical segments

The Group’s operations are mainly located in Hong Kong, Singapore, Malaysta, PRC and Macau. The
following table provides an analysis of the Group’s turnover by geographical market, irrespective of the origin

of the goods/services:

Turnover by
geographical market
Six months ended June 30
2008 2007
HK$'000 HK$'000
{Unaudited)} (Unaudited)

Contribution to
operating results
Six months ended June 30

2008
HK$'000
{Unaudited)

2007
HK$'000
(Unaudited)

Hong Kong 428,242 388,127 885 (294)
Singapore 39,473 32,564 1,972 777
Malaysia 17,669 14,896 2,042 859
PRC 51,345 15,369 (3.776) (2,587
Macau 4,192 5,862 {102} 17
Others - 728 - 29
540,921 457,546 1,021 (1,199)
Other operating income 2,807 1,447
Unallocated corporate
expenses (11,906) (10,294)
Loss from operations (8,078) (10,046}

4. LOSS FROM OPERATIONS

Loss from operations has been arrived at after charging:

Cost of inventories recognised as expenses {included in cost of sales)
Amortisation of prepaid lease payments
Depreciation of:
— owned assets
- assets held under finance leases
Staff costs, including directors’ emoluments
Loss on disposal of property, plant and equipment
Share-based payment expenses

and crediting:

Interest inceme
Gain on disposal of property, plant and equipment
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Six months ended June 30

2008
HK$'000
{Unaudited)

437,954
17

4.908
376
55,500

4,815
985

2007
HK$'000
(Unaudited)

372,325

4,742
441
41,800

172

544
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5. FINANCE COSTS

Six months ended June 30
2008 2007
HK$'000 HK3'000
(Unaudited) (Unaudited)

Interest expenses on:
Bank loans, trust receipts loans and overdrafts wholly repayable within

five years 1,883 5,953
Bank loans wholly repayable after five years 339 114
Other loans wholly repayable within five years 1,473 1416

3,695 7.483
Finance lease charges 6 49
Bank charges 111 158
3,812 7.690

6. INCOME TAX EXPENSES

No provision for Hong Kong Profits Tax has been provided during the period &s the Group did not have
assessable profits during the peried (2007: 17.5%).

Overseas taxation is calculated at the rates prevailing in the respective jurisdictions.

Six months ended June 30
2008 2007
HK$'000 HK$'000
(Unaudited) (Unaudited)

Current tax:

Hong Kong - 366
Overseas 475 13
475 379

Deferred tax:
Hong Kong - (194)
Overseas (2} -
Income tax expenses attributable to the Company and its subsidiaries 473 185

7. LOSSES PER SHARE

The calculation of the basic losses per share is based on the loss for the period attributable to equity holders
of the Company of approximately HK$17,825,000 (2007: HK$20,565,000) and on the weighted average number of
ordinary shares in issue during the period of 306,377,710 (2007: 272,680,594 (restated)) after adjusting for the effects
of bonus shares issue approved on April 30, 2008. The basic losses per share for 2007 had been adjusted accordingly
(note 15).

Diluted losses per share for the periods ended June 30, 2008 and 2007 were the same as the basic losses per
share. The Company’s outstanding share options and convertible loan note were not included in the calculation of
diluted losses per share because the effects of the Company’s outstanding share options and convertible loan note
were anti-dilutive,
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8. DIVIDENDS

The directors do not recommend the payment of any interim dividend for the six months ended June 30, 2008
(six months ended June 30, 2007: Nil}.

9. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES

June 30, December 31,

2008 2007

HK$'000 HK$'000

(Unaudited) (Audited)

At the beginning of the period/year 9,600 234,918
Disposal of subsidiaries - (227,340)
Increase in fair value recognised in the income statement - 2,022
Acquisition of a subsidiary 8,041 -
At the end of the period/year 17,641 9,600

The investment properties of the Group were revalued at June 30, 2008 by Raffles Appraisals Limited,
independent qualified professional valuers, on an open market and existing use basis.

The Group had pledged invesiment properties with a carrying amount of approximately HK$15,141,000 (2007:
HK$7,100,000) to secure facilities granted to the Group (note 21).

10. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

June 30, December 31,

2008 2007
HK$'000 HK3$'000
(Unaudited) (Audited)
At the beginning of the pericd/year 44,541 100,479
Exchange difference 555 210
Additions 4,472 31,191
Acquisition of subsidiaries 4,833 -
Disposals (1,609) (£,339)
Disposal of subsidiaries (55) (75,046}
Depreciation charges (5,284) (10,754)
At the end of the period/year 47,453 44,541

At June 30, 2008, the Group had pledged motor yacht with a carrying amount of approximately
HK$16,313,000 (2007: nil) to secure facilities granted to the Group (note 21).

11. INVENTORIES

June 30, December 31,

2008 2007

HK$'000 HK$ 000

(Unaudited) (Audited)

Finished goods 226,380 109,361
Spare parts 21,826 15,632
248,206 124,993

Included in the above figure are finished goods of approximately HK$9,218,000 (2007: HK$19,601,000)
which has been pledged as security for bank loans (note 21).
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12. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES

The Group generally allows an average credit period of 7 to 90 days to its trade customers. The aged analysis
of the Group’s trade receivables at the balance sheet date is as follows:

June 30, December 31,

2008 2007

HK$ 000 HK$'000

(Unaudited) (Audited)

Within 30 days 47,784 82.794
31 1o 60 days 14,581 18,699
61 to 90 days 3,264 6.048
91 days to | year 24,533 16,396
Over 1 year 3,416 1.349
Total trade receivables, net of allowance for doubtful debts 93,578 125,286
Deposits, prepayments and other receivables 128,018 59,789
221,596 185,075

The fair values of the Group's trade and other receivables at June 30, 2008 approximate to the corresponding
carrying amounts.

There is no concentration of credit risk with respect to trade receivables, as the Group has a large number of
customers, internationally dispersed.

13. TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES

The aged analysis of the Group's trade payables at the balance sheet date is as follows:

June 30, December 31,

2008 2007

HK$°000 HK$'600

{Unaudited) (Audited)

Within 30 days 26,314 7.995
31 o 60 days 7.265 3,111
61 to 90 days 6,296 8,953
91 days to 1 year 8,952 1,410
Over | year 654 2,314
Total trade payabies 49,481 23,783
Customers’ deposits, accruals and other payables 310,189 220,173
359,670 243,956

The fair values of the Group's trade and other payables at June 30, 2008 approximate to the corresponding
carrying amounts.
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14.

15.

BORROWINGS

Bank overdrafis
Bank loans

Secured (note 21)
Unsecured

The maturities of the above loans are as follows:
Within one year
More than one year, but not
exceeding two years
More than two years, but not
exceeding five years
More than five years

Less: Amounts due within one year shown under current liabilities

Amounts due after one year

June 30, December 31,
2008 2007
HK3 000 HK$'000
(Unaudited) (Audited)
1,147 583
90,937 83,750
92,084 84,333
81,376 75,309
10,708 9,024
92,084 84,333
69,799 70,827
3,734 2,760
11,644 4,305
6,907 6,441
92,084 84,333
(69,799) (70,827
22,285 13,506

The fair values of the Group’s borrowings at June 30, 2008 approximate to the corresponding carrying
amounts,

SHARE CAPITAL

Authorised:

Ordinary shares of HK$1.00 each (2007: HK$1.00 each)
at January |, 2008
Effect of capital reorganization (note )

At June 30. 2008 of HK$0.10 each

Issued and fully paid:

Ordinary shares of HK$1.00 each (2007; HK3$1.00 each)
At January 1, 2008

Effect of share reduction {note i)

Effect of bonus share issue (note fii)

At June 30, 2008 of HK30.10 each
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Number of

shares  Share capital

HK3 000

350.000,000 350,000
3,150,000,000 -
3.500,000,000 350,000
255,314,759 255,314
- (229,782)

51,062,951 5.106
306,377,710 30,638
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16.

Notes:

iii.

Pursuant to a resolution passed by the shareholders of the Company at the special general meeting held
on April 30, 2008, the capital reorganization was effective on the same day. Accordingly. the authorized
capital of the Company has become HK$350,000.000 divided into 3,500.000,000 shares of HK$0.10
each.

Pursuant to a resolution passed by the shareholders of the Company at the special general meeting held
on April 30, 2008, the nominal value of each share in issue reduced from HK$1.00 to HK$0.10 by
canceling paid up capital to the extent of HK$0.90 for each issued share.

Pursuvant to a resolution passed by the shareholders of the Company at the special general meeting held
on April 30, 2008, 51,062,951 bonus shares of HK$0.10 each were issued for every five adjusted shares
of HK$0.10 each held by the shareholders whose names appeared on the register of members of the
Company on April 30, 2008. The amount of HK$5,106,295.10 was capitalised from the Company's
contributed surplus account.

ACQUISITION OF SUBSIDIARIES

On January 18, 2008, the Group acquired 100% of the issued share capital of Sunny Villa International Limited
at a consideration of HK$2,500,000. The amount of goodwill arising as a result of the acquisition was approximately
HK$145,000.

The net assets acquired in the transaction and the goodwill arising were as follows:

Acquiree’s
carrying
amount before Fair value Total fair
combination adjustment value
HK$'000 HKS$ 000 HK$'000
(Unaudited) (Unaudited) {Unaudited)
Net assets acquired:
Investment properties 8,041 - 8,041
Other receivables 2 - 2
Cash and cash equivalents 29 - 29
Trade and other payables (1,839} - (1,839)
Secured bank loan (3.660}) - (3.660)
2,573 - 2,573
Goodwill 145
Transaction costs {218)
Total consideration 2,500
Satisfied by:
Cash 2,500
Net cash outilow from acquisition:
Cash consideration (2,500)
Cash and cash equivalents acquired 29

(2,471)
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17.

On May 30, 2008, the Group acquired 60% of the issued share capital of Creative Pacific Limited at a
consideration of HK$19,500.000. The balance of the consideration of HK$9,750,000 is subject to adjusiments to be
made and shall be paid in two installments. The adjustments were not included at the date of acquisition as the amount
was not probable and could not be measured reliably. The amount of goodwill arising as a result of the acquisition
was approximately HK$24,148,000.

The net liabilities acquired in the transaction and the goodwill arising were as follows:

Net liabilities acquired:
Property, plant and equipment
Goodwill
Inventories
Trade and other receivables
Cash and cash equivalents
Trade and other payables
Tax payable

Goodwili
Transaction costs

Total consideration

Satisfied by:
Cash

Net cash outflow from acquisition:

Cash consideration

Cash and cash equivalents acquired

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

Acquiree’s
carrying
amount before Fair value Total fair
combination adjustment value
HK3 000 HK$'000 HK3 000
(Unaudited) (Unaudited) (Unaudited)
2,900 - 2,900
4 - 4
16,139 - 16,139
6,175 - 6,175
1.289 - 1,289
(39,546) - (39.546)
(3) - (3)
{13,042) - (13,042)
24,148
(1.356)
9,750

9,750

(9.750)
1.289

(8.461)

(a) The Company had provided corporate guarantees to certain banks for banking and other facilities make
available to subsidiaries in amount of approximately HK$327,890,000 (December 31, 2007:

HK$279,862.000).

(b) The Company had provided other guarantees issued for subsidiaries in the amount of approximately
HKS$14,321.000 (December 31, 2007: HK$24,559,000).
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(3]

{d)

Under a share purchase and subscription agreement signed on June 30, 2006, a subsidiary of the
Company provide a guarantee amounting to a maximum of RMB11 million (approximately HK$!11.8
million) in settlement of certain liabilities of the disposed entity incurred prior to disposal. During the
period ended June 30, 2008, approximately HK$8,450,000 were paid under the guarantee and
HK$950,000 (December 31, 2007: HK$7.500,000) has been recognised in the consolidated financial
statements of the Group. At June 30, 2008, the outstanding balance of the guarantee was approximately

HK$5.100,000 (December 31, 2007: HK$3,500,000).

Under a share acquisition agreement signed on May 16, 2008, a subsidiary of the Company agrees o
acquire 60% of the issued share capital in Creative Pacific Limited at a consideration of
HK$19,500,000. The balance of the consideration of HK$9,750,000 is subject to adjustments to be made
and shall be paid in two installments. For details, please refer to the Company’s circular dated June 6.
2008.

18. COMMITMENTS

(a)

(b)

Capital commitments

June 30, December 31,

2008 2007

HK$'000 HK$'000

(Unaudited) (Audited)

Authorised but not contracted for - 579
Contracted but not provided for 24,400 46
24,400 625

Operating lease commitments

At June 30, 2008 the Group leases various retail shops, offices and warehouses and had commitments

under non-cancellable operating leases, which fall due as follows:

June 30, December 31,

2008 2007

HK$'000 HK$ 000

(Unaudited) (Audited)

Within one year 39,061 22,947
In the second to fifth year inclusive 26,168 25,096
65,229 48,043

The above lease commitments only include commitments for basic rentals, and do not include

commitments for additional rental payment (contingent rents), if any, which are to be determined generally by
applying pre-determined percentages to future sales less of the respective leases, as it is not possible to
determine in advance the amount of such additional rentals.
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19.

20.

DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

At June 30, 2008, the Group had entered into forward contracts denominated in Hong Kong Dollar (*“HKD™),

National amount

Sell SGD 500,000
Sell SGD 221,349
Sell SGD 493,667
Sell SGD 21,957
Sell SGD 587

Sell HKD 9,928,139
Sell HKD 9,209,015
Sell HKD 4,126,375

Maturity

July 31, 2008

July 31, 2008
August 15, 2008
August 15, 2008
Auvgust 15, 2008
December 30, 2008
December 30, 2008
November 14, 2008

MATERIAL RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

Exchange rates

SGD 0.01332 10 JPY1
SGD 0.01378 to JPY1
SGD 1.3658 10 USDI
SGD 1.3658 to USDI
SGD 1.3658 10 USDI
HKD 12.25 10 EURI

HKD 12.439 10 EURI
HKD 12.15 to EURI

Japan Yen (“JPY™), Euro dollar (“EUR™), United States Dollar (“USD") and Singapore Dollar (“SGD”). The major
terms of the foreign currency forward contracts are as follows:

(a}  During the period, the Group entered into the following significant related party transactions:

Management and agency fee paid to a related company which

received on behalf of a building management fund
Sales of goods to related companies
Purchase of goods from a director

Acquisition of share capital and shareholder’s loan of a company

owned by a common shareholder
Service income charged 1o an associate

(b) Compensation of key management personnel

Six months ended June 30

2008
HKS$ 000

2007
HK$'000

(Unaudited) (Unaudited)

4,300
109

2.097
4,600
1,350

The remuneration of directors and other member of key management during the periods are as follows:

Short term employee benefits

Mandatory provident fund contributions

- 100 -

Six months ended June 30

2008
HK3 000

2007
HK$'000

(Unaudited) (Unaudited)

4,677 4,506
19 23
4,696 4,529
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21.

22.

23.

{¢)  Amounts due from/(to) related parties:

Amount due from associates
Amounts due to related companies classified as current liabilities

PLEDGE OF ASSETS

Inventories

Investment properties
Properties held for sale
Deposits in bank

Property, plant and equipment
All assets of a subsidiary

June 30, December 31,
2008 2007
HK$'000 HK$'000
{(Unaudited) (Audited}
34974 14,260
(974) (1.343)
June 30, December 31,
2008 2007
HK3$'000 HK$'000
{Unaudited) {Audited)
9,218 19.601
15,141 7.100
23,400 23.400
92,252 86,796
16.313 -
20,887 19,602

The amocunts represent assets pledged to banks and other licensed financial institution to secure banking
facilities granted to the Group. The pledged assets will be released upen the settlement of relevant bank borrowings.

EVENTS AFTER BALANCE SHEET DATE

(a) On September 2. 2008. a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company, Smart Apex Holdings Limited
(“*Smart Apex™), entered into the Sale and Purchase Agreement with the vendors which Smart Apex
agrees to acquire 80% of the issued share capital in SKC Group Limited (SKC) for the aggregate cash
consideration of HK$96,200,000. Further details were set out in the announcement of the Company

dated September 4, 2008,

(by The 7.25% convertible loan note in the principal amount of HK$30,000,000 issued 1o Cross Profit
Capital Limited, a wholly owned subsidiary of Hanny Heldings Limited matured and was fully repaid

on September 3. 2008.

(¢)  On September 18, 2008, a subsidiary of the Company, Auto ltalia Limited, purchased a unit of vintage
Ferrari from a director and controlling shareholder of the Company, Mr. Richard Man Fai Lee. Further

details were set out in the announcement of the Company dated September 18, 2008.

APPROVAL OF INTERIM FINANCIAL REPORT

The interim financial report was approved by the Board of the Directors on September 18, 2008.
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The following is the text of a report, prepared for the sole purpose of incorporation in this
circular, received from the independent reporting accountants, HLB Hodgson Impey Cheng,

Chartered Accountants, Certified Public Accountants, Hong Kong.

31/F, Gloucester Tower
The Landmark

HLB @ "fﬁ £ H F F B A 11 Pedder Street
Hodgson impey Cheng Central
Hong Kong

Chartered Accountants
Certified Public Accountants

The Board of Directors

Wo Kee Hong (Holdings) Limited
13th Floor, Block A

Wo Kee Hong Buildings

585-609 Castle Peak Road

Kwai Chung, New Territories
Hong Kong

26 September 2008

Dear Sirs,

Introduction

We set out below our report on the financial information regarding SKC Group Limited
(“SKC") and its subsidiaries (hereinafter collectively referred to as “SKC Group”) which
comprise the consolidated balance sheets and the balance sheets of SKC as at 28 February
2006, 28 February 2007, 29 February 2008 and 31 May 2008, and the consolidated income
statements, the consolidated cash flow statements and the consolidated statements of changes
in equity for each of the years ended 28 February 2006, 28 February 2007, 29 February 2008
and the three months period ended 31 May 2007 and 2008 (the “Relevant Periods™), and a
summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory notes (the “Financial
Information™), for inclusion in the circular of Wo Kee Hong (Holdings) Limited (the
“Company”) dated 26 September 2008 in connection with the proposed acquisition of 80%
issued share capital of SKC (the “Circular™).

SKC was incorporated in Hong Kong on 23 January 1998 with limited liability. The
registered office of SKC is located at Unit B, 35/F., Manulife Tower, 169 Electric Road, Nerth
Point, Hong Kong. The principal activity of SKC Group is retailing and wholesaling of
children apparels.
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Basis of preparation

The Financial Information has been prepared by the directors of SKC based on the audited
consolidated financial statements for each of the years ended 28 February 2006, 28 February
2007 and 29 February 2008 and unaudited consolidated financial statements for the three
months ended 31 May 2007 and 2008, on the basis as set out in Note 3 below.

As at the date of this report, SKC Group has direct interests in the principal subsidiaries
and associates as set out on pages 144 to 145. All these companies have adopted 28 February
as their financial year end date.

The statutory consolidated financial statements of SKC Group for the years ended 28
February 2006, 28 February 2007, 29 February 2008 were prepared in accordance with
accounting principles generally accepted in Hong Kong and were audited by Messr. Fok Siu
Yung, Certified Public Accountant.

Directors’ responsibility for the Financial Information

The directors of SKC are responsible for the preparation and the true and fair presentation
of the Financial Information in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards
issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants. This responsibility includes
designing, implementing and maintaining internal conirols relevant to the preparation and the
true and fair presentation of Financial Information that is free from material misstatement,
whether due to fraud or error; selecting and applying appropriate accounting policies; and
making accounting estimates that are reasonable in circumstances. The directors of the
Company are responsible for the contents of the Circular in which the report is included.

Reporting accountants’ responsibility

For the financial information for each of the years ended 28 February 2006, 28 February
2007 and 29 February 2008 and the three months ended 31 May 2008, our responsibility is to
express an opinion on the Financial Information based on our audit. We conducted our audit
in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on Auditing issued by the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants. Those standards require that we comply with ethical
requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance as to whether the
Financial Information is free from material misstatement. We have also carried out additional
procedures as necessary in accordance with Auditing Guideline 3.340 “Prospectuses and the
Reporting Accountant” issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and
disclosures in the Financial Information. The procedures selected depend on the reporting
accountants’ judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the
Financial Information, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the
reporting accountants consider internal control relevant to the entity’s preparation and the true
and fair presentation of the Financial Information in order to design audit procedures that are
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appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the
effectiveness of the entity’s internal control. An audit also includes evaluating the
appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates
made by the directors, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the Financial

Information.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to

provide a basis for our audit opinion.

For the financial information for the three months ended 31 May 2007, it is our
responsibility to form an independent conclusion, based on our review, on the financial
information and to report our conclusion to you. We conducted our review on the financial
information in accordance with Hong Kong Standard on Review Engagements 2410 “Review
of Interim Financial Information Performed by the Independent Auditor of the Entity” issued
by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants. A review consists of making
inquiries, primarily of persons responsible for financial and accounting matters, and applying
analytical and other review procedures. A review is substantially less in scope than an audit
conducted in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on Auditing and consequently does not
enable us to obtain assurance that we would become aware of all significant matters that might
be identified in an audit. Accordingly, we do not express an audit opinion on the financial
information for the three months ended 31 May 2007.

Opinion and review conclusion

In our opinion, the financial information for each of the years ended 28 February 2006,
28 February 2007 and 29 February 2008 and the three months ended 31 May 2008, for the
purpose of this report, gives a true and fair view of the state of affairs of SKC Group as at 28
February 2006, 28 February 2007, 29 February 2008 and 31 May 2008 and of SKC Group's
results and cash flows for the years and period then ended and in accordance with Hong Kong

Financial Reporting Standards.

Based on our review, nothing has come to our attention that causes us to believe that the
financial information for the three months ended 31 May 2007, for the purpose of this report,
is not prepared, in all material respects, in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards.
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A, FINANCIAL INFORMATION

CONSOLIDATED INCOME STATEMENTS OF SKC GROUP

For the three months ended For the year ended
3 May 31 May 29 February 28 February 28 February
2008 2007 2008 2007 2006
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS 000 HK$'000
(Unaudited) :
Turnover 5 32,701 30,158 159,679 129,239 121,395
Cost of sales (13,849) (13,901) (70,339) (55,612) (58,171
Gross profit 18,852 16,257 89,340 73,627 63,224
Other revenue 7 212 132 73 638 178
Other income 8 306 208 445 - -
Distribution costs (11,367) (11,363) {49,564) (45,142) (41,701)
Administrative expenses {4,449 (3,571 (15,650) (14,129) (12,912)
Profit from operations 8 3,554 1,721 25,344 14,994 8,789
Finance costs 9 (234 (258) (1,350) (1,176) {1,002}
Share of results of an
associate IS (14) - - 183 138
Profit before taxation 3,246 1,463 23,994 14,001 7,925
Income tax expenses 10 (702) (657) (2,6350) (1,141) (916)
Profit for the period/year 2,544 806 21,344 12,760 7,009
Profit for the periodfyear
attributable to equity
holders of SKC 2,544 06 21,344 12,760 7,009
Dividends 1 - - 5.000 - 1,000

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these Financial Information.
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CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS OF SKC GROUP

Non-current assets

Property, plant and equipment
Interests in an associate
Avaiiable-for-sale financial assets

Current assets

Inventories

Trade receivables

Prepayment, deposits and other
receivables

Amount due from an associate

Tax recoverable

Pledged bank deposits

Cash and bank balances

Current liabilities

Trade payables

Other payables and accruals

Borrowings — due within
one year

Amount due to an associate

Tax payable

Net current assets

Total assets less current
liabilities

Non-current liabilities
Borrowings - due after one year

Net assets

Capital and reserves
attributable to equity
holders of SKC:

Share capital

Reserves

Total equity

Notes

13
15
16

17

18
19

32

200

21
21

22
19

22

23

As at
31 May 29 February 28 February 28 February
2008 2008 2007 2006
HK$000 HK$'000 HK$§'000 HK3000
3,611 3,764 2,875 2,944
1,024 1,098 1,098 928
360 360 360 360
4,995 5.222 4,333 4232
21,434 21,695 21,614 16,704
10,605 14,462 12,306 12,307
6,233 6,401 7,000 6,177
245 - 202 155
- - 220 -
2,027 2,000 2,013 2,014
50,477 49,980 31,019 18,598
91,021 94,538 74,374 57.055
8,194 9,067 10,517 3,762
3,937 5,382 3,814 5,680
1,111 1,444 1,334 1,986
- 140 - -
2,226 1.844 607 628
15,468 17,877 16,272 12,056
75,553 76,661 58,102 44,999
80,548 81,883 62.435 49,231
- - 1,444 -
80,548 81,883 60,991 49,231
10 10 10 10
80,538 81,873 60,981 49,221
80,548 81,883 60,991 49,231

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these Financial Information.
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BALANCE SHEETS OF SKC

Notes

Non-current assets
Property, plant and equipment 13
Investments in subsidiaries 14
Interests in an associate 15
Available-for-sale financial assets 16
Current assets
Inventories 17
Trade receivables 18
Prepayment. deposits and

other receivables 18
Amount due from an associate 19
Amounts due from subsidiaries 14
Tax recoverable
Pledged bank deposits 32
Cash and bank balances
Current liabilities
Trade payables 21
Other payables and accruals 21
Borrowings — due within

one year 22
Amount due to an associate 19
Tax payable
Net current assets
Total assets less current

liabilities
Non-current liabilities
Borrowings — due after one year 22
Net assets
Capital and reserves

attributable to equity holders

of SKC:
Share capital 23
Reserves 24

Total equity

As at
31 May 29 February 28 February 28 February
2008 2008 2007 2006
HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS'000 HK$'000
1,612 1,945 1,386 1,421
5,000 5,000 5,000 5,000
807 807 807 807
360 360 360 360
7,779 8,112 7,553 7,588
13,009 14,761 14,677 10,583
8,035 13,123 12,889 12,545
2,629 1,771 1,517 2,459
243 - 202 755
247 8,826 7,613 7,317
- - 220 -
2,027 2,000 2,013 2,014
34,299 23,511 13,350 4,794
60,491 63,998 52,481 40,467
7,379 8,397 10,053 3,762
2,738 3,713 2,420 4,479
LI 1,444 1,334 1,986
- 140 - -
840 613 - 854
12,068 14,307 13,807 11,081
48,423 49,691 38,674 29,336
56,202 57,803 46,227 36,974
- - 1,444 -
56,202 57,803 44,783 36,974
10 10 10 10
56,192 57,793 44,773 36,964
56,202 57,803 44,783 36,974

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these Financial Information.
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CHANGES IN EQUITY OF SKC GROUP

Proposed
Share Share  Exchange final Retained
capital premium reserve dividend profits Total
HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS'000 HK$000 HK$'000 HK$°000
At | March 2005 10 19,986 - - 22,226 42,222
Profit for the year - - - - 7,009 7.009
Proposed final dividend - - - 1,000 {1,000 -
At 28 February 2006 and
1 March 2006 10 19,986 - 1,000 28,235 49,231
2006 final dividend declared - - - {1,000} - {1,000}
Profit for the year - - - - 12,760 12,760
Exchange differences arising
from translation of financial
statements of overseas
operations - - - - - -
At 28 February 2007 and
1 March 2007 10 19,986 - - 40,995 60.991
Profit for the year - - - - 21,344 21,344
Exchange differences arising
from translation of financial
statements of overseas
operations - - 548 - - 548
Interim dividend declared - - - - {1,000 (1,000
P.roposed final dividend - - - 4,000 (4,000} -
At 29 February 2008 and
1 March 2008 10 19,986 548 4,000 57,339 §1,883
2008 final dividend declared - - - {4,000) - {4,000
Profit for the period - - - - 2,544 2,544
Exchange differences arising
from translation of financial
statements of overseas
operations - - 121 - - 121
At 31 May 2008 10 19,986 669 - 59,883 80,548

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these Financial Information.
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UNAUDITED CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY OF SKC GROUP
For the three months ended 31 May 2007

At 1 March 2007

Profit for the period

Exchange differences arising from
translation of financial statements of
overseas operations

At 31 May 2007 (unaudited)

The accompanying notes form an

Share Share Exchange Retained
capital premium reserve profits Total
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK3°000
10 19,986 - 40,995 60,991
- - - 806 806
- - 216 - 216
10 19,986 216 41,801 62,013

integral part of these Financial Information.
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CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOW STATEMENTS OF SKC GROUP

For the three months ended For the year ended
31 May 3 May 29 February 28 February 28 February
2008 2007 2008 2007 2006
Notes HK3'000 HK$'000 HK3'000 HK$'000 HE$'000
(Unaudited)
Operating activities
Profit before taxation 3,246 1,463 23,904 14,001 1.925
Adjustments for:
Depreciation 8 388 392 1,703 1,640 1,861
Interest expenses 9 234 258 1,350 1,176 1,002
Loss on disposal of
property, plant and
equipment 8 213 139 353 188 33
Interest income 7 {112) {125) (533) {482) (132)
Share of results of an
associates 15 74 - - (183) (138)
Operating cash flows before
movements in working
capital 4,043 2,127 26,869 16,340 10,551
Decrease/{increase) in
inveniories 125 (1,619) (116) (5,229} 1,518
Decrease/(increase) in trade
receivables 3,740 1,755 (1.870) 501 {11,698)

Decrease/(increase) in

prepayments, deposits

and other receivables 62 20 720 (823) 1,367
(Increase)/decrease in

amount due from an

associate (245) 202 202 553 (755}
(Decrease)fincrease in trade
payables (858) (2,164 (1.437) 6,753 (1,631)

{Decrease)fincrease in
amount due to an

associate (140} - 140 - -
(Decrease)/increase in other
payables and accruals (1,445) (2,957) 1,568 (1,866) 92)

Cash generated from/

{used in) operations 3,282 {2,636) 26,076 16,231 5,260
Hong Kong profits tax
{paid)/re{lunded (3) 47 {1.495) {1,150 (1,231)

Net cash generated from/
(vsed in) operating
activities 5217 (2,589) 24.581 15,081 4,029
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CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOW STATEMENTS OF SKC GROUP

For the three months ended

For the year ended

31 May 31 May 29 February

28 February 28 February

2008 2007 2008 2007 2006
HK$ 000 HEK$ 000 HK3000 HK$000 HK$000
{Unaudited)
Investing activities
Purchase of property, plant and
equipment (420) (399 (3,030 (1,759 (1,662)
Net cash used in investing activities (420) (399 (3.030) (1,7139) (1,662)
Financing activities
New bank loan - - - 4,000 6,022
Repayment of bank loans {333) (334 (1,338) {3,208) (5,469)
Obligation under finance lease - - - - {66)
Interest paid (234) (258) {1,350) (1,176) 979)
Finance lease charges paid - - - - (23)
Interest received 112 125 533 482 132
Dividend paid (4,000 - {1,000} {1,000 -
Net cash used in financing activities (4,455) (467) (3,151) (902) (383)
Net increase/(decrease) in cash and
cash equivalents 402 {3,455) 18,400 12,420 1,984
Cash and cash equivalents at the
beginning of the period/year 51,980 33,032 33,032 20,612 18,628
Effect of foreign currency exchange
rate changes 122 216 348 - -
Cash and cash equivalents at the end
of the periodfyear 52,504 29,793 51980 33,032 20,642
Analysis of balances of cash and
cash equivalents
Pledged bank deposit 2,027 2027 2,000 2,013 2,014
Cash and bank balances 50,477 27,766 49,980 31,019 18,598
52,504 29,793 51,980 33,032 20,612

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these Financial Information.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL INFORMATION
1. GENERAL INFORMATION

SKC is a limited liability company incorporated in Hong Kong. lts registered office and principal place of
business is located at Unit B, 35/F., Manulife Tower, 169 Electric Road, North Point, Hong Kong. The principal
activities of SKC and its subsidiaries are investment holding and retailing and wholesaling of children apparels.

The Financial Information are presented in Hong Kong dollars, which is the same as the functional currency
of the SKC.

2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(“HKFRSs”)

During the period ended 31 May 2008, SKC Group has applied, for the first time, the following of new
standards, amendments and interpretations (the “new HKFRSs™) issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants (the “HKICPA™), which are effective for SKC Group’s financial year beginning 1 March 2008.

HK(IFRIC) — Int 11 HKFRS 2: Group and Treasury Share Transactions
HK{IFRIC) — Int 12 Service Concession Arrangements
HK(IFRIC) — Int 14 HKAS 19 - The Limit on a Defined Benefit Asset, Minimum Funding

Requirement and their Interaction

The directors of SKC assessed the impacts of the adoption of these new interpretation and concluded that the
adoption of these new interpretation had no material impact on the results or the financial position of SKC Group
for the current or prior accounting period. Accordingly, no prior period adjustment has been recognised.

SKC Group has not early applied the following new and revised HKASs and HKFRSs or interpretations that
have been issued but are not yet effective in the audited consolidated financial statements for the three months ended
31 May 2008:

HKAS 1 (Revised) Presentation of Financial Statement!

HKAS 23 (Revised) Borrowing Costs!

HKAS 27 (Revised) Consolidated and Separate Financial Statements?

HKAS 32 & 1 Puttable Financial Instruments and Obligations Arising on Liquidation’
{Amendments)

HKFRS 2 (Amendment)  Vesting Conditions and Cancellations'

HKFRS 3 {Revised) Business Combinations?

HKFRS 8 Operating Segments'

HK(IFRIC) - Int 13 Customer Loyalty Programmes?

Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2009

2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 July 2009

3 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 July 2008

The directors of SKC anticipate that the application of these standards or interpretations will have no material
impact on the results and the financial position of SKC Group.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards (“HKFRSs”), which term collectively included Hong Kong Accounting Standards (“HKASs™) and
Interpretations (the “Interpretations™) issued by the HKICPA, accounting principles generally accepted in Hong
Kong. The Financial Information is presented in Hong Kong dollars and are rounded to the nearest thousand dollars
except when otherwise indicated.

Basis of preparation

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared under the histerical cost convention, as
medified by the revaluation of available-for-sale financial assets, financial assets and liabilities at fair value
through profit or loss (including derivative financial -instruments), which are carried at fair value.

The preparation of consolidated financial statements in conformity with HKFRSs requires the use of
certain critical accounting estimates. It also requires management to exercise its judgement in the process of
applying SKC Group’s accounting policies.

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements incorporate the financial statements of SKC and its subsidiaries
made up to 28 February each year,

The results of subsidiaries acquired or disposed of during the year are included in the consolidated
income statement from the effective date of acquisition or up to the effective date of disposal, as appropriate.

Where necessary, adjustments are made to the financial statements of subsidiaries to bring their
accounting policies into line with those used by other members of SKC Group.

All intra-group transactions, balances, income and expenses are eliminated on consolidation,
Investments in subsidiaries

Subsidiaries are all entities (including special purpose entities) over which SKC Group has the power
to govern the financial and operating policies generally accompanying a shareholding of more than one half
of the voting rights. The existence and effect of potential voting rights that are currently exercisable or
convertible are considered when assessing whether SKC Group controls another entity.

Invesiments in subsidiaries are included in SKC's balance sheet at cost less any identified impairment
loss.

Investments in associates

Associates are all entities over which SKC Group has significant influence but not control, generally
accompanying a shareholding of between 20% and 50% of the voting rights.

The results and assets and liabilities of associates are incorporated in these financial statements using
the equity method of accounting. Under the equity method, investments in associates are carried in the
consolidated balance sheet initially at cost as adjusted for the post-acquisition changes in SKC Group's share
of the profit or loss and of changes in equity of the associate, less any identified impairment loss. When SKC
Group’s share of losses of an associate equals or exceeds its interest in that associate (which includes any
long-term interests that, in substance, from part of SKC Group’s net investment in the associate), SKC Group
discontinues recognising its share of further losses. An additional share of losses is provided for and a liability
is recognised only to the extent that SKC Group has incurred legal or constructive obligation or made payments
on behalf of that associate.

Any excess of the cost of acquisition over SKC Group’s share of the net fair value of the identifiable
assets, liabilities and contingent liabilities of the associate recognised at the date of acquisition is recognised
as goodwill. The goodwill is included within the carrying amount of the investment and is assessed for
impairment as part of the investment.
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Any excess of SKC Group's share of the net fair value of the identifiable assets, liabilities and
contingent liabilities over the cost of acquisition. after reassessment, is recognised immediately in profit or
loss.

Where a SKC Group’s entity transacts with an associate of SKC Group, profits and losses are eliminated
to the extent of SKC Group's interest in the relevant associate.

Revenue recognition

Revenue is recognised to the extent that it is probable that the economic benefits will flow 10 SKC
Group and the revenue can be reliably measured. Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration
received or receivable, net of returns and discounts.

Revenue from the sale of goods is recognised on the transfer of the significant risks and rewards of
ownership, which generally coincides with the time of delivery of goods.

Interest income is recognised using the effective interest method.
Leasing

Leases are classified as finance leases whenever the terms of the lease transfer substantially all the risks
and rewards of ownership to the lessee. All other leases are classified as operating leases.

SKC Group as lessor

Amounts due from lessees under finance leases are recorded as receivables at the amount of SKC
Group's net investment in the leases. Finance lease income is allocated to accounting periods so as to reflect
a constant periodic rate of return on SKC Group's net investment cutstanding in respect of the leases.

Rental income from operating leases is recognised in the consolidated income statement on a
straight-line basis over the terms of the relevant leases.

SKC Group as lessee

Assets held under finance leases are recognised as assets of SKC Group at their fair value at the date
of acquisition (or, if lower, at the present value of the minimum lease payments). The corresponding liabilities
to the lessors are included in the balance sheet as finance lease obligations. Finance costs are charged to the
income statement over the terms of the relevant leases so as to produce a constant periodic rate of charge on
the remaining balance of the obligations for each accounting period.

Rental payables under operating leases are charged 1o the income statement on a straight-line basis over
the terms of the relevant leases.

Foreign currencies

In preparing the financial statements of each individual group entity, transactions in currencies other
than the functional currency of that entity (foreign currencies) are recorded in its functional currency (i.e. the
currency of the primary economic environment in which the entity operates) at the rates of exchanges
prevailing on the dates of the transactions. At each balance sheet date, monetary items denominated in foreign
currencies are retranslated at the rates prevailing on the balance sheet date. Non-monetary items carried at fair
value that are denominated in foreign currencies are retranslated at the rates prevailing on the date when the
fair vatlue was determined. Non-monetary items that are measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign
currency are not retranslated.

Exchange differences arising on the settlement of moneltary items, and on the translation of monetary
items, are recognised in profit or loss in the period in which they arise, except for exchange differences arising
on a monelary item that forms part of SKC Group’s net investment in a foreign operation, in which case, such
exchange differences are recognised in equity in the consolidated financial statements. Exchange differences
arising on the retranslation of non-monetary items carried at fair value are included in profit or loss for the
period except for differences arising on the retranslation of non-monetary items in respect of which gains and
losses are recognised directly in equity, in which cases, the exchange differences are also recognised directly
in equity.
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For the purposes of presenting the consclidated financial statements, the assets and liabilities of SKC
Group's foreign operations are translated into the presentation currency of SKC Group (i.e. Hong Kong
dollars) at the rate of exchange prevailing at the balance sheet date, and their income and expenses are
transiated at the average exchange rates for the year, unless exchange rates fluctuate significantly during the
year, in which case, the exchange rates prevailing at the dates of transactions are used. Exchange differences
arising, if any, are recognised as a separate component of equity (the exchange reserve). Such exchange
differences are recognised in profit or loss in the period in which the foreign operation is disposed of.

Borrowing costs

All borrowing costs are recognised as and included in finance costs in the income statement in the period
in which they are incurred,

Retirement benefit costs

Payments to defined contribution retirement schemes are charged as an expense as they fall due.
Taxation

Income tax expense represents the sum of the tax currently payable and deferred tax.

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for the year. Taxable profit differs from net profit
as reported in the consolidated income statement because it excludes items of income or expense that are
taxable or deductible in other years, and it further excludes income statement items that are never taxable or
deductible.

Deferred tax is the tax expected to be payable or recoverable on differences between the carrying
amount of assets and liabilities in the consolidated financial statements and the corresponding tax bases used
in the computation of taxable profit. Deferred tax liabilities are generaily recognised for all taxable temporary
differences and deferred tax assets are recognised to the extent that it is probable that taxable profit will be
available against which deductible temporary can be utilised. Such assets and liabilities are not recognised if
the temporary difference arises from goodwill or from the initial recognition (other than in a business
combination) of other assets and liabilities in a transaction that affects neither the taxable profit nor the
accounting profit.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable temporary differences arising on investment in
subsidiaries and associates, except where SKC Group is able to control the timing of the reversal of the
temporary difference and it is probable that the temporary difference will not reverse in the foreseeable future.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at each balance sheet date and reduced to the
extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profit will be available to allow all or part of the asset
to be recovered.

Deferred tax is calculated at the tax rates that are expected to apply in the period when the liability is
settled or the asset is realised. Deferred tax is charged or credited to profit or loss, except when it relates to
items that are charged or credited directly to equity, in which case the deferred tax is also dealt with in equity.

Property, plant and equipment

Valuations are performed frequently enough to ensure that the fair value of a revalued asset does not
differ materially from its carrying amount. Changes in the value of property, plant and equipment are deali with
as movements in the asset revaluation reserve. [f the total of this reserve is insufficient to cover a deficit, on
an individual asset basis, the excess of the deficit is charged to the income stalement. Any subsequent
revaluation surplus is credited to the income statement to the extent of the deficit previously charged.
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Depreciation is calculated on the straight-line basis to write off the cost of each item property, plant and
equipment to its residual value over its estimated useful life. The principal annual rates used for this purpose
are as follows:

Furniture and fixtures and equipment 20%
Office equipment 20%
Leasehold improvements 30%
Motor vehicles 30%

Where parts of an item of property, plant and equipment have different useful lives, the cost of that item
is allocated on a reasonable basis among the parts and each part is depreciated separately.

Residual values, useful lives and the depreciation method are reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate, at
cach balance sheet date.

An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognised upon disposal or when no future economic
benefits are expected from its use or disposal. Any gain or loss on disposal or retirement recognised in the
income statement in the year, the asset is derecognised is the difference between the net sales proceeds and
the carrying amount of the relevant asset.

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable value. Cost is calculated using the first-in,
first-out method. Net realisable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business less
applicable variable selling expenses.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents are carried in the balance sheet at cost. For the purposes of the cash flow
statement, cash and cash equivalents comprise cash on hand, demand deposits, and short term highiy liquid
investments that are readily convertible into known amounts of cash, are subject to an insignificant risk of
changes in value, and have a short maturity of generally within three months when acquired. less bank
overdrafts which are repayable on demand and form an integral part of SKC's cash management.

For the purpose of the balance sheets, cash and cash equivalents comprise cash on hand and at banks,
including term deposits, which are not restricted to use.

Provisions and contingent liabilities

Provisions are recognised when SKC Group has a present obligation as a result of a past event, and it
is probable that SKC Group will be required to settle that obligation. Provisions are measured at the directors’
best estimaie of the expenditure required to settle the obligation at the balance sheet date, and are discounted
w present value where the effect is material.

A contingent liability is a possible obligation that arises from past events and whose existence will only
be confirmed by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain future events not wholly within
the control of SKC Group. It can also be a present obligation arising from past events that is not recognised
because it is not probable that outflow of economic resources will be required or the amount of obligation
cannot be measured reliably.

A contingent liability is not recognised but is disclosed in the notes to the financial statements. When
a change in the probability of an outflow occurs so that outflow is probable, it will then be recognised as a
provision,

Financial instruments
Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised on the balance sheet when a group entity
becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the instrument. Financial assets and financial liabilities are

initially measured at fair value. Transaction costs that are directly attributable to the acquisiuon or issue of
financial assets and financial liabilities (other than financial assets and financial liabilities at fair vale through
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profit or loss) are added to or deducted from the fair value of the financial assets or financial liabilities, as
appropriate, on initial recognition. Transaction costs dircctly attributable to the acquisition of financial assets
or financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss are recognised immediately in profit or loss.

Financial assets

SKC Group's financial assets are classified into one of the four categories, including financial assets at
fair value through profit or loss, loans and receivables, held-to-maturity investments and available-for-sale
financial assets. All regular way purchases or sale of financial assets are recognised and derecognised on a
trade date basis. Regular way purchases or sales are purchases or sales of financial assets that require delivery
of assets within the time frame established by regulation or convention in the marketplace. The accounting
policies adopted in respect of each category of financial assets are set out below.

Effective interest method

The effective interest methed is a method of calculating the amortised cost of z financial asset and of
allocating interest income over the relevant period. The effective interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts
estimated future cash receipts (inctuding all fees on points paid or received that form an integral part of the
effective interest rate, transaction costs and other premiums or discounts) through the expected life of the
financial asset, or, where appropriate, a shorter period.

Income is recognised on an effective interest basis for debt instruments other than those financial assets
designated as at financial assets at fair value through profit or loss, of which interest income is included in net
gains or losses.,

Financial assets a1 fair value through profit or loss

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss has two subcategories, including financial assets held
for trading and those designated as at fair value through profit or loss on initial recognition.

A financial asset is classified as held for trading if:
(a) it has been acquired principally for the purpose of selling in the near future; or

(b) itis a part of an identified portfolio of financial instruments that SKC Group manages together
and has a recent actual pattern of short-term profit-taking; or

(¢)  itis a derivative that is not designated and effective as a hedging instrument.

A financial asset other than a financial asset held for trading may be designated as at fair value through
profit or loss upon initial recognition if:

{a)  such designation eliminates or significantly reduces a measurement or recognition inconsistency
that would otherwise arise; or

(b)  the financial asset forms part of a group of financial assets or financial liabilities or both, which
is managed and its performance is evaluated on a fair value basis, in accordance with SKC
Group’s documented risk management or investment strategy, and information about the grouping
is provided internally on that basis; or

(c} it forms part of a contract containing one or more embedded derivatives, and HKAS 39 permits
the entire combined contract (asset or lizbility) to be designated as at fair value through profit or
loss.

At each balance sheet date subsequent to initial recognition, financial assets at fair value through profit
or loss are measured at fair value, with changes in fair value recognised directly in profit or loss in the period
in which they arise. The net gain or loss recognised in profit or loss includes any dividend or interest earned
on the financial assets.

Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets with fixed or determinable payments that are
not quoted in an active market. At each balance sheet date subsequent to initial recognition, loans and
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receivables (including trade and other receivables, cash and cash equivalents and amounts due from associates)
are carried at amortised cost using the effective interest method, less any identified impairment losses. An
impairment loss is recognised in profit or loss when there is objective evidence that the asset is impaired, and
is measured as the difference between the asset's carrying amount and the present value of the estimated future
cash flows discounted at the original effective interest rate. Impairment losses are reversed in subsequent
periods when an increase in the asset’s recoverable amount can be related objectively to an event occurring
after the impairment was recognised, subject to a restriction that the carrying amount of the asset at the date
the impairment is reversed does not exceed what the amortised cost would have been had the impairment not
been recognised.

Available-for-sale financial assets

Available-for-sale financial assets are non-derivatives that are either designated or not classified as any
of the other categories (set owt above). At each balance sheet date subsequent to initial recognition,
available-for-sale financial assets are measured at fair value. Changes in fair value are recognised in equity,
until the financial asset is disposed of or is determined to be impaired, at which time, the cumulative gain or
loss previously recognised in equity is removed from equity and recognised in profit or loss. Any impairment
losses on available-for-sale financial assets are recognised in profit or loss when there is objective evidence
that the assets are impaired. The amount of the impairment loss is measured as the difference between the
carrying amount of the assets and the present value of the estimated future cash flows discounted at the current
market rate of return for similar financial assets. Impairment losses on available-for-sale equity investments
will not reverse in subsequent periods, except for available-for-sale debt investments, which impairment losses
are subsequently reversed if an increase in the fair value of the investment can be objectively related to an
event occurring after the recognition of the impairment loss.

For available-for-sale equity investments that do not have a quoted market price in an active market and
whose fair value cannot be reliably measured and derivatives that are linked to and must be settled by delivery
of such unquoted equity instruments, they are measured at cost less any identified impairment losses at each
balance sheet date subsequent to initial recognition. An impairment loss is recognised in profit or loss when
there is objective evidence that the asset is impaired. The amount of the impairment loss is measured as the
difference between the carrying amount of the asset and the present value of the estimated future cash flows
discounted at the current market rate of return for a similar financial asset. Such impairment losses will not
reverse in subsequent periods.

Impairment of financial assets

Financial assets, other than those at financial assets at fair value through profit or loss, are assessed for
indicators of impairment at each balance sheet date. Financial assets are impaired where there is objective
evidence that, as a result of one or more events that occurred afier the initial recognition of the financial asset,
the estimated future cash flows of the financial assets have been impacted.

For an available-for-sale equity investment, a significant or prolonged decline in the fair value of that
investment below its cost is considered to be objective evidence of impairment.

For all other financial assets, objective evidence of impairment could include:

{a) significant financial difficulty of the issuer or counierparty, or

{b) default or delinquency in interest or principal payments; or

(c) it becoming probable that the borrower will enter bankruptcy or financial re-organisation.

For certain categories of financial asset, such as trade receivables, assets that are assessed not to be
impaired individually are subsequently assessed for impairment on a collective basis. Objective evidence of
impairment for a portfolio of receivables could include SKC Group's past experience of collecting payments,
an increase in the number of delayed payments in the portfolio past the average credit period of 30 to 60 days,
observable changes in national or local economic conditions that correlate with default on receivables.

For financial assets carried at amortised cost, an impairment loss is recognised in profit or loss when
there is objective evidence that the asset is impaired, and is measured as the difference between the asset’s

carrying amount and the present value of the estimated future cash flows discounted at the original effective
interest rate.

- 118 -



APPENDIX I1 FINANCIAL INFORMATION ON THE SKC GROUP

For financial assets carried at cost, the amount of the impairment loss is measured as the difference
between the asset’s carrying amount and the present value of the estimated future cash flows discounted at the
current market rate of return for a similar financial asset. Such impairment loss will not be reversed in
subsequent periods.

The carrying amount of the financial asset is reduced by the impairment loss directly for all financial
assets with the exception of trade receivables, where the carrying amount is reduced through the use of an
allowance account. Changes in the carrying amount of the allowance account are recognised in profit or loss.
When a trade receivable is considered uncollectible, it is written off against the allowance account. Subsequent
recoveries of amounts previously written off are credited to profit or loss.

For financial assets measured at amortised cost, if, in a subsequent period, the amount of impairment
loss decreases and the decrease can be related objectively to an event occurring afier the impairment losses was
recognised, the previously recognised impairment loss is reversed through profit or loss to the extent that the
carrying amount of the asset at the date the impairment is reversed does not exceed what the amortised cost
would have been had the impairment not been recognised,

Impairment losses on available-for-sale equity investments will not be reversed in profit or loss in
subsequent periods. Any increase in fair value subsequent to impairment loss is recognised directly in equity.
For available-for-sale debt investments, impairment losses are subsequently reversed if an increase in the fair
value of the investment can be objectively related to an event occurring after the recognition of the impairment
loss.

Financial liabilities and equity instruments

Financial liabilities and equity instruments issued by a group entity are ciassified according 1o the
substance of the contractual arrangements entered into and the definitions of a financial liability and an equity
instrument.

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a residual interest in the assets of SKC Group after
deducting all of its liabilities. SKC Group’s financial liabilities are generally classified into financial liabilities
at fair value through profit or less and other financial liabilities, The accounting policies adopted in respect
of financial liabilities and equity instruments are set out below.

Effective interest method

The effective interest methed is a method of calculating the amortised cost of a financial liability and
of allocating interest expense over the relevant period. The effective interest rate is the rate that exactly
discounts estimated future cash payments through the expected life of the financial liability, or, where
appropriate, a shorter period.

Interest expense is recognised on an effective interest basis other than those financial liabilities
designated as at financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss, of which the interest expense is
included in net gains or losses.

Other financial liabilities

Other financial liabilities including trade and other payables, amounts due to related companies, bank
borrowings and obligations under finance leases are subsequently measured at amortised cost, using the
effective interest rate method.

Derivative financial instruments and hedging

Derivatives are initially recognised at fair value at the date a derivative contract is entered into and are
subsequently remeasured to their fair value at each balance sheet date. The resulting gain or loss is recognised
in profit or loss immediately unless the derivative is designated and effective as a hedging instrument, in which
event the timing of the recognition in profit or loss depends on the nature of the hedge relationship. SKC Group
designates certain derivatives as either hedges of the fair value of fixed-rate bank borrowings (fair value
hedges) and hedges of highly probable forecast transactions for foreign currency exposure (cash flow hedges),
or hedges of net investments in foreign operations.
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Derecognition

Financizl assets are derecognised when the rights to receive cash flows from the assets expire of, the
financial assets are transferred and SKC Group has transferred substantially alt the risks and rewards of
ownership of the financial assets. On derecognition of a financial asset, the difference between the assel's
carrying amount and the sum of the consideration received and the cumulative gain or loss that had been
recognised directly in equity is recognised in profit or loss.

Financial liabilities are derecognised from SKC Group’s consolidated balance sheet when the obligation
specified in the relevant contract is discharged, cancelled or expires. The difference between the carrying
amount of the financial liability derecognised and the consideration paid or payable is recognised in profit or
loss.

Impairment

At each balance sheet date, SKC Group reviews the carrying amounts of its tangible assets and
intangible assets to determine whether there is any indication that those assets have suffered an impairment
loss or the impairment loss recognised in prior years is no longer exist or have decreased. If the recoverable
amount of an assel is estimated to be less than its carrying amount, the carrying amount of the asset is reduced
to its recoverable amount. An impairment loss is recognised as an expense immediately.

Where an impairment loss subsequently reverse, the carrying amount of the asset other than goodwill
is increased to the revised estimate of its recoverable amount, but so that the increased carrying amount does
not exceed the carrying amount that would have been determined had no impairment loss been recognised for
the asset in prior years. A reversal of an impairment loss is recognised as income immediately.

4. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY

In the application of SKC Group’s accounting policies, which are described in note 3 10 the Financial
[nformation, management is required to make judgements, estimates and assumptions about the carrying amounts of
assets and liabilities that are not readily apparent from other sources. The estimates and associated assumptions are
based on historical experience and other factors that are considered to be relevant. Actual results may differ from
these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting
estimates are recognised in the period in which the estimate is revised if the revision affects only that period. or in
the period of the revision and future periods if the revision affects both current and future periods.

Provision for impairment loss on trade and other receivables

The provision for impairment loss on trade and other receivables of SKC Group is based on the
evaluation of collectability and aging analysis of accounts and on management’s judgment. A considerable
amount of judgment is required in assessing the ultimate realisation of these receivables, including the current
creditworthiness and the past collection history of each account. If the financial conditions of the debtors were
to deteriorate, resulting in an impairment of their ability to make payments, additional allowances may be
required.

Provision for obsolete inventories

The management of SKC Group reviews an aging analysis at each balance sheet date, and makes
provision for obsolete and slow-moving inventory items. The management estimates the net realisable value
for such finished goods based primarily on the latest invoice prices and current market conditions. SKC Group
carries out an inventory review on a product-by-product basis at each balance sheet date and makes provision
for absolete items.

Income taxes
SKC Group is subjeet to income taxes in numercus jurisdictions. Significant judgement is required in
determining the worldwide provision for income taxes. Where the final 1ax outcome of these matters is

different from the amounts that were initially recorded, such differences will accordingly be adjusted in the
relevant tax account in the year in which such determination is made.
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5. TURNOVER

SKC Group’s turnover represents the net sale of children apparels.

For the three months ended For the year ended
31 May 31 May 29 February 28 Februvary 28 February
2008 2007 2008 2007 2006
HK$ 000 HE$ 000 HK3'000 HK$ 000 HK$ 000
(Unaudited)
Turnover:
Sale of children apparels 32,701 30,158 159,679 129,239 121,395

6. BUSINESS SEGMENT AND GEOGRAPHICAL SEGMENTS

SKC’s Group’s turnover, results, assets and liabilities are determined solely from one business segment,
retailing and wholesaling of children apparels during the Relevant Periods and accordingly, no further analysis of
SKC Group’s geographical segment revenue, segment results, segment assets, segment labilities, capital expenditure,
depreciation and amortisation by principal activities is provided.

In determining SKC Group’s geographical segments, revenues are attributed to the segments based on the
location of the customers, and assets are attributed to the segments based on the location of the assets,

Geographical segments

The Group’s operations are mainly located in Hong Kong and the PRC. The following table provides
an analysis of the Group’s turnover by geographical market, irrespective of the origin of the goods/services:

Turnover by geographical market

For the three months ended For the year ended
31 May 31 May 29 February 28 February 28 February
2008 2007 2008 2007 2006
HK$'000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$°000 HK$000

(Unaudited)

Hong Kong 13,919 12,586 78,786 66,886 31,120
PRC 18,782 17,572 80,863 62,353 90,275
32,701 30,158 159,679 129.239 121,393

Contribution to operating results

For the three months ended For the year ended
31 May 31 May 29 Febroary 28 February 28 February
2008 2007 2008 2007 2006
HK3'000 HK$000 HK3'000 HK$'000 HK§'000

(Unaudited)

Hong Kong 57 989 17,439 11,882 6,476
PRC 2,979 332 6,687 2,474 2,135

3,036 1,321 24,126 14,356 8,611
Other revenue 212 132 773 638 178
Other income 306 268 445 - -
Profit from operations 3,554 i,721 25344 14,994 8,789
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The following is an analysis of the carrying amounts of segment assets and capital expenditure analysed

by the geographical area in which the assets are located:

Carrying amounts of segment assets

As at
31 May 29 February 28 February 28 February
2008 2008 2007 2006
HK$'000 HK3'000 HK$'000 HK3$'000
Hong Kong 27,150 36,085 27,546 25,429
PRC 68,866 63,675 51,161 35,858
96,016 99,760 78,707 61,287

Capital expenditure

As at
31 May 29 February 28 February 28 February
2008 2008 2007 2006
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK3 000 HK$'000
Hong Kong - 335 941 938
PRC 420 2,695 818 724
420 3,030 1,759 1,662

7. OTHER REVENUE

For the three months ended

For the year ended

31 May 31 May 29 February 28 February 28 February
2008 2007 2008 2007 2006
HK3'000 HK3'000 HK3'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

(Unaudited)
Interest income 112 125 533 482 132
Sundry income 100 7 240 156 46
212 132 773 638 178
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8

PROFIT FROM OPERATIONS

Profit from operations has been arrived at after charging:

Auditors’ remuneration

Cost of inventories sold

Depreciation

Operating leases in respect
of land and buildings

Loss on disposal of property,
plant and equipment

Staff costs, wages and other
benefits

and after crediting:
Exchange gain

FINANCE COSTS

Interest expenses on:

Bank loans whoily

repayable within
five years

Finance lease charges
Bank charges
Credit card charges

For the three months ended

31 May 31 May
2008 2007
HK$'000 HK3'000
(Unaudited)

13.849 13,901
388 392
5,705 4,355
213 139
4,486 3,947
306 268

For the year ended

29 February 28 February 28 February

2008 2007 2006
HKS$'000 HK$'000 HK$'008
76 69 63
70,339 55,612 58,171
1,705 1,640 1.861
14,639 14,168 14,677
353 188 33
19,419 18,890 17.530
445 - -

For the three months ended

For the year ended

31 May 31 May 29 February 28 February 28 February

2008 2007 2008 2007 2006

HK$ 000 HK3'000 HK3$'000 HK3'000 HK3 000
(Unaudited)

20 55 176 290 108

- - - - 23

16 20 75 8 -

198 183 1,099 878 871

234 25§ 1,350 1,176 1.002
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10. INCOME TAX EXPENSES

Hong Kong profits tax has been provided at the rate of 16.5% to 17.5% on the estimated assessable profits
arising in Hong Kong during the Relevant Periods.

Overseas taxation is calculated at the rates prevailing in the respective jurisdiction.

For the three months ended For the year ended
31 May 31 May 29 February 28 February 28 February
2008 2007 2008 2007 2006
HK$000 HK$000 HK$'000 HK$000 HK$000
{Unaudited)
Current tax:
Hong Kong Profits Tax 657 657 2,629 1,241 900
Overseas income tax 43 - 21 - 16
702 657 2,650 1,241 916

No deferred tax assets or liabilities has been provided as SKC Group had no material temporary differences
during the Relevant Periods.

The tax expenses for the Relevant Periods can be reconciled to the profits before taxation as follows:

For the three months ended For the year ended
3 May 2008 31 May 2007 19 February 2008 28 February 2007 28 February 2006
HKS'000 % HES'600 % HKS'060 % HES 000 % HKS'000 %
{Unaudited)
Profit before taxation 3,246 1,463 23,994 14,001 7925

Tax at the appicable

profits tax rate 536 145 25% 115 4,198 173 2450 175 1387 175
Tax effect of expenses that

not deductible for tax

purposes o4 B0 19 1010 42 69 05 g 0l
Tax effect of income that

not taxable for 1ax

purposes (195) (6.0) (383) (24.1) {1,541) (64 (1,396)  (10.0) (643 (8.
Utiltsation of deferred tax

assets previously not

recogaised - - - - - - 1 .7 (148)  (1.9)
Tax effect of tax losses not

recognised 23 0.8 470 321 @47 (19 32 7 1,272 160
Tax rates of share of

results of an associate - - - - - - 13 (.1 L] 0.3
Effect of different tax rates

of subsidiary operating

in other jurisdicitions (3 (LD 66 (4.9 57177  (24) (5200 (37 {985) (12.4)

Tax charge and effective
tax rate for the
periodiyear 02 216 657 449 2650 119 1,241 2.8 916 115

There was no share of tax attributable to associates for the year ended 29 February 2008 and for the three
months ended 31 May 2008 and 2007. During the year ended 28 February 2007 and 2006, the share of tax atiributable
to associates amounting approximately HK$13,000 and HK$24,000 respectively were included in “Share of results
of an associate™ on the face of consolidated income statement.
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11. DIVIDENDS

For the three months ended For the year ended
3 May 31 May 29 February 28 February 28 February
2008 2007 2008 2007 2006
HK$000 HK3'00¢ HK§'000 HK$'000 HK3'000
(Unaudited)
Interim dividend paid at
HK$100 per ordinary
share - - 1,000 - -
Proposed final dividend:
2008: HK$400 per ordinary
share - - 4,000 - -
2006: HK$100 per ordinary
share - - - - 1,000
- - 5,000 - 1,000

12. DIRECTORS’ AND EMPLOYEES' EMOLUMENTS
(a)  Directors’ emoluments

The emoluments paid or payable to each of the three Directors were as follows:

For the three months ended For the year ended
31 May 31 May 29 February 28 February 2B February
2008 2007 2008 2007 2006
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$000 HK$'000 HK$'000
(Unaudited)
Basic salaries and
allowances and
retirement benefit
scheme
contributions:
Name of director
Chan Roy - - - - -
Chu Wan Kam,
Sabrina 505 489 2,136 2,151 2,016
Yeung Sui King 164 160 698 732 688
669 649 2,834 2,883 2,704
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(b) Employees’ emoluments

During the Relevant Periods, two of the Directors was included in the five highest paid individuals. The
emoluments of the other three highest paid individuals were as follows:

For the three months ended

For the year ended

31 May 31 May 29 February 28 February 28 February
2008 2007 2008 2007 2006
HK$ 000 HK$000 HK3'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
(Unaudited)

Salaries and other
benefits 306 254 1,140 1,164 1,090

Retirement benefit

scheme

contributions 9 9 36 36 36
315 263 1,176 1,200 1,126

The emoluments of the remaining highest paid individuals fell within the following bands:

For the three months ended

31 May 31 May
2008 2007
Number of Number of
employees employees

{Unaudited)

Less than
HK$1,000,000 3 3

For the year ended

29 Febrnary 28 February 28 February

2008 2007 2006
Number of Number of Number of
employees employees employees

3 3 3
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13. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Furniture Office Leasehold Motor
and fixture equipment improvement vehicle Total
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
SKC Group
Cost or valuation:
At 1 March 2005 208 1,309 6,322 Ti4 3,643
Additions 28 129 1,505 - 1,662
Disposals (2) (15) (363) - (380)
At 28 February 2006
and 1 March 2006 324 1,423 7.464 714 9,925
Additions 27 78 1,654 - 1,759
Disposals (9 (23) (837) - (869)
At 28 February 2007
and 1 March 2007 342 1,478 8,281 7t4 10,815
Additions 117 467 2,446 - 3,030
Disposals (4 - (1,618) - (1.632)
Exchange realignment - (14) (83) - 97
At 29 February 2008
and 1 March 2008 445 1,931 9,026 714 12,116
Additions - 81 339 - 420
Disposals 4 (2) (506) - (512)
Exchange realignment - (9 113 - 104
At 31 May 2008 441 2.001 8,972 714 12,128
Representing:
Al cost 441 2,001 8,972 714 12,128
At valuation - - - - -
441 2,001 8,972 714 12,128
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Furniture Office Leasehold Motor
and fixture equipment improvement vehicle Total
HK$'000 HK$ 000 HK$ 000 HK$'000 HK3$ 000
SKC Group
Accumulated
depreciation:
At | March 2005 201 924 3,728 614 5,467
Provided for the year 35 159 1,567 100 1.861
Eliminated upon
disposals (3 (15) (329 - (347
At 28 February 2006
and 1 March 2006 233 1,068 4,966 714 6,981
Provided for the year 29 137 1,474 - 1,640
Eliminated upon
disposals (7} (13) (661) - (681)
At 28 February 2007
and 1 March 2007 255 1,192 5779 714 7,940
Provided for the year 41 154 1,510 - 1,705
Eliminated upon
disposals % - (1,270) - (1.279)
Exchange realignment - (13) (n - (14}
At 29 February 2008
and 1 March 2008 287 1,333 6,018 714 8.352
Provided for the period 12 48 328 - 388
Eliminated upon
disposals 4) (2) (293) - (299)
Exchange realignment - 15 61 - 76
At 31 May 2008 295 1,394 6,114 714 8.517
Net book values:
At 31 May 2008 146 607 2,858 - 3,611
At 29 February 2008 158 598 3,008 - 3,764
At 28 February 2007 87 286 2,502 - 2,875
At 28 February 2006 91 355 2,498 - 2,944
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SKC

Cost or valuation:
At 1 March 2005
Additions
Disposals

Al 28 February 2006
and 1 March 2006

Additions

Disposals

Al 28 February 2007
and | March 2007

Additions

Disposals

At 29 February 2008
and 1 March 2008

Additions

Disposals

At 31 May 2008

Representing:
At cost
At valuation

Furniture Office Leasehold Motor
and fixture equipment improvement vehicle Total
HK3$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
284 1,084 2,361 714 4,443
9 127 587 - 723
- - (76) - (76)
203 1,211 2,872 714 5,090
21 45 726 - 792
(2) 4) (338) - (344)
312 1,252 3,260 714 5,538
101 331 1,218 - 1,650
(11 - {1,294} - (1,305}
402 1,583 3,184 714 5,883
- 47 12 - 59
4 2) (506) - (512)
398 1,628 2,690 714 5,430
398 1,628 2,690 714 5,430
398 1,628 2,690 714 5,430
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Furniture Office Leasehold Motor
and fixture equipment improvement vehicle Total
HK3$000 HK$ 000 HK3°000 HK§'000 HK$'000
Accumulated
depreciation:
At 1 March 2005 188 736 1,229 614 2,767
Provided for the year 31 143 670 100 944
Eliminated upon
disposals - - (42) - (42)
At 28 February 2006
and | March 2006 219 879 1,857 714 3.669
Provided for the year 25 125 581 - 731
Eliminated upon
disposals (i) (1) (246) - (248)
At 28 February 2007
and 1 March 2007 243 1,003 2,192 714 4,152
Provided for the year 34 138 609 - 781
Eliminated upon
disposals (7) - (988) - (995)
At 29 February 2008
and 1 March 2008 270 1.141 1,813 714 3.938
Provided for the period 1 40 127 - 178
Eliminated upon
disposals (4) (1) (293) - (298)
At 31 May 2008 21 1.180 1,647 714 3.818
Net book values:
At 31 May 2008 121 448 1,043 - 1,612
At 29 February 2008 132 442 1.371 - 1,945
At 28 February 2007 69 249 1,068 - 1,386
At 28 February 2006 74 332 1,05 - 1,421

14. INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES

SKC
As at
31 May 29 February 28 February 28 February
2008 2008 2007 2006
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK3° 000 HK3 000
Unlisted shares, at cost 5,000 5,000 5,000 5,000

The amounts due from subsidiaries are unsecured, interest free and recoverable on demand. The directors
consider that the carrying amounts of amounts due from subsidiaries approximate their fair values.

Particulars of SKC's principal subsidiaries are shown in note 29,
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15.

INTERESTS IN AN ASSOCIATE

SKC Group

As at
31 May 29 February 28 February 28 February
2008 2008 2007 2006
HK$ 000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$ 000
Unlisted shares, at cost 807 807 807 807
Shares of net assets of an associate 217 291 291 121
1,024 1,098 1,098 928

SKC

As at
31 May 29 February 28 February 28 February
2008 2008 2007 2006
HK$'000 HKS$'000 HK3'000 HK$'000
Unlisted shares, at cost 807 807 807 807

The summarised financial information in respect of SKC Group's associate is set oul below:

As at

31 May 29 February 28 February 28 February

2008 2008 2007 2006

HK$'000 HK3 000 HK$'00¢ HK$000

Total assets 4,147 3940 3,606 3,422

Total liabilities (898) (619) (453) (1,018)

Net assets 3,249 3,321 3,153 2,404
SKC Group's share of net assets of

an associate 217 291 291 121

Turnover 1,277 5435 5,312 4,379

(Loss)/profit for the period/year (159) ! 395 262
SKC Group's share of results of an

associate for the period/year (74) - 183 138

Particulars of SKC Group's principal associates at 28 February 2006. 28 February 2007, 29 February 2008 and

31 May 2008 are shown in note 30.
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16. AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE FINANCIAL ASSETS

SKC Group and SKC

As at
31 May 29 February 28 February 28 Februoary
2008 2008 2007 2006
HK$'000 HK$ 000 HK3'000 HK$'000
Club debentures without interest and
maturity date (Note i) 360 360 360 360

Note:

(i) The fair values of club debentures have been estimated based on observable market prices or rates.

17.  INVENTORIES

SKC Group
As at
31 May 29 February 28 February 28 February
2008 2008 2007 2006
HK3'000 HK$' 000 HK$ 000 HK$'000
Finished goods 21,434 21,695 21,614 16,704
SKC
As at
31 May 29 February 28 February 28 February
2008 2008 2007 2006
HK$ 000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
Finished goods 13,009 14,761 14,677 10,583
18. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES
SKC Group
As at
31 May 29 February 28 February 28 February
2008 2008 2007 2006
HK3000 HK$ 000 HK$'000 HK$'000
Trade receivables 10,605 14,462 12,306 12,807
Less: Allowance for doubtful debts - - - -
Total trade receivables, net of .
allowance for doubtful debts 10,605 14,462 12,306 12,807
Deposits, prepayments and other
receivables 6.233 6,401 7,000 6,177
16,838 20,863 19,306 18,984
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The following is an aged analysis of trade receivables net for allowance of doubtful debts at 28 February
2006, 28 February 2007, 29 February 2008 and 31 May 2008:

SKC Group
As at

31 May 29 February 28 February 28 February
2008 2008 2007 2006
HK3'000 HK$ 000 HK3$'000 HK3°000
Within 30 days 8,417 9,436 7,963 8,186
31 to 60 days 642 2,234 2,005 1,279
61 to 90 days 1,010 1,542 1,217 1,718
91 days to 1 year 283 1.155 1,031 794
Over | year 253 95 S0 230
Total 10,605 14,462 12,306 12,807

SKC Group allows an average credit period of 30 to 60 days te its customers.

Ageing of trade receivables which are past due but not impaired

SKC Group
As at

31 May 29 February 28 February 28 February

2008 2008 2007 2006

HK3 000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

61 to 90 days 1,010 1,542 1,217 1,718
91 days to | year 283 1,155 1,031 794
Over 1 year 253 95 90 830
Total 1,546 2,792 2,338 3,342

The fair values of SKC Group’s trade and other receivables at 28 February 2006, 28 February 2007, 29
February 2008 and 31 May 2008 approximate to the corresponding carrying amounts.

There is no concentration of eredit risk with respect to trade receivables, as SKC Group has a large

number of customers, internationally dispersed.

SKC
As at
31 May 29 February 28 February 28 February
2008 2008 2007 2006
HK$ 000 HK$'000 HK3 000 HK$ 000
Trade receivables 8,035 13,123 12,889 12,545
Less: Allowance for doubtful debts - - - -
Total trade receivables. net of
allowance for doubtful debts 8,035 13,123 12,889 12,545
Deposits, prepayments and other
receivables 2,629 1,777 1,517 2,459
10.664 14.900 14,406 15,004
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The following is an aged analysis of trade receivables net for allowance of doubtful debts at 28 February
2006, 28 February 2007, 29 February 2008 and 31 May 2008:

Within 30 days
31 10 60 days

61 1o 90 days

91 days to | year
Over { year

Total

SKC

As at
31 May 29 February 28 February 28 February
2008 2008 2007 2006
HK$'000 HK$000 HK3'000 HK$'000
5.862 8,124 8,652 7,923
618 2,206 1,899 1,279
1,011 1,542 1,217 1,718
291 1,155 1,031 794
253 96 90 831
8,035 13,123 12,889 12,545

SKC allows an average credit period of 3¢ to 60 days to its customers.

Ageing of trade receivables which are past due but not impaired

61 to 90 days
91 days to 1 year
Over | year

Total

SKC

As at
31 May 29 February 28 February 28 February
2008 2008 2007 2006
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK3$'000
1,011 1,542 1,217 1,718
291 1,155 1,031 794
253 96 90 831
1,555 2,793 2,338 3,343

The fair values of SKC’s trade and other receivables at 28 February 2006, 28 February 2007, 29
February 2008 and 31 May 2008 approximate to the corresponding carrying amounts.

There is no concentration of credit risk with respect to trade receivables, as SKC has a large number of

customers, internationally dispersed.

19. AMOUNTS DUE FROM/(TO) AN ASSOCIATE

SKC Group and SKC

The amounts due were unsccured, interest-free and have no fixed terms of repayment.

20. CASH AND BANK BALANCES

As at 28 February 2006, 28 February 2007, 29 February 2008 and 31 May 2008, cash and cash equivalents of
SKC Group included currencies denominated in RMB amounted to approximately HK$1,719.416, HK$5,387.573,
HK$5.115,433 and HK$3,534,771 respectively which are not freely convertible inte other currencies.
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TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES

SKC Group

The following were an aged analysis of trade payables at the consolidated balance sheet date:

Within 30 days
31 to 60 days

61 10 90 days

91 days to 1 year
Over | year

Total trade payables
Other payables and accruals

As at
31 May 29 February 28 February 28 February
2008 2008 2007 2006
HK$ 000 HK$ 000 HK$ 000 HK$'000
882 2,782 4,358 177
4,736 5,415 4.726 3,164
1,945 731 398 345
102 47 427 27
529 92 608 49
8.194 9,067 10,517 3,762
3,937 5,382 3814 5,680
12,131 14,449 14,331 9,442

The fair values of SKC Group's trade and other payables at 28 February 2006, 28 February 2007, 29
February 2008 and 31 May 2008 approximate to the corresponding carrying amounts.

SKC

The following were an aged analysis of trade payables at the balance sheet date:

Within 30 days
31 to 60 days

61 10 90 days

91 days to | year
Over | year

Total trade payables
Other payables and accruals

As at
31 May 29 February 28 February 28 February
2008 2008 2007 2006
HK$'000 HK§ 000 HK$'000 HK$'000
882 2,782 3,946 177
4,736 5,415 4,675 3,164
1,130 61 398 345
102 47 427 28
529 92 607 48
7.379 8,397 10,053 3,762
2,738 3,713 2,420 4,479
10,117 12,110 12,473 8241

The fair values of SKC’s trade and other payables at 28 February 2006, 28 February 2007, 29 February

2008 and 31 May 2008 approximate to the corresponding carrying amounts.
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22. BORROWINGS

SKC Group and SKC

As at
31 May 29 February 28 February 28 February
2008 2008 2007 2006
HK$'000 HK$ 000 HK3000 HK$'000
Bank loans, secured (note 32) 1,111 1,444 2,778 1,986
The maturities of the above loans
are as follows:
Within one year 1,111 1,444 1,334 1,986
More than one year, but not
exceeding two years - - 1,444 -
1,111 1,444 2,778 1,986
Less: Amounts due within one year
shown under current
liabilities (1,111) (1,444) (1,334) (1,986}
Amounts due after one year - - 1,444 -

The ranges of effective interest rates {which are also equal to contracted interest rates) on SKC Group’s and
SKC's borrowings were as follows:

For the
three months
ended For the year ended
31 May 29 February 28 February 28 February
2008 2008 2007 2006
Effective interest rate:

Fixed rate borrowings 0.75% 0.75% 0.75% 0.75%
Variable-rate borrowings 5.25% 0 5.75% 5.75% t0 1.75% 7.75% to 8% 5% to 1.75%

During the year ended 28 February 2007 and 28 February 2006, SKC Group and SKC obtained new borrowings
in the amount of approximately HK$4,000,000 and HK$6,022,000 respectively. The borrowings bear interest at
market rates and the proceeds were used to finance the working capital.

The fair values of SKC Group's borrowings at each balance sheet dates approximate to the corresponding
carrying amounts.
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23. SHARE CAPITAL

SKC Group and SKC

Number of shares Nominal value
HEK3'000
Authorised:
At 28 February 2006, 28 February 2007, 29 February 2008 !
and 31 May 2008 of HK$1 each 10,000 10 !
|
Issued and fully paid: |
At 28 February 2006, 28 February 2007, 29 February 2008 I
and 31 May 2008 of HK$1 each 10,000 10
24. RESERVES
SKC
Proposed
Share final Retained
premium dividend earnings Total
HK$ 000 HK3$ 000 HK$°000 HK$'000
At | March 2005 16,986 - 10,401 30,387
Profit for the year - - 6,577 6,577
Proposed final dividend - 1,000 (1,000} -
At 28 February 2006
and 1 March 2006 19,986 1,000 15,978 36,964
2006 final dividend declared - (1,000) - (1,000)
Profit for the year - - 8.809 8,809
At 28 February 2007
and 1 March 2007 19,986 - 24,787 44,773
Profit for the year - - 14,020 14,020
Interim dividend declared - - (1,000} (1,000)
Proposed final dividend - 4,000 (4,000) -
At 29 February 2008
and 1 March 2008 19,986 4,000 33,807 57,793
2008 final dividend declared - (4,000) - (4,000)
Profit for the period - - 2,399 2,399
At 31 May 2008 19,986 - 36,206 56,192
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25. MATERIAL RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

In addition to the transactions and balances detailed elsewhere in these Financial Information, SKC Group had
the following material transactions with related parties during the Relevant Periods:

Compensation of key management personnel

The remuneration of key management during the periods/years were as follows:

SKC Group
For the three months ended For the year ended
31 May 31 May 29 February 28 February 28 February
2008 2007 2008 2007 2006

HK$'000 HK$000 HK$'000 HK$ 000 HK$ 000
(Unaudited)

Salaries and other benefits 1,240 1,169 4,231 4,301 4,041
Retirement benefits scheme
contributions 12 12 48 48 36

Short-term employee
benefits 1,252 1,181 4,279 4,349 4,097

The remuneration of key management is determined by the remuneration committee having regard to the
performance of individuals and market trends.

26. OPERATING LEASE
SKC Group as lessee

For the three

months ended For the year ended
31 May 31 May 29 February 28 February 28 Februvary
2008 2007 2008 2007 2006

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
(Unaudited)

Minimum lease payments under
operating leases recognised in
the income statement for the
pericd/year 5,705 4,355 14,639 14,168 14,677

At the balance sheet date, SKC Group had commitments under non-cancellable operating leases, which
fall due as follows:

As at
31 May 29 February 28 February 28 February
2008 2008 2007 2006
HK3'000 HK$'000 HK$ 000 HK$'000
Within one year 13,571 13,571 16,537 13,111
In the second to fifth year inclusive 8,572 14,277 14,956 9,465
22,143 27,848 31,493 22,576

Operating lease payments represent rentals payable by SKC Group for certain of its office premises and
office equipment. Leases for properties are negotiated for terms ranging from three to six years, and those for
office equipment are for terms ranging between (wo and five years.
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27,

At 28 February 2006, 28 February 2007, 29 February 2008 and 31 May 2008, SKC had no commitments
under non-cancellable operating leases.

The above lease commitments only include commitments for basic rentals, and do not include
commitments for additional rental payment (contingent rents), if any, which are to be determined generally by
applying pre-determined percentages to future sales less of the respective leases, as it is not possible to
determine in advance the amount of such additional renials,

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

(a) Categories of financial instruments

SKC Group
As at
31 May 29 February 28 February 28 February
2008 2008 2007 2006
HKS$'000 HK3'000 HK3'000 HK$'000
Financial assets
Loan and receivables
(including cash and cash
egquivalents) 63,354 66,442 45,540 34,174
Financial liabilities
Amortised cost 10,835 12,795 12,840 8,537

(b) Financial risk management objectives and policies

SKC Group’s activities expose it to a variety of financial risks: market risk (including currency risk,
interest rate risk and other price risk), credit risk and liquidity risk. SKC Group’s overall risk management
programme focuses on the unpredictability of financial markets and seeks to minimise potential adverse effects
on SKC Group’s financial performance,

(i)  Market risk

SKC Group’s activities expose it primarily to the financial risks of changes in foreign exchange
rates, interest rates and equity prices, SKC Group enters into a variety of derivative financial
instruments to manage its exposure to foreign currency risks. including:

- forward foreign exchange contracts are entered into in respect of highly probable foreign
currency forecast sales 1o limit its exposure to exchange rate risk in relation to foreign
currency denominated monetary items

Market risk exposures are measured using sensitivity analysis.

There has been no change to SKC Group's exposure to market risks or the manner in which it
manages and measures the risk.

Foreign currency risk management
Several subsidiaries of SKC Group have foreign currency sales and purchases, which
expose SKC Group to foreign currency risk. The management monitors foreign exchange
exposure and will consider hedging significant foreign currency exposure should the need arises.
Certain trade receivables and trade payables of SKC Group are denominated in foreign

currencies. The management monitors foreign exchange exposure and will consider hedging
significant foreign currency exposure should the need arises.

- 139 -



APPENDIX II FINANCIAL INFORMATION ON THE SKC GROUP

The carrying amounts of SKC Group's foreign currency denominated monetary assets and
monetary liabilities at the reporting date are as follows:

SKC Group
As at
31 May 29 February 28 February 28 February
2008 2008 2007 2006
HK§'000 HK$000 HK$'000 HK3$'000
ASSETS
RMB 3,535 5,929 5,643 1,719
LIABILITIES
RMB (210) (298) (297 (1)

Sengitivity analysis
SKC Group is mainly exposed to the effects of fluctuation in RMB,

The following table details SKC Group’s sensitivity to a 5% increase and decrease in the
Hong Kong dollars against the relevant foreign currencies. 5% is the sensitivity rate used when
reporting foreign currency risk internally to key management personnel and represents
management's assessment of the reasonably possible change in foreign exchange rates. The
sensitivity analysis includes outstanding foreign currency denominated monetary items and
foreign currency forward coniracts, and adjusts their translation at the period end for a 5% change
in foreign currency rates. The sensitivity analysis includes external loans as well as loans 1o
foreign operations within SKC Group where the denomination of the loan is in a currency other
than the currency of the lender or the borrower. A positive number below indicates an increase
in profit and other equity where the Hong Kong dollars strengthen 5% against the relevant
currency. For a 5% weakening of the Hong Kong dollars against the relevant currency. there
would be an equal and opposite impact on the profit and other equity. and the balances below
would be negative.

At 31 May 2008, 29 February 2008, 28 February 2007 and 28 February 2006, if the RMB
had weakened/strengthened by 5% against HK dollar with all other variables held constant, the
effect on the foreign exchange losses/gains as a result of translation of RMB would be as follows:

SKC Group
Impact of RMB
As at
31 May 29 February 28 February 28 February
2008 2008 2007 2006
HK$000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
Profit or loss 166 282 267 86

Note:

This is mainly attributable to the exposure outstanding on receivables and payables
denominated in respective currencies at the year end.

Interest rate risk management

SKC Group's cash flow interest rate risk relates primarily te variable-rate borrowings
{Note 22). It is SKC Group’s policy to keep its borrowings at floating rate of interests so as to
minimise the fair value interest rate risk.

SKC Group’s exposures to interest rates on financial assets and financial liabilities are
detailed in the liquidity risk management section of this note. SKC Group's cash flow interest rate
risk is mainly concentrated on the fluctuation of HIBOR arising from SKC Group's Hong Kong
dollar denominated borrowings.
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Sensitivity analysis

The sensitivity analyses below have been determined based on the exposure to interest
rates for both derivatives and non-derivative instruments at the balance sheet date. For
variable-rate borrowings, the analysis is prepared assuming the amount of liability cutstanding at
the balance sheet date was outstanding for the whole year. A 50 basis point increase or decrease
in HIBOR is used when reporting interest rate risk internally to key management personnel and
represents management's assessment of the reasonably possible change in interest rates.

If interest rates had been 50 basis points higher/lower and all other variables were held
constant, SKC Group’s profit for the period/year ended 28 February 2006, 28 February 2007, 29
February 2008 and 31 May 2008 would decreaselincrease by approximately HKS$Nil,
HK$279,527, HK$176,250 and HKS$20,823 respectively. This is mainly attributable to SKC
Group's exposure 1o interest rates on its variable rate borrowings.

SKC Group’s sensitivity to interest rates has decreased during the current period mainly
due to the reduction in variable rate borrowings.

(§i) Credit risk

As at 28 February 2006, 28 February 2007, 29 February 2008 and 31 May 2008, SKC Group’s
maximum exposure to credit risk which will cause a financial loss to SKC Group due to failure to
discharge an obligation by the counterparties and financial guarantees provided by SKC Group is arising
from the carrying amount of the respective recognised financial assets as stated in the consolidated
balance sheet; and

In order to minimise the credit risk, the management of SKC Group has delegated a team
responsible for determination of credit limits, credit approvals and other monitoring procedures to
ensure that follow-up action is taken to recover overdue debts. In addition, SKC Group reviews the
recoverable amount of each individual trade debt and debt investments at each balance sheet date 10
ensure that adequate impairment losses are made for irrecoverable amounts. In this regard, the direciors
of SKC consider that SKC Group’s credit risk is significantly reduced.

The credit risk on liquid funds is limited because the counterparties are banks with high credit
ratings assigned by international credit-rating agencies.

Other than concentration of credit risk on lHquid funds which are deposited with several banks
with high credit ratings, SKC Group does not have any other significant concentration of credit risk.
Trade receivables consist of a large number of customers, spread across diverse industries and
geographical areas.

(fii} Liquidity risk management

Ultimate responsibility for liquidity risk management rests with the board of directors, which has
built an appropriate liquidity risk management framework for the management of SKC Group's short,
medium and long-term funding and liquidity management requirements. SKC Group manages liquidity
risk by maintaining adequate reserves, banking facilities and reserve borrowing facilities, by
continuously monitoring forecast and actual cash flows and matching the maturity profiles of financial
assets and liabilities.

As at 28 February 2006, 28 February 2007, 29 February 2008 and 31 May 2008, SKC Group has

available bank borrowing of approximately HKS$1,986,000, HKS$2,778,000, HK$1,444.000 and
HK$1,111,000 respectively.
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The following tables detail SKC Group’s remaining contractual maturity for its financial
liabilities as well as derivative and certain non-derivative financial assets which are included in the
maturity analysis provided internally to the key management personnel for the purpose of managing
liquidity risk. For non-derivative financial assets, the tables have been drawn up based on the
undiscounted contractual maturities of the financial assets including interest that will be earned on those
assets except where SKC Group anticipates that the cash flow will occur in a different period. For
non-derivative financial liabilities, the tables reflect the undiscounted cash flows of financial liabilities
based on the earliest date on which SKC Group can be required to pay. The tables include both interest

and principal cash flows.

Weighted
average Total Total
effective Within undiscounted carrying
interest rate 1 year 2to 5 years  cash flows amount
% HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$ 000
As at 28 February 2006
Non-derivative financial
assets:
Cash and cash equivalents 20,612 - 20,612 20,612
Others 13,562 - 13,562 13,562
34,174 - 34,174 34,174
Non-derivative financial
liabilities:
Trade and other payables 6,551 - 6,551 6,551
Borrowings 4.5 1,986 - 1,986 1,986
8,537 - 8,537 8.537
25,637 - 25,637 25,637
As at 28 February 2007
Non-derivative financial
assets:
Cash and cash equivalents 33,032 - 33,032 33,032
Others 12,508 - 12,508 12,508
45,540 - 45,540 45,540
Non-derivative financial
liabilities:
Trade and other payables 10,062 - 10,062 10,062
Borrowings 5.5 2,778 - 2,778 2,778
12,840 - 12,840 12,840
32,700 - 32,700 32,700
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Weighted
average Total Total
effective Within undiscounted carrying
interest rate 1 year 2 to 5 years cash flows amount

Yo HK3'000 HK3'000 HK$'000 HK$ 000
As at 29 February 2008

Non-derivative financial

assets:
Cash and cash equivalents 51,980 - 51,980 51,980
Others 14,462 - 14,462 14,462
66,442 - 66,442 66,442
Non-derivative financial
liabilities:
Trade and other payables 11,351 - 11,351 11,351
Borrowings 4.7 1,444 - 1.444 1.444
12,795 - 12,795 12,795
53.647 - 53.647 53,647
As at 31 May 2008
Non-derivative financial
assets:
Cash and cash equivalents 52,504 - 52,504 52,504
Others 10,850 - 10,850 10,850
63,354 - 63,354 63,354
Non-derivative financial
liabilities:
Trade and other payables 9,724 - 9,724 9.724
Borrowings 39 1,1 - 1,111 IR EY
10,835 - 10,835 10,835
52,519 - 52,519 52,519

(c) Fair value of financial instruments
The fair value of financial assets and financial liabilities are determined as follows:

(i) the fair value of financial assets and financial liabilities (including derivative instruments) with
standard terms and conditions and traded on active liquid markets are determined with reference
to quoted market bid prices and ask prices respectively: and

(if)  the fair value of other financial assets and financial liabilities (including derivative instruments)
are determined in accordance with generally accepted pricing models based on discounted cash
flow analysis using prices or rates from observable current market transactions as input. For an
option-based derivative, the fair value is estimated using option pricing model (for example, the
Black-Scholes optien pricing model).

The directors consider that the carrying amounts of financial assets and financial liabilities recorded in
the consolidated financial statements approximate their fair values.
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CAPITAL RISK MANAGEMENT

SKC Group manages its capital to ensure that entities in SKC Group will be able to continue as a going concern
while maximising the return to stakeholders through the optimisation of the debt and equity balance. SKC Group's
overall strategy remains unchanged from prior year.

The capital structure of SKC Group consists of debt (which includes borrowings), cash and cash equivalents
and equity attributable to equity holders of SKC, comprising issued share capital, reserves and accumulated losses.

Gearing ratio

The gearing ratios at 28 February 2006, 28 February 2007, 29 February 2008 and 3] May 2008 were

as follows:
As at
31 May 29 February 28 February 28 February
2008 2008 2007 2006
HK3 000 HK3'000 HK$'000 HK3'000
Debt {note {a)) 1111 1,444 2,778 1,986
Cash and cash equivalents (52,504) {(51,980) (33.032) (20,612)
Net debt (51,393) (50,536) (30.254) (18,626)
Equity {note (8)) 80,548 81.883 60,991 49,231
Gearing ratio N/A N/A N/A N/A
Notes:
(a}  Debt comprises interest-bearing bank borrowings as detailed in note 22,
(b)  Equity includes all capital and reserves of the Group.
PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES
Particulars of SKC’s principal subsidiaries are as follows:
Percentage of equity interest Issued and
Place of attributable to SKC Group fully paid
Name of incorporation 31 May 29 February 28 February 28 February share capitel Principal
subsidiaries registration 2008 2008 2007 2006 (note (a)) activities
Direct subsidiaries
Billion Treasure Hong Kong 100 100 100 100 500,000 shares Retailing of
International of HK§1 children
Limited each apparels
Profit Dynamic Hong Kong 100 100 100 100 500,000 shares Dormant
Limited of HK$I
each
Yunli {Shanghai} Shanghai 100 100 100 100 Registered and  Trading of
Trading Co. fully paid children
Limited capital of apparels
HK3$4,000,000
Note:
(a)  Unless stated otherwise, issued and fully paid share capital or registered capital of each of SKC's principal

subsidiaries are the same throughout the Relevant Periods.

None of the subsidiaries had issued any debt securities at the Relevant Periods.

— 144 -




APPENDIX 11 FINANCIAL INFORMATION ON THE SKC GROUP

30. PRINCIPAL ASSOCIATE

Particulars of SKC Group's principal associate is as follows:

Percentage of equily interest

Place of attributable to SKC Group Issued and
incorporation 31 May 29 February 28 February 28 February fully paid Principal
Name of associate  registration 2008 2008 2007 2006 share capital  activities
Easi-Bloom (S) Singapore 46.67 46.67 46.67 46.67 500,000 shares Trading of
Pte Limited of SGD | children
each apparels

31.  CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

SKC and SKC Group have no material contingent liabilitics as at 28 February 2006, 28 February 2007, 29 February
2008 and 31 May 2008.

32. PLEDGE OF ASSETS

SKC Group
31 May 29 February 28 February 28 February
2008 2008 2007 2006
HK3'000 HK3000 HKS$'000 HK$000
Deposits in banks 2.027 2,000 2,013 2.014

The amount represents assets pledged to banks to secure banking facilities granted to the Group. The pledged assets
will be released upon the settlement of relevant bank borrowings.

33. EARNINGS PER SHARE

Earnings per share has not been presented as such information is not considered meaningful having regard to the
purpose of this report,

B. SUBSEQUENT FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

No audited financial statements have been prepared for SKC Group in respect of any
period subsequent to 31 May 2008. No dividend has been declared by SKC Group in respect
of any period subsequent to 31 May 2008.

Yours faithfully,

HLB Hodgson Impey Cheng
Chartered Accountants
Certified Public Accountants
Hong Kong
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The following is the text of a report, prepared for the sole purpose of incorporation in this
circular, received from the independent reporting accountants, HLB Hodgson Impey Cheng,
Chartered Accountants, Certified Public Accountants, Hong Kong.

31/F, Gloucester Tower
The Landmark

HLB B #f #3606 F % 5 Il Pedder Street
Hodgson Impey Cheng Central
Chartered Accountants Hong Kong

Certified Public Accountants

The Board of Directors

Wo Kee Hong (Holdings) Limited
10th Floor, Block A

Wo Kee Hong Buildings

585-609 Castle Peak Road

Kwai Chung, New Territories
Hong Kong

26 September 2008
Dear Sirs,

We report on the unaudited pro forma financial information of Wo Kee Hong (Holdings)
Limited (the “Company™) and its subsidiaries (hereinafter collectively referred to as the
“Group™), SKC Group Limited (“SKC”) and its subsidiary (collectively referred to as “SKC
Group”) (together with the Group hereinafter referred to as the “Enlarged Group”) set out on
pages 148 to 154 under the headings of “Pro Forma Financial Informaticn on the Enlarged
Group” (the “Unaudited Pro Forma Financial Information”) in Appendix III of the Company’s
circular dated 26 September 2008 (the “Circular™) in connection with the proposed acquisition
of 80% issued share capital in SKC (the “Acquisition”). The Unaudited Pro Forma Financial
Information has been prepared by the directors of the Company, for illustrative purposes only,
to provide information about how the Acquisition, which will result in the formation of the
Enlarged Group, might have affected the relevant financial information presented, for inclusion
in Appendix 111 of the Circular. The basis of preparation of the Unaudited Pro Forma Financial
Information is set out on page 148 of Appendix Il to this Circular.

Respective responsibilities of directors of the Company and reporting accountants

It is the responsibility solely of the directors of the Company to prepare the Unaudited Pro
Forma Financial Information in accordance with rule 4.29 of the Rules Governing the Listing
of Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Listing Rules™) and with
Accounting Guideline 7 “Preparation of Pro Forma Financial Information for Inclusion in
Investment Circulars” issued by Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants (the
“HKICPA™).
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It is our responsibility to form an opinion, as required by rule 4.29(7) of the Listing Rules,
on the Unaudited Pro Forma Financial Information and to report our opinion solely to you. We
do not accept any responsibility for any reports previously given by us on any financial
information used in the compilation of the Unaudited Pro Forma Financial Information beyond
that owed to those to whom those reports were addressed by us at the dates of their issue.

Basis of opinion

We conducted our engagement in accordance with Hong Kong Standard on Investment
Circular Reporting Engagements (“HKSIR”) 300 *Accountants’ Reports on Pro Forma
Financial Information in Investment Circulars” issued by the HKICPA. Qur work consisted
primarily of comparing the unadjusted financial information with the source documents,
considering the evidence supporting the adjustments and discussing the Unaudited Pro Forma
Financial Information with the directors of the Company. This engagement did not involved
independent examination of any of the underlying financial information.

We planned and performed our work so as to obtain the information and explanations we
considered necessary in order to provide us with sufficient evidence to give reasonable
assurance that the Unaudited Pro Forma Financial Information has been properly compiled by
the directors of the Company on the basis stated, that such basis is consistent with the
accounting policies of the Group and that the adjustments are appropriate for the purposes of
the Unaudited Pro Forma Financial Information as disclosed pursuant to rule 4.29(1) of the
Listing Rules.

The Unaudited Pro Forma Financial Information is for illustrative purposes only, based
on the judgements and assumptions of the directors of the Company, and because of its
hypothetical nature, it does not provide any assurance or indication that any event will take
place in the future and may not be indicative of:

—  the financial position of the Enlarged Group as at 31 December 2007 or any future
date, or

—  the results and cash flows of the Enlarged Group for the year ended 31 December
2007 or any future periods.

Opinion
In our opinion:

(a) the Unaudited Pro Forma Financial Information has been properly compiled by the
directors of the Company on the basis stated;

(b) such basis is consistent with the accounting policies of the Group; and

(c} the adjustments are appropriate for the purpose of the Unaudited Pro Forma
Financial Information as disclosed pursuant to rule 4.29(1) of the Listing Rules.

Yours faithfully,

HLB Hodgson Impey Cheng
Chartered Accountants
Certified Public Accountants
Hong Kong
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INTRODUCTION TO THE UNAUDITED PRO FORMA FINANCIAL INFORMATION
ON THE ENLARGED GROUP

The following is the unaudited pro forma financial information on the Enlarged Group as
if the Acquisition has been completed on 31 December 2007 for the unaudited pro forma
consolidated balance sheet and on | January 2007 for the unaudited pro forma consolidated
income statement and the unaudited pro forma consolidated cash flow statement. The
accompanying unaudited pro forma financial information on the Enlarged Group has been
prepared to illustrate the effect of the Acquisition at a consideration of HK$96,200,000.

The accompanying unaudited pro forma financial information on the Enlarged Group is
based on certain assumption, estimates, uncertainties and other currently available financial
information, and is provided for illustrative purposes only and because of its hypothetical
nature. it may not give a true picture of the actual financial position and financial results of the
Enlarged Group’s operations that would have been attained had the Acquisition actually
occurred on the dates indicated herein. Further, the accompanying unaudited pro forma
financial information on the Enlarged Group does not purport to predict the Enlarged Group’s

future financial position or results of operations.

The unaudited pro forma financial information of the Enlarged Group should be read in
conjunctions with the historical financial information on the Group as set out in Appendix I and
the Accountants’ Report of SKC Group as set out in Appendix II and other financial

information included elsewhere in this Circular.
(i) Unaudited Pro Forma Consolidated Balance Sheet of the Enlarged Group

The following is the unaudited pro forma consolidated balance sheet of the Enlarged
Group, assuming that the Acquisition has been completed on 31 December 2007. The unaudited
pro forma consolidated balance sheet is based on the audited consolidated balance sheet of the
Group as at 31 December 2007 as set out in Appendix [ to this Circular and the audited
consolidated balance sheet of SKC Group as at 29 February 2008 as set out in Appendix I to
this Circular, after making pro forma adjustments relating to the Acquisition that are (i) directly
attributable to the transactions; and (it) factually supportable.

As the unaudited pro forma consolidated balance sheet of the Enlarged Group has been
prepared for illustrative purpose only and because of its hypothetical nature, it may not give
a true picture of the financial position of the Enlarged Group after completion of the
Acquisition as at the date to which it is made up to or at any future date.
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The Group SKC Group

as at as at Pro forma The
31 December 29 February adjustment Enlarged
2007 2008 Sub-total {Note 1) Group
HK$'600 HK$ 000 HKS$ 000 HKS$ 000 HK§'000
Non-current assets
Investment properties 9,600 - 9,600 9,600
Property, plant and equipment 44,541 3,764 48,305 48,305
Prepaid lease payments 1.558 - 1.558 1.558
Goodwill 2,787 - 2,787 30.694% 33,481
Interests in associates - 1.098 1,098 1.098
Available-for-sale financial assels 30,527 360 30,887 30,887
Deferred tax assets 16 - 16 16
89,029 5.222 94,251 124,945
Current assets
Inventories 124,993 21.695 146,688 146,688
Properties held for sale, at net
realisable value 23,400 - 23.400 23,400
Trade and other receivables 185.075 20.863 205,938 205.938
Amounts due from associates 14.260 - 14,260 14,260
Other financial assets at
fair value through profit or
loss 17 - 17 17
Cash and cash equivalents 363,949 51,980 415,929 (96,2001 319,729
711,694 94,538 806.232 710,032
Current liabilities
Trade and other payables 243,956 14,449 258,405 258,405
- Bills payable 36,758 - 36,758 36,758
Tax payable 162 1.844 2.006 2,006
Amoumts due to related
companies 1,343 - 1,343 1,343
Amount due to an associale - 140 140 140
Convertible loan note 30,207 - 30,207 30,207
Obligation under finance leases
— due within one year 936 - 936 936
Borrowings — due within
one year 70,827 1.444 72,271 72271
384,189 17.877 402,066 402,066
Net current assets 327,505 76,661 404,166 307,966
Total assets less current

liabilities 416,534 81,883 498,417 432,911
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The Group SKC Group

as at as at Pro forma The
31 December 29 February adjustment Enlarged
2007 2008 Sub-total {Note 1} Group
HK3$'000 HK$'000 HK3°000 HK$ 000 HK$'000
Non-current liabilities
Obligations under finance leases
— due after one year 168 - 168 163
Barrowings — due after one year 13,506 - 13,506 13,506
Deferred tax liabilities 6 - 6 6
13,680 - 13,680 13,680
Net assets 402,854 81.883 484,737 419,231
Capital and reserves
Share capital 255,314 10 255,324 10y 255314
Reserves 125,064 $1.873 206,937 (81.873)% 125,064
Equity auributable to equity
holders of the Company 380,378 81.883 462,261 380,378
Minority interests 22,476 - 22,476 16,3779 38,853
Total equity 402,854 81,883 484,737 419,231

(ii) Unaudited Pro Forma Consolidated Income Statement of the Enlarged Group

The following is the unaudited pro forma consolidated income statement of the Enlarged
Group, assuming that the Acquisition has been completed on | January 2007. The unaudited
pro forma consolidated income statement is based on the audited consolidated income
statement of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2007 as set out in Appendix 1 to this
Circular and the audited consolidated income statement of SKC Group for the year ended 29
February 2008 as set out in Appendix II to this Circular, after making pro forma adjustments
relating to the Acquisition that are (i) directly attributable to the transactions; and (ii) factually
supportable.

As the unaudited pro forma consolidated income statement of the Enlarged Group has
been prepared for iltustrative purpose only and because of its hypothetical nature, it may not
give a true picture of the results of the Enlarged Group after completion of the Acquisition for

the year ended to which it is made up to or for any future period.
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The Group  SKC Group
for the year for the year
ended ended Pro forma The
31 December 29 February adjustment Enlarged
2007 2008 Sub-total {Note 2) Group
HK$ 000 HK$ 000 HK$ 000 HK$'000 HKS$'000
Turnover 1,153,201 159.679 1,312,880 1.312.880
Cost of sales (938.222) {70.339) (1,008.561) (1,008,561)
Gross profit 214.979 89,340 304,319 304,319
Other operating income 4,479 1.218 5,697 5,697
Distribution costs (72,125) (49,564) (121,68%9) (121,689)
Administrative expenses (145,220} (15.650) (160,870) (160,870)
Fair value gains on investment
properties 2,022 - 2,022 2,022
Profit from operations 4,135 25,344 29.479 29,479
Finance cost {14,355) {1,350) (15.705) (15,705)
Impairment on available-for-sale
financial assets {6,000} - (6,000) (6,000)
Provision for guarantee (7,500n - (7,500) (7.500)
Gain on disposal of subsidiaries 76,021 - 76,021 76.021
Loss on disposal of an associate (1,968) - {1.968) (1,968)
Share of results of associates (1,169) - (1.169) (1.169)
Profit before tax 49,164 23,994 73,158 73,158
Income tax expenses (6,256) (2.650) (8.906) (8,906)
Profit for the year 42,908 21,344 64,252 64,252
Attributable to:
Equity holders of the Company 35,677 21,344 57,021 (4,269} 52,752
Minority interest 7,231 - 7,231 4,269 11,500
42,908 21,344 64,252 64.252
Dividends - 5,000 5,000 5,000

(iii) Unaudited Pro Forma Consolidated Cash Flow Statement of the Enlarged Group

The following is the unaudited pro forma consolidated cash flow statement of the
Enlarged Group, assuming that the Acquisition has been completed on 1 January 2007. The
unaudited consolidated cash flow statement is based on the audited consolidated cash flow
statement of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2007 as set out in Appendix 1 to this
Circular and the audited consolidated cash flow statement of SKC Group for the year ended 29
February 2008 as set out in Appendix Il to this Circular, after making pro forma adjustments
relating to the Acquisition that are (i) directly attributable to the transactions; and (ii) factually
supportable.

As the unaudited pro forma consolidated cash flow of the Enlarged Group has been
prepared for illustrative purpose only and because of its hypothetical nature, it may not give
a true picture of the cash flow of the Eniarged Group after completion of the Acquisition for
the year ended to which it is made up to or for any future period.
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The Group  SKC Group
for the year  for the year

ended ended Pro forma The
31 December 29 February adjustment Enlarged
2007 2008 Sub-total {Note 3) Group
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$ 000 HK$'000 HK$ 000
Operating activities
Profit before tax 49.164 23,994 73,158 73,158
Adjustments for:
Share of results of associates 1.169 - 1,169 1,169
Interest income (1,922) (533) (2,455) (2,455)
Interest expenses 14,013 1.350 15,363 15,363
Finance lease charges 20 - 20 20
Depreciation 10,754 1,705 12,459 12,459
Amortisation of prepaid lease
payments 5 - 5 5
(Gain)/loss on disposal of
property, plant and
equipment (444) 353 (91N 9n
Fair value gain on other
financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss (6) - (6) {6)
Fair value gain on derivative
financial instruments 57) - (57 57
Provision for guarantee 7,500 - 7,500 71.500
Fair value gains on investment
properties (2.022) - (2,022) (2,022)
Gain on disposal of
subsidiaries {(76,021) - (76,021) (76.021)
Loss on disposal of an
associate 1.968 - 1,968 1,968
Impairment loss on goodwill 118 - 118 118
Impairment loss on
available-for-sale
financial assets 6,000 - 6,000 6,000
Share-based payment expenses 2,153 - 2,153 2,153
Operating cash flows before
movements in working
capital 12,392 26,869 39,261 39,261
Decrease/(increase)} in inventories 26,026 (116) 25,910 25910
Increase in trade and other
receivables (36,300) (1,150} (37,451) (37.451)
Increase/(decrease) in amounts
due from associates (10,309) 342 (9.967) (9,967)
Increase in trade and other
payables 76,927 131 77,058 77.058
Decrease in bills payables (9.226) - (9,226) {9.226)
Decrease in amounis due to
related companies (5,571) - {5,571) (5.571)
Cash generated from operations 53,938 26,076 80,014 80,014
Hong Kong Profits Tax paid (693} (1,493) {2,188} (2,188)
Net cash generated from
operating activities 53,245 24,581 77,826 77.826
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Investing activities

Purchase of property, plant and
equipment

Proceeds from disposal of
property, plant and equipment

Proceeds from disposal of un
associate

Net cash inflow/{outflows) from
acquisition of subsidiaries

Net cash inflow from disposal of
subsidiaries

Interest received

Net cash generated from/
(used in) investing activities

Financing activities

New bank loans

Proceeds from exercise of share
options

Repayment of bank loans

Interest paid

Repayment of obligations under
finance leases

Finance lease charges paid

Dividend paid

Net cash used in financing
aclivities

Net increase in cash and cash
equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents at
1 January

Effect of foreign currency
exchange rate changes

Cash and cash equivalents at
31 December

Analysis of the balances of cash
and cash equivalents

Being:
Cash and cash equivalents
Bank overdrafts

The Group SKC Group
for the year  for the year
ended ended
31 December 29 February
2007 2008 Sub-total
HK3 000 HK3'000 HK3°000
(32,673) (3,030} {35,703)
1,983 - 1,983
6.791 - 6,791
3 - 8
352,746 - 352,746
1,922 533 2.455
330,777 (2,497) 328.280
496,629 - 496.62%
2,587 ~ 2,587
(528.963) (1.334) (530.297)
(13.355) (1.350) (14,705)
{1.404) - {1.404)
(20) - 20}
- (1.000) (1,000}
(44,526} (3.684) (48,210)
339.496 18.400 357.896
22,023 33,032 55,055
1.847 548 2,395
363,366 51.980 415,346
363,949 51.980 415,929
(583) - {583)
363.366 51,980 415,346
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Pro forma The
adjustment

Enlarged
Group
HK$ 000

(Note 3)
HKE'000

(35.703)
1,983
6,791

(96.200) (96,192)

352,746
2,455

232,080

496.629

2,587
(530.297)
(14,705)
(1,404)

(20)
{1,000)

(48,210)

261,696
55,055

2,395

319,146

(96.200) 319,729

(583)
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Notes to the Unaudited Pro Forma Financial Information on the Enlarged Group

Under HKFRS 3 Business Combinations ("HKFRS 3"}, the Group will apply the purchase method to account
for the acquisition of SKC Group. In applying the purchase method, the identifiable assets, liabilities and
contingent liabilities of SKC Group will be recorded on the conselidated balanee sheet of the Group at their
fair values at the date of completion. Any goodwill or discount arising on the acquisition will be determined
as the excess or deficit of the purchase price 1o be incurred by the Group over the Group's interest in the net
fair value of the identifinble assets, liabilities and contingent liabilities of SKC Group at the date of
completion. Negative goodwill resulting from the business combinations should be recognised immediately in
the consolidated income statement.

For the purpose of this pro forma financial information, the values of assets and liabilities of SKC Group as
at 31 May 2008 and the Consideration were taken 1o be the fair values for consolidation purpose.

The adjustment reflects the following:

(i) Goodwill of approximately HK$30,694.000 arising from the Acquisition of which is derived from the
Consideration of HK$96,200,000 less the 80% net assets of SKC Group of approximately
HKS$81,883,000 as at 31 May 2008.

(#)  Cash and cash equivalents of HK$96,200,000 represents the cash consideration paid for the Acquisition
by the Group.

(iii)  Pursuant to the Sale and Purchase Agreement, Smart Apex has granted the Put Option to the Vendors
exercisable during the period from | January 2011 to 31 December 2015 by serving a writlen notice on
Smart Apex requiring Smart Apex to purchase up to 20% of the issued share capital of SKC. As the
exercise price of the Put Option is to be calculated by reference to the relevant audited consolidated net
profit of SKC at the time of the exercise of the Put Option, the maximum total consideration payable
by Smart Apex under the Put Option cannot be determined until the Put Option being exercised. For the
purpose of this pro forma financial information, the put option was outside the scope of HKAS 39 and
would be accounted for using a cost model and the estimated value of the Put Option was insignificant.

(iv) Share capital of approximately HK$10,000 represents the elimination of the issued share capital of SKC
Group upon consolidation.

(v)  Reserves of approximately HK$81,873,000 represent the climination of pre-acquisition reserve of SKC
Group upon consolidation.

(vi) Minority interest of approximately HK$16,377.000 represents the increase in minority interest upon
acquisition of SKC Group.

The pro forma adjustments on profit for the year atiributable Lo equity holders and minority interests of
approximately HK$4,269,000 represent the allocaion of 20% profit for the year of SKC Group to minority

shareholders.

The pro forma adjustment included in the unaudited pro forma consolidated cash flow statement of
approximately HK$96,200,000 represents the cash consideration paid for the Acquisition by the Group.
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A. STATEMENT OF INDEBTEDNESS

Borrowings

As at the close of the business on 31 July 2008, being the Latest Practicable Date
for the purpose of this indebtedness statement prior to the printing of this circular, the
Enlarged Group had outstanding borrowings and contingent liabilities amounting to
approximately HK$163,848,000 and HK$357,006,000 respectively, details of which are
as follows:

HK$

Bank borrowings:
— secured (Note) 129,288,000
— unsecured 4,352,000
133,640,000
Obligations under finance leases 208,000
Principal amount of convertible loan note outstanding 30,000,000
163,848,000

Note:

As at 31 July 2008, the Enlarged Group's bank borrowings of HK$129,288,000 are secured by certain
of the Group’s land and buildings, Properties held for sales, inventories, investment properties, bank
deposits, property, plant and equipment and all assets of a subsidiary.

Contingent liabilities

{a) As at 31 July 2008, the Company had provided corporate guarantees to certain
banks for banking and other facilities made available to subsidiaries in amount
of approximately HK$327,897,000.

(b) As at 31 July 2008, the Company had provided other guarantees issued for
subsidiaries in the amount of approximately HK$14,259,000.

(c) Under a share acquisition agreement signed on 16 May 2008, a subsidiary of
the Company agrees to acquire 60% of the issued share capital in Creative
Pacific Limited at a consideration of HK$19,500,000. The batance of the
consideration of HK$9,750,000 is subject to adjustments as detailed in the
circular of the Company dated 6 June 2008 shall be paid in two installments.
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(d) Under a share purchase and subscription agreement signed on 30 June 2006, a
subsidiary of the Company provide a guarantee amounting to a maximum of
RMBI! million (approximately HK$11.8 million) in settlement of certain
liabilities of the disposed entity incurred prior to disposal. Approximately
HK$8,450,000 were paid under the guarantee and has been recognised in the
consolidated financial statements of the Group. At 31 July 2008, the
outstanding balance of the guarantee was approximately HK$5,100,000.

(e} The SKC Group did not have any contingent liabilities as at 31 July 2008.
Disclaimer

Save as disclosed above and apart from intra-group liabilities, the Enlarged Group
did not have any loan capital issued and outstanding or agreed to be issued, any loan
capital, bank overdrafts and liabilities under acceptances or other similar indebtedness,
debentures, mortgages, charges or loans or acceptance credits or hire purchase
commitments, capital commitments, guarantees or other material contingent liabilities as
at the close of business on 31 July 2008.

Subsequent material changes

Save as disctosed above, the Directors have confirmed that there was no significant
change in indebtedness and contingemt liabilitics of the Enlarged Group from 31 July
2008 and up to the Latest Practicable Date.

B. WORKING CAPITAL

As at the Latest Practicable Date, after taking into account of the available credit facilities
and the internal resources of the Enlarged Group, the Directors were of the opinion that the
Enlarged Group had sufficient working capital for the 12-month period from the date of this

circular.
C. MATERIAL ADVERSE CHANGE
As at the Latest Practicable Date, the Directors were not aware of any material adverse

change in the financial or trading position of the Group since 31 December 2007, being the date

to which the latest audited financial statements of the Group were made up.
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D. FINANCIAL AND TRADING PROSPECTS OF THE ENLARGED GROUP

Upon Completion, the Enlarged Group will continue the existing principal activities of
the Group, namely, the import, marketing, distribution and after sales services of high quality,
brand-name products, including cars and car accessories, motor yachts, helicopters, premium
apparel and accessories, air-conditioning and refrigeration products, audio-visual equipment,
car audio and electronic products, in the Asian region. As stated in the annual report of the
Company for the year 2007, the Group will continue to shift to the new business focus of
lifestyle brand building and distribution networking.

It is expected that the brand-name “Kingkow” will expand the present platform of the
brand-name fashion business of the Group to infants and children clothing and accessories. The
fashion and accessories business of the Group currently consist of the import, distribution,
sub-licensing and retailing of several fashion brands, ranging from high-class fashien to
designer casual wear, including Italian “John Richmond”, “Richmond ‘X'”, “Richmond
Denim” and “Sweet Years”. The points of sales of the SKC Group in China will add to the
distribution and retail network of the Group to enable the Enlarged Group to further expand
into the fast-growing and high profit margin lifestyle fashion and accessories brands market in
the PRC.

E. MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS OF THE RESULTS OF THE
GROUP

Set out below is the management discussion and analysis of the operating results and
business review extracted from the respective annual reports of the Company for each of the
years ended 31 December 2005, 2006 and 2007 and the interim report of the Company for the
six months ended 30 June 2008.

For the year ended 31 December 2005
Business review and prospect
Cars and car accessories

The business consists mainly of import, distribution and after-sale service of
“Ferrari” and “Maserati” cars and spare parts in Hong Kong and Macau. Sales increased
by 20.1% to HK$377.8 million during the year, attributable to strong sales of “Ferrari”
and “Marerati” cars in Hong Kong and increase in workshop service income.
Motor yachts

The business consist of distribution of the Italian “Ferretti” motor yachts in the PRC.

The Group was appeinted as the regional distributor of “Ferretti” motor yachts during the
year, Good sales growth potential was expected of this business.
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Electrical appliances

The business consists of marketing and distribution of a wide range of consumer and
commercial air-conditioning from three major brands, namely “MHI” (Mitsubishi Heavy
Industries of Japan), “GREE” and “Bodysonic™; and audio-visual products of the Group’s
own, “Rogers” and “Bedysonic”; audio-visual products of Japan, “Marantz” and
“Sansui”, car electronics of Japan, “Alpine” and wholesaling of electrical appliances of
Korea, “LG”.

Turnover of air-conditioning products for the year was down by 19.9% partly due to
the shifting of the “LG” business from exclusive distributorship to wholesaling effective
1 July 2005. “MHI” also ceased the production of its range of commercial watercooled
packaged units and caused a decrease in sales.

Sales of audio-visual and other electrical products recorded a growth of 54.3%
during the year due to the improved economic conditions in the major markets of the
Group including Hong Kong, Singapore and Malaysia.

The Group has a' 50% owned joint venture which engaged in the design and
manufacture of washing machines under the “Jinling” brand for sale in the PRC and as
an original equipment manufacturer for customers in Africa, Latin America, Middle East
and South East Asia. Although sales has increased during the year, gross margins were
under high pressure due to the increase in costs of raw materials. Share of loss in the joint
venture for the year amounted to HK$23.5 million.

Property leasing

Rental income from investment properties in Hong Kong and PRC has increased
during the year.

Prospects

There was no plan for material investment or acquisition of capital assets during the
year.

Financial review
Turnover

For the year ended 31 December 2005, the Group recorded a turnover of HK$689.8
million, a growth of 11.5% compared to the year ended 31 December 2004. The increase
was mainly attributable to a recovery of the business of the Group during the year.
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Gross profit

Gross profit margin decreased by 0.8% from 21.2% for the year ended 31 December
2004 to 20.4% for the year ended 31 December 2005, mainly due to the increase in
product costs of cars during the year. Gross profit for the year increased by HK$9.3
million to HK$140.4 million.

Distribution costs and administrative expenses

Distribution costs decreased by HK$5.5 million due to the effectiveness of the
cost-saving measures introduced.

Administrative expenses increased by HK$14.6 million from HK$80.5 million to
HK$95.1 million mainly attributable to the corresponding increase in turnover and
expenses to enhance overall operation capability, particularly in the car business,

Profit from operations

Profit from operations for the year was HK$76.3 million. The increase was mainly
due to the gain from the setilement of the debt in the amount of HK$135 million due to
Mitsubishi Heavy Industries Ltd. for HK$46.8 million during the year.

Other operating income of HK$10.7 million was mainly derived from rental income
received from the investment properties of the Group.

Basic earnings per share

Earnings per share attributable to Shareholders (based on profit attributable 1o
Shareholders of approximately HK$35,461,000 and on weighted average number of
221,615,433 ordinary shares in issued during the year) for the year ended 31 December
2005 was HKO.16.

Capital structure

There has been no change in the capital structure of the Company during the year
under review.

Significant investments
As at 31 December 2005, the Group did not have any significant investments.
Material acquisitions and disposal

There has been no material acquisition or disposal during the year.
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Gearing ratio
The Group’s long term gearing ratio based on non-current liabilities (excluding
deferred tax) of HK$48.4 million and shareholders’ equity of HK$301 million was 16.1%.

The current ratio was 1.0, based on current assets of HK$242.4 million and current
liabilities of HK$241.6 million.

Liquidity and financial resources

The Group was financed by a combination of its equity capital base, cash flow
generated from operations and bank borrowings. During the year, the Company has issued
a 7.25% convertible loan note with a principal amount of HK$30,000,000.

Cash and cash equivalents at 31 December 2005 were HK$18.6 million.

The Group had total borrowings of approximately HK$83.1 million as at 31
December 2005.

Charge of assets

The Group had trading facilities of approximately HK$200.1 million as at 31
December 2005, of which HK$107.9 million was utilised. Certain of the Group’s
properties, inventories, trade receivables and all assets of a subsidiary in an aggregate
amount of HK$305.6 million were pledged to secure the facilities.

Capital commitment

As at 31 December 2005, the Group did not have any material contingent liabilities.
Foreign exchange exposure and hedging policy

It is the management practice of the Group to hedge foreign currency transactions
with the objective to stablise the cost via the pegging of the exchange rates with bankers.
Accordingly, the Group was not exposed to material flucteations in exchange rates and
related hedges during the year. As at 31 December 2005, the total outstanding foreign
exchange contracts purchased with banks amounted to HK$3.9 million.
Contingent liabilities

As at 31 December 2005, the Group has contingent liabilities of approximately
HK$1.3 million in respect of proceedings involving a subsidiary in India and of
approximately HK$10,333,000 arising out of an option granted to a connected person.

Dividend

No dividend is recommended for the year ended 31 December 2005.
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Human resources

As at 31 December 2003, the total number of employees of the Group was 316, with
a 11.7% increase from the year 2004. The increase in headcount was mainly due to the
expansion of the car business and the opening of the new 38 centre for motor cars in Hong
Kong. Staff costs, including Directors’ emoluments for the year was approximately
HK$63.3 million. Management is committed to staff motivation, training and improving
communication to build a stable, competitive and dynamic workforce.

For the year ended 31 December 2006
Business review and prospect
Cars and car accessories

The business consists mainly of impori, distribution and after-sale service of
“Ferrari” and “Maserati” cars and spare parts in Hong Kong and Macau together with the
retailing of “Ferrari” and “Maserati” cars in Dalian, the PRC. Sales increased by 45.7%
to HK$550.6 million during the year, attributable to strong sales of “Ferrari” new and
used cars and increase in workshop service income. Sale of “Maserati” cars also increased
with the launched of the Quattroporte Sport and Executive GT sedans, GranSport LE and
GranSport Spyder.

The Group was appointed as the exclusive importer of “Alfa Romeo” cars in Hong
Kong and Macau in the second half of 2006.

Motor yachts

The business consist of distribution of the Italian “Ferretti” motor yachts in the PRC
and the luxurious Taiwanese “Horizon” motor yachts in Hong Kong, Macau and the PRC,
Achievements were made in setting up distribution, logistics and promotion of these
brands.

Electrical appliances

The business consists of marketing and distribution of a wide range of consumer and
commercial air-conditioning and home appliance products from several major brands,
namely “MHI" (Mitsubishi Heavy Industries of Japan), “Frigidaire”, “GREE",
“Daewoo”, “Sansui” and “Bodysonic”; and audio-visual products of the Group’s own,
“Rogers” and “Bodysonic™; audio-visual products of Japan and the United States of
America, “Marantz”, “Denon” and “Sansui” and car elecironics of Japan, “Alpine”. These
product ranges are well placed in the marketplace to suvit the needs of different market

segments.

Sales for the year 2006 dropped by 27.3% due to the unsatisfactory performance of
the audio-visual business. The Group intended to scale back the audio visual business.
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Property leasing

A new business department was formed in September 2006 to focus on the leasing
of the Group’s properties, namely Wo Kee Hong Building in Hong Kong and several
smaller properties in China. Total monthly income received from cutside tenants during
the year increased by over 50% through increase in occupation rate, rental rates and
improved building management.

Prospects

There was no plan for material investment or acquisition of capital assets during the
year.

Financial review
Turnover

For the year ended 31 December 2006, the Group recorded a turnover of HK$786.6
million, a growth of 12.8% compared to the year ended 31 December 2005. The increase
was mainly attributable to the robust growth of the car operations although performance
of the audio visual products business was unsatisfactory.

Gross profit

Gross profit margin decreased by 0.7% from 21.2% for the year ended 31 December
2005 to 20.5% for the year ended 31 December 2006, mainly due to the increase in
product costs of cars during the year. Gross profit for the year increased by HK$13.5
million to HK$161.6 million.

Distribution costs and administrative expenses

Distribution costs up by 9.3% to HK$55.1 million mainly due to corresponding
increase in turnover during the year.

Administrative expenses increased by HK$25.1 million from HK$95.1 million to
HK$120.2 million mainly attributable to the corresponding increase in turnover and
various non-recurring transactional costs.

Profit from operations

Profit from operations for the year was HK$27.7 million, which was less than the
amount of HK$76.3 million recorded for the year ended 31 December 2005. The decrease
was because a one-off gain on settlement of a loan in 2005 was recorded in the year 2005
and there were various non-recurring transactional costs incurred in 2006.

Other operating income of HK$16.2 million was mainly attributable to a gain arising
from the negative goodwill of HK$8 million in relation to the share exchange with China
Premium Lifestyle Enterprise Inc. and the non-recurring gain of HK$5.9 million on
disposal of “product distribution rights” associated with the disposal of an associated
company in Jiangmen, the PRC.
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A property-related net profit of HK$25.2 million was recorded reflecting the upward
adjustment arising from revaluation of properties as well as the loss incurred on disposal
of investment properties.

Basic earnings per share

Earnings per share attributable to Shareholders (based on profit attributable to
Shareholders of approximately HK$7,114,000 and on weighted average number of
221,615,433 ordinary shares in issued during the year) for the year ended 31 December
2006 was HK$0.03.

Capital structure

Pursuant to a resolution passed by the shareholders of the Company at a special
general meeting held on 15 June 2006, every ten issued and unissued ordinary shares of
HK$0.10 each in the share capital of the Company as at that date were consolidated into
one share of HK$1.00 each. The share consolidation became effective on 15 June 2006.

Significant investments
As at 31 December 2006, the Group did not have any significant investments.
Material acquisitions and disposal

During the year, the Company disposed of interest in certain subsidiaries. Corich
Enterprises Inc., an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company, disposed of 39%
interest in Technorient Limited in consideration for the issue by China Premium Lifestyle
Enterprise Inc. of an aggregate of 727,273 preference convertible shares of par value of
US$0.001 each in China Premium Lifestyle Enterprise Inc. convertible into 67,057,843
common shares of par value of US$0.001 each in China Premium Lifestyle Enterprise
Inc.. The resulting loss of the disposal was approximately HK$15.9 miilion.

Gearing ratio

The Group’s long term gearing ratio based on non-current liabilities (excluding
deferred tax) of HK$42 million and shareholders’ equity of HK$304 million was 13.8%.
The current ratio was 1.1, based on current assets of HK$368.2 million and current
liabilities of HK$340.8 million.

Liquidity and financial resources

The Group was financed by a combination of its equity capital base, cash flow
generated from operations and bank borrowings.
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Cash and cash equivalents at 31 December 2006 were HK$22 millien.

The Group had total borrowings of approximately HK$134 million as at 31
December 2006.

Charge of assets

The Group had trading facilities of approximately HK3$288.8 million as at 31
December 2006, of which HK$186.1 million was utilised. Certain of the Group’s
properties, inventories, trade receivables, bank deposits and all assets of a subsidiary in
an aggregate amount of HIK$385.1 million were pledged to secure the facilities.

Capital commitment
As at 31 December 2006, the Group did not have any material contingent liabilities.
Foreign exchange exposure and hedging policy

It is the management practice of the Group to hedge foreign currency transactions
with the objective to stablise the cost via the pegging of the exchange rates with bankers.
Accordingly, the Group was not exposed to material fluctuations in exchange rates and
related hedges during the year. As at 31 December 2006, the total outstanding foreign
exchange contracts purchased with banks amounted to HK$7 million,

Contingent liabilities

As at 31 December 2006, the Group has contingent liabilities of approximately
HK$1.2 million in respect of proceedings involving a subsidiary in India and HK$11]
million in respect of a bank guarantee issued to the purchaser of the disposed associate
in Jiangmen, the PRC.

Dividend
No dividend is recommended for the year ended 31 December 2006.
Human resources

As at 31 December 2006, the total number of employees of the Group was 365, with
a 15.5% increase from the year 2005. The increase in headcount was mainly due to the
expansion of the car business and the creation of new business units for distribution of
“Alfa Romeo” cars as well as “Horizon” motor yachts. Staff costs, including Directors’
emoluments for the year was approximately HK$68.2 million. Management is committed
to staff motivation and training to ensure that employees of the Group remain stable and
yet competitive in the marketplace.
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For the year ended 31 December 2007

Business review and prospects

Cars and car accessories

The business consists mainly of import, sale, distribution and after-sale service of
“Ferrari”, “Maserati” and “Alfa Romeo” cars and spare parts in Hong Kong and Macau
together with the retailing of “Ferrari” and “Maserati” cars in Dalian, the PRC. Sales
increased by 60.5% to HK$883.8 million during the year, attributable to strong sales of
“Ferrari” and “Maserati” cars and full year sales of “Alfa Romeo” cars. The first “Alfa
Romeo” 38 centre in Hong Kong was opened in 2007. The year 2008 will be delegated
towards achieving good sales growth.

Motor yachis

The business consist of import, sale and distribution of the Italian “Ferretti” motor
yachts in the PRC and the leading Taiwanese “Horizon” motor yachts in Hong Kong,
Macau and the PRC. During the year, a “Horizon” showroom was opened in Hong Kong.
Representative offices will be set out in various coastal cities in China to promote the two
brands. Sales started to pick up in the second half of 2007 and is expected to grow in
2008. The Group is also the licensee and has exclusive right to design, manufacture, sell
and distribute the American “Playboy” brand of motor yvachts in Hong Kong, Macau, the
PRC and Taiwan.

Fashion and accessories

The business consists of the import, distribution, sub-licensing and retailing of
several fashion brands including Italian “John Richmond”, “Richmond ‘X’”, “Richmond
Denim” and “Sweet Years”. One mono brand shop each of “Richmond ‘X’ and “Sweet
Years” was opened in Hong Kong at the end of 2007 and shops for the two brands will
be opened in Hong Kong as well as other major cities in China, like Beijing and Shanghai
in 2008 and beyond.

The Group is also licensed to make American “Playboy” branded female intimate
and swim wears and several counters were established in major department stores. More
are planned to be set out in the coming years.

In January 2008, the Group was appeinted as the exclusive distributor of prestigious
[talian “Marina Yachting” sports clathings in Hong Kong, Macau and Taiwan for five
years up to the spring/summer season of 2013 (extendable for another 5 years subject to
mutual agreement).
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Electrical appliances

The business consists of marketing and distribution of a wide range of consumer and
commercial air-conditioning and home appliance products from four major brands,
namely “MHI” (Mitsubishi Heavy Industries of Japan), “Frigidaire”, “GREE” and
“Bodysonic”; and andio-visual products of the Group's own, “Rogers” and “Bodysonic”;
audio-visual products of Japan, “Denon” and “Marantz” and car electronics of Japan,
“Alpine”. Products include high quality residential and commercial air-conditioning
equipment, electrical home appliances like refrigerators, freezers, washing machines,

wine coolers and car electronics products like CD players, DVD players and monitors.

Sales for the year 2007 dropped by 7.5% as a resuit of the planned scaling back of
the audio-visual business. The Group has re-focused on the British “Rogers” brand on
creating high quality audio speakers and amplifiers for the future. An international
network of distributors is being appointed by the Group to develop the “Rogers” brand
with local expertise in each of these markets.

Property investment

During the year, two wholly-owned subsidiaries engaged in property investment
were disposed for a cash consideration of HK$373 million.

Digital Outdoor Television (Hong Kong) Limited

In August 2007, the Group acquired 10% indirect interest in Digital Outdoor
Television (Hong Kong) Limited which is engaged in the business of provision of outdoor
media advertising and breadcasting network. Its teievision network spreads over 150
locations, including restaurant chains, record stores and computer arcades, with a daily
coverage of over 1,000,000 high spending young adult in Hong Kong. In early 2008,
Digital Outdeor Television (Hong Kong) Limited is the first and only outdoor media
company to bring TVB’s high definitive content from househeld to outdoor. Tt is expected
that the business will bring an operational break even in the coming year.

Prospects

There was no plan for material investment or acquisition of capital assets during the
year.
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Financial review
Turnover

For the year ended 31 December 2007, the Group recorded a nine-year high turnover
of HK$1,153.2 million, a growth of 46.6% compared to the year ended 31 December
2006. All major business segments recorded a growth in turnover, and the car operation
particularly recorded a robust growth for the year.

Gross profit

Gross profit margin decreased by 1.9% from 20.5% for the year ended 31 December
2006 to 18.6% for the year ended 31 December 2007, mainly due to the increase in
product costs of cars during the year. Gross profit for the year increased by HK$53.4
million to HK$215 million.

Distribution costs and administrative expenses

Distribution costs up by 30.9% to HK$72.1 million mainly due to corresponding
increase in turnover during the year.

Administrative expenses increased by HK$25 million from HK$120.2 million to
HK$145.2 million mainly attributable to the corresponding increase in turnover as well
as additional staff and related cost incurred in the course of preparing for the new and
impending business.

Profit from operations

Profit from operations for the year was HK$4.1 million, which was less than the
amount of HK$27.7 million recorded for the year ended 31 December 2006. The decrease
was because an amount of fair value gain of HK$25 million on investment properties
which was included in the profit for the year ended 31 December 2006 was not included
in the profit for the year ended 31 December 2007 as the properties have been disposed
of during the year.

Finance cost increase by HK$3 million from HK$11.4 million to HK$14.4 million
due to the need of more funding to finance the expanded business and for capital
investment in new business during the year.

An impairment of HK$6 million was made in respect of the 10% investment in
Digital Outdoor Television (Hong Kong) Limited as the business is still at development
stage and has yet to build its revenue base.

A provision in the amount of HK$7.5 million was made for a guarantee in respect
of obligations under an agreement relating to the dispose of an associate in June 2000.

The disposal of two wholly-owned subsidiaries during the year resulted in a
significant gain of HK$76 million.

Loss of HK$2 million was recorded for the disposal of an associate in Shanghai, the
PRC and the share of loss incurred by the same associate during the year is HK$1.2
million.
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Basic earnings per share

Earnings per share attributable to Sharcholders (based on profit attributable to
Shareholders of approximately HK$35,677,000 and on weighted average number of
233,898,682 ordinary shares in issued during the year) for the year ended 31 December
2007 was HK$0.15.

Capital structure

During the year ended 31 December 2007, 2,433,042 share options were exercised
and 2,433,042 ordinary shares of HK$1.00 were issued.

On 24 August 2007, 31,266,284 new shares of HK$1.00 were issued and allotted to
the vendors, Yang Pei, Executive Talent Limited and Ye Ai Fang as consideration for the
acquisition of 10% interest in Corning Investments Limited for a consideration of HK$36
million.

Significant investments

As at 31 December 2007, the Group did not have any significant investments.
Material acquisitions and disposal

During the year, two wholly-owned subsidiaries engaged in property investment

were disposed of for a cash consideration of HK$373 million and a one-off gain of HK$76
million was recorded.

Gearing ratio

The Group’s long term gearing ratio based on non-current liabilities (excluding
deferred tax) of HK$13.7 million and shareholders’ equity of HK$380.4 million was
3.6%. The current ratio was 1.9, based on current assets of HK$711.7 million and current
liabilities of HK$384.2 million.

Liquidity and financial resources

The Group was financed by a combination of its equity capital base, cash flow
generated from operations and bank borrowings.

Cash and cash equivalents at 31 December 2007 were HK$363.9 million due to the
disposal of two wholly-owned subsidiaries at the end of November 2007. Cash generated
from operating activities was approximately HK$53.9 million.

The Group had total borrowings of approximately HK$84.3 million as at 31
December 2007.
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Charge of assets

The Group had trading facilities of approximately HK$274.2 million as at 31
December 2007, of which HK$150.2 million was utilised. Certain of the Group’s
properties, inventories, cash deposits and all assets of a subsidiary in an aggregate amount
of HK$156.5 million were pledged 10 secure the facilities.

Capital commitment

As at 31 December 2007, the Group did not have any material contingent liabilities.

Foreign exchange exposure and hedging policy

It is the management practice of the Group to hedge foreign currency transactions
with the objective to stablise the cost via the pegging of the exchange rates with bankers.
Accordingly, the Group was not exposed to material fluctuations in exchange rates and
related hedges during the year. As at 31 December 2007, the total outstanding foreign
exchange contracts purchased with banks amounted to HKS$11.1 million.

Contingent liabilities

As at 31 December 2007, the Group has contingent liabilities of approximately
HK$3.5 million in respect of a bank guarantee issued by a subsidiary to the purchaser of
the disposed associate in Jianmen, the PRC. Contingent liability of approximately
HK$1.2 million in respect of proceedings invoiving a subsidiary in India was no longer
included as the subsidiary concerned has been disposed of during the year.

Dividend

No dividend is recommended for the year ended 31 December 2007.

Human resources

As at 31 December 2007, the total number of employees of the Group was 407, with
a 11.5% increase from the year 2006, The increase in headcount was mainly due to the
expansion of the car business and the set-up of new business unit for distribution of
prestigious branded fashion and accessories businesses. Staff costs, including Directors’
emoeluments for the year was approximately HK$88.7 million. Management is committed
to staff motivation and training to ensure that employees of the Group remain stable and
yet competitive and dynamic in the marketplace.
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For the six months ended 30 June 2008
Business review and prospect
Cars and car accessories

The business consists mainly of import, sale, distribution and after-sale service of
“Ferrari”, “Maserati”, “Alfa Romeo” and “Fiat” cars and spare parts in Hong Kong and
Macau together with the retailing of “Ferrari” and “Maserati” cars in Dalian, the PRC.
Turnover increased by 26.5% to HK$428.4 million as a result of the continued growth of
the car trading business and the expanded service facilities and increased ownership of
brands.

Motor yachts

The business consist of import and distribution of the Italian “Ferretti” motor yachts
in the PRC and the leading Taiwanese “Horizon” motor yachts in Hong Kong, Macau and
the PRC. One “Ferretti” yacht was sold and ready for delivery during the second half of
2008, with encouraging increase in sales prospectus for the remainder of 2008. The first
half of the year also marked the sale of two “Horizon” yachts and a number of orders are
being secured already for 2009.

Fashion and accessories

The business consists of the import, distribution, sub-licensing and retailing of
several fashion brands including Italian “John Richmond”, “Richmond *X’”, “Richmond
Denim” and “Sweet Years”. Mono brand shops of “John Richmond”, “Richmond ‘X" and
“Sweet Years” were opened in Hong Kong and Beijing; new shops for these brands will
be opened in Hong Kong as well as other major cities in the PRC in 2008 and beyond.

The Group is also licensed to make American “Playboy” branded female intimate
and swim wears and, recently, the “Playboy” ladies fashion line. Several counters were
established in major department stores and more are planned to be set out in the coming
years.

The Group acquired a controlling shareholding of 60% equity interest in Creative
Pacific Limited, a company engaged in the business of design, trading and sale of apparel
in the PRC, which together with its subsidiaries, owns the reputed fashion brand “V-one™
with seven clothing lines with different styles. It also maintains a network of about 130
points of sales in key cities in the PRC.

The Group is also in the process of setting a 50/50 joint venture with the Italian
Binda Group to distribute exclusively upmarket and lifestyle watch brands like “Breil
Milano”, “D&G”, “Moschino” and *Ducati” in Hong Kong, Macau and PRC.
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Electrical appliances

The business consists of marketing and distribution of a wide range of consumer and
commercial air-conditioning and home appliance products from major brands, namely
“MHI"” (Mitsubishi Heavy Industries of Japan), “Frigidaire”, “Sansui and “Daewoo”; and
audio-visual products of the Group’s own, “Rogers” and “Bodysonic”; audio-visual
products of Japan, “Denon” and “Marantz” and car electronics of Japan, “Alpine”.
Products include high quality residential and commercial air-conditioning equipment,
electrical home appliances like refrigerators, freezers, washing machines, wine coolers
and car electronics products like CD, iPod and DVD players, TV monitors and GPS
navigation systems.

Turnover for the first half of 2008 was HK$103.5 million which increased by 4.7%
compared with the same period in 2007.

General

The Group has no plan for material investment or capital assets for the six months
ended 30 June 2008.

Financial review

Turnover

For the six months ended 30 June 2008, the Group recorded a turnover of HK$540.9
million, a growth of 18.2% compared to the same period in 2007, The increase was mainly
attributable to the continue growth of the car business.

Gross profit

Gross profit margin for the first six months of 2008 increased by 0.4% from 18.6%
in 2007 to 19.0% in 2008 whilst gross profit increased by HK$17.8 million to HK$103.0
million.

Distribution costs and administrative expenses

Distribution costs were up by 33.2% to HK$41.3 million, mainly due to a general
increase in these costs under the current inflationary economy together with the
corresponding increase in selling costs due to enlarged turnover. The 9.5% increase in
administrative ¢xpenses of HK3$6.3 million from HK$66.2 million of the same period in
2007 to HK$72.5 million in the first half of 2008 mainly attributable to increased
overheads and costs incurred to achieve the corresponding increase in turnover.
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Loss from operations

The Group reposted 2 loss from operations of HK$8.1 million for the first half of
2008 compared to a loss from operations of HK$10.0 miflion for the same period in 2007.
This was mainly due to the loss incurred in the Motor Yacht business which was in
investment stage and the set-up costs incurred for new lifestyle products which have yet
to be recovered from future revenues.

Basic losses per share

Losses per share for losses atiributable to the shareholders of the Company for the
period is HK$0.0582.

Capital structure

There has been no change in the capital structure of the Company during the period
under review,

Significant investments
As at 30 June 2008, the Group did not have any significant investmenis.
Material acquisitions and disposal

Except for the acquisition of 60% interest in Creative Pacific Limited for a
consideration of HK$19.5 million pursuant to a share acquisition agreement dated 16 May
2008, there has been no material acquisition or disposal for the period.

Gearing ratio

The Group’s long term gearing ratio based on non-current liabilities (excluding
deferred tax) of HK$22.4 million and shareholders’ equity of HK$365.1 million was
6.1%. The current ratio was 1.6, based on current assets of HK$777 million and current
liabilities of HK$495.3 millien.

Liquidity and financial resources

The Group was financed by a combination of its equity capital base, cash flow
generated from operations and bank borrowings.

The Group had total borrowings of approximately HK$92.1 million as at 30 June
2008.
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Charge of assets

The Group had trading facilities of approximately HK$310.6 million as at 30 June
2008 of which HK$168.1 million was utilised. Certain of the Group’s properties,
inventories, cash deposits and all assets of a subsidiary in an aggregate amount of
HK$177.2 million were pledged to secure the facilities.

Capital commitment

As at 30 June 2008, the Group did not have any material contingent liabilities.

Foreign exchange exposure and hedging policy

It is the management practice of the Group to hedge foreign currency transactions
with the objective to stablise the cost via the pegging of the exchange rates with bankers.
Accordingly, the Group was not exposed to material fluctuations in exchange rates and
related hedges during the year. As at 30 June 2008, the total outstanding foreign exchange
contracts purchased with banks amounted to HK$30.4 million.

Contingent liabilities

As at 30 June 2008, the Group has contingent liabilities of HK$5.1 million in respect
of guarantee provided by a subsidiary of the Company in settlement of certain liabilities
of a disposed entity incurred prior to the disposal pursuant to a share purchase agreement
and subscription agreecment dated 30 June 2006; and HK$9,750,000, being the balance of
the consideration (subject to adjustment) payable under a share acquisition agreement
dated 16 May 2008.

Dividend

No dividend is declared for the six months ended 30 June 2008.

Human resources

As at 30 June 2008, the total number of employees of the Group was 426,
representing a 9.8% increase in headcount. This is due to the expansion of the car
business group, motar yacht businesses and the set-up of retail shops in Hong Kong and
the PRC of prestigious branded fashion and accessories. Staff cost including Directors’
emoluments for the period was HK$55.5 million. Management is committed to staff
motivation and training to ensure that employees of the Group remain stable and yet
competitive and dynamic in the marketplace.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS OF THE RESULTS OF THE
SKC GROUP

Financial and business performance
For the year ended 28 February 2006

Turnover for the year was approximately HK$121.4 million and cost of sales was
approximately HK$58.2 miltion. Revenue of the SKC Group was mainly generated from
sale of garment products in Hong Kong and the PRC. For the year ended 28 February
2006, approximately 74.4% of the revenue of the SKC Group was generated from
operation in the PRC. Distribution costs and administrative expenses for the year were
approximately HK$54.6 million. The profit attributable to shareholders of the SKC Group
for the year was approximately HK$7 million. Dividend in the aggregate amount of HK$1
million was paid to the holders of the ordinary shares for the year ended 28 February
2006.

As at 28 February 2006, the SKC Group did not have any material investments. The
SKC Group did not have any plan for material investment or capital expenses during the

year.
For the year ended 28 February 2007

Turnover for the year was approximately HK$129.2 million and cost of sales was
approximately HK$55.6 million. Revenue of the SKC Group was mainly generated from
sale of garment products in Hong Kong and the PRC. For the year ended 28 February
2007, approximately 48.2% of the revenue of the SKC Group was generated from
operation in the PRC, representing a decrease of 26.2% from the year ended 28 February
2006. Revenue contribution from the operation in Hong Kong also increased by
approximately 114.2%. The shifted in revenue contribution was mainly due to the
increase in sales of the garment products in Hong Kong. Distribution costs and
administrative expenses for the year were approximately HK$59.3 million, corresponding
with the increase in turnover. The profit attributable to shareholders of the SKC Group for
the year was approximately HK$12.8 million. The increase in profit was mainly
attributable to the increase in turnover and also other revenue from approximately
HK$178,000 to approximately HK$638,000. Other income mainly comprised of interest
income and sundry income. No dividend was paid for the year ended 28 February 2007.

As at 28 February 2007, the SKC Group did not have any material investments. The

SKC Group did not have any plan for material investment or capital expenses during the

year.
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For the year ended 29 February 2008

Turnover for the year was approximately HK$159.7 million and cost of sales was
approximately HK$70.3 million. Revenue of the SKC Group was mainly generated from
sale of garment products in Hong Kong and the PRC, both of which have showed a growth
in the year ended 29 February 2008. Sales in the PRC has increased by approximately
29.7% and sales in Hong Kong has increased by approximately 18.1%. Distribution costs
and administrative expenses for the year were approximately HK$65.2 million,
corresponding with the increase in turnover. The profit attributable to shareholders of the
SKC Group for the year was approximately HK$21.3 million. The increase in profit was
mainly attributable to the increase in turnover and the record of an exchange gain in the
amount of HK$445,000. Dividend in the aggregate amount of HK$5 million was paid to
the holders of the ordinary shares for the year ended 29 February 2008.

As at 29 February 2008, the SKC Group did not have any material investments. The
SKC Group did not have any plan for material investment or capital expenses during the
year.

For the three months ended 31 May 2008

Turnover for the period was approximately HK32.7 million, representing an increase
of approximately a 8.3% increase over the same period in 2007. Revenue of the operation
in both Hong Kong and the PRC recorded an increase compared to the same period last
year. Distribution costs and administrative expenses for the period were approximately
HK$15.8 million, corresponding with the increase in turnover. The profit attributable to
shareholders of the SKC Group for the period was approximately HK$2.6 million,
representing an increase of approximately 225% over the same period in 2007. The
increase in profit was mainly attributable to the increase in turnover,

As at 31 May 2008, the SKC Group did not have any material investments. The SKC
Group did not have any plan for material investment or capital expenses during the
- period.

Financial resources and liquidity
For the year ended 28 February 2006

The SKC Group is principally engaged in the retailing and wholesaling of children
apparels in Hong Kong and the PRC. Its operation is principally financed by its operating
cashflow. As at 28 February 2006, the SKC Group has cash and cash equivalents of
approximately HK$20.6 million. During the year ended 28 February 2006, the SKC
Group has outstanding borrowings of approximately HK$1.99 million. During the year,
the SKC Group obtained new borrowings in the amount of approximately HK$6 million,
bearing interest at market rates and the proceeds were used to finance working capital.
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As at 28 February 2006, the SKC Group had current assets of approximately
HK$57.1 million and net current assets of approximately HK$45.0 million. During the
year ended 28 February 2006, the SKC Group generated cash from operating activities of
approximately HK$4.0 million. As at 28 February 2006, the SKC Group has non-current
assets in the amount of approximately HK$4.2 million, mainly comprise of property, plant
and equipment and interest in an associate.

As at 28 February 2006, the SKC Group has outstanding banking secured bank loans
in the amount of HK$1.99 million. Deposits in the amount of HK$2.0 million was pledged
to banks to secure banking facilities granted to the SKC Group as at 28 February 2006.
Save as disclosed, no property, plant and equipment or other assets of the SKC Group was
pledged or under charges. The SKC Group has no material contingent liabilities as at 28
February 2006.

As at 28 February 2006, the SKC Group's gearing ratio based on borrowings of
HK$1.99 million and shareholders’ equity of HK$49.2 million was 4.0%. Current ratio
was 4.7 based on current assets of HK$57.1 miltion and current liabilities of HK$12.1
million as at 28 February 2006.

There was no movement in capital during the year.
For the year ended 28 February 2007

The SKC Group is principally engaged in the retailing and wholesaling of children
apparels in Hong Kong and the PRC. [ts operation is principally financed by its operating
cashflow. As at 28 February 2007, the SKC Group has cash and cash equivalents of
approximately HK$33.0 million. During the year ended 28 February 2007, the SKC
Group has outstanding borrowings of approximately HK$2.78 miilion. During the year,
the SKC Group obtained new borrowings in the amount of approximately HK$4 million,
bearing interest at market rates and the proceeds were used to finance working capital.

As at 28 February 2007, the SKC Group had current assets of approximately
HK$74.4 million and net current assets of approximately HK$58.1 million. The increase
in current assets was mainly attributable to the increase in inventories and cash and cash
balance as a result of the increase in turnover. During the year ended 28 February 2007,
the SKC Group generated cash from operating activities of approximately HK$15.1
million. As at 28 February 2007, the SKC Group has non-current assets in the amount of
approximately HK$4.3 million, mainly comprise of property, plant and equipment and
interest in an associate.

As at 28 February 2007, the SKC Group has outstanding banking secured bank loans
in the amount of HK$2.78 million. Deposits in the amount of HK$2.0 million was pledged
to banks Lo secure banking facilities granted to the SKC Group as at 28 February 2007.
Save as disclosed, no property, plant and equipment or other assets of the SKC Group was
pledged or under charges. The SKC Group has no material contingent liabilities as at 28
February 2007.
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As at 28 February 2007, the SKC Group’s gearing ratio based on borrowings of
HK$2.78 million and shareholders’ equity of HK$61.0 million was 4.6%. Curreat ratio
was 4.7 based on current assets of HK$74.4 million and current liabilities of HK$16.2
million as at 28 February 2007.

There was no movement in capital during the vear.
For the year ended 29 February 2008

The SKC Group is principally engaged in the retailing and wholesaling of children
apparels in Hong Kong and the PRC. Its operation is principally financed by its operating
cashflow. As at 29 February 2008, the SKC Group has cash and cash equivalents of
approximately HK$52.0 million. During the year ended 29 February 2008, the SKC
Group has outstanding borrowings of approximately HK$1.8 million.

As at 29 February 2008, the SKC Group had current assets of approximately
HK$94.5 million and net current assets of approximately HK$76.7 million. The increase
in current assets was mainly attributable to the increase in trade receivables and cash and
cash balance as a result of the increase in turnover. During the year ended 29 February
2008, the SKC Group generated cash from operating activities of approximately HK$24.6
million. As at 29 February 2008, the SKC Group has non-current assets in the amount of
approximately HK$5.2 million, mainly comprise of property, plant and equipment and
interest in an associate.

As at 29 February 2008, the SKC Group has outstanding banking secured bank loans
in the amount of HK$1.44 million. Deposits in the amount of HK$2.0 million was pledged
to banks to secure banking facilities granted to the SKC Group as at 29 February 2008.
Save as disclosed, no property, plant and equipment or other assets of the SKC Group was
pledged or under charges. The SKC Group has no material contingent liabilities as at 29
February 2008.

As at 29 February 2008, the SKC Group’s gearing ratio based on borrowings of
HK$1.44 million and shareholders’ equity of HK$81.9 million was 1.8%. Current ratio
was 5.3 based on current assets of HK$94.5 miliion and current liabilities of HK$17.9
million as at 29 February 2008.

There was no movement in capital during the year.
For the three months ended 31 May 2008

The SKC Group is principally engaged in the retailing and wholesaling of children
apparels in Hong Kong and the PRC. Tts operation is principally financed by its operating
cashflow. As at 31 May 2008, the SKC Group has cash and cash equivalents of
approximately HK$52.5 million. During the three months ended 31 May 2008, the SKC
Group has outstanding borrowings of approximately HK$1.11 million.
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As at 31 May 2008, the SKC Group had current assets of approximately HK$91
million and net current assets of approximately HK$75.5 million. . The increase in current
assets was mainly attributable to the increase in inventories, trade receivables and cash
and cash balance as a result of the increase in turnover. During the three months ended
31 May 2008, the SKC Group generated cash from operating activities of approximately
HK$5.3 million mainly attributable to the decrease in inventories and trade receivables.
As at 31 May 2008, the SKC Group has non-current assets in the amount of approximately
HK$5.0 million, mainly comprise of property, plant and equipment and interest in an

associate.

As at 31 May 2008, the SKC Group has outstanding banking secured bank loans in
the amount of HK$1.11 million. Deposits in the amount of HK$2.0 million was pledged
to banks to secure banking facilities granted to the SKC Group as at 31 May 2008. Save
as disclosed, no property, plant and equipment or other assets of the SKC Group was
pledged or under charges. The SKC Group has no material contingent liabilities as at 31
May 2008.

As at 31 May 2008, the SKC Group's gearing ratio based on borrowings of HK$1.11
million and shareholders’ equity of HK$80.5 million was 1.4%. Current ratio was 5.9
based on current assets of HK$91.0 million and current liabilities of HK$15.5 million as
at 31 May 2008.

There was no movement in capital during the period.
Foreign currency exposures

Certain of the sales of the SKC Group are denominated in foreign currency and some
the trade receivables and trade payable of the SKC Group are denominated in foreign
currency. The management of SKC Group monitors foreign exchange exposure and will

consider hedging significant foreign currency when the need arises.
Number of employees and remuneration policies

As at 31 May 2008, the SKC Group has 213 employees. Total staff costs incurred
during the three months ended 31 May 2008 was approximately HK$4.48 million. The
SKC Group has 138, 167 and 194 employees as at 28 February 2006, 28 February 2007
and 29 February 2008 respectively. Total staff costs for the year ended 29 February 2008
was approximately HK$19.4 million, representing of 2.6% and 10.9% increase compared
to approximately HK$18.9 million and HK$17.5 million for the year ended 28 February
2007 and 2006, respectively. The increase in staff cost is in line with the increase of head
counts of the SKC Group. Staff benefits include mandatory provident fund contribution.
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RESPONSIBILITY STATEMENT

This circular includes particulars given in compliance with the Listing Rules for the
purpose of giving information with regard to the Group. The Directors collectively and
individually accept full responsibility for the accuracy of the information contained in this
circular and confirm, having made all reasonable enquiries, that to the best of their knowledge
and belief, there are no other facts the omission of which would make any statement herein
misleading.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS IN THE SHARES,
UNDERLYING SHARES AND DEBENTURES OF THE COMPANY

As at the Latest Practicable Date, the interests and short positions of each Director and
chief executive of the Company in the Shares, underlying shares and debentures of the
Company or any associated corporation (within the meaning of Part XV of the SFO)} which are
required to be notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8
of Part XV of the SFO (including interests and short positions which he is taken or deemed to
have under such provisions of SFO): or are required, pursuant to Section 352 of the SFO, to
be entered in the register referred to therein; or are required, pursuant to the Model Code for
Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed Companies to be notified to the Company and
the Stock Exchange are as follows:

(a) Beneficial interests and short positions in Shares as at the Latest Practicable Date:

Number of Shares

Personal Corporate
Director interests interests Total
Mr. Richard Man Fai LEE 2,779,725 116,560,284 119,340,009
{(Note 1)
Mr. Jeff Man Bun LEE 566,280 118,295,146 118,861,426
(Notes I & 2)
Mr. Tik Tung WONG 175,000 - 175,000
Mr. Waison Chit Sing HUI 120,000 - 120,000
Mr. Boon Seng TAN 325,662 - 325,662
Mr. Raymond Cho Min LEE - 2,304,240 2,304,240
{Note 3)
Ms. Kam Har YUE 6,251,659 116,560,284 122,811,943
{(Note 1)

Naotes!

1. The 116,560,284 Shares are held by Modern Orbit Limited, which is wholly owned by Cyber
Tower (PTC) Inc. (formerly known as "Cyber Tower Inc.”) as trustee of The WS Lee Unit Trust.
99% of the units of The WS Lee Unit Trust are held by a discretionary trust of which Mr. Wing
Sum LEE’s family members including Ms. Kam Har YUE, Mr. Richard Man Fai LEE and Mr. Jeff
Man Bun LEE are the beneficiaries. The remaining 1% of the units of The WS Lee Unit Trust is
held by Skylink International Asset Corporation, a company incorporated in the British Virgin
Islands and owned by Ms. Kam Har YUE, Mr. Richard Man Fai LEE and Mr. Jeff Man Bun LEE.
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2. Out of the 118,295,146 Shares, 1.734,862 Shares are held by Fisherman Enterprises Inc., a
company incorporated in the British Virgin Islands and wholly owned by Mr. Jeff Man Bun LEE.

3. The 2,304, 240 Shares are beneficially owned by ODE Asia Limited, which is 100% owned by
M.W. Lee & Sons Enterprises Limited which is controlled by Mr. Raymond Cho Min LEE.

4. All imterests in the Shares are long positions. None of the Directors held any short position in the
Shares.

(b) Beneficial interests and short positions in underlying shares of equity derivatives of
the Company as at the Latest Practicable Date:

No. of Shares Subscription
Date of option attached 1o price per
Director granted the option  Exercisable period Share
HKS
Mr. Richard Man Fai LEE 11 June 2007 264,000 1Y June 2007 - 0.8333
10 Jupe 2013
25 September 2007 120,000 25 September 2007 - 0.8700
(Note 1) 24 September 2013
Mr. leff Man Bun LEE 11 June 2007 120,000 11 June 2007 - (.8333
10 June 2013
25 September 2007 144,000 25 September 2007 - 0.8700
24 September 2013
Mr. Tik Tung WONG 25 September 2007 3,480,000 25 September 2007 - 0.8700
24 September 2013
Mr. Waison Chit Sing HUI 25 September 2007 840,000 25 September 2007 - 0.8700
24 September 2013
Mr. Boon Seng TAN 15 September 2007 204,000 25 September 2007 - 0.8700
24 Seprember 2013
Mr. Raymond Cho Min LEE 11 June 2007 60,000 11 June 2007 - 0.8333
10 June 2013
25 September 2007 204,000 25 September 2007 - (.8700
24 September 2013
Mr. Ying Kwan CHEUNG 11 June 2007 60,000 11 June 2007 - 0.8333
10 June 2013
25 September 2007 204,000 25 September 2007 ~ 0.8700
24 September 2013
Ms. Kam Har YUE 11 June 2007 96,000 11 June 2007 - 0.8333
10 June 2013
25 September 2007 168,000 25 September 2007 - 0.8700

24 September 2013

Notes:
1. The Share opticns granted to Mr. Richard Man Fai LEE’s spouse were included.
2 All interests in the underlying shares of equity derivatives of the Company are long position.

None of the Directors held any short positions in the underlying shares of equity derivatives of
the Company.
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(c} Beneficial interests and short positions in shares in associated corporations as at the
Latest Practicable Date:

Associated
corporations in which
shares or equity
interests are held or

Number of
shares or
amount of equity
interests held or

Class and/or
description of

Directors interested interested shares
Ms. Kam Har YUE Rogers Entertainment 34,335 Non-voting
International Limited deferred shares
Shinwa Engineering 3,850,000 Non-voting
Company, Limited deferred shares
Wo Kee Hong Limited 8,900 Non-voting
{Note 1) deferred shares
Wo Kee Services 1 Non-voting
Limited {Note 2} deferred shares

Notes:
1. 8.500 shares held by Mr. Wing Sum LEE, the spouse of Ms. Kam Har YUE, are included.
2. The 1 share is held by Mr. Wing Sum LEE, the spouse of Ms. Kam Har YUE.

3. All interests in shares in associated corporations are long position. None of the Directors held any
short positions in the shares in associated corporations

Save as disclosed above, none of the Directors and chief executives of the Company
have any interests and short position in the Shares, underlying shares and debentures of
the Company or any associated corporation (within the meaning of Part XV of the SFO)
which are required to be notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to
Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO (including interests and short positions which
he is taken or deemed to have under such pravisions of SFO); or are required, pursuant
to Section 352 of the SFO, to be entered in the register referred to therein; or are required,
pursuant to the Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed Companies
to be notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange as at the Latest Practicable Date.

{d) Directors’ interest in assets andfor arrangement

On 18 January 2008, Wo Kee Hong (B.V.1.) Limited and Mr. Richard Man Fai LEE,
a Director and a controlling shareholder of the Company, entered into an agreement for
the sale and purchase of the entire issued share capital of Sunny Villa Holdings Limited
and assignment of shareholder’s loan for an aggregate consideration of HK$4.3 million.

On 18 September 2008, Auto Italia Limited, an approximately 70.50% owned
subsidiary of the Company purchased a unit of vintage Ferrari from Mr. Richard Man Fai
LEE, a Director and a controlling shareholder of the Company, for a consideration of
HK$4.68 million.
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Save as disclosed, none of the Directors had any direct or indirect interests in any
assets which have been since 31 December 2007 (being the date to which the latest
published audited consolidated accounts of the Group was made up) acquired or disposed
of by or leased to any members of the Enlarged Group, or were proposed to be acquired
or disposed of by or leased to any member of the Enlarged Group.

As at the Latest Practicable Date, there is no contract or arrangement subsisting in
which a Director was materially interested and which was significant in relation to the

business of the Enlarged Group as a whole.

SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDER

As at the Latest Practicable Date, so far as known to the Directors and chief executives

of the Company, persons other than the Directors or chief executives of the Company, who has

an interest or short position in the Shares and underlying shares of the Company which would

fall to be disclosed to the Company under the provisions of Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of

the S
of an

FO, or who is, directly or indirectly, interested in five per cent. or more the nominal value
y class of share capital carrying rights to vote in all circumstances at general meetings of

any member of the Enlarged Group are as follows:

deriv

Notes:

Beneficial interests and short positions in Shares and underlying shares of equity
atives of the Company as at the Latest Practicable Date:

Approximate % of the
total issued Shares
as at the Latest

Shareholder Number of Shares Practicable Date
Modern Orbit Limited 116,560,284 38.33%
(Note 1)

Modern Orbit Limited is wholly owned by Cyber Tower {PTC) lnc. (formerly known as “Cyber Tower Inc.”)
as trustee of The WS Lee Unit Trust. 99% of the units of The WS Lee Unit Trust are held by a discretionary
trust of which Mr. Wing Sum LEE's family members including Ms. Kam Har YUE, Mr. Richard Man Fai LEE
and Mr. Jeff Man Bun LEE are the beneficiaries. The remaining 1% of the units of The WS Lee Unit Trust are
held by Skylink International Asset Corporation, a company incorporated in the British Virgin Islands and
owned by Ms. Kam Har YUE, Mr. Richard Man Fai LEE and Mr. Jeff Man Bun LEE. All of Mr. Richard Man
Fai LEE, Mr. Jeff Man Bun LEE and Ms. Kam Har YUE are directors of the Company.

All interests in Shares and underlying shares of equity derivatives of the Company are long position. None of
the substantial shareholders hold any short positions in the Shares or underlying shares of equity derivatives
the Company.

- 182 -




APPENDIX V GENERAL INFORMATION ON THE ENLARGED GROUP

Save as disclosed, 5o far as known to the Directors and chief executives of the Company,
there are no other persons other than the Directors or chief executives of the Company, who
has an interest or short position in the Shares and underlying shares of the Company which
would fall to be disclosed to the Company under the provisions of Divisions 2 and 3 of Part
XV of the SFO, or who is, directly or indirectly, interested in five per cent. or more of the
nominal value of any class of share capital carrying rights to vote in all circumstances at
general meetings of any member of the Enlarged Group.

DIRECTORS’ INTEREST IN SERVICE CONTRACTS

As at the Latest Practicable Date, none of the Directors has entered or is proposing to
enter into a service contract with any member of the Enlarged Group (excluding contracts
expiring or delerminable within one year without payment of compensation (other than
statutory compensation)).

LITIGATION

As at the Latest Practicable Date, so far as the Directors are aware, no member of the
Enlarged Group was engaged in any litigation or arbitration of material importance and no
litigation or claim of material importance was pending or threatened against any member of the
Enlarged Group.

MATERIAL CONTRACTS

The following contracts (not being contracts entered into in the ordinary course of
business) have been entered into by member of the Enlarged Group within the two years
immediately preceding the date of this circular and are or may be material:

(a) a settlement agreement dated 27 September 2006 entered into among Metro Global
Limited, Jiangmen Washing Machine Factory and Candy Elettrodomestici S.r.l.
setting forth the mechanism for adjustment of the cash consideration under the share
purchase and subscription agreement dated 30 June 2006;

(b) an agreement dated 14 November 2006 entered into between Wo Kee Hong (B.V.L.)
Limited and Surestatus Group Limited for the sale and purchase of issued share
capital of Che Chuen Development Limited for a consideration of HK$1.00;

(c) a share acquisition agreement dated 13 August 2007 entered into between National
Cape Development Limited, Yang Pei, Executive Talent Limited, Ye Ai Fang, Lau
Chi Yuen, Joseph and Yuen Nim Cho in relation to the acquisition of the 10% issued
share capital in Corﬁing Investments Limited for a consideration of HK$36 million;

{d) an agreement dated 13 September 2007 entered into between Wo Kee Hong (B.V.1.)
Limited and MGI HK Investments for the sale and purchase of the entire issued
share capital of Ever Rising Investments Limited and Wo Kee Hong Estates Limited
for a consideration of HK$373,000,000;
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(e) an agreement dated 18 January 2008 entered into between Wo Kee Hong (B.V.1.}
Limited and Mr. Richard Man Fai LEE for the sale and purchase of the entire issued
share capital of Sunny Villa Holdings Limited and the shareholder’s loan for a
consideration of HK$4.3 million;

(f) an agreement for sale and purchase agreement dated 8 May 2008 entered into
between Common Joy Limited and Liking Industrial Limited for the sale and
purchase of the property located at Office 3, 5th Fioor, Bank of America Tower,
No.12 Harcourt Road, Hong Kong for a consideration of HK$26,800,000;

(g) an agreement dated 16 May 2008 entered into between Famous Name Holdings
Limited, Victory Globe International Limited, Mr. Chan Chun Wa, Vincent and the
Company for the sale and purchase of 60% of the issued share capital of Creative
Pacific Limited for a consideration of HK$19,500,000 (subject to adjustments); and

(h) the Sale and Purchase Agreement.
EXPERT AND CONSENT

The following is the qualification of the expert who has given reports which are contained

in this circular:
Name Qualification

HLB Hodgson Impey Cheng Chartered Accountants
Certified Public Accountants

As at the Latest Practicable Date, HLB Hodgson Impey Cheng did not have any direct or
indirect shareholding interest in any member of the Enlarged Group or any right (whether
legally enforceable or not) to subscribe for or to nominate persons to subscribe for shares in
any member of the Enlarged Group and did not have any interest, direct or indirect, in any
assets which had been, since 31 December 2007, acquired or disposed of by or leased to any
member of the Enlarged Group, or were proposed to be acquired or disposed of by or leased
to any member of the Enlarged Group.

HLB Hodgson Impey Cheng has given and has not withdrawn its written consent to the
issue of this with the inclusion herein of its reports and references to its name in the form and
context in which they are included.

COMPETING INTEREST

As at the Last Practicable Date, in so far as the Directors are aware, none of the Directors
or their respective associates (as defined in the Listing Rules) had any interest in a business
which competes or likely to compete with the business of the Group.
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MISCELLANEOUS

(a)

(b)

(c)

(d)

The registered office of the Company is at Canon’s Court, 22 Victoria Street,
Hamilton HM 12, Bermuda and the principal office of the Company in Hong Kong
is at 10th Floor, Block A, Wo Kee Hong Building, 585-609 Castle Peak Road, Kwai
Chung, New Territories, Hong Kong.

The company secretary of the Company is Ms. Phyllis NG, who is an associate
member of The Hong Kong Institute of Chartered Secretaries.

The qualified accountant of the Company is Mr. Tik Tung WONG, who is a fellow
member of the Association of Chartered Certified Accountants and associate
member of Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants.

The English text of this circular shall prevail over the Chinese text in case of any
inconsistency.

DOCUMENTS AVAILABLE FOR INSPECTION

Copies of the following documents will be available for inspection at 10th Floor, Block
A, Wo Kee Hong Building, 585-609 Castle Peak Road, Kwai Chung, New Territories, Hong
Kong during the normal business hours from the date of this circular up to and including 14
October 2008:

(a)

(b)

(c)

(d)

(e)

(f)

(g)

the Memorandum of Association of the Company and Bye-laws;

the accountant’s report of the Group, the text of which is set out in Appendix [ to
this circular;

the accountant’s report of the SKC Group, the text of which is set out in Appendix
II to this circular;

the report from HLB Hodgson Impey Cheng on the unaudited pro forma financial
information of the Enlarged Group, the text of which is set out in Appendix III to
this circular,

the annual reports of the Company for the two years ended 31 December 2006 and
2007;

the written consent given by HLB Hodgson Impey Cheng referred to in this
Appendix;

the material contracts referred to in this Appendix;
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(h)

the circular issued by the Company dated 9 May 2008 in relation to the acquisition
of a property as referred to in (f) of the paragraph headed “Material Contracts” in
this appendix which constituted a discloseable transaction for the Company under
Chapter 14 of the Listing Rules; and

the circular issued by the Company dated 6 June 2008 in relation to the acquisition
of 60% interest in a company engaging in design, trading and sale of apparel
business in the PRC as referred to in (g) of the paragraph headed “Material
Contracts” in this appendix which constituted a discloseable transaction for the
Company under Chapter 14 of the Listing Rules.
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"™

WO KEE HONG (HOLDINGS) LIMITED
MR (M) ARAF

(fncorporated in Bermuda with limited liability)

(Stock Code: 720)

NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN that a special general meeting of WO KEE HONG
(HOLDINGS) LIMITED (the “Company”™) will be held at Crystal Room, 3rd Floor, Panda
Hotel, 3 Tsuen Wah Street, Tsuen Wan, New Territories, Hong Kong on Tuesday, 14 October

2008 at 10:00 a.m. or any adjournment thereof, for the purpose of considering and, if thought

fit, passing with or without modification, the following resolution as an ordinary resolution of

the Company:

ORDINARY RESOLUTION

“THAT:

(a)

the sale and purchase agreement (the “Sale and Purchase Agreement”) dated 2
September 2008 (a copy of which is tabled at the meeting and marked “A” and
initialled by the chairman of the meeting for identification purpose) entered into
between Smart Apex Holdings Limited (“Smart Apex”), a wholly-owned subsidiary
of the Company as the purchaser, Ms. Chu Wan Kam Sabrina, Ms. Yeung Sui King
and eight other individual/body corporate named therein as vendors (collectively the
“Vendors”), in respect of the acquisition by Smart Apex of 80% of the issued share
capital of SKC Group Limited (“SKC”) from the Vendors, for a total consideration
of HK$96,200,000 subject to adjustment and the transactions contemplated
thereunder, including but not limited to the grant of the put option by Smart Apex
to the Vendors to purchase up to 20% of the issued share capital of SKC exercisable
during the period from 1 January 2011 to 31 December 2015 at a consideration to
be determined by reference to a price earnings ratio of 6.5 times of the audited
consolidated net profit of SKC for the immediately preceding financial year or the
audited consolidated net profit of SKC for the immediately preceding 12 months up
to 30 June (as the case may be), be and arc hereby approved, confirmed and ratified,;
and

* for identification purpose only
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(b) any one director, or any two directors of the Company if the affixation of the
common seal is necessary, be and isfare hereby authorised for and on behalf of the
Company to execute all such other documents, instruments and agreements and to
do all such acts or things deemed by him/her to be incidental to, ancillary to or in
connection with the matters contemplated in or relating to the Sale and Purchase
Agreement and completion thereof as he/she may consider necessary, desirable or

expedient.”

By order of the Board
WO KEE HONG (HOLDINGS) LIMITED
Phyllis NG
Company Secretary

Hong Kong, 26 September 2008

Registered office:
Canon’s Court
22 Victoria Street

Hami
Berm

lton HM12
uda

Principal place of business in Hong Kong:

10th

Floor, Block A

Wo Kee Hong Building
585-609 Castle Peak Road

Kwai

Chung, New Territories

Hong Kong

MNotes:

A shareholder entitled to attend and vote at the above meeting may appoint another person as his proxy to
attend and to vote in his stead. A shareholder who is the holder of two or more shares may appoint more than
one proxy to attend on the same occasion. A proxy need not be a shareholder of the Company.

Where there are joint registered holders of any Share, any one of such persons may vote at the meeting, either
personally or by proxy, in respect of such Share as if he were solely entitled thereto; but if more than one of
such joint holders are present at the meeting personally or by proxy. that one of the said persons so present
whose name stands first on the register of members of the Company in respect of such Shares shall alone be
entitled to vote in respect thereof.

In order to be valid, the form of proxy duly completed and signed in accordance with the instructions printed
thereon together with the power of attorney or other authority, if any, under which it is signed or a notarially
certified copy thereof must be delivered to the principal office of the Company in Hong Kong at 10th Floor,
Block A, Wo Kee Building, 585-609 Castle Peak Road, Kwai Chung, New Territories, Hong Kong not less than
48 hours before the time appointed for holding the meeting or any adjournment thereof.

Completion and return of the form of proxy will not preclude shareholders frem atiending and voting in person
at the meeting or any adjourned meeting or upon the poll concerned if they so wish. In such event, the
instrument appointing the proxy shall be deemed to be revoked.
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Pursuant to bye-law 70 of the bye-laws of the Company, a poll may be demanded in relation to any resolution
put to the vote of the meeting before or on the declaration of the results of the show of hands or on the
withdrawal of any other demand for a poll:

(a) by the chairman of the meeting: or

(b} by at least three shareholders present in person or by a duly authorised corporate representative or by
proxy for the time being entitled to vote at the meeting; or

(c) by any shareholder or shareholders present in person or by a duly authorised corporate representative
or by proxy and representing not less than one-ternth of the total voting rights of all the shareholders
having the right 1o aitend and vote at the meeting; or

(d) by any shareholder or shareholders present in person or by a duly authorised corporate representative
or by proxy and holding shares in the Company conferring a right to vote at the meeting being shares
on which an aggregate sum has been paid up equal 1o not less than one-tenth of the total sum paid up
on all the shares conferring that right.
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. _— .
Wo Kee Hong (Holdings) Limited =2
(Incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability)
(the “Company™)

Minutes of Meeting of Executive Directors’ Committee of the Company held at 10/F,,
Block B, Wo Kee Hong Building, 585-609 Castle Peak Road, Kwai Chung, New Territories,
Hong Kong on 24 September 2008

Present: Mr. Richard Man Fai LEE

(a)

(b

Mr. Jeff Man Bun LEE

Mr. Tik Tung WONG

Mr. Waison Chit Sing HUI =
/v o S
Chairman ::_;_1_ | ;
- v
Mr. Richard Man Fai LEE took the chair of the Meeting, 3 b jE
AR >
Quorum — U
!

The necessary quorum for the Meeting was present.

Expiry of Share Options

It was noted that pursuant to Clause 7(a) of the 2002 Share Option Scheme adopted
by the Company on 30 May 2002 (the “2002 Scheme™), the options should lapse
automatically on the expiry of the Option Period.

It was reported, confirmed, approved and ratified that the options listed on the
Appendix A be and were lapsed as at 24 September 2008.

It was also noted that pursuant to the Clause 7(b) of the 2002 Share Option Schemes
adopted by the Company on 30 May 2002 (the “2002 Scheme™), the Options should
lapse automatically on the expiry of the period of three months following the date
the Grantee ceased to be the employee of the Company or its relevant Subsidiaries.

It was reported that the employee listed on the Appendix B had ceased to be the
employee of the Company or its relevant Subsidiaries as at 30 June 2008.

It was resolved that the Options granted to the employee listed on the Appendix B
be lapsed pursuant to Clause 7(b) of the 2002 Scheme.

Termination

There being no further business, the Chairman declared the Meeting closed.

/{ / Chairman



Share Options lapsed due to the expiry of the Option Period under 2002 Share Option Scheme

on 24 September 2008
Name'sf Eliible P . Norof Option(s) Lapsed © .-
LEE Cho Min Raymond 1,372
LEE Man Bun Jeff 171,600
LEE Man Faij Richard 2,659,113
LEE Wing Sum 76,876
Total no. of share option(s) lapsed 2,908,961




Share Options Lapsed under the 2002 Share Option Scheme due to Termination of
Employment of Grantee on or before 30 June 2008

s[5 Date'of Termination of - J o oo = 3r i oy
' T e T - No. of Option(s). Lapsed ' ’
. “Employmerit . L P (.) p .

LO Shing Chuen 20/02/2008 60,000

Total no. of share options lapsed 60,000

END



